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Who we are

Euromoney is a global information services business
providing essential B2B information to global and
specialist markets. We provide price discovery,
essential market intelligence and events across

our segments. We are listed on the London Stock
Exchange and a member of the FTSE 250 share index.

Our Purpose is to deliver sustainable value to
customers, returns to shareholders, opportunities
for employees and contributions to the communities
within which we operate, by bringing clarity and
insight to opaque markets.

Our Strategy is to manage a portfolio of businesses
in markets where information, data and convening
market participants are valued; and to deliver
products, services and events that support our
clients’ critical activities. We serve markets which
are semi-opaque, that is, where information which
organisations need to operate effectively is hard

to find.

We are continuing our transition to becoming a
group of 3.0 businesses, characterised by being
embedded in clients workflows. being part of
the industry structure. being solution-centric,
and delivering revenues based on customer
outcomes. This ensures we focus on long-term
value generation and consistent returns for
investors, benefiting all stakeholders.

O Further infermation can be found online by visiting
our website at euromoneyple.com
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We deliver products and
services that support our
clients’ critical activities

>

See Chief Executive’s

review on

Our
Oth

page 8

We celebrated our 50th
anniversary as a Group

in June this year

See Group at a glance

Year on page 2
Our capital allocation
strategy supports our
strategic objectives Ve T H
N ./

See our business model
on page &

Financial highlights

Total revenue

£401.7m

Adiustewd profit before tax

£104.6m

;-\d;'usted diluted ;a-rni-ngs per share

77.6p

Dividend per share

Statutory revenue

£2561Im

Statutery prefit before tax

£29.5om

Statatery dituted rarnings ger share

tol7

Ad usted measures include the results of continuing and aiscont nued eperations, and exclude
the impact of amortisahon of acquired intangible assets exceptrenal items and other adiusting
tems in accordance with the Group's pourcy set out on pages 15 ana 16

Total revenue represents the combined reported cevenus from continuing and discontinued
operations
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Strategic Report

Group at a glance

The Group actively manages a portfolio of B2B information services
businesses. We operate where information, data and convening market
participants support our clients’ critical activities

Asset
Management

Focus

Provides independent investment
research, with networks and

Divisions

conferences that bring asset

allocators and investors

together, and critical industry

news and data

* |nstitutional Investor
* Investment Research

Pricing, Data
& Market

Intelligence

Focus

Provides information and analysis
critical for our clients’ business
processes and workflows,
including our price reporting
agency and our Telecoms and
Specialist Information businesses

Divisions

* Fastmarkets
* Specialist Infermation

+ Telecoms

Banking
& Finance

Getober 2018
Our obe
*+ Mining Indaba
th disposal completed
= New Fastmarkets
brand launched for
Year our price reperting
: , : business
1IN review
_-_
= Fastmarkets
. TSN
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Focus

Provides market intelligence,

thought leadership. news,

Divisions

training and confarences to

the global finance industry,

including the flagship
Euromoney magazine

November 2018 Jarvary 2019
« 2018 results + Global Diversity
confirmed Week held for all

encouraging
performance and
strategic progress

Euromoney staff

February 2019

e Annual Gereral
Meeting

* David Pritchard,
Acting Chanrman,
and Andrew
Ballingal step
down from the
Board

* Final Dividend paid
+ Completion
of BoardEx

and The Deal
acguistion

+ Numis appointed
as joint corporate
broker

* Banking & Finance

March 2019

* Lesle Van de
Walle appeinted
as Chairman on
1 March




Buring the year. we reported on three segments (Asset
Management, Pricing. Data & Market Inteligence, and Banking
& Finonce) served by six divistons, which is reflected in the table
below. Our reporting of financial performance by segment in this
Annual Report reflects this structure

On1Qctober 2019, we changed our segmental reporting for
the 2020 reporting year. The Greup is now organised into the
following three segments Asset Management (comprising the

Segment revenue

£145.6m

Segment adjusted operating profit

£62.2m

Segment revenue

£196.4m

Segment adjusted operating profit

£694m

Segment revenue

£61.2m

Segment adjusted operating profit

£13.7m

April 2019

* DMGT share
distribution
completed

* Tim Collier and
Kevin Beatty step
down from the
Board

* Board, governance
and committee
chanages effective

+ Fastmarkets attains
additional IOSCO
accreditation for
four new index
prices

May 2017
s Half Year results

= Townhall meetings
for all staff covering
financial resuits
and staff survey
results

Institutional Investor and Investment Resaarch divisions), which

ot the date of this report s the subject of a strategic review which
continues; Pricing (the Fastmarkets division), and Data & Market
tntelligence (comprising the Financial & Professional Services and
Telecoms divisions) The Financial & Professional Services division
was created on 1 Cctober 2019 by the combination of the Group's
Banking & Finance and Specialst Information divisions

MNurnber of employees

398

Number of employees

1,287

Number of employees

196

June 2017
+ Group's 50th
annwversary

* Special
Euromoney
anniversary
edition published

+ Euremaoney@50
Chanty Awards

s Intenm Dwidend
pand

+ Fastmarkets
annaunces
lithium pricing
partnership with
Londen Metal
Exchange

» [TW Conference
held in Atlanta
with 7.000
attendess

* Inaugural meeting
of the Group's
Employee Forum

EURBMONHIS®)

2618
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Key brands

¢ |nstitutional Investor

BCA Research

* Ned Davis Research

Key brands

L

Fastmarkets
BoardEx
Insurance Insider
Capacity Media

International Telecoms Week

Key brands

»

Euromoney
Global Capital
IMN

July 2019

* Group Capital

Markets Day

+ Launch of new

Group corporate
website

August 2019

* Essential Allies
Driving Diversity
Farward {aint event
for staff with Delortte

September 2017

* Tim Pennington
jeins the Board
as Nen-Executive
Director

+ BCAand NDR
brand relaunches

« Strategic review of
Asset Management
announced
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Strategic Report

Chairman’s introduction

14

We have a clear strategy, a strong
executive ream to deliver it and
a bright future as an independent
group. We continue to make good
progress on delivering our strategic
goals and have reshaped our
approach to governance.

Leslie Van de Walle

Chairman

Becoming a 3.0 business

828 Information 1.0
Print
Monalogue
Advertising-centric

Product-centric

Intreduction

I joined Euromoney as Chairman on 1 March, following the
retirement of David Prtchard, who served on cur Board for almost
10 years and was lotterly Acting Chairman You can find more
information regarding the review processes that resulted in my
appointment in the Nominations Committee report on page 70 tis
important that all Beard appointment processes are transparent,
comprehensive and robust, and the selection process led by David
impressed me

| am fortunate to have inherited a particularly focused,
collegiate, constructively challenging and expenenced set of
Board colleagues from Dawid, each of whom bring insight, wide
experience and sharp analytical skills to our work In terms of
tenure, we are a fairly new Board and are continually improving
the way we work in order to optimise the skills, knowledge and
experience of our individual Board members to address the wide
range of matters we have under review

In the short period of time | have been with the Company. | have
already developed a positive working relationship with the
management team and am very supportive of the excellent work
they are doing to implement the Company's strategy

Independence

We announced in Apnl that our significant shareholder. Daily Mail
and General Trust group (DMGT). had completed the distribution of
its 49% shareholding in the Group to certain of its own sharehaolders

04
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B2E Inférmation 2.0

Dialogue

Subscriptions

Cust_bmer-centric

B2B Information 3.0
Embedded in workflow

Part of the industry structure

Revenves based on value to
custemer

Solution-centric

>
7

Euromaoney has been fortunate to benefit from DMGT's
considerable support since Sir Patrick Sergeant founded the
business in 1969 Without that support. Euromoney would not be
the company it is today Itis to the great credit of the DMGT Board
and in particular Lord Rothermere to have seen the value which
could be created for all stakeholders through an independent
Euromoney Our Board supported DMGT's decision which provides
an opporturity for the Group to accelerate its strategy.

DMGT's distribution has not resulted in a change of strategic
direction for Euromoney, but has had important, positive
implications for the Group Firstly, the distribution considerably
broadened the Group's shareheolder base, introduced new
shareholders, and importantly Increased daily liquidity in the
traded shares

Secondly. Euromeney immediately became a fully independent
FTSE 250 group. which included DMGT's representative directors
stepping down from the Beard and its Committees on 2 April

We thank DMGT for their support over almaost 50 years and their
defining role in both creating and shaping the devetopment of
the Group

Board changes
I'would like to acknowledge the considerable contrnbution made
by Board members who stepped down during the year.



Following over six years' service, Andrew Baliingal retired from
the Board at the Annual General Meeting in February. The Board
thanked Andrew for his advice and gquidance over many years
atthe AGM David Pritchard retired as Acting Chairman on

28 February having completed a characterisheally comprehensive
and diligent handover to me ahead of my appointment

Dawvid served the Board with distinction for over 10 years inttially
as a Non-Exscutive Director, then as both Senior Independent
Director and Acting Chairman David alse successfully chaired
the Audit & Risk Committee for many years The Board wishes to
underline ts thanks to Dowvid as he enjoys his retirement

fwould like to thank Tim Collier and Kevin Beatty for their counsel
and input during their service on the Board prior to stepping down
as DMGT representative diractors in April

Turning to the future. In September we welcomed Tim Pennington
to the Board as a Nen-Executive Director and member of the Audit
& Risk Committes Tim 15 a vastly experienced listed company CFO,
and is already contributing positively to the Beard's deliberations
and strategic planning

The Board was delighted to recently appeoint Jan Babiak as the
Group's Senier Independent Director, and Jan will continue to
contribute her considerabls international experience as a Non-
Executive Director on global listed company boards andg her
financial, audit and systems acumen to her enhanced role

Finally. Trstan Hillgarth has indicated that he will not seek re-election
atthe AGM in january 2020, having served seven years as a Non-
Executive Tristan continues to be a valued member of the Board and
several committees, and his contributions will be greatly missed.

Culture, valves and people

There is a great diversity of experience. opinion and education
amaongst Board members and we noted last year that we joined
the "30% Club’. We recognise that a diverse Board both improves
the gualty of the Board's debate and can influence the tene within
a company While delighted with cur continued membership of
the '30% Club', diversity is of course awider 1ssue than gender.
While the Board should always ultmately appeint based on
ment, we acknowledge the need to ensure that our shortlists for
all appointments maximise the coportunity for the Board to reflect
a wider sense of diversity over time. This is an approach that |
know Andrew supports when hirng senior managemenit and the
appreach is starting to pay dividends dacross our organisation

My first Board meeting coincided with the Group's Global Diversity
Week and provided me with an excellent opportunity to mest

staff representing a range of grassroots groups, such as the Race
& Faith. LGBTQ&A and Wellbeing groups. More recently, the
Women@Euromoney group hosted a Board Q&A lunch | am
impressed by the energy and vibrancy of these groups and | know
that Andrew is working hard to foster a culture which encourages
them to develop and grow.

| have enjoyed mesating a wide range of colleagues in London,
New York and Montreal since my appointment and. more recently.
in Hong Kong and China

Governance

As you read this report, you will see that corporate governance
underpins and supports our business and the decisions we make
I have spent time during my first few menths reviewing and. |
hope. enhancing our approach to governance. particularly with
a view to compliance with the 2018 version of the Corporate
Governance Code

Our compiliance with the 2016 version of the Code 15 discussed
in more detail in the Corporate Governance report on page 56
In key changes. the Board new benefits from an independent

Chairman on appomtment. a new Senior Independent Director,
and a newly appointed Non-Executive with considerable financial
experience Composition of our Committees is naw fully compliant
We have also strengthened a number of our board processes and
group policies, and these are discussed later in this Report

| personally took time to shape the annual Board performance
evaluation exercise this year, which was completed internally.

The evaluation guestionnaires sought to gauge opinien on the
Group s performance, strategy, governance, my contribution since
appeointment and key events in the year | then held individual
review meetings with each director to discuss the results and any
actions. It was reassuring that the evaluations were very positive.
and identified many clear strengths We have agreed an action
plan to make further improvements as o Board

The Board was pleased to agree the Group’s new Corporate
Purpose statement in line with the expectations of the Code.

The statement is simply an iteration of the Group strategy and
provides a succinct statement of cur core objectives. which are to
better serve our clients with critical infermation through embedded
workflow solutions. You will find the statement on the inside front
cover of the report

Strategy

Andrew will discuss our strategy and the related decisions the
Board has taken this year in mere detail in his CEQ Review.

| wanted to frame that discussion though by referring to the
two-day offsite meeting the Board held in June to conduct a
thorough and detailed health check of our strategy | was equally
impressed by our executives’ willingness to encourage challenge
as | was by the Board's willingness to engage in constructive and
decisive debate

The meeting was very effective and considered a wide range of
themes. risks and opportunities, reflective of the Group's different
businesses and markets Importantly. it resulted in tangible cutputs
Whilst we have not made changes to our strategy, we have taken
significant decisions including to commence a strategic review of
our asset management businesses as a result Monitoring of these
areas will be a continuing pricrity for the Board

Dividend

The Board is very pleased to recommend a final dividend of 22.3
pence which subject to shareholder approval will mean a total
dividend for 2019 of 331 pence, a 2% increase year-on-year. This is
in kne wath the Group's progressive dividend policy to pay-out
approximately 40% of adjusted diluted earnings per share

Stakeholders

Euromoney's success is predicated on an appreciation of the
importance of making decisions that benefit our shareholders
while taking account of the impact on cur employees, business
partners, markets and the communities in which we operate

This report therefore seeks to provide mare depth, reflect a broader
cross-section of cur pecple, and discuss matters important for our
stakeholders | hope you find tinsightful

| have found my first few months as Chairman stimulating.
challenging and rewarding | leok forward to meeting sharehalders
wheo can attend our AGM in January and to working with the Board
and all of my colleagues ot Euromoney in the years ahead.

Leslie Van de Walle
Chairman

21 Novermnber 2019
05

Eurornoney Institutional Investor PLC 2 ool St o o s 207

w0
-
Q
=3
{1 ]
@,
(3]
2
&
T
o]
=
-




Strategic Report

Our business model

Qur business model provides an operating framework for each of
our segments, enabling our businesses to serve our customers’ needs.
We create content such as data, research, analysis and rankings,
and make them available to our customers to use in their workflows.
This creates value for all our stakeholders

Our people, brands and We map our businesses along two
products combine to enable us > dimensions, industry structure and >
to meet our customers’ needs cycle, to create our quadrants. We

allocate capital to the top two quadrants

ltur . .

People and culture and withdraw capital from the bottom two
* Euromoney is known for its entrepreneurial culture.
We empower our teams to deliver the best for their

customers, businesses and fast-moving markets i This creates our quc:tdrants that identify

+ Our people are creative. action-orientated, close © when and where to invest and where to
to their customers, passionate about their brands, i ithd ital:
knowledgeable abaout the industries they serve wi raw capitat.
and accountable for their results

: B2B information 3 0
*+ We have mere than 2.150 staff working in 32 offices :
across more than 11 countries whe contribute to ’

QUr sUccess

Cust Prepare for Invest
ustomer:
s the upturn

* We havea globaiccustomer base ‘wlt‘h revenues o Protect and enhance + New product

SRPl’i 0?{;\’/55 lkc'i“iégé"’//;) North America (41%) and competitive position development

est of Wor ;
D, o ) i * Investin acquisitions « Investin sales and

* Our customers are financial institutions, investment i when cycle turns marketing

banks, commeodity traders. miners, asset managers. | o N

governments, corporations. professional service , * Opportunistic * Acquisition

providers, consultants and technology providers i revenue initatives * Fix any cperational
* Our customers’ level of spend is affected by their * Tighten cost control deficit

profitability, expectations of market developments = Fix any operational deficit = Accelerate transition

and the regulatory environment 030

* Gur products enable ocur customers to operate

effectively in their market - ] [+ ]

" Chollenged S
Trusted brands kot . . morker
tailwinds

* We deliver products and services which are part

» Disinvest Use the time wisel

of our customers’ workflow
* We have globally recognised and trusted brands s Maximise short-term « Modest investment to
* We have long-standing relationships with buyers profit and cash move fo top-right

and sellers « Divest guadrant

. . ‘ * Maximise short-term

Agile products and technotogy Prevent future build-up orofit and cosh
* We use a central stack that provides a scalable i » Fix any operational deficit

technology platform for our businesses ;
, ) ! * Consider divestment
* Ourtechnology teams implement and maintain

specific systems within their own businesses that i

enable them te cperate effectively B2B infermation 1 0

* Where possible we use cloud-based nen-configured
services to reduce cost and complexity . The quadrants guide our investment decisions, capital

* We benefit from a best-of-both worlds appreach to IT altocation and define our strategic priorities
that creates scale and flexibility
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our products and services are s

The characteristics of our businesses mean that

calable, cash >

generative and deliver strong, sustained earnings

—— O,

.

Create once, sell many

We create content such as data,
research, analysis and rankings
across a range of different product
streams and markets that can be
scaled. This reduces production costs
and increases margimn

Recurring revenues

The majority of our revenues are i
subscription-based and therefore ‘
predictable and recurring |
The majority of our events are repeat oo
events This enables us to accurately

predict revenues and results in stability

for our businesses.

We generate revenue in the foll

i o
. Subscription revenues

v
e S VS

Must-have content

We provide must-have and hard-to-
get Infermation We serve markets
where the information organisations
need in order to operate effectively is
hard to find Therefore, in the markets
we serve, many of our customers

do not regard our services as a
discretionary spend

Low capital intensity

Our businesses and products use
common infrastructure. skill sets

and have a high cash conversion
rate This reduces working capital
requirements and improves cash flow.

owing ways

Creating value for
our stakeholders:

Shareholders

Customers

Employees 3
Partners

Read about the value

we create and how

we engage with our

stakeholders on
pages 30 to 37.

£
d
[~
1]
w
(]
)
1]
5°]
]
-+

are the recurring subscription fees that customers pay to receive access to the
Group's information through tools and platforms which form part of our customers’
daity workflow Asset managers also subscribe to Institutional Investor's exclusive
membership groups

Event revenues | Advertising revenues

are fees paid by customers to attend.
sponsor or be associated with events, |
conferences. training courses or Cy
seminars ‘

are fees paid by custormers to place
an advertisement in one or more of
our publications

As well as selling more traditional
brand and product advertising, we
alse meet our customers thought-
leadership marketing needs

S L
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Strategic Report

Chief Executive’s review

Introduction

In 2019, the 50th anniversary of the Group we became fully
independent following DMGT's distribution of its stake to

its shareholders.

At our Capital Markets Day in July, we reaffirmed our strategy

of becoming o fully 3 0 company. that is. one which provides

data and analysis powered workflow and must-attend events to
customers in cpagque markets to enable their most critical decisions
and processes

Our jeurney to 3.0 continues to accelerate. particularly in our
Pricing. Data & Market Inteligence (PDMI) segment. although we
did not achieve underlying revenue growth across cur other twe
segments Good growth in PDMI was offset by weakness in our
Asset Management businesses caused largely by slow sales to
new customers at BCA Research,

We were able to make strategic progress and, at the same time.
deliver strong underlying profit growth for a third successive year.
despite those slow new sales at BCA Research by following our
strategy. making efficient use of our shared rescurces and tight
cost control

We announced in September a strategic review of our Asset
Management businesses. Institutional Investor, BCA Research
and Ned Davis Research, to determine whether there is a better
owner to see through necessary changes and investment to
unlock growth opportunities. This would free up capitalin line
with cur strategic pillar of active portfolioc management to invest
in businesses that are more clearly 3 0 today That review is in
progress and | would like to thank the leaders in the businesses
and their teams for their hard work continuing to serve our
customers while alse working on the review We will provide an
update on the outcome in due course In the meantime, as we
discussed at the Capital Markets Day. we have a strong plan to
address the sales and marketing issues at BCA Research and to
capitalise on the fast-growth segments at Ned Davis Research
We continue to execute that plan.

08
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In 2019, the 50th anniversary
of the Group, we became
tully independent.

Andrew Rashbass
Chief Executive Officer

Pricing, Data and Market Intelligence

We have heard from shareholders that you would value seeing
our price-reporting business, Fastmarkets, highlighted more clearly
in our discussions of the Company Therefore, although we are
presenting our results in the segments we operated through during
the year (Asset Management: Pricing, Data & Market Intelligence:
and Banking & Finance), in future we will separate Pricing
{effectively Fastmarkets) and include the small Banking & Finance
segment In Data & Market Intelligence Asset Management is
unchanged. We have restructured our leadership team to reflect
this change.

Business highlights

This year, we have made excellent progress on moving our
businesses toward cur 3 0 model As part of aur strategy to
invest around big themes, our pricing division. Fastmarkets. has
committed to developing a lithium benchmark with the Londen
Metal Exchange By collaborating with the LME at this early
stage —and developing a hedging mechanism with the market
—we improve the chance of our prices establishing the long-
term benchmark and a derivative that provides real value to the
lithium industry.

Simultanecusly, Fastmarkets has developed a new platform that
transfarms our operating model by delivering our data directly to
our customers and embedding our product in their werkflow.

In October 2018 we completed the sale of Mining Indaba. and
earlier in 2019 acquired BeardEx and The Deal in line with cur
strategy to actively manage our portfolio The acquisition has
strengthened our ability te collaborate and cross-selt products and
services as well as enable us to enact future sustainable growth
opportunities and maximise our short-term profit and cash

Financial performance

The strong performance in PDMI continued to be offset by
challenges in Asset Management Wendy discusses the financial
performance in more detail in her Chief Financial Officer's review



People

We continue to deliver because of our unrivalled team We
increased our investment In devaleping our people. launching
training programmes across the Group We have introduced a
programme for all sales people to give them the skilis they need
to sell 3 0 selutions We have launched an early-careers academy
to make sure we develop stoff from the start of their working lives
Our Al academy makes sure all aur technologists have the right
level of knowladge for their role We have trained more than

100 of our most senior leaders an the unigue mix of skills needed
for running 3 0 businesses Recogrusing that a large partof a
colleague's work expenience 1s determined by their relationship
with their manager. we have trained all cur managers on the
fundamentals of managing well at Euromoney

I have been personally involved in delivering parts of these
programmes, and it has been a privilege to get to know
colleagues across the Group at all levels ltis clear to me that they
have untapped ideas and perspective that we need to hear more
—they are close to our customers and often see opportunities (and
challenges) in cur markets first, they know first-hand what would
make Euromoney a better place to work Over the past two years.
we have surveyed our staff to understand in detail what we are
doing well but. more importantly. where we can do better This has
resulted. for example, in enhancing the opportunities to work
flexibly and in many of our training and development programmes
In March we launched our Staff Forum as a more foermal way to
engage with staff Eighteen representatives from around the Group
will meet bi-annually to relay staff feedback from the businesses
and regions they represent, and to discuss with senior managers
the Company's ideas and plans The Forum members are

detailed on page 30 The Board as a whole. and indwidual Boeard
members. meet regularly with cur businesses and staff groups to
hear from them about their experience of working ot Euromeney

We tatk about the best-of-both worlds eperational model. that

is. combining the customer-focused, nimble approach of our
businesses with the economies of scale and sharing of best
practice that come from being a corparation. Staff need to feel
fully part of both worlds —passionate aboeut ther customer-

facing brands and accountable for their bustness's results, but
also excited to be part of the wider Group We have facilitated
secondments between businesses to encourage both the sharing
of ideas and a sense of Euremeney being more than the sum of

its individual businesses The feedback has been overwhelmingly
positive, as you can see from the case study on page 35 We have
also launched a secondment programme where early-career staff
work closely with me for three months The early feedback from this
programmie is also very encouraging

| know the future of the Company depends upon having the best
people working here and enjoying what they do They also need to
see that they can grow and develop within the Company Many of
the initiatives | have already described help with that

Stetutory reverve growth

+5%

Total revenue

£401.7m

Adgusted ;rofi{; bef;:z tﬁ;

£104.6m

But we need to continue to improve the diversity of our workforce
by ensuring that there are no impediments to talented people from
any background. and of any gender. naticnality, race. faith or
sexual orientation thriving at Euromoney For example, | particularly
enjoyed participating in the Glebal Diversity Week events thot

we held across all global locations in January Take a look at the
case study on page 39. This was one of many events that our staff
organised and ran dunng the year.

Group Management Board

There have been o number of changes to the compesition of the
Group Management Board (GMB}. Jeff Dawvis joined the GMB i
March as CEO for Specialist Infermation having previously been
Managing Director of BoardEx and The Deal. From ) QOctober, Jeoff
15 CEG of the expanded Financiat & Professionol Services Division,
which combines our Specialist information and Banking & Finance
Divisions Nigel Martin jeined as our new Group HR Director
njune

Wendy Pallot. who joined the Group as CFO and an Executive
Director in August 2018 1s now firmly established in role and driving
a number of the strategic inihatives, which she discusses in more
detaill in her CFO's Review

John Orchard. Divisional Director for Banking & Finance leaves us
after 25 years with Euromoney with our best wishes for the future
In his new role at a think-tank You can see all the members of the
GMB via our new corporate website at www.euromaoneyple com/
about-us/management-team

The future

We are clear abaout our strategic priorities craating a 3 0 Group
that delivers sustainable, profitable, underlying growth for the
benefit of our customers, staff, investors and the communities in
which we operate

It s apprepnate in an annual report to look back, but we are

well positioned to respond to the challenging global macro-
economic and political environment that | expect will continue into
2020. The Greup is rebust and well-funded, has o constructively
challenging and suppoertive Board. and benefits from exceptionatl
people with deep knowledge of our markets and our customers,

| look forward to the year ahead with confidence

Andrew Rashbass
Chief Executive Officer

21 November 2019
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Strategic Report

Chief Executive’s review continued

Strategic pillars

Qur quadrant based assessment leads to three pillars

of strategic activity:

)

Invest around
the big themes

Price discovery

Proprietary, must-have market
intelligence

* People intelligence

* Post-trade activities

* Telecoms

We deploy capital to invest
in the themes which best
serve our customers critical
needs. We invest in our
existing businesses and also
through acquisitions.

-
i
e ' o
Prapare for Invest
the upturn
e S
1) 2}
Disinvest Use the
time wisely

@ Active quadrants

!
20:

Transform the
operating model

« Ourtarget business model
(page &)

* A best-of-both worlds
operating model

encompassing three segments,

six divisions and central
functions

* An entrepreneurial culture
combined with the benefits
of an efficient, capable
corporation

Our best-of-both worlds
operating model is run by the
Group Management Board
where the heads of our business
divisicns come together with the
heads of our functions to serve
our three segments.

Preparas for Invest
the upturn
>
Disinvest Use the
tirne wisely
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" Non-active quadrants

%

Actively manage
the portfolio

* Dispose of non-strategic assets
to free up capital

* Acquire businesses consistent
with cur investment priorities

We continue to manage our
portfolio by investing in our big
themes, removing the bottom-
left quadrant drag of businesses
that are structurally challenged
and finding better owners

for businesses that do not fit

our strategy.

[R——

@ 1 @

| Prepare for Invest
the upturn

@ 2

| Disinvest Use the

1 tme wisely

1




Strategic progress in 2019

Invest around
the big themes

42}

We look to serve semi-opaque markets
where the information organisations
need to operate effectively is hard to
find. This determines our big themes
which include price discovery. post-
trade activities, proprietary, must-have
market intelligence and telecoms

Progress made in 2019

» Continued investment in Fastmarkets
technology by replacing various
customer-facing websites with our
single Fastmarkets platferm

Investment in the creation of new
Fastmarkets price benchmarks,
including for the lithium market

* Deployment of resources to ensure
the successful integration of Random
Lengths into Fastmarkets

* The acquisition of BoardEx, a people
intelligence relationship mapping
platform, which is an archetypal
3.0 business

How we measure progress

* Pricing, Data & Market Intelligence
underlying revenue increased by 4%
and underlying operating profit by
5% (see page 24)

Priorities for 2020

We will continue to invest in what

we now call our Pricing and Data &
Market Intefligence segments. both
organically and through acquisitions.
We expect our Pricing segment to
further develop relationships with
exchanges to create benchmark price
indices. We are investing in product
experts and technology to improve
product development in our Data &
Market Intelligence segment, which
will include leveraging the skills in

our Chennai office. ROl willin part be
measured by our focus on creating what
we call SPUR (sustainable, profitable,
underlying, revenue) growth.

A/
Y Cd
ZQ:

We have developed what we call

a best-of-both worlds operating

model. Euromeney is known for its
entrepreneurial culture —our people
are creative, action-orientated, close
to their customers, passionate about
their brands, knowledgeable about the
industries they serve and accountable
for their results. Across three segments
in 2019, we were structured as six
divisions supported by central functions.
In 2020. we have adjusted our three
reporting segments and are structured
as five divisions, again supported by
central functions.

Transform the
operating model

Progress made in 2019

* Continued roll-out of our Global
Finance Transfermation Programme

* The development of an Enterprise
Risk Framewaork, which helps manage
operational risk in a controtled,
consistent and transparent manner

¢ Planning for the combination of
two existing divisions (Banking &
Finance; and Specialist Information)
to create our Financial & Professional
Services division

¢ The launch of a sales academy

* The lounch of an intra-group
secondment programme providing
our staff with exposure to new markets
and sectors

= Further meetings of our Senior
Management Group focused on
employee engagement

3 Actively manage
the portfolio

Recycling capital remains an important
part of our strategy. We have a record
of identifying good businesses where
our ownership adds value. We also sell
businesses where we believe we are not
the best owners. This generates capital
to invest in other parts of our business
and in acquisitions which fit our strategy.

Progress made in 2019

+ Acquired BoardEx and The Deal

= Completed the disposal of
Mining Indaba

* Commenced a strategic review of
Asset Management

* Further developed existing and
established new relationships
with adviscrs

* Invested in creation of new
permanent roles in our Corporate
Development team and specialist
management resource to ensure
successful post-acquisition integration

* Successfully completed integration of
Random Lengths into Fastmarkets

How we measure progress

In 2019, we generated £28 7m through
the sale of Mining Indaba, which was
no longer aligned with the Group’s
strategy These proceeds were recycled
in acquiring BoardEx and The Deal for
£72.5m. We completed the integration
of these businesses during the course of
the year.

How we measure progress

In 2019, more than 434 staff attended
our Sales Academy, 262 attended our

Leading/™Management 3.0 programmes,

approximately 100 attended our Early
Career Academy workshaps and 246
attended Contract 101 workshops

Prioritiesl for 2020

We will focus on leveraging the benefits
of our new Financial & Professionat
Services dwisicn. We witl continue to
prioritise training and development
opportunities for alt our staff. Qur Global
Finance Transformation Programme wilt
continue with the migration to NetSuite
in 2020.

Euromoney Institutional Investor PLC ~ o1 -4 vor 3 10

Priorities for 2020

We will prioritise concluding the
strategic review of Asset Management.
We continue to regard recycling
capital as an integral part of cur
strategy to accelerate the Group’s
progress towards becoming a B2B

3.0 information business. We regularly
review an active pipeline of
opportunities and will progress those
which we believe will deliver value to
the Group. Where businesses do not
align with our strategy. we will continue
to consider whether they may be of
more value to a different owner than
they are to us.
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Strategic Report

Chief Financial Officer’s review

¢

Underlving profit before tax grew
bv 9%, driven mainly by growth
at PDMI and cost efficiencies
offsetting structural and cyclical
pressures in other segments.

Wendy Pallot
Chief Financial Officer

Advertising/

Total revenue (EmY Subscriptions Fvents Other Total

Asset Management 177 % (6%) 6.9 &% 108 2% 145.6 (4%)

Pricing. Data £ Market Inteligence 155 S 1% 193 (6%) 196.4 4%

Banking & Finance 72 {6%) 457 1% &2 (6%) 61.2 {1%)
240.6 - 1242 2% 38.3 (4%) 403.2 -

Sold/closed businesses o - 20 - 2.0

Foreign exchange losses OH%FWGI‘d contracts - - _ (3 5) (35)

Total revenue B 2406 1262 - 348 401.7 -

Discontinued operations;Asset Management (ﬁ7ﬂ 9} (16 %) (10 &} (145.6)

Continuing operations 1227 109.3 24.0 256.0

1 Thke above reverues are aajusted Percentages are Underlying growth rates compared to last year Undedying measures ore gs defined on page 17

Summary

The Group delivered strong profit growth in the financial year,
reflecting goed cost management and continued growth in PDMI
subscription revenue On an underlying basis, strong revenue
growth in the Group's more 3 O businesses was offset by the
ongoing challenges in our Asset Management businesses.

Euromoney has a well-established strategy to transition towards
a 3.0 business-to-business iInformation services Group. which

is reflected in the Company's capital allecation A 3 0 business
I1s typically one which is embedded in its customer's workflows,
praviding significant operating leverage from “create one.

sell many” services, in semi-opaque markets, with low capital
requiremants and high cash flow conversion

M&A activity during the year was driven by this strategy, including
the disposal of Mining Indaba and acguisttion of BoardEx

and The Deal. In this context. on 10 September. Euromoney
announced that It was conducting a strategic review of Assat
Management That review continues The segment is presented
as discontinued operations and held for sale in the Consclidated
Financial Statements

Revenue

Total revenue for the year increased by 3% to £401 7m. supported
by the contribution from the acquisition of BoardEx and The Deal
Underlying revenue was flat year-on-year with good performance
in our Pricing. Data & Market Inteligence (PDMI} segment being
offset by continued challenges in the Asset Management segment.
Statutory revenue, which excludes the Asset Management
segment, increased by 5% to £256.1m, primarily due to the
centribution from the acquisition of BoardEx and The Deatl.

Total adjusted measures and underlying results combine the
results from the Group’s continuing and discontinued operations
Detailed reconciliations of the Group's statutory, adjusted and
underlying results are set out on pages 15t0 16

Underlying subscription revenue. which makes up 60% of

total revenue, was flat year-on-year, with continued strong
growth in FDMI of 8% offset mainly by the reduction in the Asset
Management segment of 6% Although underlying advertising
and ather revenues, which makes up only 9% of total revenue,
declined by 4%, the rate slowed from a reduction of 5% in
2018, reflecting continued success in the investment in thought-

Adjusted measures include the results of continuing and discontinued operations, and exclude the impact of amortisation of acquired intangible assets, exceptional items and other
adjusting items in accordance with the Group s policy. 2018 excludes the results of discontinued operations relating to GMID A detailed reconcibation of the Group's adjusted and

underlying results is set out on pages1bte 16

The 2018 comparatives have been restated to reflect the twe prior year tax exposures and discontinued operations as outlined tn note 1 of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Underlying measures include the adjusted results stated at constant exchange rates. including pro forma prior year comparatives for acquisiions and new business launches and

exclucing disposals. business closures and significant event and publication timing differences
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leadership products and directories Underlying event revenues
increased by 2%, with growth from all segments In PDMI delegate
marketing challenges which impacted the first half have now been
resolved., with a 4% underlying reduction in event revenues in the
first half moving to growth in the second half

Segmental review

From 1 October 2019 a newly formed Financial & Professional
Services (FPS) division brings together complementary markets
and customers across financial and professianal services.
combining brands from the existing Specialist Information and
Banking & Finance divisions This division wiil have three pillars,
NextGen, IMN & Dernvatives, and People Intelligence The division
has been structured to enable optimisation of the brands
contained in each pillar, supporting our strategy of progressing
towards a 3 0 business The FPS division and the existing Telecoms
dmsion will form a new Data & Market Intellgence’ segment

Further information on the performance of our segments 1s detailed
on pages 24 and 25

Profit and outlook

Strong perfarmance from the Group's PDMI businesses (49% of
total revenue) was the key driver of the Group's 5% underlying
operating profit growth

The adjusted operating profit margin was flat at 26%. with
revenue challenges in some segments offset by strong organic
and inorganic growth in PDMI revenues, significant cast

savings and effective capital allocation Significant investment

in the PDMI segment in both 2018 and 2019, including the
integrations of RISI, BoardEx and The Deal. has contributed to «
5% underlying increase in adjusted operating prefit to £105 4m
Statutory operating profit reduced to £30.6m from £107.9m in 2018
due to the gain on the disposal of Dealogic in the prior year

Adjusted profit before tax increased by 5% to £104.6m.

Underlying profit before tax grew by 9% reflecting aperctional
gearing, cost cantrol and lower interest costs. Statutory profit before
tax decreased from £106.8m in 2018 to £29 5m predominantly due
to the disposal of Dealogic in the prior year

Adjusted diluted earnings per share increased by 5% to 77 ép
(2018.73.6p). reflecting the improvement in adjusted earmings
despite a slight increase in shares in 1ssue

The Group has adepted IFRS16 from 1 October 2019, As a result,
maijor building assets and lease liabilities have come onto the
Statement of Financial Pasition This impacts the Income Staternent
by replacing rental expense with depreciation and intreducing «
finance expense where the discount on lease labilities is unwound
We estimate this will reduce prefit before tax by £1m for the year
ending 30 September 2020

Euromoney continues to make progress towards a 3.0 business
medel guided by our ¢lear strategy. underpinred by a strong
balance sheet and excellent cash flow conversion. We continue to
expect weakness in Asset Management into 2020 but continued
good growth in the Pricing segment. and lock forward to ancther
year of progress in the year ahead.

Exceptional items

Restated
2019 2018
£rm Erm
Profit on dispaesal 17.0 868
Impairment charges (2.4) (39
Amendment te defined benefit scheme 1.2 -
VAT underpayments - (5 3)
Cther exceptional (costs)/income 9.4) 14
Centinuing operations 6.4 799
Exceptional tems from discontinued
operations —Asset Management (0.8) {38
Cost of disposal of discortinued operations
—Asset Management (1.7) -
Total 3.9 761

Dunng the year, the Group sold Miming Indaba resulting in a net
profit of £17 Om (note 15)

The Group recegrised a £2 dm gocdwill impairment charge

i relation to the closure of Centre for Investor Education (CIE).
which was included within the Asset Management segment

Costs associated with this closure are included in other exceptional
costs CIE generated £2m of revenue in the year ended

30 September 2019

The Trustees of the Metal Bulletin plc Pension Scheme. which

is a defined benefit scheme, changed the scheme rules for the
underlying index of deferred revaluation from RPlto CPIl. which
resulted in a £1 2m reduction in the net pension deficit

Other exceptional costs include the recognition of earn-out
payments of £2 5m for the acquisitions of Site Seven Media
(TowerXchange} and Random Lengths, which are treated as
compensation costs The acquisition-related costs of £5.4m for
Random Lengths and BoardEx and The Deal are treated as
exceptional due to their magnitude. Significant costs associated
with an acquisition project that did not complete of £1 2m are also
included in other exceptional costs The remaining costs are as a
result of a strategic review undertaken for the major restructuring
of CIE have been treated as exceptional items. Other restructuring
costs amounting to £1 Om are included in operating profit and
have not been treated as exceptionat

The exceptional items of £2 &m for discontinued operations relate
to costs for major restructuring within Asset Management and
costs to engage with advisors to assist with the strategic review of
the segment

Restatements

The financial statements include three areas of restatement. as
detailed in note 1 of the Consolidated Financiat Statements As a
result of the strategic review of our Asset Management segment.
this segment has been disclosed as discontinued operations and
as held for sale. The other two restaterments have arisen due to
significant prior year exposures which internal processes identified
dunng the year One relates to an under-payment of PAYE/NI to
HMRC in respect of contractors The second is in respact of the
treatment of VAT on intra-group transactions Management took
immediate steps to improve tax controls and these improvements
are part of a wider and ongoing control improvement exercise
being undertaken throughout the Group

In addition. the adoption of IFRS 9 has led to an increase to
opening equity at1 October 2018 of £0 4m
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Strategic Report

Chief Financial Officer’s review continued

Other comprehensive income

The Group recognised £3 4m of fareign exchange losses on
revenue hedges in 2019 compared to a gain of £1.0m in 2016
This movement reflects a strengthening of the US dollar which 1s
the main currency that the Group hedges

No translation reserves were recycled to the Income Statement in
2019, compared to £8 3m in 2018, This moverent 1s largely due to
the fact that the Group disposed of overseas subsidiaries in 2018
(GMID).

Actuarial lesses on defined benefit pension schemes were £5.2m in
2019, compared with a gain of £6 5m in 2018 This £11 7m varance
is the result of an adverse change in demagraphic and financial
assumptions (£18 dm) offset by @ favourable movement in the
returns on pension plan assets in excess of what was expected

(E67m)

Balance sheet
The main mavements in the balance sheet were as follows.

* Net deferred tax liabilities —reduced by £9 9m in the year
This reduction is mainly explained by £12 Im of deferred tax
being reclassified as liabiities of businesses held for sale at the
end of 2019 This is offset by a £3 &m increase in the value of
deferred tax liabilites held by overseas subsidiaries as a result of
the strengthening of the USD dollar

* Deferred income and contract liabilities —the movement
reflects deferred income increasing by £8.1m and an exchange
difference of £4 7m offset by a reclassification of £44 8m to
assets held fer sale

* Other current assets and liabilities —the movement mainly
relates to the reclassification of £10 7m of current assets and
ligbilities to held for sale

* Net assets of businesses held for sale —as a result of the
strategic review, Asset Management has been disclosed as held
for sale in 2019 In 2018, Mining Indaba was disclosed as held

for sale.

Net cash/(debt)
The main movements in the cash flow, including continuing and
discontinued operations, were as follows

2019 2018 Change
£m £m £m

Cash generated from
operations 92.4 106 & (16 2}
Capex and other movements {9.6) [GIY)] 4 6)
Toxation (38.4) {38 9) 058
Free cash flow 44.4 &4.7 (20 3)
Dividends paid (35.4) (34 8) (0.6)
Net M&A (391} 1957 (234.8)

(30.1) 2256 (2557
Cpening net cash/{debt) 78.3 (154.6) 2329
Effect of foreign exchange
rate and other non cash
movemeants 1.9 73 (54)
Closing net cash 501 78 3 26 2)

Restated
2019 208 Change
£m £m £m

Goodwill and other intangible
assets 405.4 58862 (1828
Property, plant and equipment 15.3 161 {0 8)
Investments in associates and
other equity Investments 5.3 43 10
Acquisition commitments )
and deferred consideration (2.8) 05 33
Net deferred tax liakilities (15.5) (254 Q9
Deferred income and contract 4 -
labilities (88.4) (120 4) 320
Other non-current assets and
liabilites (5.4) &0 [OK)]
Other current assets and
liabilities (58.5) (69.7) n2z
Net assets of businesses held
for sate 220.8 n7 2091
Net cash’ 49.8 783 (28 5)
Net assets 526.0 478 6 474

1 Excluding held for sale cash of £0 3m

* Goodwill and other intangible assets — the movement reflects
an amortisation charge of £27 2m, reclassification of £266 &m
to assets held for sale and impairment of £2.4m for CIE. partially
offset by a favourable exchange movement of £28 5m from the
predominantly US dellar denominated balance additions to
intangible assets under development of £8.4m and additions
of £75 9rn following the acquisitions of BoardEx and The Deat
and BreadGroup.

*+ Investments in assaciates and other equity investments—
the movement is driven by the tronsfer of BroadGroup from
investment in associate to investment in subsidiary (EQ 7m) offset
by the fair value gain of £1 7m on the revaluation of the equity
investment in Zanbato which is measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income

* Acquisition commitments and deferred consideration
—primarily reflects the acguisition commitment relating to
BroadGroup. as the remaining interest in BreadGreup is
subject to put and call options under an earn-out agreement
Deferred consideration for the sale of Mining indaba was
received during the year
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Net cash at 30 September 2019 was £50 Im compared with

£78 3m at last year end This decrease in net cash largely reflects
the impact of net M&A activity in the period, including the
acquistion of BoardEx and The Deal offset by the sale of Mining
Indaba. Strong underlying eoperating cash flows of £103.5m were
offset by dividend payments of £35 ém and net tax payments of
£38 4r, which included a one-off non-recoverable withholding
tax payment of £14 ém relating to an internal dividend arising from
the disposal of GMID that tock place in 2018

The Group's underlying operating cash conversion for the
12 months to September 2019 was 98% (2018 102%)

A committed multi-currency revelving credit facility of £240m,
which was undrawn at 30 September 2019, is available to the
Group until December 2021

Currency

The Group generates approxmately three-quarters of s revenues
in US dollars, ncluding approximately 40% of UK revenues and
approximately two-thirds of operating profits



The exposure to US dollar revenues in cur UK businesses 1s
partially hedged using forward contracts to sell US dollars, which
delays the iImpact of movements in exchange rates for at least a
year The Group however, does not hedge the foreign exchange
risk on the translation of overseas profits The average sterling-US
dollar rate for the year to 30 September 2019 was $1 25 (2018

$1 35) This improved headline revenue growth rates for the year
by approximately three percentage points and adjusted profit
before tax by £E4.1m. Each one cent movement in the US dollar rate
has an impact on translated profits, net of UK revenue hedgirg.
of approxmately £0 7m on an annualised basis The Group also
translates its non-sterling denominated balance sheeat tems
resulting in a loss in 2019 of £0 6m (2018 £1 5m)

Dividends

The Group's dividend policy targets dividend pay-out ratio of
appreximately 40% of adjusted diluted earnings per share.

The Directors are recommending a final dvidend of 22 3 pence
per share (2018 22 3 pence per share). which is subject to
shareholder approval at our AGM on 28 January 2020, and will
be paid on 13 February 2020 to shareholders on the register at
the close of business on 29 November 2019 Together with the
interim diviclend, this makes o total dividend for the year ended
30 September 2019 of 331 pence per share, a 2% increase on the
32.5 pence dividend for the year ended 30 September 2018

Treasury

The Treasury Department does not act as a prefit centre, nor does
it undertake any speculative trading activity. and it cperates within
policies and procedures approved by the Board

In order to hedge its exposure to US dollar revenues in its UK
businesses, a seres of forward contracts are putin place to sell
forward surplus US dollars The Group hedges up to 80% of
forecast US dollar revenues for the coming 12 months and up to
S0% for o further six months As a result of this hedging strategy.
any profit or loss from the strengthening or weakening of the US
dollar will largely be delayed until the following financial year and
beyend The Group does not hedge the foreign exchange risk on
the translation of overseas profits

The Group's revolving credit facility allows for drawing in multiple
currencies with the related interest tied to LIBOR. It is the Group’s
policy to hedge up to 80% of its long-term interest exposure.
converting its floating rate debt into fixed debt by means of interest
rate swaps. The predictability of interest costs is deemed to be
more important than the possible opportunity cost foregone of
achieving lower interest rates At 30 September 2019, the Group's
revolving credit facility remained undrawn and consequently there
were no interest rate hedges in place.

Tax

The adjusted effective tax rate is 20% (restated 2018 21%). which
is based on adjusted profit before tax and excludes deferred tax
effects of intungible assets and goodwill. tax on exceptional tems
and prior year items. The tax rate in each year depends mainly on
the geographic mix of profits and applicable tax rates.

The Group's statutory effective tax rate, which excludes
discontinued operations. decreased to 32% compared to the
restated rate of 39% 1n 2018 The rate in 2016 was largely driven
by one-coff items such as tax on disposal of shares in GMID and
non-recoverable foreign withholding tax which did not recur in
2019 The rate in 2019 relates largely to expenses that are capital
in nature and restructunng costs which are not deductible for
tax purposes

Significant reconciling items between the adjusted and statutary
tax expense include tax on exceptional items which primarily
relates to tax on the profit on disposal of Mining indaba and prior
year items mainly US transition tax. and the gain on disposal of
GMID following the release of the relevant final regulations as part
of US tax refoerm Full details are included in note 8

The net deferred tax liability held 1s £15 5m (restated 2018 £25 4m)
and relates primanly to capitalsed intangible assets and tax
deductible goodwill. net of short-term temporary differences

and tax losses The reduction in net deferred tax liakility is mainly
explained by £12 1m of deferred tax liabilities being rectassified

as liabilities of businesses held for sale at the end of 2019 This is
offset by @ £3 8m increase in the value of deferred tax liabilities
held by overseas subsidianes as a result of the strengthening of the
US dollar

The Group continues to have a number of uncertain tax positions,
primarily the Canadian and UK exposures which have been
highlighted in previous periods. for which the exposures are
explained in note 2

Global Finance Transformation Programme (GFTP)

During 2019, we have made significant progress on our Global
Finance Transformation Programme, which will improve the quality
and efficiency of financial reporting and tighten financial control
and processes. Phase 1 includes the roll-out of a new common
Chart of Accounts and core finance system. NetSuite, which is
now tive In our Investment Research Division and in the UK across
our largest two legal entities The remaining UK legal entities

and overseas divisions will transiton onte NetSuite in due course
The GFTP encompasses our people, data systems and processes,
and most recently includes the launch of the Finance Academy to
help the ongoing development of finance staff

Headcount

The number of people employed 1s moniterad monthly to ensure
there are sufficient resources to meet the forthcoming demands of
each business and to make sure that the businesses continve to
deliver sustanable profits Headcount has increased from 1,655 to
2167 manly as a result of the acquisition of BeardEx and The Deal
in February 2019

Adjusted measures

The Directors believe that the adjusted measures provide
additional vseful infermation for shareholders to evaluate and
compare the performance of the business from period to peniod
These measures are used by management for budgeting.
planning and menthly reporting purposes and are the basis

on which executive management s incentivised. The non-IFRS
measures dlso enable the Group to track more easily and
consistently the underlying operational performance by separating
out exceptional income, charges and non-cash items

Total and segment revenue represents the combined reported
revenue from continuing operations and discontinued operations
revenue for Asset Management.

Adjusted results include continuing operations and discontinued
operations for Asset Management. The discontinued operations
for Asset Management have been included in the adjusted results
as it was owned and managed as part of the Group for the entire
pericd and to aid year-on-year comparability of the Group's
results This treatment is consistent with that of Global Markets
Intelligence Division (GMID) when the strategic review was
anncunced for that disposal in September 2017, In the period of the
disposal and upoen the chief operating decision maker (CODM)
not considering the discontinued operation in the review of the
business, the discontinued operation will then be excluded from
the adjusted results

Euromoney Institutional lnvestor PLC - 0 0 -0 roarl ann & s o 20w ]5

£
Q
—
]
Q
a
s
o
o
Q
~




Strategic Report

Chief Financial Officer’s review continued

The discontinued operations in 2018 relating to the disposal of
GMID have been excluded in the adjusted results to reflect the
basis on which the CODM reviews the business The comparatives
have been updated to reflect this change in managementss
ad|usted measures In order to provide a more like-for-like view of
continuing operations

In December 2018, the Group engaged external advisors to
undertake an independent review of the Group's compliance
with the off-payroll working rules. As a result of the review, the
Group has identified an underpayment of payroll taxes to HMRC
for the years ended 30 September 2013 to 30 September 2018

Arestatement has been made to recognise the historical exposure,

consisting of payroll taxes underpaid. interest and penalties
These restatements are not excluded from adjusted measures
as the costs incurred are in the ordinary course of business and
will recur

Adjusted figures are presented before the impact of amertisation
of acquired intangible assets (compnsing trademarks and brands,
customer relationships, databases and software), exceptional
items, share of associates’ and joint ventures’ acquired intangible
asset amortisation and exceptional items, net movements in
deferred consideration and acquisition commitments fair value
remaasurements, related tax items and other adjusting items
described below.

The amertisation of acguired Intangible assets is adjusted as
the premium paid relative to the net assets on the balance

sheet of the acquired business is classified as sither goodwill

or as an intangible asset arising on a business combination

and is recogrised on the Group's balance sheet This differs to
organically developed businesses where assets such as employee
talent and customer relationships are not recognised on the
balance sheet Impairment and amortisation of intangible assets
and goodwill arising on acquisitions are excluded from adjusted
results as they are balance sheet items that relate to historical
M&A activity rather than the trading performance of the business

Exceptional items are items of income or expense considered by
the Directors to be significant. nen-recurring and not attributable
to underlying trading It 1s Group policy to treat as exceptional
significant sarn-out payments required by IFRS to be recognised
as a compensation cost IFRS requires that earn-out payments

to selling shareholders retained in the acquired business fora
contractual time period are treated as a compensation cost.
Given that these payments are in substance part of the cost of an
investment and will not recur once the earmn-out payments have
been made. they have been excludad from adjusted profit.
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During the second half of the year, the Group discovered a VAT
exposure relating te the understatement of VAT on intra-group
transactions in respect of the four years ended 30 September 2018,
This VAT exposure is considered by the Directors as being material
and nen-recurring A restatement has been made to recognise the
histenical expesure and related interest. The 2016 VAT expense has
been classified as an exceptional item and the related interest for
2018 and 2019 has been treated as an adjusted finance expense
because these charges are not expected to recur

Ad\usted finance costs exclude interest arising on the uncertain

tax provisions, as the provisions relate to tax adjusting items

In addition. for the year ended 2018. adjusted finance costs
exclude a net gain realised on the close-out of interest rate swaps
of £1 2m following the repayment of the Group's term-loan The net
gain had been excluded from adjusted finance costs as it would
not have crystallised had the disposal of GMID not completed

For the 2018 reporting period, ad|usted share of results in
associates and joint ventures excludes the share of exceptional
items that relates to restructuring and earn-out costs in Dealogic.
which was sold in December 2017

In respect of earnings. adjusted amounts reflect a tax rate that
includes the current tax effect of gocdwill and intangible assets.
Mary of the Greup's acquisitions, particularly in the US. give rnise
to significant tax savings as the amortisation of gocdwill and
intangible assets on acquisition is deductible for tax purposes.

The Group considers that the resulting adjusted effective tax

rate is therefore more representative of its tax payable position

Tax on exceptional items relates primanly to the gain that arose

on the disposal of Mining Indaba which s fully taxable and
nondeductible costs relating to the acquisition of BoardEx and The
Deal Prior year items primarily reflect true-up of deferred tax iterns
These items are excluded from the adjusted tax expense as they do
not relate to current year underlying trading.

Further analysis of the adjusting items is presented in notes 3,
5 7.8.12 and 14 to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Further details of the restatements are included in note 1 of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The Group has applied these principles in calculating adjusted
measures and it1s the Group's intention to continue to apply these
principles in the future.



The reconciliation below sets out the ad|usted results of the Group and the related adjustments to the statutery Income Statement that

the Directors consider necessary to provide useful and comparable information about the Group's adusted trading performance §"
T
2019 2018 2.
Piscantinued Restated Discontinued e
Statutory  operations Adjustments Adjusted Statutory  operations  Adjustments Adusted %
Nates £000 £000 £000 £000 EQOD £000 EQOC £000 e
(e d
Revenue 3 256,051 145,622 - 4,673 244.825 145.454 - 390279
Adjusted operating profit 3 38,514 66,929 — 105,443 39.945 61,660 - 101,605
Acquired intangible
amartisation 12 (14,215) (10,928) 25,143 - (11.990) {10.749) 22739 -
Exceptional items 5 6,350 (812) (5,538) - 79.910 (3.850) (76,060) —
Operating profit o 30,649 55,189 19,405 105,443 107 865 A7 061 (53.32h) 101.605
Operating profit margin 12% 38% - 26% 44% 32% - 26%
Share of results in associates
and |oint ventures 14 (88) - (38} (26) LT =988 110
Finance income 7 1,873 - (675) 1,198 5248 84 (4.468) 864
Finance expense 7 (2,983) (99) 1,214 (1,868) (6,454) - 2757 (3.697)
Net finance {costs)/income 7 {1,110) 99 539 {670) (1.206) 84 (.711) (2.633)
Profit before tax ) 29,451 55,090 20,106 104,647 106816 47045 (54079)  99.882
Tax expense on profit 8 (9,317) {12,349 820 (20,846) (41.358) (8.802) 29,550 (20.610)
Profit for the year 20,134 42,741 20,926 83,801 65458 38,343 (24.529) 79272
Profit for the year from
discontinued operations 1 41,059 {42,741) 1,682 - 129,665 {38,343 (91.342) —
Profit for the year 61,193 — 22,608 83,801 195143 - {15,871 79,272
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent 60,929 - 22,586 83,515 195,004 - {15871 79133
Equity non-controlling interests 264 — 22 286 139 - — 139
61,193 - 22,608 83,801 195143 — {115,871 79,272
Diluted earnings per share 10 56.6p 77.6p 181 3p 73 6p
Underlying measures For example, this means we adjust for:

When assessing the performance of our businesses. the Board

‘ * Biennial events;
considers the adjusted results The year-on-year change ot even

in adjusted results may not, however, be a fair like-for-like * Events which run in one of the current or comparative periods
companson as there are a number of factors which can influence due to changes in the event date. and

growth rates but which do not reflect underlying performance + Cancelled events that did not take place in the current year
Underlying results include the ad|usted results of continuing The Group's adjusted and underlying measures should not
operations and discontinued operations for Asset Management be considered in isolation from, or as a substitute for, financial
and are stated information presented in compliance with IFRS The adjusted

and underlying measures used by the Group are not necessarily

+ At constant exchange rates. with the prior year comparatives comparable with those used by other companies.

being restated using current year exchange rates:

* Including pro forma prior year comparatives for acquisitions and ~ The 2018 caomparatives have been restated to reflect the two prior

new business launches and excluding all results for disposats or year tax exposures and discontinued operations as outlined in note
business closures, 1 of the Consclidated Financial Statements

* Excluding events and publications which tock place in the
comparative period but did not take place in the current period
and, including in the comparative period at the same amount
events and publications which tock place iIn the current period
but did not take place in the comparative period

Euromoney Institutional Investor PLC B T T -|7



Strategic Report

Chief Financial Officer’s review continued

The following table sets cut the reconciliation from statutery to underlying for revenue operating profit and profit before tax:

Restated

z019 2018

£000 £000 Change %
Statutory revenue 256,051 244825 5%
Discontinued operations — Asset Management 145,622 145.454
Total revenue 401,673 390,279 3%
Net M&A and closed businesses 1,997 2.829
Timing differences ) L ) - (5.362)
Foreign exchange o o — 11,438
Underlying revenve 399,676 399.184 0%
Statutory operating profit - - - 30,649 107,865 G2%)
Adjustments 19,805 “________{53.321)
Discontinued operations — Asset Monogé;ﬁent 55,189 47.061
Adjusted operating profit 105,443 101.645 4%
Net M&A and closed businesses (443) (3.906)
Timing differences N - (2.228)
Foreign exchange - 4122
Underlying operating profit 105,000 99 533 5%
Statutory profit before tax o 29,451 106.816 (72%)
Adjustments ‘ - 0,06 (54.079)
Discontinued operations — Asset Manogerment 55,090 47145
Adjusted profit before tax 104,647 99862 5%
Net M&A and closed businesses (443) _(S.HD)
Timing differences - (3.408)
Foreign exchange - 4135
Underlying profit before tax 104,204 95,499 9%

Cash conversion
Cash conversicn measures the percentage by which cash generated from operations covers ad|usted cperating profit

Restated

2019 2018

£000 £000

Ad|usted operating profit 105,443 101.605
Discontinued operations~GMID - 7,510
Adjusted operating profit including discontinued operations 105,443 1092 115
Cash generated frem continuing and discontinued operaa;—;sumw_m T - - 92,407 106.560
Exceptional tems T T 10,519 5,580
Other working capital adjustments 627 {2.461)
Underlying cash generated from continuing and discontinued operations 103,553 1,679
Adjusted cash conversion % - o B 88% 9%
Underlying cash canversion % 98% 102%

The underlying basis 1s after adjusting for significant timing differences affecting the movement on working caprtal and exceptional
items Forthe year ended 30 September 2019, exceptional items largely consist of cash payments for acquistion and disposal costs
and deferred compensation costs in relation to acquisitions, For the year ended 30 September 2018, exceptional iterns largely consist
of restructuring payments and cash payments for the legal and professional fees in relation to acquisitions and disposals, net of the
favourable settlement of a legal dispute The other working capital adjustments in 2019 and 2018 are largely the result of the landiord's
contribution to the fit-out of the New York office which will be amartised over the period of the lease and the rent-free peniod of the
London and New York offices. there is a further adjustment for payroll taxes in 2018

As cash generated from eperations in the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows includes those from discontinued operations of Asset
Management and GMID, the statutory cash conversion rate has not been provided as it would not give a fair indication of the Group’s
cash conversion performance

The 2018 comparatives have been restated to reflect the two prior year tax exposures and discontinued operatiens as cutlined in note 1
of the Consolidated Financial Statements

]8 Euromoney Institutional Investor PLC - TR



Net cash

2
Restated .3.-
2019 208 [
£000 £000 &
Atl October . o 78,273 154621 BEd
Net increase in cash and cash equwvcleﬁ'[‘s L S 77_7 B ;777 o {30,151) 57 875 -g
Decrease in borrowings - 167.740 -
Other non-cash changes o o o ) - (955)
Effect of foreign exchange rate movements B o B 1,956 8.234
At 30 September 50,078 78273
Net cash comprises: )
Cash at bank and short-term deposits o e 49,751 78273
Classified as held for sale 327 —
Total cash and cash equivalents held by continuing and discontinued operations 50,076 78,273
Net cash 50,078 78273
Average exchange rate adjustment (1,452) (2.216)
Adjusted net cash 48,626 76057
Adjusted operating profit __—:_—_ _ - _w __ 105,443 101,605
Share of results in associates and joint ventures o T (126) 110
Add back L o o _
Intangible omortisation on Licences and software 1,245 2.577
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment L 2,417 2,561
Share of associates’ interest, depreciation and amortisation - - 721
M&A annualised adjustment 2,425 (1225)
Adjusted EBITDA ) 111,404 107 349
Adjusted net cash te EBITDA ratic for continuing and discontinued operations 0.44 a7

The Group's borrowing facilities have covenants requinng the Group's net debt to be ne more than three times adjusted EBITDA and
minimum levels of interest cover of three times on a rolling 12 month basis The amounts and foreigh exchange rates used in the covenant
caleulations are subject to adjustments as defined under the terms of the arrangement

The bank covenant ratio uses an average exchange rate in the calculation of net debt and includes discontinued operations of Asset
Management and GMID and an annualised adjustment attributable to acquisitions and disposals in the calculation of adjusted EBITDA
When businesses are acguired after the beginning of the financial year, the calcuiation of adjusted EBITDA includes EBITDA attributable
to the business as if the acquisition had been completed on the first day of the financial year The calculation excludes the EBITDA of any
kusinesses disposed of dunng the year

The 2018 comparatives have been restated to reflect the two prior year tax exposures and discontinued operations as outlined in note 1
of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Wendy Pallot

Chief Financial Officer

21 November 2019
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Strategy in action
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Fastmarkets: Y

. . H :QE
Building a
PRA of scale

Integratien of Random Lengths

Fastmarkets has now successfully integrated Random Lengths,

which we acquired in August 2018, in line with cur strategy to

be a world-leading price reporting agency Random Lengths
“ 15 a wood preducts PRA with prices deeply embedded in the

industry workflow The business provides data that further

establishes Fastmarkets’ leadership in the wood products

We are excited to be partnering industry. Fastmarkets aims to further enhance cross-selling to
. new and existing customers.
with the London Metal Exchange
Lithivm Benchmarking Contract

for their new lithium benchmark. One of Fastmarkets' key achievements in 2019 was its selection
by the London Metal Exchange {(LME) to develop a new
financial benchmark for lithium The lithium market has
evolved in recent years, with significant increases in material
demand due to growth in the electric vehicle market, creating
an opportunity for transparent and reliable pricing. In early
2018, the LME announced it would work with the market to
develop a cash-settled derivative to pravide this market with a
hedging mechanism In June 2019, the LME chose Fastmarkets
to develop the benchmark due to the widespread use of our
lithium prices and our leading pricing capabilities We are
excited to be partnering with the LME at this early stage—and
working with the market on the hedging mechanism

Rajv Daswani
CEO, Fastmarkets

Intreducing our new platform

This year Fastmarkets delivered the first version of our
sophisticated platform that gives customers access to its
universe of data while giving them the choice of how to
access it Customers now have the choice of using our
secure Application Programming Interfaces (APIs), Desktop
Dashboard, browser Dashboard, Excel add-in and new
mobile experience The platform is built on the latest cloud
technology. meaning it is modular in nature This allows
Fastmarkets to deliver new capabilities to customers in

the future while maintaining  consistent data experience
regardless of delivery channel

Raju Daswani
CEO, Fastmarkets

Joined the Group in 1995. Previcus roles: Managing Director,
and previously Commercial Director. Heod of Research,
Business Development (USA) and Commaodities Economist at
Metal Bulletin.

Euremaney Instututional Investar PLOC




Financial & I -‘Qi

Professional Services:

Creating our
« new FPS division

Foundations for success

o
=
Q
g
1]
a
o
x
)
o
e
=

12141 AT On 1 October 2019, the strengths and capabilities of our
The 3CQU1SIUOD Of B()-d.I dEX Banking & Finance (IMN. Euromoney and Global Capitat)
and The Deai haS Slgﬂ]flcant]y’ and Specialst Information divisions (Legal Media Group.
Insurance, Real Asset Finance, Derivatives, BoardEx and The
Strengthened our scope f()r Deal) combined to create the new Financial & Prefessional

- s Services division (FPS
collaboration across the division. ervices division (F79)

The decision to combine cur Banking & Finance and Specialist
Jeff Davis Information divisions presents a significant opportunity to

CEO., FPS

integrate an cutstanding cellection of businesses that focus on
shared markets while serving their customers across different
product sets

Jeff Davis witl lead the new FPS division after previously
holding the roles of CEO of the Specialist Information
division and Prasident of BoardEx and The Deal before their
acquisition. BoardEx and The Deal have strengthened our
scope for collaboration across the division. We are already
seeing the benefits this approach will bring to our clients.

Together. with ocur existing portfolio businesses, in particular
the financial markets focused brands IFLR, || Global and
Global Capital. BoardEx and The Deal, provide a strong
platform for future sustainable growth opportunities and
support the Group's plan to actively open adjacent sectors in
the under-explored relationship mapping market. We expect
the combined division to quickly become a centre for
excellence and collaboration. driving growth

Fecus on BoardEx

BoardEx is an executive profiling and relationship mapping
platform, providing users with accurate, up to date and
in-depth profiles for over one million of the weorld's most
influential business leaders The platform's proprietary
software is embedded in the workflows of its customers who
use it for business and corporate development, executive
board search and Know Your Client compliance activities.

Jeff Davis
CEO, Financial & Professional Services

Joined February 2019 with BoardEx and The Deal acquisition
(as President). Previously Managing Director, Barclays Inc
(Head of Globat IB Client Strategy. and Barclays Wealth
Capital Markets) Over 25 years in institutional markets.
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Strategic Report

Key performance indicators

The Group monitors its performance against its strategy
using the following key performance indicators

Relevance Partormonce Narrative

Adjusted profit before tax (Em)

Euromoney actively manages its
portfolic and allocates capital to
increase adjusted profit before tax
over the long-term. The definition of
adjusted profit before tax is set out on
pages15to17.

Adjusted prafit before tax increased by 5%
to £104.6m, reflecting the successful delivery
of our strategy and portfolic management,
assisted by a continued focus on cost control
and lower interest costs following the
repayment of the term toans in May 2018.

This is the financial measure for
Director’s remuneration in 2019 as set 205 2016 2017 208 2019
out on page 72.

Underlying revenue gréwth

Underlying revenue growth compares
revenues on a like-for-tike basis and

is an important indicator of the health
and trajectory of our segments and
the Group as a whole. The definiticn
of underlying revenue is set out on
pagel/.

Underlying revenues were flat year-on-year
with continued strong performance from
Pricing. Data & Market Intelligence being
offset by continued weak performance in
Asset Management {in particular in our BCA
and NDR businesses). The challenges faced
by Asset Management from the reduction

in clients' research spend have continued.
This will become a second financial 2015 201 2017 2018 2019 along with weaker performance in Banking
measure for Director's remuneration in & Finance.

2020 as set out on page 73.
B %O

Subscription Book of Business

Book of Business (BoB) represents

the annual contracted values for
subscriptions across the Group and
reflects the impact of new sales. price
increases. upgrades. downgrades and
full cancellations. It is a key indicator of
the Group’s subscriptions growth.

The subscription BoB growth was broadly
flat at the end of September 2019 reflecting
the continued challenges affecting Asset
Management offsetting all of the strong
growth in Price, Dato & Market Intelligence.

2015 2016 2007 2018 2019

Subscription share of total revenues

Subscription-based products usually
have the advantage of premium prices,
high renewal rates and high margins.

The Group's propartion of revenues derived
from subscription and content-related
products has increased slightly to 60% of its
total revenues.

¥

20015 20016 2017 2018 2019

The key perfarmance \ndicators are cul within the Board s expectatons ana are d scussea n detail inthe Chief Finarcial Officer s review on pages 12 to 19

Adetaled reconailiation of the Group s adiusted and underying results to the equvalent statutory messu-es s set out on pages 15te 18 Al adusted measures comkine the rasults of the Group s
continuing and discontinuea operotiors The adjusted measures fo- 2018 exclude the dissontinued operations relatirg to GMID which was disposed of in Apnl 2018

The underlying measures reported i 2019 ircluaed the adjusted results of continu ng and discontrued operations and are stated at constart exchange rates Incuding pro forma pnor year
comparatives for acquisticns and excuding aisposals ard sigrificant event bming differences 1n 2018 the underly ng rreasures ate on the same basis but exclude discontinued operations
relanng to GMID

2018 comparatives have beer restated as explained in nete 1 of tre Tonsol duted Fnanc al Statements 2015 to 2017 compargtives have not been restated
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Key

E Invest around big themes 5@5

Transform the operating model

Relevance Parformance

Actively manage the portfolio

~

Natrative

Adjusted operating margin
The movement in adjusted operating
margin measures the efficiency of the
Group. Consistent operating margin
improvement is a business imperative,
driven by investment choices, our focus
on driving cut costs and improving mix
The calculation of adjusted operating
margin is set out on page 17,

205 2016 2017 2019

The adjusted operating margin remained
cansistent at 26% due to the impact of our
strategic pillars: investing around the big
themes, transforming the operating model
and actively managing the portfolic

B %O

Adjusted diluted earnings per share

Management seeks sustained long-
term growth in adjusted diluted
earnings per share to maximise
overalt returns to our shareholders,
The definition of adjusted diluted
earnings per share is included

oh page 131.

205 2016 2017 00186 2019

The increase from 73.6p to 77.6p reflects the
imprevement in adjusted profit before tax.

Xk O

Underlying cash conversion rate

Cash conversion is @ measure of

the quality of Euromoney's earnings.
The objective is to achieve consistent
conversion of earnings into cash of
0% to 100%. This KPI measures the
percentage by which underlying cash
generated from operations covers
adjusted operating profit The definition
of underlying cash conversion rate is set
out on page 18

2006 2016 2017 2008 2019

The underlying cash conversicn rate was
96% (2018:102%). Befare adjusting the
timing differences and exceptional items.
the adjusted cash conversion rate was 88%
(2016° 99%}.

e

<

Adjusted net (cash)/debt to EBITDA

The Group's strategic pricrity is to keep
net debt below three times EBITDA.
The amaunt of the Group's net {cash)/
debt to adjusted operating profit and
share of results in associates and joint
ventures before depreciation and
amertisation of licences and software
is adjusted for the timing of acquisitions
and disposals. The caleulation of
adjusted net (cash)/debt to EBITDA is set
out on page 19.

(0.16)

2005 2016 2017 2016 2019

At 30 September, the Group has net cash
of £50.1m and an undrawn revolving credit
facility of £240m.

Employee engagement

In 2019, we ran our second global staff survey. We were pleased that the
response rate increased by five percentage points from 62% in 2018 to 67% in
2019. This is one of the ways in which we ensure our employees have a veoice
and the response rate is an indicator that we are alse acting on what we hear.
Our aim is to continue to improve this KPl. The other metrics we track will vary
year to year and by business as we target prograss on what matters most to
our employees.

Euramoney Institutional Investor PLC “ v e ol e v bmr s nle g0
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Strategic Report

Segment review

We operate as three segments which are served through six divisions

Asset The Asset Management segment includes our brands and
M businesses that serve the global asset management industry,
including BCA Research, Ned Dawis Research and Institutional
anagement Investor (Il This segment provides independent research that

enables cur clients to make informed investment decisions, running
networks and conferences that bring asset allocators and asset
managers together in an effective and efficient way. and providing
news and data that are critical for the industry to stay informed
and make deals in an increasingly complex world In September,
the Group announced a strategic review of Asset Management

to ensure alignment with its strategy of transitioning towards a

3 0 business.
2019 2018* Movement Underlying

Segment Em fm i ©.  Revenues were consistent with 2018 at £145 6m_Underlying
Revenue 145.6 1458 - (@) revenue declined by 4% as growth in events and advertising
Adjusted operating was more than offset by continued decline in subscriptions.
profit 62.1 560 5 —  Asset Management remains affected by structural and cyclical
Adius‘ted operating * The 2018 results have been rastated o raflect the movement of Global Invester fram the

i L) o, Asset Maragement segment to the PDMI segmaent and the closure of the Centre for

i margin 43% Al% Caontinuing Eaucat en (CIE} business

The Pricing. Data & Market Intellgence (PDMI) segment houses

PrICIng ’ Datq businesses spanning many industries that provide information and
& Ma rket analysis critical for our clients’ business processes and workflows.
. The segment's largest business is Fastmarkets, a fast growing
lnteulgence price reporting agency for the metals, mining and forest products
industries It also includes our businesses active in the telecoms,

insurance and airline industries.

Underlying revenue growth in the year was 4% with underlying
operating profit growth of 5% Subscription revenue, which accounts
for the majority of PDMI revenue, increased by 8% on an underlying
basis In Fastmarkets, our price reporting agency, a number of

s 2019 2018% Movement Underlyng  factors helped drive adoption and increased use of our pricing
sgment Em tm % “  benchmarks including. close engagement of the business with its
Revenue 196.4 1680 7 4 clients and market. Fastmarkets being selected as the Lendon Metals
Adusted operating Exchange partner to develop the lithiwm benchmark; and the launch
profit 9.4 605 15 5 of the Fastmarkets customer platform. Our strong value proposition

Adjusted operating
margin 35% 36%

* The 2018 resuylts have been restated to reflect the movement of Global invester from the
Asset Management segment to the PGMI segment

Banking Banking & Finance, our smallest segment, provides market
intelligence, news, training and conferences to the global finance

& Fina nce industry It includes the flagship Euromoney magazine, which
celebrated its 50 year anniversary in June 2019 This leading
publication for the global banking sector, and the awards for
excellence, has been the arbiter of status for banks for decades.
Its conferences under the Euromoney and IMN brands are the
pre-eminent events for their industry sectors. This segment derives
75% of its revenues from its events.

Revenues were down 4% year-on-year to £61.2m mainly impacted
by the segment’s Structured Finance ingustry Group event

c 2009 2018 Mavement Undertying  (generating £4 Im of annual revenue in 2018) reaching the end
egment Erm £ % L ofits contract n 2018 On an underlying basis. revenues were

Revenue 61.2 637 @ D down 1% as a strong performance from IMN across 13 new events

Adjusted operating and key repeat events helped to offset decline in Euromoney

profit 13.7 16.4 (15) @ ond Global Capital events. The global backdrop of trade and

Adjusted operating geopoltical tensions as well as financial market volatility put

margin 22% 26%

Revenue and adjusted cperating profit are as defined on pages15t017
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challenges Whilst new sales in Europe continued to be impacted Segment revenue by type (%)
by uncertainty around the UK's exit from the EU, there was strong
new sales growth in Asia. In addition. underlying revenues for

Institutional investor, where revenues are scurced from asset : W‘

management marketing rather than research budgets were flat

SAr-ON-year. .
¥ y qu@ NDR

In response to continued market and performance challenges in Il
management took the decision to reshope the senior management
and global sales teams. and close CIE ot the end of 2019.

The Investment Research Division actioned a significant strategic
restructuring at the end of 2018 to combat the impact of the
declining revenues, and to reallocate some of the savings towards
reinvestment in sales resources and a revamped marketing
approach, which was in place by the end of 2019 These efforts { @ Events

resulted in significant cost savings of around £7m implemented . @ Advertising and Other
in summer 2018 and have allowed the business to reinvest whilst i

maintaining a flat underlying operating profit. an improvement on

the 4% decline seen in the prior year

BCOL Research

@ Subscriptions and content

enabled us to reflect this through increased data licensing sales, ! Conenty Rannglny Segment revenue by type (%)
which have resulted in excellent underlying subscription revenue i - i w
growth in Fostmarkets of 10% !
Underlying events revenue grew 1% It declined by 4% in the : [ TR LT, mobsa 1
WA ‘

first half of the year due to delegate markesting challenges. but
recovered to grow in the second half of the year There were strong
performances from Cealtrans Asia. Capacity Europe and the Legal copacing Reactions
Media Group. which were mostly offset by increased competitive CT |
pressure on aur Real Asset Finance portfolic and a lack of growth ‘
at our flagship telecoms event in the US, ITW, which changed A @‘SRP
location in the year to Atlanta i

In February 2019, we acquired BoardEx. an executive profiling Fiind = Fastmarkets @ Subscriptions and content
and relationship mapping platform, and The Deal, a source of i wider ) & Events

data, news and intelligence on M&A, for $83 7m Both investments | ; Acvertsi 4 Oth

are now fully integrated and firmly aligned to our 3 O strategy ? ® Advertising an &
BoardEx generated underlying growth of 11% in the year on a : @
pro forma basis. |

pressure on subscriptions and advertising revenues which both . { Segment revenue by type (%)
declined by 6% on an underlying basis in the year: although the ; 'm" :

decline in advertising revenue was, in part, offset by successful ' :
Euromoney@50 and Asiamoney@30 campaigns, GlobakCopital
During the year, the Banking & Finance segment consolidated ;

its structure inte three brands, Global Capital, Euromoney and W}fﬁﬂ”ﬂ‘(’
IMN, supported by an operaticnal pillar to deliver logistics and : . )
production efficiencies Investment in employee costs related to the
new operating structure, together with investment in new events,
drove a decline in underlying operating profit of 7%

To reduce the risk of impact from hurricanes in Florida, the annuatl
ABS East event will move from September to October in 2020
{revenue of £3 3m in 2019). 8 Events

@ Advertising and Other

® Subscriptions and content

On 1 October 2019, the Banking & Finance division merged with
the Specialist Infermation division to form the new Finance &
Professional Services division bringing together markets and
customers across financial and professional services,

Euromoney Institutional Investor PLC Arnonn Report nnm Accounts 2015 25
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Strategic Report

Market overview

We serve markets that are or have the potential to become what

we call B2B 3.0 information markets. These markets are semi-opaque,
where the information which organisations need in order to operate
effectively is hard to find

Asset

Management

Amid post-crisis quantitative easing, the industry faces Key market drivers

a more challenging future. New customer needs and + Continuous pressure on fees
market structures are pushing for the adaption of value amid the shift from active to
propositions and business models. Market challenges
are shrinking the market size for investment research.
However, the pace of decline is slowing while our * Structural and cyclical industry
specific part of the market, independent macro issues facing investment research
research, is growing. * MiFID Il has affected the way
research buyers in the EU
organise their budgets and
commission work

puassive investment products

MiFID Il and the shift from active to passive investing has
resulted in cost reductions to protect asset managers’
margins. which impacted us, although our business
remains reasonably firm. Additionally, concerns arcound
Brexit continue to create uncertainty in the market

Pricing, Data
& Market
Intelligence

Benchmark prices are increasingly being used for Key market drivers

new resources and new technolegy. Suppliers, + The market's increased demand
manufacturers and end-users utilise benchmarks as for price transparency to manage
a mechanism that provides pricing certainty across exposure to volatility

product supply chains

* Increasing call for risk
The method of price discovery varies by industry but management solutions
prices are used in contracts for metal trading, telecoms

, * Demand for new benchmarks
and infrastructure development among other segments.

in new markets continues

Businesses that operate using on-demand data to increase

through different distribution channels and evolving
product offerings are being challenged by the extensive
adoption of cloud technology across industry.

Banking
& Finance

26
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The performance of the banking and capital markets Key market drivers
industry has been in the hands of global central banks
with low interest rates, further quantitative easing, and
intervention measures influencing the markets.

* Ultra low interest rates and
negative yields

* Trade and geopolitical tensions

Negative yielding bonds have created a new normal

in markets to which all participants are adapting.

Investors are chasing returns in a world where income

from traditional scurces, debt and equity, is declining.

* Trend towards green and
sustainable finance

Global banks are maintaining stable performance.
However, while central bank activity is positive for banks’
own funding, it is creating pressure on profitability and
raising questions about business models. especially in
Europe. The prospect of mergers and acquisitions in the
European banking sector remains high.



Asset management income mix

Assets in US equity funds by investment type
Total (%/$bithons)

| . 8 s $a %
/%3 15786 157812 167912

18/%13

18/57 187314

2003 2008 2017 2018
- Sotutions/LDI/balanced
® Active core

Alternatives
Active speaialines
Source Marmingstar
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How we are responding

+ We have commenced a strategic
review of Asset Management

* We are growing our non-
institutional product suite to
cater to the fast growing wedaith
management market

* We continue to invest in product
innovation and professionalising
our sales and marketing processes

* We are exploring how to monetise
the asset owner dota we currently
capture globally

Links to strategic
pillars

Example of price volatility
Pulp Europe USD per tonne

Source PIX Pulp Price NBSK USD Market Analysis Fastrnarkets

How we are responding

* We gre continuing to build new
teams focused on targeting new
market segments

+ We are leveraging new alliances
and products designed to deliver
data directly into our customers’
work flow

* We continue to evaluate and
launch benchmarks in growth
commodities (e.g. ithium—used
for batteries in electric vehicles)
through beth organic and
inorganic investment

Links to strategic
pitlars

Banking market
MSCIl World Banks index

Source M5CI

How we are responding

* We are focused on leveraging
synergies from integrating product
lines into a single offering

* We are increasing engagement
with clients through bespoke data
products, content and surveys

* We continue to invest in developing
products which offer increasing
value in the context of increasing
market uncertainty and volatility

Euromoney Institutional Investor PLC =

Links to strategic
pillars
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Strategic Report

Stakeholder value and engagement

Our purpose is to deliver sustainable value to customers, returns to
shareholders, opportunities for employees and contributions to the
communities within which we operate, by bringing clarity and

insight to opaque markets

Recognising value for all of our stakeholders

Shareholders

The value we create |

We allocate and recycle capital efficiently to good organic

and inorganic opportunites via our investment quadrants L
Our ambition is to generate consistent and meaningful

returns for our sharshaolders at relatively low risk

We have increased our dividend payment from 32 5p
to 331p. which represents an increase over two years of
& 2%

How we engage and respond

» £35 ém paid in 2019 in dividends

» New shareholders welcomed following independent
FTSE 250 status in April

+ Capital Markets Day held in July
* Annual General Meeting held in February
* Over 100 shareholder meetings held during the year o
* Undertook two US investor readshows

Employees
The value we create

We serve our three segments through six divisions supported
by strong central functions This ensures that our employees
can be expen, creative. action-oriented and customer-
focused and take advantage of Euromoney's scale. share
best practice, aperate strategically and create career paths
for themselves and their colleagues across the Group.

We have developed new training for cur leaders, ‘
managers, sales people and recruiters among cthers s

How we engage and respond

* Sales Academy and Al Academy launched in 2019,
Finance Academy to follow in 2020

* 67% of staff complated staff survey, an increase of 5% on
last year

* Thriving staff-led diversity and inclusion inttiatives
covering a wide range of 1ssues

* All divisions and functions represented glokally on our
Staff Forum

« Qur off-shore group staff expertise in Chennal and Sofia
enhances product development o

- See page 39 for more information
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Partners

Customers

The value we create

We deliver products and services that support our clients’
critical activities and in particular serve markets which are
semi-opaque, that is, where there is informatien which our
customers need in order to operate effectively but is hard
to find

We are developing into a 3 0 business te more effectively i
serve our customers. [

How we engage and respond
» Thousands of customers operating across a broad range
of sectors

* Praducts which many custemers regard as non-
discretionary

* Astrong emphasis en embedding our products in
custormer workflows

* Aglobal customer base mirroring our global footprint

* Must-have products and must-attend events facilitate a
subscription model

-» See page 33 for more information

The value we create

We collaborate with our partners in mutually beneficial
ways to enable us both to understand and serve each
other's markets better.

We are building strong and leng-term relationships with
key partners to help us execute our strategy.

How we engage and respond

+ Centinued investment working with wide range of
technology partners

* Increasing transition to cloud-based service providers
resulting in greater flexibility as welt as security benefits

Relationships with global hotel groups and other large
venue providers for the operation of our events

+ A well-established roster of professicnol service
providers whose knowledge of our business enables
effective partnering

* Leveraging our long-standing relatonships and
constantty developing relationships with new vendors to
provide innovative solutions

-» See page 34 for more information



Non-financial information statement

Throughout this report, we refer to the Group’s nen-financial activities, including our approach to sustainability and working with our
stakeholders. This includes references to some of the policies and procedures we adopt. The table below highlights where in this report
we refer to the key contents requirements of the Non-Financial Statement (os required by sections 414CA and 414CB of the Companies

Act 2006).
Reporting requirement Supporting policies Annual Report raference Page
Environmental matters * Volunteering policy * Sustainability 36
and stakeholders
* Greenhouse Gas 37
(GHG) reporting
Employees * Code of Conduct * Qur business model 6-7
* Diversity & Inclusion policy * Chief Executive's review g
¢ Speak-up policy + Employee engagement 23
* Health & safety policy * Sustainability 30
* Event Risk Framework and Stakeholders
* Directors’ 72
Remuneration Report
+ Directors’ Report 93
Human rights * Code of Conduct *+ Sustainability 34
* Modern Slavery Act and Stakeholders
Transparency Statement *» Risk management 46
* Event Risk Framework * Directors’ Report 92-3
Social matters * Trade Sanctions Policy » Customers 33
* Modern Slavery Act * Supplier engagement 34
Transparency Statement « Risk management 5
* Volunteering policy
Anti-corruption and bribery * Anti-bribery & corruption policy *+ Sustainakility 34
* Gifts & entertainment policy and stakeholders 46
+ Speak-up policy * Risk management 93
* Directors’ Report
Principal risks and impact on business activity + Risk management 40-52
Description of business model » Our business model &7
Non-financial KPls * Group Key 23
Performance Indicators
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Strategic Report

Sustainability and stakeholders

We have reshaped our stakeholder and sustainability review reporting
this year to enhance our focus on how our Board considers stakeholder
interests. We wiill further evolve this approach to meet the enhanced
expectations of the 2018 Corporate Governance Code when this
formally applies to the Group from the 2020 financial year onwards

The reporting in this section 1s focused on four key themes PEOPEE@EUFO money
People@Euromoney, Our Customers, Our Suppliers, and the
Community and Envirenment These themes have been chosen as  Staff Survey

We wanted to respond to the two key themes identified as
important to staff in our 2018 staff survey We have implemented
pay benchmarking acrass the business in phases, with a particular
focus on our staff in lower paid roles. and have introduced
programmes to support and facilitate more flexible working across
the Group. adapted to local markets This year's staff survey results
suggest that these improvements have been positively received

by staff

they are most closely aligned te and reflect the Group's operations
key stakeholders and strateqgy

These themes also allow us to complete our nan-financial
reporting obligations, which cover our approach and policies
relating to staff development and engagement, our strengthening
of customer relationships, how we manage our suppliers. and the
variety of ways in which we measure the contributions made to
our communities

) Staff Forum

We launched our global staff forum in December 2018
and invited employees to put themselves forward as
forum representatives.

Representative area Representative
Global
Central Functions— Global

Americas (and some UK)

Maria Lobato

The forum is designed to remove communication barriers and to

support colluboration, with representatives intended to cover a
wide range of geographies and businesses. Where an area had
more than one person neminated as a potential represantative,
an election was held. Following the election process (in which

a significant number of staff members voted), 18 representatives
were confirmed as the global staff forum members

The purpose of the forum is to consult with, communicate to and
generally involve staff formelly in areas which affect everyone at
Euromoney day-to-day such as: working conditions, employee
relations, contractual and remuneration matters, and other
ways to make Euromoeney a rewarding place to work. Staff views
on these areas will be discussed and collated. and fed back to
the Board.

Following a number of introductory sessions to discuss the
purpese of the forum with the members, we held our first
formal meeting in the summer of 2019. The CEQ and CFO both
attended initial meetings to provide a link with the Board and
the CFO attended the first formal meeting. It is intended that
at least one Board member will attend all glebal staff forum
meetings, along with the Global HR Director and Global
Reward Director. The Board will receive regular reports from
the forum and will actively participate in shaping its remit
and approach.

The forum is currently scheduled to meet at least twice a

year with meetings following the Group's results in May and
November. with potential additional meetings at appropriate
times between these meetings. The inaugural global staff ferum
members are as follows:
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Fastmarkets ~ Bedford

Gregory Porcaro

Fastmarkets — New York

Tom Jennemann

Ellie Mertens
(until date of leaving)

Specialist Information —US

Fastmarkets —Americas excluding Luis Sucupira

New York & Bedford

Investrnent Research—Canada and UK Fiona Ardasinski

Investment Research—US Tania Tagliavento

I1=US and UK Denise Best
Europe
Bulgaria Nikola Peychev

Banking & Finance —UK Gerald Hayes

Fastmarkets — UK Pawel Paluchowski

Fastmarkets — Eurcpe excluding UK Ville Henttonen

Specialist Information — UK Nick Pettifer

Telecoms -~ UK Rachgel Lupton

Asia & Australia

Banking & Finance —Asia Romec Wang
Specialist Information — Asia Dave Doré
li/Investment Research—Asia & Australia Marsha Larned
Fastmarkets — Asia Atin Kapur




The 2019 survey results suggest that our staff feel we are generally
making positive progress as an employer However, there 1s

more to do. including further work on pay, and this year's survey
alse highlighted that more visibility of career opportunities and

a continuing commitment to improve manager capabilities are
priorities for staff

In response to our 2019 survey, our Senior Management Group.
consisting of our top 85 global leaders, spent two days in June
discussing the topic of staff engagement This led to Nigel Martin.
our Global HR Director, co-ordinating bespoke action plans for
each division and function by role type, and a group-wide tier of
actions to take We hope that these plans will result in meaningful
engagement with our staff across the Group The action plans
centre on Practice what we Preach’. managers leading by
example, career management and planning. and increasing
opportunities for collaboration

Board Engagement

The Board has taken time to attend a range of introductory
meetings, lunches and dinners with staff from across the Group
During the year. the Board ottended a lunch with the Telecoms
divisional management team led by Ros Irving. a dinner with the
North American senier management team in New York in july, and
also participated in an interactive question and answer session
hosted by the Women@Euromoney group in September The Board
also spent time with members of senior management and advisers,
at the Board strategy offsite meeting in june The Board enjoys the
apportunity to meet staff from across our businesses and offices,
and these mestings will continue in 2020

Investing in Talent

Supperting the staff survey action plans, we continue to investin
our talented people and to give our staff responsibility early in
their careers.

This year we have built on the progress made with the Early
Careers Academy in 2018, a programme now supported by our
entire Group Management Board, running thematic workshops
for our more junior staff to engage in. We introduced early career
secondment programmes, which included secondments to work
with cur CEQ, Andrew Rashbkass, in London and New York. Two of
Andrew’s secondees this year, Francesca Brindle and Iveta Pekova,
have contributed directly to the production of this Annual Report
The secondment programmes remain very popular with those
eligible, and have besn very well received by those participating
There is a case study about the programme on page 35,

We continue to run our Management and Leadership courses,
which focus on the core skills needed to be a successful manager
and leader at Euromoney The courses are held in Londen, Hong
Kong. Mortreal and New York. In 2019, 184 colleagues attended
the Managing 3.0" course, 300 attended ‘Recruiting’. and 78
attended ‘Leading 3.0" acress all locations

We have also made a significant investment in our sales
capapility trairing across the business, with 33/ participants in our
‘Conceptual Selling course and 97 attendees at our Management
Code focused sales training this year Our legal team have
trained mare than 246 people in Contract 10V workshops. again
held globally

Integration

We have relocated staff who jcined the group with the acquisition
of BoardEx and The Deal in February. to our existing offices in New
York ana London We have integrated staff based in Chennai in
India as well

Culture and Diversity

The Board is also actively discussing cur culture in the context
of the enhanced Corporate Governance Code expectations in
this area

We will have introduced a new Diversity & Inclusion Policy

which outlines our commitment and our approach, and how to
integrate this with our entrepreneurial heritage by the end of 2012
in January, we held Diversity Week and the different @Euromaney
diversity groups contributed to that event. You can read the case
study on page 39.

It is important to recognise industry achievements by cur pecple.
and we celebrate Jade Friendensohn being awarded the 100
Waomen in Finance’ Award for Effecting Change in 2019 You can
find more information regarding Jade’s award on page 32.

Qur gender diversity at board level is a real strength. with 44%
female representation through the appointment of Wendy Pallot,
Jan Babiak, Imegen Joss and Lorna Tilbian appointed as Directors.
Key posttions including CFO (Wendy). Senior Independent Director
(Jan). and Remuneration Committee Chair (imogen) are held by
female directors

We have similar representation at Group Management Board
level. with 30% female representation through Wendy Pallot
(CFO). Diane Alfanc (CEO Institutional Investor) and Res Irving
(CEOQ, Telecoms)

We are making progress with regard to recruiting and promating
women to senior positions. and through networks and events such
as those held by Women@Euromeney, and which is discussed on
page 39 The charts below summarise our gender split at Board,
Group Management Board, Senior Management and Group level.

Board Group Management Board
@ Male ® Male
® Female ® Female

Senior managers Total employees
® Male @& Male
@ Female @® Female
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Strategic Report

Sustainability and stakeholders continued

Progress regarding Gender Pay

Qur 2018 analysis (available on our website) shows we have
more to do to address our gender pay gap. which continues to be
driven by the under-representation of women in more senior roles
resulting in a lower proportion of women in the upper pay quartile

Since April 2018, we have increased the steps we are taking to
address the underlying drivers of the gender pay gap, such as
increasing the diversity of shortlists for senior rales As reported last
year. since this date we have also hired a number of seniar women
in key roles, including Weandy Pallot who joined as Chief Financial
Officer in August 2018

We have also taken a number of other actions on employee
engagement, training programmes, talent development, flexible
warking options and parental policies, that we believe will have

a positive impact on the diversity of our organisction over the
longer-term. We are committed to closing the gender pay gap and
reducing the gender imbalance across the organisation

Volunteer Days

We actively encourage all our staff to make use of their two
allocated volunteering days through consultancy Benefacto
During the year approximately 90 volunteenng days were

used Awide varniety of charities community and envirenmental
initiatives are supported, including The Lord Mayor's Appeal and
City Giving Day 2019, which celebrates the chartable efforts of
businesses in the City and spotlights fundraising and volunteering
activites We discuss our volunteering activities in more detail in
the Community & Environment section on page 35

2019 Summary

The Board is very pleased with the progress made during the year
towards making Euromaoney a great place to work This further
allows our staff. of all levels of expenence and background. to
benefit from our best-of-both worlds operating model. We are
focused on attracting and retaining the right talented people to
support our approach, and in turn generate further benefits for our
shareholders and other stakeholders.

32 Euromoney Institutional Investor PLC 2« 00 ¢ v

Women in Finance
Effecting
change

We are delighted that the 100 Women in Finance’ affinity
group has awarded Jade Friedensohn, Managing Director of
the Structured Finance Division at Information Management
Network, the WF100 Effecting Change Award' in 2019, for her
work on the IMN Women in Thought Leadership initiative.

IMN has been helping to raise the profile of women with
our Wamen in Thought Leadership Initiative by ensuring
that every panel at our major ABS industry events includes
a female speaker. We encourage our event spansors to
nominate their female talent with the promise of additienal
exposure via speaker roles on the pregramme.

IMN's 2019 target is to increase the absolute number of
women speaking per event compared with 2018. We actively
seek gender diversity on all panels. One example of cur
recent success is at the 5,000-persen 25th Annual ABS

East Conference held in Miami Beach, Florida, where we
increased the percentage of female speakers from 26% to
30% year-on-year. IMN arganises at least one networking
event ahead of each coenference to cultivate the discussion of
pertinent business topics, illuminate issues affecting women's
prefessional advancement, encourage best practices in
diversity and inclusion, and so that we can feature compelling
guest speakers,

IMN donates a percentage of the proceeds from all branded
opportunities. supported by our sponsors, to 100 Woman in
Finance, whose missions strongly align with our ewn. Jade will
be honoured at this year's Women in Finance’ New York
Gala, a fundraiser for the 2019 100 Wemen in Finance's global
philanthropic theme: Tnvesting in the Next Generation’.

This initiative reaches, emboldens and supports pre and
early-career women who are the finance industry’s leadership
pipeline by encouraging female students te look faveurably
at careers in finance and investment; creating educational
opportunities and access peints for them to join the industry:
enabling ongoing peer netwaorks for early-career women and
increasing visibility of female role models.

We are proud of jade’s achievements and delighted that she
has been highlighted as a role model in business both inside
and outside of Euromoney.




Customers

QOur customers are central to everything we do at Eurameney. and
understanding ther needs and embedading our products within
their workstreams is integral to our strategy

Serving our customers’ needs

With more than 10 brands serving global markets across different
markets. the Group has a broad range of customers with
different needs. Qur newly designed CRM systems will provide

us with improved management information allowing us to better
understand and predict our customers’ requirements and identify
trends and potential opportunities.

The acquisition of BoardEx and The Dealin February provided
the Group with a new product platform focused on people
intelligence This opens up cpportunities for the Group with o new
types of end user, whao wish to improve theirr understanding of
their customers. by using the relationship mapping tools available
through BoardEx

Following the integration of both businesses in June. and the
creation of the Finanaial & Professional Services division from

1 October. we are now prioritising leveraging the skills, ideas

and resources, knowledge, and custoemer relationships of
BoardEx across our portfolio of financial and professional services
businesses facing shared markets

Global Finance Transformation Programme

We have made significant progress with our finance
transformation programme during the year. We discuss that
progress and related areas of focus in 2019 in more detail on
page &/

While not a direct touch point for aur customers, these
improvements to our central business processes and ethos support
our approach and strategy to embed our B2B information.
products and services and become a more agile. integrated and
focused group with 3 0 characteristics

Centract Transformation Programme

Our Contract Transformation Programme has also been a key
priority in 2019. Led by our in-house legal team, the Programme
has entailed an end-to-end review of our legal contract processes
to introduce greater standardisation of terms, make template
documents available. streamline and accelerate the negatiation
stages of contracting, appaint Contract Guardians as standard-
bearers for contractual terms and processes globally. and provide
supptementary 101" training

The majority of the Group's businesses have already successfully
completed the programme. with the remainder scheduled to
complete in 2020

The theme underpinning the pregramme 1s enabling the
businesses to better self help. a principle which is fully aligned with
our best-of-both worlds operating model

Global Sanctions Policy

The Group operates trade sanctions policies and procedures
to ensure that the businesses are aware of, and operate

within, global trade sanctions at all imes. These are integrated
into operational procedures and are available to all staff

This 1s necessary because the Group's businesses, and its
events businesses In particutar, conduct business across the
globe and are continually entering into contracts with new and
established customers

The Risk Committee receives regular briefings on sanctions
related developments globally, encompassing reminders as to the
implications of a breach of sanctions for the company

Geaopolitical Risks

In 2019 the Risk Committee approved a refreshed approach to
geopeliticat risk management across the Group The approach
included the introduction of a new methodology and teols to
maonitor and advise the Group's businesses regarding potential
risks in this area. The toolkit, which s available to all staff via the
Group Intranet. allows all staff to see a high level nsk overview
for many of the countries in which the Group cenducts business.
assessed by certain risk entera and including a colour coded
scoring method

The cverview entails a methodical assessment of country specific
risks based on trade sanctions, travel secunty, country nsk. and
bribery and corruption indices. The assessment draws information
from a variety of sources. both internally and externally. and

is continually maintained to ensure reliable advice for staff
Additional governance has also been introduced to prohibit
business being conducted in restricted or high risk countries

Quality Assurance: [OSCO

The |OSCO price reporting principles are a set of best practice
recommendations for all price reporting agencies to ensure the
pricing process I1s robust and transparent Accreditation against
the principles and regular iIndependent audit, therefore, provides
guality assurance to all customers of cur Fastmarkets division who
use our prices to trade, operate their businesses and agree third-
party contracts

The principtes are’ Governance and Cversight, Cuality and
Integrity of Methodologies: and Accountability and Auditing.
Fastmarkets' exchange listed prices have completed the I05CO
assurance process and Fastmarkets first received its IOSCO
accreditation in 2017,

Curing the year Fastmarkets continued to receive external
assurance over its [OSCO accreditation for benchmark prices,
including lithium, cobalt, aluminium. copper. alumina and iren cre.

Fastmarkets 1s recognised as a market leader across its key
benchmarks and continues to define standards for the industry.
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Strategic Report

Sustainability and stakeholders continued

) Managing risk
across the Group

Supplier engagement

We work with o wide range of suppliers and partners across
the globe of different sizes Ensuring we select the right
suppliers for the right projects is an important aspect of our
risk management. We have created an online ‘one stop shop’
portal for our procurement teams to use when engaging
suppliers. This enables us to undertake an efficient risk-based
assessment of suppliers across areas such as data protection,
trade sanctions and anti-bribery The portal s resulting in an
increase in the number of suppliers being assessed, enabling
a consistent and risk-based approach to supplier procurement
across the Group.

Business Information Security Officers

A key pillar of our new information security strategy is

the devetopment of a business-wide 'security champion’
programme, called the Business Information Security Officer
(BISO) programme. It is a veluntary programme which will
provide non-security specialists formalised training leading

to a recognised. accredited qualification. There are multiple
benefits: supported roll-out of the information security strategy:
increased awarenass of information security across the Group;
increased sense of ownership of security within businesses,
and investment in staff development. The informatien security
team will work closely with the BISOs throughout the year to
leverage these benefits.
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Suppliers

As a diverse global group with differert businesses located
across the world providing a range of mformatian services to BZB
clients, often in markets in which we do not have a permanent
presence. we rely on a network of trusted third-party suppliers
and consultants

Profiling our Suppliers

These suppliers span a wide varety of areas, depending on

the type of business being conducted Our subscription and
licensing led cusinesses increasingly rely on global technology.
communications and securnity providers and specialists whilst our
events businesses rely on venue and accommodation providers.
travel co-ordinators, print design specialists and many others

Qur businesses are built on data and while our cutput s primarily
proprietary, we are also buyers of data from our vendors as one of
the inputs Into our data creation processes.

Professional advisors

As we have discussed throughout this report, Euromoney became
fully independent during the year as a result of DMGT's decision to
distribute ts entire sharehaolding to its own shareholders in April

Those evenrts brought into focus the iImportant role our corporate
advisers play in helping Euromoney meet its cbligations as an
independent FTSE 250 group. and the Board to meet its individual
and collective duties

Whether it i1s our auditors (PwC) providing independent scrutiny
throughout the year; our syndicate of banks and financial
institutions who continue to provide access to capital; our brokers
(UBS and Numis) or lawyers (Freshfields Bruckhaus Deringer
and CMS Carneron McKenna) providing input generally or more
specifically on a preject basis. such as acquisition due diligence.
our communications specialists (FTI Consultants) advising on
strategic messaging or marketing approaches for our businesses;
our share registrars (Equiniti} providing suppert. Investis who
helped with the redesign of our corporate website. or RY. our
design agency for this and other shareholder and stakeholder
reports, we are delighted te work with them all and look forward
to further strengthening these relationships in future years

Global Finance Transformation Programme

We discuss our Global Finance Transformation Programme,
which directly improves the onboarding and integration of our
new suppliers. and streamlines the billing and communications
formalities for our existing supplier base on page 67 of this repart

Contract Transfermation Programme

Qur Centract Transformation Programme, which we also discuss
in more detail on page 33 seeks to improve and streamline
contracting and communicatiens pracesses with our suppliers

Maodern Slavery Act Transparency Statement

The Board takes its responsibility to review the Group’s potential
exposure to slavery risks through its operations and supply chain
very seriously The related Transparency Statement published on
the Group website (www.euromoeneyple com/modern-slavery-act)
provides more Information regarding our supply chain together
with our procedures across broad areas such as employee
assurance. supplier assurance, cur Speak Up arrangements and
aur compliance approach.



Trade Sanctions and Geopolitical Risks

When choosing whether to contract with a new supplier or renew
with an existing supplier in a higher rnsk jurisdiction, we draw

vpon the policies and procedures we have introducad to improve
our customer processes Thess processes include a general
assessment of the sutability of the supplier based on the nsks to the
Group measurad against these key ¢riteria

Speak Up

We formally discuss our Speak Up arrangements, provided by 150
27001 aceredited supplier In Touch Limited {part of Expolink Eurcpe
Limited). and the programme to refresh related communications
during the year in maore detail on page 62 of this report

We continue to benefit from an effective service from In Touch
The Audit & Risk and Risk Committees also both receive regular
updates regarding any related Speak Up activity and petential
investigations where necessary

2019 Review and 2020 Qutiook

We have reviewed and refreshed our approaches to our customers
and suppliers threugh the Global Finance Transformation and
Contract Transformation Programmes. We are already seeing

the benefits of aur afforts in both areas. We are committed to
cempleting the outstanding elements of each programme in 2020.

Community and Environment

Euromeney engages in the communities within which we

operate in a vanety of ways. We are a sizeable employer in the
communities we serve. our staff volunteer in the communities where
they work and live, our staff suppart the charities which operate
Inthose same communities, as a Group we bring tax revenues to
those cormmunities; and the nature of our business lends tself to us
having a relatively low carbon and environmental footprint,

Community

Although headquartered in the City of London, Euromoney has
offices across numerous locations worldwide in Asia, North
America and Eurepe As a global. multi-brand business, we

want to recognise the benefits of being an inclusive workplace,
celebrate our different cultures and strengths, and act consistently
with the values and cultures of the countrnes in which we

do business

As we have reiterated throughout this report. people are vital
to success at Euromoney After forming our employee-led
diversity networks tast year, these have continued to develop
this year. We have had more inttiatives. events, workshops and
enviranmental and community-criented activities, extending
supportto alt our staff regardless of background You can read
more about these initiatives and plans on page 39

Secondment Programmes
Supporting
early career
development

This year. Euromoney began offering a range of secondments
te our staff who are within the first five years of their career

as part of the Early Career Academy. The secondments were
designed to allow staff to spend time in other parts of our
business. learn new skills and find out about other parts of
the company in order to develop their career. We also offered
three month secondments shadowing our CEO Andrew
Rashbass, which we awarded to six candidates to complete
in pairs across a nine manth period.

The feedback we have received so far has been very positive,
both on a persanal and professional level. Riya Bhandari,
who works for Institutional Investor in New York, completed a
secondment with Jarvis Fisher at Capacity Media in London,
whe said that Riya hugely helped the team with one of their
biggest events of the year, Capacity Europe. Jarvis also
agreed with using secondments as a potential recruitment
tool, allowing both the employee and employer a chance

to see if the individual can meet the requirements of the role
before awarding the position

Jarvis said, "l think the secondment program is excellent and
works great for both the secondee and the business they

move into. The secondee gets the beneficial experience of o
different role in an overseas office so can develop personally
and professionally, while the business they join has the benefit
of extra help on whatever project they are working on. | would
definitely recommend centinuing the secondment programme.”

Adam Dar. who works for BroadGroup in London, was on
secondment with Institutional Investar in New York and said
he had been abte to learn more about what Euromoney does,
which markets we cperate in and what the business’ plan is
going forward. The secondment offered him the time to learn
from a greot leadership team. who were incredibly insightful,
and significantly altered his perception of business and
leadership, and how to achieve the career he wants.

Kiersten Engel, who works for Ned Davis Research in Florida,
recently completed her secondment with Andrew Rashbass
and said the experience had allewed her to interact with
senior colleagues at Euromaoney and participate in high-

level strategy mestings, facilitating her involvement in the
processes and decision-making that affect all Euromoney staff.
The secondment provided increased exposure to the career
and growth opportunities available at Euromoney, while
giving her the space to refine her skills.

After ascertaining that the pilot of the secondments has
delivered value both to the business and the individual,

we have decided to make this a rolling programme

We have done this in the hope it will expose more of our less
experienced talent te the diverse. dynamic and growing
businesses in the Group and further establish why Euromoney
is a great place to work.
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Strategic Report

Sustainability and stakeholders continued

Anniversary Charity Awards

) Euromoney@50
Charity Awards
To commemarate Euromaney's 50th anniversary in June, we
launched the Euromoney@50 Charity Awards, recognising

our people’s amazing work across the organisation, both
individually and as part of a team, for charitable causes.

Any permanent employee from anywhere in the world

could apply or nominate their colleagues, with awards
availabte in North America, Asia and the EMEA region.
Euromoney dedicated £50,000 (around $65,000) to donate
among the winning nominees and their charities. Each winner
received £6,500 ($8,000) for their charity, while each highiy
commended entrant was awarded £3.000 ($3.780)

In making their decision, our judges were impressed by
the variety of causes, the number of nominations and the
commitment and passion that our people show for the
projects they support. Whether supporting disadvantaged
women and children or programmes to boost literacy and
education, the scope of giving was a real reflection of the
diversity of cur Company.

As a way of congratulating all winners and noeminees, we
held regional celebration dinners worldwide. presented
cheques to the chosen charities and awarded our winners
with trophies.

Our regional winners were:
Asia—Morgan Davis, PathFinders

North America —Sean Mayer, Mental Health Association
of Westchester

EMEA-Petya Andreeva. Give a Book Foundation

Team Winner—Denise Best, Janice Banaria, Marcia Neverson,
Bottomtess Closet

Overall Global Personal Achievement —Denise Best

We wish to thank all cur employees for their outstanding
efforts in their charitable work this year.

Denise Best
Overall Global :
Personal Achievement
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Charitable Giving

Cur employees drive our chanty fundraising, which 1s sourced
from a combination of both individual staff fundraising efforts and
the Group's chartable budget This budget provides a matching
contribution for fundraising efforts

The team in New Yerk has volunteered their ime to @ Resume
Review and Mock Interview event, and a Workwear Clothing Drive
for Bottomless Closet, which aims to guide disadvantaged New
York City women to enter the workforce, as well as Ins House,
comprehensive support, prevention and education service for
women and families affected by HIV/AIDS Our people alse held

a Haliday Bake Sale with all proceeds going to Americares for
hurricane victims.

In Asia. our Airfinance jeurnal Events team in Hong Kong worked
with a local community chanty HandsOn Hong Kong to complete
a beach clean at Silver Strand Beach in Sai Kung This coastal
clean up activity clears debris and plastics, which are then sorted,
recorded and delivered to recycling centres. Our people alse
volunteered with PathFinders at the end of 2018, helping to hand
out gifts to children and werk with the company en its website and
donor materials

In Londaen, the Euromoney Giving network has been busy
organising charity runs. awards and events geared toward
fundraising. a Women in Business Lunch, hosted by Haven House,
as well as participating in the annual City Giving Day

Looking to the rest of Europe. our team in Bulgaria has been
recycling plastic bottle caps as part of a chanty campaign that
donates the money to funding incubators in hosprtals nationwide
for premature babies Other team membpers have dedicated their
time to volunteering In community kitchens that prepare food for
people in need.

Overall. through a combination of Group donations and staff
fundraising. approximately £0 3m has been raised for charitable
causes in 2019, including significant denations or pledges to
Haven House, Shelter, Multiple Sclerosis Society and others This 1s
a record in terms of charitable donation generated by the Group
and its staff.

Political Contributions and Public Policy Participation
We do not make political contributions nor participate
in the formulatien or development of public policy in any
global urisdiction

Environment

QOver the last year, the Environment@Euromoney group has

been focused on reducing the Company's total carbon footprnnt
As part of City Giving Day 2019. the network held an all-natural
room diffuser workshop using fruit, essential oils. herbs and salt as
environmentally friendly alternatives 1o shop bought products that
use chemicals and single-use plastic

Environment@Euremoney in London used their paid volunteer days
to help The Sussex Witdlfe Trust, collecting litter from Shoreham
Beach as well as their day with Moo Canoes. discussed in more
detall below Additonally, the network has fermed an alliance with
Frutful Office. an inhative that helps mitigate the effects of glebail
warming, deforestation and provide sustainable income support to
local communities in Africa by planting a tree in Malawi for every
fruit basket sold. Currently, Euromoney's cumulative contributions to
date are equivalent to the planting of almest 1.000 trees. Our team
in Bulgaria have made efforts to reduce and more effectively
recycle their office waste With input fram an Nen-Governmental
Organisation called Zero Waste Bulgaria, which educates the
public on the ways to reduce waste output. we have changed the
approdch we take to recycling in the office



Greenhouse Gas (GHG) reporting

The Group participates in @ carbon footprint analysis completed
by ICF International. This exercise has been undertaken every

year since 2007 using the widely recognised GHG protocol
methodology developed by the World Resource Institute and the
World Business Council for Sustainable Development The Directors
are committed to reducing the Group's absolute carbon emissions
and managing its carbon footprint

Greenhause emission staternent

The following emissions have been calculated according to the
Greenhouse Gas Protocol Corporate Accounting and Reporting
Standard {revised edtion) methodology Data was gathered to fulfil
the requirements under the CRC Energy Effciency scheme and
emission factors from the UK Goverrment's GHG Canversion Facters
for Company Reporting 2018 The carbon footprint is expressed in
tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent and ncludes all the Kyoto Protocol
gases that are of relevance to the business The Company's footprint
covers emissions from its global operations and the following emuission
sources scope 1 and 2 {as defined by the GHG Protocol), business
travel and outsourced delivery activities

Assessment parameters

Baseline year 2016

Consolidation appreach Operational control

All entities and facilities either owned or
under operaticnal control

Boundary summary

The only variation 1s that leased
properties. under operationat control.
are included in scope 1 and 2 data. all
scope 3 emissions are off-balance sheet
2IMIssIGns

Consistency with the
Financial Statements

Greenhouse Gas Protocal
environmental reporting guidelines

Assessment methodology

Intensity ratio Emissions per £m of revenue

Greemhouse gas emiIssion source

2009 208

(tCOze) (1CO)/ (ICChe) (CO:e)
_ Em Em
Scope 1. Combustion of fuel and 300 0.7 700 1.7
operation of facilities
Scope 2 Electricity, heat, steam 1,700 4.2 1,600 39
and cooling purchased for
own use o i
Total scope 1 and 2* 2,000 50 2300 56
Scope 3 Business travel and 5,600 13.9 5900 142
outsourced activities
Total emissions 7,600 8.9 8200 19.8

* Statutary carban report ng dise osares requred by Companies Aat 2004

Volunteering with Moo Canoes
Environmental
volunteering

In july. the Envirenment@Euromoney group organised o

staff votunteering day with Moo Canoces. Moo Canoes run
litter picking paddle sessions in Hackney Wick, to reduce
pollutants in urban water spaces. Euromoney staff collected
15 large refuse sacks worth of metal cans, glass, plastic
bottles and crisp packets from the River Lea, thereby reducing
the inorganic material that pollutes rivers and damages

ther natural ecosystems. We are proud of the contribution
Euromoney staff made to the local community and
environment in a busy part of East London.

2020 objectives

We are warking our way toward achieving the goals we set for
the company 1in 2018, which aimed to strike a balance between
fostering the entrepreneaurial spint of Euromoney and the
recognition of different but equally important skills to attract and
retain the right talent

While the 2018 Code is, rightly. requiring companies to think harder
about their corporate purpose and engagement with a wide
vanety of stakeholders, at Euromoney we are fortunate to have a
cohort of staff who do this as part of their daily business As we go
into 2020, the Board and senior management team will continue
to support their efferts and our own Code compliance in this area
will be the result of the natural interests and energy of our staff,
which we think is the best way of serving cur wider stukeholders
and communities.
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Strategic Report

Stakeholder engagement in action

-
~

Capital Markets Day:

Our CMD ¢

Event in JUly Our Capital Markets Day in

As set out inthe Chairman's introduction, with the DMGT .IUIY Was ;1ttended bY over 90
distribution the Group's shareholder base was broadened, inV@StOl‘S and ana]ysts.

new shareholders were introduced and there has been
increased daily liquidity in the traded shares. In order to
provide our new shareholders and our other financial Sarah Cooke
stakeholders the oppertunity to meet management and obtain Head of Investor Relations
more information on the business, the Group held a Capital
Markets Day in July. The Capital Markets Day was attended
by over 90 people representing our shareholders, sell-side
analysts and the banking community. Many more also viewed
via webcast both on the day and in the weeks following

s
i

There were presentations on the Investment Research Division
(IRD). Fastmarkets, our Price Reporting Agency. and on
BoardEx. a recent acquisition, Bashar Al-Rehany. CEO of IRD.
and Chris Ciompi. Chief Marketing Officer of IRD, provided
insight into the current challenges facing Asset Management
from MiFID and the shift from active to passive investment as
well as providing detail on the self-help steps the division is
taking to returmn it to growth,

Jeff Davis, CEO of our Specialist Information division, who
jsined the Group following the acquisition of BoardEx and The
Deal in February 2019, gave an overview of BoardEx including
detail on its markets and customers. Jeff explained BeardEx's
3.0 characteristics and how its growth will accelerate os part
of Euromoney.

Finally. Raju Daswani, CEQ of Fastmarkets. explained the
strategy to become a world-leading PRA and how we are
building sustainable fong-term growth Raju provided insight
into their markets, what they do and how they segment

their customers.
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Diversity Week: KV

) Prioritising
diversity globally

Global Women in Telco & Tech 2019

Our Tetecoms division hosted leading industry professionals in
the Telecommunications and Technelogy sector at the Global
Wamen in Teleo & Tech 2019 event. creating an engaging
networking platform that featured diversity agendas among
telecommunication and technology professionals The event
concluded by recegnising female professionals and their
achievements within the field.

Euromoney’s Diversity Networks

Women@Euromoney empowers women in the workplace
Throughout the year, we have hosted female speakers and
networking events to address gender equality at Euromoney,
with a focus on the gender pay gap. woemen in business and
women in tech

The Race, Faith, Diversity & Inclusion Network celebrates the
diverse cultures, religions and experiences within Euromoney.
and this year has celebrated Hispanic Hentage Menth and
Black History Month, as well as running Lunch & Learns and a
Latin Dance Workshop.

Wellbeng@Euromoney considers the mental and physical
health of staff. The group holds regular yoga classes,
promotes Euromaoney’s volunteering opportunities with
Benefacto and runs workshops addressing work-tife balance,
stress management and working as a parent.

Environment@Euromoney engages staff with envirenmentally
friendly activities both at work and home, with initiatives
including Canoceing for Clean Water 2019, a Shereham Beach
Clean and Fruitful Office. which plants a tree in Malawi for
avery fruit basket purchased

LGBTQRA@EUromoney provides visibility and a space for all
members of the LGBTQA community. includes straight allies.
The Group promoted Pride Month during June. including
attendance at London and New York Pride, while cross-
collaborating with other networks on the ‘Essential Allies —
Driving Diversity forward’ discussions

The Townhall Series

Held twice a year, the townhall series provides a platform

to discuss Euromoney's strategy, financiat performance

and global staff survey results Andrew Rashbass and

Wendy Pallot conduct each meeting and cover financial
performance, strategy and the people agenda The platform
enables transparency and inclusion among the Group as well
as encouraging staff engagement and participation

¢6

The Townhall series, held twice
a year, provides a platform to
discuss our strategy, performance
and recent staff survey results.

Nigel Martin
Global HR Director
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Strategic Report

Risk management

Dear shareholders,

| have chaired the Risk Committes since my appointment as Chief
Financial Officer in August 2018, Over the last 15 months, | have
spent time reviewing the Group's appreach to risk management in
the context of the underlying risk profile of the business

As CFO D work closely with the Chair and members of the Audit

& Risk Committee to ensure that the Group's approach ta risk
management and overall control environment are appropriate,
and that the Group's operational nisks are mitigated or minimised
to the extent possible Tim Bratton, General Counsel & Company
Secretary, has day-to-day responsibility for risk. supported by a
small team of risk professionals In terms of governance, the Risk
Committee has oversight of these areas and is attended by Colin
Day as Chair of the Audit & Risk Committee

| believe that the Group's approach to risk management and our
updated and improving control environment are appropriate

to the Group's strategy, the current macre-environment and the
outlook for cur markets. We have made significant improvements
aver the course of the last 12 months, including the appointment

of a new and experienced Head of Internal Audit to lead a newly
resourced function, the approval and introduction of a new group-
wide Enterprise Risk Framework and a wide range of policy and
procedural updates. We are well placed to manage nsk to support
our strategic objectives
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We continue to make improvements

to the Group’s management of risk

Wendy Pallot
Chief Financial Officer

At Eurcmoney, the Board believes it is important to give investors
and other stakeholders a detailed explanation of cur principal risks
in the context of the strategic position of the Group this year

As we progress this company towards becoming what we call

a B2B 3 0 information services business. we face increased risks
Our services are digtal. making it easier to expand our global
footprint The world is facing a wide range of geopolitical risks and
issues Global M&A remains a core part of cur strategy. We are
currently undergoing a strategic review of our Asset Management
businesses. As a business providing digital services we are reliant
on technology in an environmeant where cyber-risk is heightened
from both an operationat and regulatory perspective.

The Board is cognisant of these risks and has closely scrutinised
the principal risks described below, including stress-testing how
effective our risk mitigating controls are We have not deemed it
necessary to materially change our principal risks this year due to
the continual nature of control enhancements we make to mitigate
and minimise cur principal risks. However, our underlying risk
profile has evolved. and will further change in the short-term

It is important that you. our investors and stakeholders, are aware
of these underlying developments as we deliver on our strategy
to improve returns to shareholders through becoming a stronger
group of 3.0 focused businesses

(Lt

Wendy Pallot
Chief Financial Officer



We continue to prioritise the management and reporting of risk,
which is a fundamental part of our approach to business

Oversight of Risk

The Beard maintains overall responsibility for risk management
under its schedule of reserved matters. whilst the Audit &

Risk Committee has delegated responsikility for risk. The Risk
Committee operates as @ management committee and focuses
on the day-to-day management of cperational risk in the Group's
divisions and functions, and reports to the Audit & Risk Committee
The Risk Committee 15 chaired by the CFC and attended by

the CEO

Our risk team is well integrated into our gavernance framewoerks

through regular reporting to the Audit & Risk and Risk Commuttees,

and when appropriate. the Board, The team will be strengthened
by the appointment of a new Director of Risk in December

Operational Focus

The risk team waorks closely with the businesses operationally to
integrate risk management tocls into commercial decision making
and finanaial planning. Our new Enterprise Risk Framework will
strengthen these processes across the Group and is expected to
provide a platferm for greater consistency in 2020 The majority
of our divisions have appoeintad risk or compliance specialists to
manage and monitor their specific risk management procedures,
respond te divisional specific nsk management needs, and also
co-ardinate Group policies and procedures

As a Group. we also operate Business Continuity and Disaster
Recovery policies which support our risk processes and mean
we can further mitigate the potential impact of risk events should
unforeseen or unplanned events arise in the future These have
been reviewed and refreshed dunng the last12 months

Greup Risk Profile

Euremoney continues to be exposed to different nsks and
uncertainties as a result of (1) the Group's glokal fostprint. (2) the
variety of its different products, services, markets and customers,
and (3) the Group's approach to managing its portfolio of
businesses In accordance with the strategic quadrants discussed
in more detail on page 10 On a practical level, this means that the
Group allocates capital to assets more likely to generate a return
in line with strategy. and divests businesses no longer meeting the
3.0 characteristics chosen by the Board The Group is therefore
frequently Invoived in transactional activity, which can present risks
that need to be carefully managed

Risk Priorities for 2020

The risk priorities for the 2020 financiat year are to maintain cur
commitment to nsk management as we execute our planned
strategic projects during the year, to further communicate and
roll-out cur Enterprise Risk Framework. and to integrate the newly
appointed Director of Risk We will also continue to evolve and
improve our policies and procedures and respond to any changes
in our underlying risk profile as necessary in the year.

Risk matrix

Impact

Likelihood

The Group registers its risks based on a residual risk rating
after taking account of mitigating controls.

1 Downturn in key gecgraphic region or market sector
{cyclicat downturn)

2 Product and market transformation/disruption
(structural change)

3 Exposure to US dollar exchange rate

Information security breach resulting in challenge to
data integrity

5 A failure to comply with law. regulation or contractual
obligations resulting in financial loss and/or
reputational damage

&6 Material disruption to business operations resulting in
financial loss or reputational damage

7 Failure to execute acquisitions or dispesals in line
with strategy

8 Uncertain tax ligbilities

9 Failure to implement the strategy effectively due to not
attracting or retaining the right staff

10 Business risks arising from the global
geopolitical environment

1 Under-investment in products and technology
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Strategic Repert

Risk management continued

Risk Register

The Group's risk register identifies the principal risks facing the
business The register is put together following a Group-wide
assessment of risks reported in ts business rsk registers (bottom-
up approach) The risk register of each businegss considers

the lkelihood of a nsk aceurring and both the monetary and
reputational impact of the risk erystallising The nsk assessment
process alse considers the view of the principal risk owners, senier
management and executive directers, including their appetite for
the respective risk (top-down approach).

This year we held a risk review workshop with leaders from across
each of cur divisions and relevant corporate teams to discuss cur
principal risks and any changes over the preceding 12 months

Our principal risks this year remain largely unchanged

We have introduced one new prncipal risk. highlighting the

risk to the Group of failing to make the investment in products

and technelogy necessary for the Group to become o B2B 3.0
information services business We have replaced what we
reported last year as a standalone EU exit risk with a wider risk
relating fo the current gecpolitical climate we operate in. which

is mare appropriate for us as a global business We have alse
merged two previcusly standalone principal risks inte one focusing
on disruption to business operations. whatever the cause

Cur people-related principal risk focuses on attracting and
retaining the nght staff. rather than simply key staff, and we have
refined the description of what we consider as ™M&A risk’

The Audit & Risk Committee has campleted a robust and detailed
assessment of both the sk management processes and the nisk
register, and has considered the impact of significant risks on

the Group including our principal risks. Further details of the risk
management processes and the governance structure for risk can
be found in the Governance section

We also use a number of tools to analyse risks and facilitate
discussions at the Board, Group Management Board and
Risk Committee

The risk matrix on page 41 shows the relative likelihood of the
principal risks crystallising and their potential impact on the
Group The risks are shown as post-mitigation residual risks

We also consider the extent to which each risk arises from
external or internal factors and whether each risk is established
and understood or is an emerging risk and therefore less well
understood. The risk radar below maps the principal risks

using these criteria, with increasing risk indicated by the larger
circles The arrows indicate the change in level of perceived risk
compared to last year

Risk radar
Estabtished risks Emerging risks
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The Group registers its risks based on a residual risk rating
after taking account of mitigating controls.

1 Downturn in key gecgraphic region or market sector
(cyclical downturn)

2 Product and market transformation/disruption
(structural change)

3 Exposure to US dollar exchange rate

4 Information security breach resulting in challenge to
data integrity

& Afailure to comply with law, regulation or contractual
obligations resulting in financial less and/or
reputational doamage

6 Material disruption to business operations resulting in
financial loss or reputational damage

7 Failure to execute acquisitions or disposals in line
with strateqy

8 Uncertain tax liabilities

Failure to implement the strategy effectively due to not
attracting or retaining the right staff

10 Business risks arising from the global
geopolitical environment

11 Under-investment in products and technology



The Group's principal risks and uncertainties are summarised below

Key factors

Mutigabion

Risi appetite

Downturn in key geographic region or market sector (cyclical downturn)

» Concentration of customers in financial
services sector

Global ecenomic and geepolitical risk
continues to create uncertainty in the UK
and Europe over the UK's EU exit, the
increasingly protectionist trade policies of
the US and China and political unrest in
Hong Kong. This puts clients’ budgets under
greater scrutiny

Market shifts in the asset management
market. including the shift towards passive
portfolio management. pricing transparency
reqgulation and new technologies continue
to put downward pricing pressure on fees
received by asset managers

* Downward perfermance in certain
commodity markets results in market
participants having less discretionary spend

Board’s view

There are limited options to mitigate impact
of a significant cyclicat downturn in the short
and medium term. The residual risk wilt
remain high.

The Board is carrying out a strategic review
of Asset Management to assess whether
the Group remains the best owner of the
businesses over the medium-term.

The Group actively manages cyclical risk
through its strategic framework

The Group is undertaking a strategic
review of Asset Management

The Group continues to carry out
comprehensive risk reviews of its asset
management businesses resulting in
detailed mitigation plans for each business
and continuous tracking of effective

risk management

The Groug's strategy is to increasingly
provide services which are embedded
in our customer's workflow, which
makes them mare likely to be non-
discretionary purchases

Marketing ond sales operations in BCA
Research and NDR have been restructured
and increased investment allocated

The Group operates in many geographical
markets and our businesses are
encouraged to explore new ones

Diversification exists in sector mix and
particularly so following acquisition
of BoardEx

Ability to cut some costs temporarily
and quickly

Risk telerant
Pricr years
(relative position)

2018: Risk tolerant
2017 Risk tolerant
2016, Risk tolerant

Link to
strategic
pillars

Q H

Post-mitigation risk trend

Increasing

~

Description of risk change

Glebal economic and

geopolitical uncertainty is

continuing
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Strategic Report

Risk management continued

Key factors

Mtigation

Competition from existing competitars. new
disruptive players and new entrants

Certain competitors con be less disciplined
in capital allocation when investing

In pew products/technology than a

public company

New technologies change how customers
access and use our products

Changing demegraphics can affect
custemer needs and opportunities

Structural pressure on customer business
models will affect demand for the Group's
products and services, particularly in
financial services

Regulations such as MiFID il creating both
challenges and opportunities in asset
management sector

Free content available via the

internat increases the threat to paid
subscription medel

Inability to make acquisitions in line with the
Group strateqgy

Board's view
Conrtrols are in place, and scaling individual

businesses helps, but exposure to this risk will .
remain moderate :

Product and market transformation/disruption (s

L]

-

Strategy designed to appraise and
evaluate structural nsks and respond to
them. taking advantage of opportunities
where identified

Regular CEC-led reviews across
all divisions

Entrepreneurial approach

Effective management reporting with
regular forecast reviews

Partfolio spreads risk to some degree

Portfalio management allews the Group te
sell structuratly challenged businesses and
to buy structurally strong ones

Cyclical review of divisional activities by
the Risk Committee

Streamlining of operations in our
Investment Research businesses and
improved sales co-ordination in our
Institutional Investor division results
in a more jpined-up approach to
understanding our customers

Creation of larger divisions such as
Fastmarkets and Financial & Professionat
Servicas provides those businesses with
scale and better RO outcomes

The Group has over 3580 staff in its Chennai
and Sofia offices allowing it to access and
invest in skitlled staff

Hisk appetite

ructural change)

Risk tolerant
Prior years
{relative position}

2018: Risk tolerant
2017 Risk tolerant
2016: Risk tolerant

Post-mitigation risk trend

Unchanged >

Description of risk change
As an entrepreneurial
business, the Group is
experienced at managing
this risk and our larger
divisions are starting to
invest more in product and
client-facing technology.

Link to
strategic
pillars

Q <¢ H

Exposure to US dollar exchange rate

Approximately three-quarters of revenues
and profits are generated in US dellars,
including approximately 40% of the
revenues in the UK-based businesses
This gives significant exposure to
movements in the US dollar for both UK
revenues and the translation of results of
foreign subsidiaries

Asignificant strengthening of sterling
against the US dollar would reduce profits
and dividends

The Group also undertakes transactions
in many other currencies, although none
currently pose a significant risk to the results

The UK's exit from the EUJ may result in
significant currency fluctuations depending
on the terms of the exit

Board's view
Although the Group considers this risk
unchanged, the increased valatiity and

uncertainty of sterling against the US dellar
in the event of the UK's exit from the EU is
expected to continue for some time!
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US dollor ferward contracts are used

to hedge up to 80% of UK-based US
dollar revenues for the coming 12 months
and 50% of these revenves for o further
six mahths

Exposure from the translation of US
dollar-denominated earnings is not
directly hedged but is partially offset by
LS dollar costs and the use of US dollar-
denominated debt when debt is required

Sensitivity analysis is performed regularly
te assess the impact of currency risk and is
reviewed by the Tax & Treasury Committee

Given heightened volatility, the Group
hedging strategy is under frequent raview
and includes regular impact analysis of
various exchange rate scenarios together
with internal risk mitigaton such as natural
hedging of non-sterling earnings

Risk telerant
Prior years
(relative position)

2018 Risk tolerant
2017: Risk tolerant
2016 Risk tolerant

Post-mitigation risk trend

Unchanged >

Description of risk change
The Group is experienced
at managing risks related
to its exposure to the US
dollar and this risk remains
unchanged.

Q) <k




Key factors

L. ____________________________________________________________________|
Infermation security breach resulting in challenge to data integrity

As an information services business,
the integrity of the data embedded in
our products is critical in terms of trust
and reputation

The Group is a data business and creates
high volumes of proprietary, commercial
data, white also processing B2B customer
personal data and employee personal data

Increasing number of cyber-attacks affecting
organisations globally

The Group has many websites and is retiant
on distributed technology, increasing
exposure ta threats

A successful cyber-attack could cause
considerable disruption to business
operations, lost revenue, regulatory fines
and reputational damage

Privacy regulations (eg GDPR in Europe,
Californian Consurner Privacy Act in

the US) are increasingly stringent and
regulaters vigilant in relation to data
breaches, increasing the risk of a breach
and asseciated fine, civil proceedings or
reputational damage

Technological innovations in mebile
working. cloud-based technologies and
social media intreduce new information
security risks

Threats such as ransomware and crypto
mining require the Group to adaptto a
continually shifting landscape

Phishing remains one of the most serious
threats to network security

Board’s view .

The use of technotogy creates this inherent
risk. The Group strives to balance the need
to innovate through the use of technology
while responsibly managing risk, including
through the use of third party expertise.
While controls are in place to detect and
prevent attacks, attacks are inevitable.
Therefore, controls must extend to effective
attack identification managernent as wetl

as mitigating impact. Controls are reviewed -

regularly and. where required. enhanced. -
However. the rising number of oyber-attacks
affecting erganisations giobally, the Group's
greater dependency on technology and

the growing threat from cyber-crime are
increasing this risk

Mitigation

Risk appetite

Risk tolerant
Prior years
{relative position)

2018, Risk averse
2017 Risk averse
2016. Risk averse

Chief Infermation Security Officer
appointed in November 2018
Increased the size of the Information
Security team

New Information Security strategy
approved and in process of relling out

Investment in BISO programme’ {Business
Information Security Officers) for non-

Post-mitigation risk trend

Link to
strategic
pillars

81/

secunty specialists who will attain
accreditartion and know-how, leading
to increased awareness and expertise

N

Increasing

in businesses

Security governance provided by Risk
Committee and Infermation Security
Steering Group

Approved information security standards
and pelicies which are reviewed on a
regular basis

Continuing education and awdreness
programmes for all staff

Most ndustry information
security analysts agree
that this risk is increasing

will continue to face more
regular and sophisticated
cyber-attacks.

Active information security programme
{including access management and
cyber-resilience planning) to align ail
parts of the Group with its information
security standards

Crisis management and business continuity
frameworks cover all businesses including
disaster recovery planning for IT systems

Multi-layered defence strategy

Robust [T security due diligence framework
for acquisitions

Access to key systems and data s
restricted, menitored and logged with
auditable data trails in place and
project underway for bolstered identity
access managemeant

Comgprehensive backups for IT
infrastructure, systems and business dota
Continuved investment in dedicated IT
security roles in Central Technology
Professional indermnity insurance provides
cover for cyber risks including cyber-attack
and data breach incidents

Information security is reviewed as part of
our internal audit process

Regutar information security training for
employees, contractors and freelancers

Incident response playbook

and warn that companies

Description of risk change

I O i S T
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Strategic Report

Risk management continued

Key factors

Metigatian

Link to
strategic

Risk appetite pillars

A failure to comply with law, regulation or contractual obligations resulting in
financial loss and/or reputational damage

The Group eperates in many junisdictions
and must be compliant with all applicable
laws and regulations

The Group's businessas publish, market
and license increasingly complex content
and data which in some cases its
customers may choose to rely on when
executing transactions

Risk or reputational damage can arise from
inappropriate reliance on third party data,
errors in underlying data or content. faitures
of data integrity and failure to educate
customers on appropriate usage of data

A number of our businesses operate in an
enviranment where privacy regulations are
increasingly stringent

The Group relies on third parties, usually in
non-core markets, to represent the Group
and the Group may be legally responsible
for their failure to comply with law

or regulaticn

The Group conducts business globally in a
geopolitical environment in which we see
‘sanctions creep’ thereby increasing the risk
of unintentionally being in technical breach
of sanctions

Success of the Group is dependent on
client confidence in integrity of products
and brands

Claimants can forum shop when
determining where to litigate or threaten
legal proceedings

Compliarice risk is increasing for information
providers as price, benchmark and index
reporting activities are coming under the
scruting and remit of different regulators

A failure to comply with regulatory
frameworks would result in reputationat
damage, dnd potertial regulatory censure

Board's view

We have a zero-tolerance approach to
certain legal and regulatory risks such as
bribery. At the same time, the publication
of data and content in digitat businesses
inevitably exposes the Group to global legal -
and regulatory risk. The marnner in which

we conduct aur businesses can also result

in risk if policies are not complied with.

Qur divisions have access to the Group's
central functions such as Legal, Risk and
Internat Audit. which provide more specialist
resource o raise awareness of, mandge
and mitigate risk. Legai and regulatory

compliance risk for the Group is unchanged. :

46

Euremoney Institutional Investor PLC <

We invest in o central Legal. Risk &
Secretariat function and employ specialists
across a range of areas to help our
businesses manage these risks

Senior management at both a Group and
divisional level are collectively responsible
for managing risk

Our dwisions employ compliance and/or
risk specialists where required

Event Risk Framework in place to facilitate
management of operational risk in respect
of events

Many key company policies updated and
made available on Intranet, including o
range of different awareness initiatives
relating to anti-bribery. madern slavery.
sanctions and data privacy

Processes and methodologies for assessing
commadity prices and calcutating
benchmarks and indices are clearly
defined and documented

Compliance with International
Crganization of Securities Commissions
(IOSCO) standards achieved for relevant
pricing products

Code of Conduct and other key policies
in place for price assessment. benchmark
and index reporting activities

Creation of online geopolitical risk
assessment tool for use by businesses
Specialist training In media law issues
provided to relevant staff

Company-wide Speak Up policy in place
and awareness initiative undertaken
Comprehensive legal disclaimers in place
in contracts/within products

Access to appropriate professicnal
advisers where required

Professional indemnity insurance

Risk averse

Prior years
(relative position)
2018: Risk averse
2017 Risk averse
2016: Risk averse

Post-mitigation risk trend

ALy

AL
L

Unchanged >

Description of risk change
Large global
organisations face
increased regulatory and
compliance risks due

to their globat footprint.

in addition, information
providers face increased
compliance risks as a
result of the complexity of
data they publish, which
customers may rely on for
certain business decisions.
The Group is in the fourth
year of its strategy moving
towards becoming a B28
3.0 information services
business therefore there is
greater awareness of how
te manage the associated
risks. The Board believes
that the risk profile is
unchanged.



Key factors

Mitigaticr

Risk appetite

Material disruption to business operations resulting in financial loss or
reputational damage

NB. We previously reported this risk as two separate principat risks (Disruption to operations from a business continuity failure and

Catastrophic or high impact incident affecting key events of wider business)

The Group operates in regions with
higher risk of natural hazards, works with
suppliers based in higher risk areas and
runs large events exposed to risks such
as natural hazards, travel disruption and
security incidents

Disruption affects customers as well as staff
and revenue, and can also adversely impact
krand reputation

Prolonged interruption to business travel
would harm event revenues and disrupt
management and sales operations

Significant reliance on third-party
technology including hosting services

A significant incident affecting one or
more of the Group's key offices could lead
to disruption to Group operations and
reputaticnal damage

Information security breach impacting wider
business operations

Political or civil unrest in a country or
region may discourage customers from
participating or attending

Beard’s view

Business disruption is an unavoidable risk
but can be mitigated i business continuity
plans are well developed and managed.
The Group provides staff with access to
training. services and other resources to
keep staff safe when travelting. There has

‘been no material disruption to business

operations during the year. However, the
Group recognises a need to ensure that
each of its divisions and functions is equally
consistent and robust in relation to its
business continuity planning, which will be
of increased focus in 2020.

* Governance oversight of risk sits with the
Audit & Risk Committee and a separate
management Risk Committes

* The Risk Committee focuses on the
management of operational risk and all
divisions and key functions are represented

* The Group Risk team carries out a detailed
assessment of divisional risk registers at
least twice yearly

* Anew Enterprise Risk Framework has been
approved for roll-sut

« Crisis management and business continuity
framework requires all businesses to
plan for high impact events and conduct
regular testing of plans

+ Specialist security and medicat assistance

services engaged to support all staff
working awary from the office

Security and risk management
training available for event staff and
business travellers

* With sufficient notice, events can be
moved to non-affected regions

+ Cancellation insurance for the Group's
largest events

* Substantial central and business group
investment in cloud-based platforms
and software

* Risk assessments for new suppliers and
technologies consider operational and
financial resilience

* Close menitoring of sstuations which
may disrupt events and appropriate
cormmunication with customers

Euromoney Institutional Investor PLC » v -y X

Risk averse
Prior years
(relative position)

2018 Risk averse
2017 Risk averse
2016 Risk averse

Post-mitigation risk trend

Unchanged >

Description of risk change
The Group recognises that
business continuity events
will arise from time to time
and remains committed

1o active management of
this risk. it also recognises
that global businesses
operating in different
countries across the

world with staff regularty
travelling are more

likely to experience
business disruption

due to force majeure’
type issues. We have a
reasonably high degree
of tolerance to business
risk in operating a global
business, save in respect
of the safety and security
of our staff and customers
where the opposite is true.

Link to
strategic
pillars
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Strategic Report

Risk management continued

Key factors

Mitigation

Failure to execute acquisitions or disposals in line with strategy

Active portfolie management means
the Group centinues to make strategic
acquisitions and disposals

Significant growth has been M&A related.
through both acquired profit and growth in
acquired businesses

Failure to successfully acquire either the right
businesses (meaning businesses in our top-
right quadrant or which can be developed
and moved into our top-right quadrant). or
a farlure to successfully make acquisitions

at all, will negatively impact cur ability

te deliver the Group strategy. including
transitioning the Group to becoming a B2B
3.0 information services business

Increasingly high multiples and competitive
auction processes for high quality assets can
favour private equity buyers

Larger transactions contingent on obtaining
shareholder support

Making multiple smaller acguisitions in
lieu of matertal acquisitions increases
execution risk

Failure to integrate as intended may mean
an acquired business does not generate the
expected returns

Risk of impairment loss if an acquired
business does not generate the
expected returns

Disposal risks arise from failing to identify the
time at which kbusinesses should be sold or
failing te achieve optimal price

Group strategy relies on successful recycling

of capital and therefore MEA execution
impacts the core strategy

Board's view

The Board's focus on MEBA combined with
management’s experience enables the
Group to remain disciplined in its epproach,

minimising the risk of unsuccessful execution
or a failure to make the right ocquisitions, or
any acquisitions ot all. The Board is mindful
of the importance of ongoing investor
dilogue in respect of the M&A strategy.
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MEA strategy and execution is a regular
topic of Board focus

Invastment Committee enabiles quick
decision-making and detailed Board
oversight of M&A transachons

CEO and CFC closely involved in
ME&A execution

Active portfolic management with a clear
framework and cperating in line with
agreed strategy

Development of key objective criteria
against which acquisition or disposal
decisions are tested

Appropriate approvals precess in place
for transactions

Continued investment in Corporate
Development team

Emphasis on and investment in carrying
out external. independent commercial due
diligence at an early stage

Larger divisions facilitate effective
integration and creation of synergies

Professional advisors well known to the
Company facilitate ability to execute
quickly and effectively

Ongoing dialogue with investors regarding

the strategy, including our approach to
MELA

Risk appetite

Rizk neutral
Prier years
{relative pasition)

2018 Risk neutral
2017- Risk neutral
2016: Risk neutral

Post-mitigation risk trend

Unchanged >

Descriptien of risk change
A need to execute
successful MEA In a
competitive market
combined with robust

risk management and
controls means this risk (s
unchanged.

Link te
strategic
pillars
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Link to
strategic

Key factors Mitigation Risk appetite pillars

Uncertain tax liabilities

The Group operates within many
increasingly complex tax jurisdictions

Changes in legislation and interpretation

|dentification and disclosure of historic tax
1ssues relating to VAT and employment tax

Board's view :

The Company has identified two tax
exposures: (i) under-payments of PAYE ond
Nl to HMRC in respect of contractors: and
(i) VAT arising on supplies made between
entities in the Group. The quantum of these
exposures, including the impact to 2019, is
£192m :

Over the last 24 months. the Cempany has
invested in developing an experienced
Tax & Treasury team and continues to
enhance controls to minimise the likelihood
of any similar prior year adjustments from
reoccurning.

The Group cannot entirely eliminate the risk
of tax liaklities due to the complexity of the
Group's structure, the number of jurisdictions
in which it operates and an ever-changing
totx environment. However, the Board is
confident that the investment made inthese
areas significantly mitigate this risk.

Tax strategy takes o low risk and
responsible approach to management
of taxes

Appropriate care taken to protect the
Group's reputation and have open
and constructive relationships with
fiscal authorities

Aucit &t Risk Committee and Tax & Treasury
Committee oversight

Fully resourced tax function, including
appointment of a new Global Head of
Indirect Tax in early 2020

CGlobal footprint of Group has reduced in
last 24 months through disposals
Internal Audit team leading rell-out of
tax ‘self-assessment’ questionnaires to
ensure regular and detailed review of
potenticl exposures

New framework and pelicies in place for
engagement of contractors

Expenenced professional advisors
engaged in a range of areas

Making financiol provisions

where appropriate

Risk averse
Prior years
(relative pesition)

2018 Risk averse
20V7- Risk averse
2016, Risk averse

Post-mitigation risk trend

Increasing N

Description of risk change
The Group is experienced
at managing the tax

risks arising fram its
international business
portfolic. However, the
Group has a complex
structure. lorge global
footprint and operates

in an ever-changing tax
environment.

als
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Strategic Report

Risk management continued

Key factors

Mitigation

Risk appetite

Failure to implement the strategy effectively due to failure to attract or retain staff

50

The strategy is embedded across the Group.
Its implementation is partially dependent on
the ability te attract and retain staff

As the Group continues to meve towards
becoming a B2B 3.0 information services
business, the skills required within the Group
will change

Cur segments and divisions have indiwvidual
strategies dependent on divisional

staff with specific skills. expertise and
industry knowledge

An inability to recruit, retain and train for
critical roles will adversely impact our ability
to deliver the strategy successfully

Competitors able to poach key talent both
provides them with a competitive advantage
and means institutional knowledge is not
built-up within our businesses

Lack of in-house recruitment capability slows
down recruitment processes

Failure to address specific feediback from
staff, including via staff survey and other
forums. may lead to a lack of engagement

The Group needs te provide an empioyment
envirenment which appeals to emerging
talent as a place they want to work

Board's view

The Board recognises the importance

of attracting and retaining the right staff

to ensure effective delivery of Group,
segmental and divisional strategies. A range
of approaches are used to manage this

risk reasonably effectively but the Board is
mindful that the Group will be constantly
competing for tatent and further work is
required to improve the perception of the
Group's employer brand’.

Euromoney Institutional Investor PLC -+

Salary benchmarking undertaken and
implemented for 2019 pay review with
a particular focus on lower paid staff
Further salary benchmarking and
implementation will occurin 2020

Senior Management Group corference
focused on topic of employee engagement

Remuneration Committee oversight of
Group Management Board rewards
Continuved investment in trairing such
as Leadership 3.0 and Management
3 B programmes

Broadening of Early Career
Academy workshops facilitated by
senior management

Launch of secondment programmes,
including intra-division secondments and
to the CEQ's office

Employee forum launched, allowing for
improved employee engagement

New recruitment policy, process and
training rolled cut in 2019

Maintaining the Group's reputation for an
entrepreneurial approach, making it an
attractive place to work

Sufficient businesses within each segment
in the Group to mitigate the impact

of ‘business-as-usual departures of

critical staff

Contractual notice periods are designed to
manage the risk of eritical staff leaving on
short notice

Culture survey results have led to a number

of employee nitictives across the Group,
designed to improve career progression
and staff retention

Risk averse
Pricr years
{relative position}

2018: Risk neutral
2017 Risk neutral
Post-mitigation risk trend

Unchanged >

Description of risk change
Successful implementation
of the Group's strategy
remains dependent on
hiring and retaining key
staff. We have made
sighificant improvements
to staff engagement,
parhcularly in relation to
the Group's culture and
training and development
opportunities. The Group
will continue to respond

to common themes raised
by staff in the annual
survey or in other forums

in order to further improave
employea engagement.

Link to
strategic
pillars
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Key factors

Mitigatior,

Risk appetite

Link to
strategic
pitlars

Business risks arising from the globat geopolitical environment

The US-China trade war creates
trading tensians

US foreign policy approach to sanctions
increases risk of carrying out business in
certain countries or with certain companies

Political and civil unrast in Heng Kong
creates uncertainty for the Group's
operations in Hong Kong, including staff.
customers and the operaticn of events

Mistreatment of journalists in certain
countries may impact journalists’ willingness
to travel

The date and terms of the UK's departure
from the European Unien continues to

be uncertain therefore the potentiat
consequences dre unknown

Pending UK election creates further
uncertainty both in relation to Brexit and the
future business landscape for UK PLC

The Group, its staff, customers, suppliers
and cther stakehelders are unable to plan
with precision for the uncertainty resuiting
frem the above factors

Board's view

The Board notes that Brexit risk in particutar
continues to increase for all UK companies.
The Company continues to carry out
contingency planning in a range of areas
in light of likely continued uncertainty in

the UK market during 2020. The Group's
global footprint means that the impact

of geopolitical factors will always be a
constant macroe risk. but at the same time the
size of the footprint decreases reliance on
particular countries or regions and thersfore
mitigates risk. .

The Group's global footprint means itis
not overly reliant on any single country or
region for its revenue

The Group's Brexit Committee has met
regularly dunng the year to maonitor
potential impact and the Group's stated
of preparedness

Group management has delegated
certan decision-making to local semor
management to optimise the Group's
management of the disruption in Heng
Kong. appropriate contingency measures
have been taken

Trade sanctions guidance available to
Group businesses and access to internal
and external expertise where required

Contingency plans seek to address the
key risks and leverage opportunities

we identify

Assessments to date report no material
adverse Brexit impact en existing staff
due to small number of EU pationals in
our workforce and small number of LK
nationals working in the EU outside of
the UK

Hedging is in place to partiolly offset the
impact of US dollar exchange rate risk in
the UK

Asmall percentage of Group revenue is
generated in the EU outside of the UK

Potential travel disruption can be mitigated
by using International locations and
planning longer lead-time for travel

We use gecgraphically diverse
technelogy suppliers

Risk neutral
Prior years
(relative position}

This is a new risk

Post-mitigation risk trend

~

Increasing

Description of risk change
Geopolitical facters

are creating increasing
instability at @ macre-
level, therefore this risk is
increasing.
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Strategic Repart

Risk management continued

Key factors

Mitigaticn

tink te
strategic

Risk eppetite pillars

Under-investment in products and technology

Under-investment in products and
technology will lengthen the Group's
transition to becoming a B2B 3 0 information
services business and provide our
competitors with an advantage

The relative size of the Company
means that significant investment can
have a material impact on the Group's
financial performance

The Group may be a less attractive
employer to technologists and product
specialsts than other brands

Board's view

The Board will continue te balance short-
term and long-term issues for the benefit
of shareholders, customers and other
stakeholders. The Group will continue

to invest capital in projects such as the
Fastmarkets platform where the short-term

cost impact is outweighed by the long-term
development of the Group's products and
technology

52
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Diviston of responsikilities between Central
Technology (back-end infrastructure) and
Divisions {client-facing Ul ete.) provides
clarity for technology and product teams
on the:r rermit

Product capability and, in particular,
workflow technolegy are an impertant
focus when considering acquisitions

Leveraging expertise of our staff
base in Chennai, which includes
product specialists

Hiring product specialists at both senior
management and product owner level

Realignmant of divisional management
compensation to influence behaviours

Success of divisional investment such as
Fastmarkets platform demenstrates ROl to
other divisions and businesses

Management will allocate capital for
product/technology investment where
there 1s @ clear business case for doing so

Qur strategic framework enables the
Group to allocate capital where it will be
used most effectively

Increased scale of larger divisions reduces
impact of specific investments

Risk averse
Pricr years
{relative position}

This is a new risk

Post-mitigation risk trend

¢k QO H

A

Increasing

Description of risk change
This is & newly identified
risk for the Group's
acceleration to becoming
a BZB 3.0 informaticn
services business and
therefore is increasing.




Viability statement

In accordance with provision C 2 2 of the UK Corporate
Governance Cade 2016, the Directors have assessed the viability
of the Group and have selected a period of three years for the
assessment from the Balance Sheet date

The three-year forecasting horizon has been selected because the
Directors believe there is sufficient, realistic visibility available to
assess the Group's current and anticipated operating environment
and market conditions over this period The three-year pencd 1s
also used for the Group's strategic planning cycle and 1s therefore
considered an appropriate penod for the long-term viability
statement given the portfolic strategy of the business which
reduces longer-term predictability

The assessment conducted considered the Group's operating
profit, revenue, cash flows. dividend cover and other key financial
ratics over the three-year period These metrics were subject to
severe downside stress and sensitivity analysis over the assessment
period. taking account of the Group's current position, the Group's
experience of managing adverse conditions in the past and

the impact of a number of severe yet plausible scenarios based
on the prncipal risks set out in the Strategic Repart The stress
testing censidered the principal risks assessed to have the highest
probability of occurrence or the severest impact. crystallising both
individually and in combination. In making the statement. the
Directors have applied the following key assumptions frem the
related principal risks in prepanng the scenarios

* The perfoermance of the Asset Management segment continues
to decline, with a significant reduction in clients’ research spend
and customer bahaviour

* The Pricing, Data & Market Intelligence segment suffers a
downturn due to the reputational fall-out from incccuracies
in one of its reporting indexes. with a significant fall in
subscription revenues

* Significant reversal of the foreign exchange movement inked
to the conclusion of the EU exit on 31 January 2020, with the
outcome adversely impacting the financial results of the Group

= All material open tax items will result in a significant cash outflow

The Directars have also modelled an extreme scenario downside
that combines the key assumptions with a number of other nisks
that are deemed to have a lower probability of occurrence or
lower iImpact to assess the viability of the Group The Group's net
cash position provides a strong foundation on which to model this
extrerme downside scenario This extreme scenanc assumes a fall
in revenue versus the plan of 8% in 2020 and 14% in both 2021
and 2022 The scenaro demonstrates sufficient resilience to these
adverse events mamnly due to the Group's robust capital pesition
and strong cash generative nature, befere management taking
any mitigating actiens to reduce the iImpact on the financial results.

In making the assessment. the Directors have considered the
Group's robust capital position, the cash-generative nature of

the business, the visibitity of subscnptions revenue, the ability of
the Group to cut costs quickly. the access to available credit. the
absence of significant pension liakilities and the Group's ability to
restrict dividends Based on the results of this analysis. the Directors
confirm that they have a reascnable expectation that the Group
will be able to continue In operation and meet its liabilities as thay
fall due over the three-year period under review,

The Strategic Report was approved by the Board of Directors on
21 November 2019 and signed on its behalf by

Andrew Rashbass

Chief Executive Officer
21 November 2019

Euromoney Institutional Invester PLC 2 0 0 7hrorn el i 200 53

2
2
bid
a,
2]
a2
ki
o
0
=
~




Governance

Board of Directors

Following changes in 2019, the composition of the Board is now fully
compliant with the 2018 version of the Corporate Governance Code

Andrew Rashbass
Chief Executive Officer

Leslie Van de Walle

N R

Chairman of the Board Appointed to the Board:

Appointed to the Board: October 2015

March 2017
Deputy Chairman and Chair of Nomination Committee at Crest Andrew Rashbass has bread internaticnal experience managing
Nicholson Holdings ple, SID and Chair of the Remuneration information businesses Between 2013 and 2015 Andrew was
Committee of DCC ple and a Non-Executive Directar of HSBC UK Chuef Executive of Reuters. the news division of Thomson Reuters
Bank ple Previously, Chairman of Robert Walters ple and SIG ple. Before joining Reuters, he spent 15 years at The Economist Group,
In his executive career. Leslie was Group CEO at Rexam plc and where for the last five years he was Chief Executive

before that at United Biscuits ple Earlier in his career. Lestie held
a variety of senior roles. including Executive Vice President of Retail
for Qil Preducts and Head of CGil Products at Shell Europe

L
Wendy Pallot

Chief Financial Officer

Appointed to the Board:
August 2018

!
Wendy Pallot joined Euromoney in 2018 Wendy has 17 years’
experience working as Group Finance Director in UK main market
listed companies in the media sector. Between 2011 and 2018,

she was Group Finance Directer of Bloomskury Publishing Ple
Prior to that, she was Group Finance Director for GCap Media
plc and GWR Group ple Wendy is the non-executive Chair and
co-founder of @ company which operates local radio stations,
and a Governar of the Central School of Ballet. She qualified as

a Chartered Accountant with Coopers & Lybrand

Key
Member of the Audit & Risk Committes
Member of the Nominations Committee
R Member of the Remuneration Committee

Committee Chair
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Jan Babiak

A N

Senior Independent Director

Appeinted to the Board:
December 2007

Jan Babiak has over 25 years’ experience in professional services
in a variety of leadership roles at EY Jan holds Non-Executive
Director roles at Walgreens Boots Allance, Inc and Bank of
Maontreal Jan chairs the Audit Committee and sits on the Finance
Committee of Walgreens Boots Alliance, Inc and chairs the Audit
and Conduct Review Cormmittee and sits on the Governance

and Neminating Committee at the Bank of Montreal janis a LUS
qualified Certified Public Accountant, a UK qualified Chartered
Accountant and member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants
in England and Wales ({CAEW), where she served as a Counall
Member from 2011 to 2019 when she termed out, while remaining
an active member of selected ICAEW working groups Jan s also
gualified as a Certified Information Security Manager and Certified
Information System Auditor

Colin Day

A N

Independent Non-Executive Director

Appointed to the Board:
March 2018

Colin Day has significant expenence in senior operational

and financial roles gained across a variaty of sectors and was
appointed as Chairman of Premier Foods ple in 2019 He has
previously held Nen-Executive Director roles and chaired the
Audit Committee at Amec Foster Wheeter plc. WPP plc. Cadbury
ple. Impenal Brands ple and Easylet plc Colin spent his executive
career in a range of senior roles including Chief Executive of
Essentra PLC, Chief Financial Officer at Reckitt Benckiser Group
plc and Group Finance Director of Aegis Group ple Colinis

a Non-Executive Director at Megaitt pic, where he chairs the
Audit Committee and is @ member of the Nominations and
Remuneration Committees Colin is alse a Non-Executive board
member for the Department for Environment, Food and Rural
Affairs. where he chairs the Audit and Risk Assurance Committee
Colin is a Chartered Certified Accountant.

Tristan Hillgarth

A N

Independent Non-Executive Director

Appointed to the Board:
Decemibber 2012

Tristan Hillgarth has over 30 years of experience in asset
management including eight years as a Director of Jupiter Asset
Management and previously 14 years at Invesco where he held
several senicr positions including CEO of invesco's UK and
European businesses. He is a Non-Executive Director of JPMorgan
Global Growth & Income ple and a member of the Leverhulme
Investment Committee He qualified as a Chartered Accountant
with Arthur Andersen.

Imogen Joss
N R

Independent Non-Executive Director

Appointed to the Board:
Navember 2017

Imogen Joss has held a number of senior executive positions

in the business information industry and most recently

served as the President of 5&P Global Platts. Inc. She is the
Senior Independent Non-Executive Director and Chair of

the Remuneration Committee at Gresham Technologies

ple Imogen also holds Non-Executive Director roles at the
International Property Securities Exchange and Grant Thornton,
where she chairs the Remuneration Committes.

A P
Tim Pennington
A R

Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr Pennington joined the Board
with effect from 1 September 2019

Tim Pennington 1s Chief Financial Officer of Millicom International
Cellular, o significant international telecommunications

company listed on the Nasdaq stock exchanges in both New
York and Stockholm. Tim was previously Group Finance Director
and o Director of FTSE100 groups Cable & Wireless ple and.
following its demerger from that company, Cable & Wireless
Communications ple.

Tim has a wide range of pricr executive experience, including
corporate finance experience. firstly as Director in the specialised
financing department at Samuel Montagu & Co. Limited, and
then as Managing Director of HSBC Investrment Bank within its
Corporate Finance and Advisory Department Tim has o Bachelor
of Arts (Honours) degree in Economics and Social Studies from the
University of Manchester

Lorna Tilbian
R

Independent Non-Executive Director

Appointed to the Board:
January 2018

Lorna Tilbian is an experienced media analyst having served as
Head of the Media Sector at Numis Corporation Ple (Numis) and
as a mam board director at Numis for over 10 years. Lorna has
served as a Cabinet Ambassador for Creative Britain for the
Department for Culture. Media and Sport She is a Non-Executive
Director at M&C Saatchi ple. Rightmove ple, Jupiter UK Growth
Investment Trust PLC. ProVen VCT plc and Finsbury Growth &
Income Trust ple
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Governance

Corporate Governance Report

14

Strong governance, clear policies
and procedures, and a positive,
entrepreneurial culture supported
by a commitment to diversity are
all vitally important to your Board,
myself as Chairman and the
executive team.

Leslie Van de Walle
Chairman

Dear Shareholders,

Last year. the Company made significant progress improving its
approach to governance and the Beard confirmed its commitment
to continuing that werk in the 2018 Annual Report and Accounts

We are now fully compliant in all respects with the 2016 Corporate
Governance Code (2016 Code)} This section of the Report refers
to the steps taken to achieve this as well as providing an overview
of our governance arrangements at Euromoney since we became
a fully independent FTSE 250 group in April of this year We also
report on the key areas of focus for the Beard and its Committees
during the last12 months

Let me take this opportunity to emphasise that strong governance,
clear policies and procedures. and a positive, entrepreneurnial
culture supported by a commitment to diversity are all vitally
important to your Board. myself as Charrman and the executive
team. We hove made considerable improvements to our
governance framewaorks in the financial year, as this Report
explains, which help to underpin our financial position, strategy
and business model. and of course our progressive culture in our
many offices acress the globe.

As | mentioned in my introduction to the Annual Report on
page 4. | was appointed as Chairman with effect from 1 March.
I met the cnteria for independence required by the Corporate
Governance Code on appaintment. fulfilling an important
compliance requirement

I'then took time following my appointment to gauge the breadth of
skills and expenence among existing Board members. and found
a group of strang ability and experience. and scund judgement
already providing a constructive challenge to the executive team
We cantinue to build on that foundation

Events in April, which determined that DMGT would distnbute
therr significant 49% shareholding in Euromoney. meant that we
were able to take the necessary steps as an independent group to
better align our governance arrangements with the expectations
of the Code and market practice The balance of independent
Non-Exacutive Directors appeinted to the Board, the Directors’
individual terms of appaointment, the compesition of each of the
Board's Audit & Risk, Nominations and Remuneration Committees,
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and dialogue with key institutional investors have all been
addressed and are now compliant

The Board took the further decision in July to appoint Tim
Pennington as an additional Non-Executive Director, and Tim
|cined the Board with effect from 1 September 2019 Tim 1s already
contrnibuting strongly to the Board and the Audit & Risk Committee.
Tim also joined the Remuneration Committee with effect from

1 October Tim's appointment further refreshed the Board's
composition following full independence in April. |t also allows us
to plan effectively for when Tristan Hillgarth steps down from the
Board at the 2020 AGM in January. following eight years' service.

Following a detailed review. we were also very pleased that
Jan Babiak agreed to become Senior independent Director
in September. and Jan and | will work more closely in 2020
as the Board monitors progress against our agreed strategy
This marks another important achievement an cur path to full
Code compliance

Meore practically. the Board has reviewed. approved or updated
a considerable number of its governance and Group policies to
strengthen its frameworks and we have been kept informed of
progress against the 2018 Corporate Governance Code (2018
Code) | also conducted a robust evaluation of the Board's
parformance over the surmmer

Now that we are a fully independent FTSE 250 company we
have the governance arrangements to further support cur
strategic ambitions

Yours faithfully

<

AT A

Leslie Van de Walle
Chairman

21 November 2012



Approach to Corporate Governance
Code compliance

This Corporate Governance Report explains the Beard's approach
to governance in the context of the main principles of the 2018 UK
Corporate Governance Code (the Code’} We have integrated the
key themes of the 2018 Corporate Governance Code as a structure
for our review on the basis that this formally applies to the Group
from 1 October this year onwards

The Code’s key themes are.

+ Board Leadership and Company Purpose are on pages 58 te 61
= Culture is discussed on page 6l

* Composition. Succession and Evaluation The Report of the
Nominations Committea is set out on pages 70 and 71

* Audit, Risk and Internal Centrol The report of the Audit and Risk
Committee is set out on pages 64 to 69
* Shareholder Engagement and understanding investor views are

specifically discussed on page 28.

* Remuneration is covered in the Directors Remuneration Report
on pages /2 to 9

Leadership: Board composition and
individual roles

Following changes during the year the Board comprises a Non-
Executive Chairman (who was independent on appointment), twe
Executive Directors. and six additional independent Non-Executive
Directors. Analysis of the composition of the Beard can be found on
page 58

There are clear divisions of responsibility within the Board such that
no one individual has unfettered powers of decision The Board
approved a revised statement on the divisien of respensibilities
between the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer during

the year The newly appainted Chairman. Leslie Van de Walle,
and the Chief Executive Officer, Andrew Rashbass, have quickly
developed a strong working relationship and rapport

There are also established procedures for all Directors to take
independent professional advice in the furtherance of their duties
They also have access to the advice and services of the General
Counsel & Company Secretary and the Deputy Company Secretary
who joined during the year

A summary of changes to the Board during the year and members’
key responsibilities are set out in the table below

Executive Directors

Responsibilities

Chief Executive Officer Andrew Rashbass Strategy and Group performance
Chief Financial Officer WendyPallot —— Group financial. operational performance and nisk management
Chairman

Chatrman {from 1 March 2019)

Acting Chairman
{until 28 February 2619)

Leslie Van de Walle
David Pritchard

Board governance. perfermance, shareholder engagement

Board governance. perfermance, shareholder engagement and
leading the search for a new Chairman

Non-Executive Directors

Indepandent Non- Jan Bakiak

Executive Directors Colin Day
Trstan Hillgarth
Imogen Joss

Tim Pennington

Lorna Tilkian

Support and constructively
challenge the Executive Directors
using their broad range of
experience and expertise

Monitor the delivery of the agreed
strategy within the risk management
frameweork set by the Board
Approve matenal M&A transactions
in line with strategy

Bring an external perspective,
Independence and okjectivity
to the Board's deliberations and
decision-making

Leadership: Attendance

The Board meets ot least six ttmes each year and there is frequent
contact between meetings. At least ance a year. the Chairman
meets the Non-Executive Directors without the Executive Directors
being present The Non-Executive Directors, led by the Senior
Independent Director. meet either together or indvidually. and

in both cases without the Chairman present, at least annually to
appraise the Chairman'’s performance They also meet on other
OCCAsions Qs necessary

Nan-Executive Directors are also encouraged to meet senior
management in the business without the Executive Directors
present In order to have access to o range of views and
perspectives on the Group and its performance During the year,
the Board met with senior management from across the Group
every other month in line with the Board cycle at infermal drop-
in {unches

The number of Board meetings and the attendance by each
Director during the year was as follows. and similar attendance
tables can be found in each of the respective Committes reports
which follow:

Board

Leslie Van de Walle 77
(MNB attendged cre of seven mzetirgs as a guest as Croirman desigrate)

Andrew Rashbass /9
Wendy Pallot /9
Jan Babiak 9/
Colin Day /9
Tristan Hillgarth 9/9
Imogen Jjoss /9
Tim Pennington 2/2
(N8 attenaed are of two meetings as guest os NEQ designate)

Lorna Tilbian /9
“Davd Pritchard 3/3
“Andrew Ballingal 3/3
“Kevin Beatty 2/4
~Tim Collier 3/4

¢ Stepped dowr during the year Whitst appointed Kewvin Beatty ane Tim Collier alse
recused themselves from Board meetings where tre DMGT distribution was considerea

Euromonay Institutional Investor PLC A o e Bt s Ame v oge Jins 57

9
<
@
-
3
Q
3
2]
[




Governance

Corporate Governance Report continued

Leadership and effectiveness

Role of the Board and its Committees

Board

Meets at least every two months
and more frequently when required —
chaired by Leslie Van de Walle

Remit: Approve and monitor strategy:.
identify, evaluate and manage material
risks through an effective and improving
controls environment; review financial
and commercial performance; ensure
adequate funding; review all material
corporate transactions including
potential acquisitions; approve the
Group's purpose, culture and values;
and approve key shareholder and
stakeholder communications.

Matters reserved to the Board
and delegated authorities:

The Board maintains a schedule of
matters reserved for its approval, to
ensure it maintains oversight and control
of all material developments likely to

have an impact on the performance

or standing of the Group. The General
Counsel & Company Secretary ensures that
appropriate information is communicated
to the Board in a timely manner to enable
it to meet its responsibilities. The Board has
delegated responsibility for aspects of its
remit to standing Board Committees, each
of which operates within defined terms of
reference as we elaborate on hereafter.
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Audit & Risk Committee
Meets at least three times a ye=ar ~chaired by Colin Day

Reviews and 1s responsible for oversight of the Group's financial
reporting processes, the integrity of the Financial Statements and
external communications and the management of risk across
the Group

Scrutinises the work of the external and internal audit teams and
any significant accounting judgements made by management.

The Committee reports on its operations to the Board following
each meeting to enable the Directors to determine the overall
effectiveness of the Group's internal controls system.

Page 64

Nominations Committee
Muets at laust three times a year—chaired by Leslie Van
de Walle

Reviews the structure. size and composttion of the Board
and its Committees, and makes recommendations to the
Board accordingly

Considers succession planning for Directors and other senior
executives, keeping under review the leadership needs of
the Group.

Monitors Board-level and wider diversity across the Group

Ensures that each Director 1s subject to a continuing
commitment and effectiveness review annually

Moniters the results of the Board performance evaluation process.
Page 70

Remuneration Committee
Mueets at least three times a year—chaired by Imogen Joss

Responsible for determining the contractual terms, remuneration
and cther benefits of Executive Directors, including performance-
related incentives and pension entitlements.

Reviews and approves all remuneration related policies, ensuring
thatthey are clear. simple, miigate risk and are predictable,
proporticnate and aligned to culture.

Recommends and monitors the overall remuneration for

senior management

Cansiders workforce remuneration and alignment of incentives
and rewards with culture

Overseas Group-wide share incentive schemes.

Page 72



Management Committees

Group Management Board
Meets monthly (1G per annum) ~ chaired by Andrew Rashbass

A management board that operates under the direction and
authernty of the CEO and comprises the Group's divisional and
functional leaders

Assists the CEO and CFO in implementing strategy. monitoring
financial perfermance of our segments, developing the Group's
approach to managing employees and to culture and diversity,
taking shared responsibility for the Group's approach to corporate
governance: and ensuring that the Group's best-of-both worlds
operating model warks effectively

Tax & Treasury Committee
Meets twice annually —chaired by Wendy Pailet

A management committee responsible for recommending policy
changes to the Audit & Risk Committee.

The Group's treasury policies are designed to reduce the impact
of shert-term currency movements giving greater certainty and
ensuring that the Group has adequate liguidity for working capital
and dekt capacity for funding acquisitions

The Committee is also responsible for the Group's tax strategy
and paolicies

Its members are the CEQ. CFO. Deputy CFO, General Counsel
& Company Secretary and Global Head of Tax, Treasury and
Investor Relations.

All Non-Executive Directors of the Company are invited to attend
the meetings.

Risk Committee

Maeets four times a year—chaired by Wendy Pallot
Oversees the Group's strategic and operaticnal risk
management processes

It reviews specific risks and momters developments in relevant
legisiation and regulation. assessing the impact on the Group.
The Committee reports on its operations to the Audit & Risk
Committee to support the Directers in their determination of the
overall effectiveness of the Group's risk management framework
and control environment

Its members are the CEQ, CFO. Chief Information Officer, Chief

Infermation Secunty Officer, General Counsel & Compuany Secretary,

Group HR Director, Deputy CFC. Glokbal Head of Tax. Treasury and
Investor Relations. Head of Internal Audit, Head of Risk as well as
Chief Operating Officers from each of the divisions.

All Non-Executive Directors of the Company are invited to attend
the meetings.

Investment Committee

Meets whenever required — chaired by Leslie Van de Walle
Primary purpose is to review requests for approval by the Company
to make certain financial commitments which are between F15m
and £50m in value Where deemed appropriate the Committee
will alse review with a view to making o recommendation te the
Board in respect of any MA activity propesed to be entered into
by the Company

lts members are the Chairman, CEQ, CFO, Chair of the Audit

& Risk Committee and Lorna Tilbian in her capacity as a Non-
Executive Director

All other Non-Executive Directors are invited to attend meetings
by the Committee Chairman when appropriate

v

L __ - - _____________________________|]
The discussions of each of the Board Committees are summarised and reported to the Board
following each Committee meeting, together with recommendations on matters reserved

for Board decisions.
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Governance

Corporate Governance Report continued

Leadership: Independence

The Board has determined that each of the Directors appainted
as at 30 September 2019, and all those Directors who will be
proposed for re-election at the Annual General Meeting in
January 2020, are independent within the meaning of the Cede
They were each independent throughout the financial year or
from the date of their appointmment Tristan Hillgarth, will not be
seeking re-election atthe 2020 AGM having served on the Board
for eight years

During the year. and until the distribution of DMGT's sharehelding
in April, Kevin Beatty and Tim Cotlier were appointed as Non-
Executive Directors of the Company Tim and Kevin are also
Executive Directors of DMGT. which was at that time « significant
sharehaolder of the Company The Board did not believe that
these Non-Executive Directors were able to exert undue influence
on decisions taken by the Board, and did not consider therr
Independence or objectivity to be impaired by their positions with
DMGT. However. their relationship with DMGT as a significant
shareholder in the Company meant they were not considered to be
independent for the duration of their appointment

Bavid Pritchard was alse not deemed independent when he
agreed to accept the role of Acting Chairman in 2018, having been
originally appeinted to the Board in December 2008 The Board
was satisfied that David, as Senior Independent Director, was the
most appropriate Board member to lead the search for a new
Chairman and as such assume the role of Acting Chairman

Leadership: Effectiveness

Following the appointment of the Charrman. the Board

completed a detailed. internally faclitated evaluation in August
The evaluation was structured as thematic questionnaires covering
the performance of the Board and each of its formal committees.
together with an appraisal of the Charman’s performance since
appointment. The key themes covered in each were strategy,
governance, support and key events in the year The Chairman
personally inputted into the process. and used the outputs from

the questionnaires to Inform one-to-one discussions with each
individual Board member

No matencl concerns were identified through the evaluation,

and the majonty of themes scared strongly An action plan was
agreed by the Beard at the November meeting reflecting areas for
improvement kased on relative scaring

Board: Maintaining effective oversight of risk management.
strengthening understanding of performance in context of peer
group, Board's understanding of specific products, markets and
outlook, maintaining operational resources to deliver strategy;
and refreshing the approach to Beard level training and
development plans

Audit & Risk: Approach to Internal Auditin 2020, which has been
subsequently addressed by the appointment of a new Head of
Internal Audit, and the outcome of the contractor review discussed
by Wendy Pallet in her Chief Financial Officer's review.

Beard annual timeline

October 2018

* CFO Review of Results and Key Themes

* 2019 Budget Approval

¢ Finance Transfermation Update

¢ Corporate Development Update
(including M&A)

¢ GMB Succession Planning Update

« Chair Appointment Update

+ Board Committee Updates

November 2018

* Approval of Fuli Year Results

+ Risk Management and Principal
Risk Disclosures

+ Audit & Risk Committee Review Update

* Annual Report: Key Disclosures & Far,
Balanced and Understandable Review

* Final Dividend Recommendation

* Fastmarkets Divisional Presentation

* Corporate Development Update
(including M&A)

* Board Committee Updates

January 2019

* CFO Review of Results and Key Themes

= Qi Trading Update

¢ BoardEx & The Deal presentation

* Corporate Development Update
(including M&A)

* People & Reward Update
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Januvary 2019 continued

.

2018 Corporate Governance Code
Compliance Analysis

Updated Share Dealing Code
Appointment of Numis as
additional broker

AGM Update

March 2019

DMGT Distribution: Board Review
CEC Report

CFO Report

Sales Academy Presentation
Fastmarkets Divisional
Integration Presentation
Corporate Development Update
(including M&A)

Company Secretary’s Report
(Disclosure Policy, Modern Slavery Act,
Sharesave Invitation)

Board Committee Updates

May 2019

CEQ Report
CFO Report {including Half Year Results)
Corporate Development (including M&A}

Invastment Research- Sales &
Marketing Update

Company Secretary's Report
Board Committee Updates

June 2019
v Two day Board Offsite Strategy Meeting

July 2019
* CEO Report
* CFO Report (including Trading Update)

+ Institutional Investor
Divisional Presentation

*+ Post Strategy Meeting Update

» Corporate Development Update
(including M&A)

* Proposed appointment of Non-
Executive Director

* Boord Committee Updates

September 2019
* CEO Report

* CFO Report (Results Update. Future
Dividend Strategy Analysis)

» 2020 Budget Approval
* Strategic Review of Asset Management

* Financial & Professional Services
Divisional Presentation

* Corporate Development Update
(including M&A)

« Company Secretary’s Report
* Board Committee Updates



Neminations: Committee composition. which has been
subsequently addressed by additional appointments to the
Committee, focus on beard succession planning. which 1s now
planned to be addressed by the Committee following recent
appointments, clarity and appropriateness of the management
structure, which has also been addressed by changes to

our divisions discussed thraughout this report: and talent
management processes

Remuneration: Benchmarking of advice and guidance received

Board activities

The key areas of Board focus in 2019 were.

Significant strategic developments and transactions
» Oversaw completion of the sale of the Mining indaba events
business for £30 1m in October 2018

+ Approved the acquisition of BoardEx and The Deal for $87 3m in
February 2019

* Approved the appointment of Leslie Van de Walle as Chairman
in March 2019

+ Oversaw completicn of DMGT's distribution of its 49%
shareholding to its own shareholders on 2 April 2019

» Comprehensively reviewed the Company's strategy at a two-day
offsite in June 2019

» Approved the appointment of Tim Pennington as an
independent Non-Executive Director effective September 2019

* Approved the commencement of the ongeing strategic review of
Asset Management in September 2012

Coempany purpose

In line with the expectations of the 2018 Code, the Board has taken
time to consider and discuss its approach to company purpose
and to formalise a statement which sets this out for shareholders
and other stakeholders. Qur agreed Purpose Statement, which is
also included in the inside front cover, is.

"We deliver sustainable value to customers, returns to

shareholders, opportunities for employees and contributions to the
communities in which we operate. by bringing clarty and insight to
opaque markets

The Board is confident that there is considerable co-operation and
sufficient resourcing across the Group to facilitate communication
of its purpose Its review of approach alse established that there is
a level of alignment and integration between the Group's culture
and the purpose statement. The Board has undertaken to conduct
an annual review of the purpose statement and to evolve its
approach to this important Code theme over time

Culture

The Company is addressing its obligation to assess and monitor
culture under the 2018 Code in a number of ways Itis anticipated
that the three primary channels will be Board/staff engagement
(formal and informal}, the Remuneration Committee (which
considers compensation in the context of behaviours, among
other things) and the Audit & Risk/Risk Committees (which provide
an opportunity to highlight areas of strengths and development
areas) The output from these channels will be reported on
farmally to the Board at least annually

Monitoring and oversight

Fair, balanced and understandable

The Board has respensibility for preparing and making certain
confirmations coencerning the 2019 Annual Report and Accounts
and delegates aspects of this responsibulity to the Audit & Risk

Commuttee. In accordance with the Code provision C11, the
Board confirms. in line with the recommendation of the Audit&
Risk Commuttee, that taken as g whole. the 2019 Annual Report
and Accounts is farr, balanced and understandable and provides
the information necessary for shareholders to assess the Group's
position and performance, business model and strategy

Senior members of the Group Finance. Legal. Risk & Secretaniat
and Internal Audit functions are involved in the preparation

of the Annual Report The Chair of the Audit & Risk Commitiee
and the CFO are kept appraised of all significant information
and consulted in relation to certain specific areas, such as the
assessment of the Group's principal risks and key judgements and
estimates A key consideration s ensuring appropriate linkage

in the report the Group's performance, business modet and
strategy. The Audit & Risk Committee meets prior to the approval
of the report by the Beard to consider if the Group has met its
reporting obligations.,

The Chair of the Audit & Risk Committee reports on the process
undertaken to the full Board. A detailed paper is provided to the
Board outlining the key disclosure obligations. These steps enable
the Board to take a fully informed view as to whether the report
meets the fair, balanced and understandable’ reporting standard

Internal cantrol and risk management

See pages 43 to 52 for the Group's principal risks and
mitigating actions.

The Board as a whole is responsible for the oversight of risk and
effectiveness review of the Group's system of internal control.
The Company aims to manage rather than ebminate risk and
can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss The Board has implemented a
continuing precess foridentifying. evaluating and managing
the matenal risks faced by the Group The Board has delegated
day-to-day responsibility for internal controls and financial risk
to the Audit & Risk Committee and in turn for aperational risk
management to the Risk Committee, which now operates as a
Sub-Commiittee of the Audit & Risk Committee

The Directors have completed a thorough review of the
effectiveness of the Group's system of nsk management and
internal controls covenng all material controls, including
financial. operaticnal and compliance controls during the year
Management identified certain indirect tax errors in 2012 related
to prior periods which have given rise to a restatement of prior
pericd comparative information in the financial statements

as described on page 114 |n response to identifying these tax
exposures, managernent is undertaking a detailed review of the
Group's indirect tax processes and controls. Apart from the above
tax exposures. all of the matenal controls operated throughout
the year. and addiionat controls were alse introduced during the
year The Company s taking action to address any opportunities to
strengthen the controls which were identified during the course of
the review

During the year the Audit & Risk Committee approved a new
Group-wide Enterprise Risk Framework, to help our businesses
identify, assess. manage and report on risk in a consistent and
dceessible way

Foliowing the appointment of new Head of Internal Audit during
the year, a comprehensive review of our approach to internal
controls and risk management is underway. A newly appointed
Director of Risk also joins the business in December to strengthen
our appreach to risk management
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Corporate Governance Report continued

The controls to prevent an infermation security breach or cyber-
attack are regularly reviewed and where approprate. updated
Cyber and ather information security nsks are increasing and the
mitigation of these nsks continues to be a key focus area for the
Company's Risk Committee and Board The programms of wark to
implement tighter infformation secunty standards and centrols and
cyber resiience plans across the Group will continue into 2020

A new information Security Strategy was approved by the Risk
Committee in July.

The Board has established procedures to carry out a review of the
internal controt and risk management effectiveness which were

in place throughout the year and continue to operate. and are
detailed on page 60

The Board of Directors

The Board has cverall responsibility for the Group and there s o
farmal schedule of matters specifically reserved for decision by the
Board, which is further discussed on page 58 The Board

* Reviews and assesses the Group's principal risks and
uncertainties at least annually and has perfermed a robust
assessment of those principal risks,

* Secks assurance that effective control s being maintained
through regular reports from divisienal management, the Audit
& Risk Committee, the Risk Committee, and varicus independent
menitoring functions,

* Approves the annual budget after performing a review of
key nsk factors Performance 1s monitored regularly by way of
variances and key performance indicators to enable relevant
action to be taken and forecasts are updated sach manth
The Board considers longer-term financial prejections as part
of its regular discussions on the Group's strategy and funding
requirements, and

* Approves proposals for investments and capital expenditure
beyond specified limits.

Speak Up Arrangements

The Group operates a bespoke Speak Up hotline and welbsite

for all staff to confidentially raise concerns and allegations
regarding potentially inappropriate. fraudulent or criminal activity
This service is provided to the Group across its global offices

by Expeolink. a recognised independent specialist in this area
During the year there were no material concerns or 1ssues raised
via the Speak Up arrangements

A programme focused on refreshing global communications
around the Speak Up arrangements and ensunng their continuing
sffective operation was completed during the year

Committee Oversight

Audit & Risk Committee

The Board's committee structures were amended during the year
to rename the Audit Committee as the Audit & Risk Committee
and to alse expand its remit to encompass oversight of risk
management This change was in line with the decisions taken by
the Board in 2018 and discussed in last year's report

The work of the Audit & Risk Committee 1s discussed in more detail
on page &4 to 69 of this Report

Risk Committee

The Risk Committee was re-aligned as a Sub-Committee of the
Audit & Risk Committee during the year, reflecting the latter's
expanded remit The Risk Committee continues to focus on the
identification, management and reporting of nsk as its core
responsibilities. The compositicn of the Risk Committee can be
found on page 64.
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During the year the Audit & Risk Risk and Remuneration
Comrmittees each continued to collaberate Members from all
three Committees were invited to other Committee meetings and
attended when able The Chairs of each Committee ensured that
matters of mutual interest raised in any of these Committees were
alse discussed at each meeting

Entity level controls

Each segment. division or central function is responsible for
managing risks and operating controls within their area Each area
confirms the operation of key controls (including with management)
to Group management annually The purpase of the assessment

Is to confirm the operation of a framework of internal controls.
mncluding business performance reviews, financial controls and
anti-fraud controls which are expected to be in place Ineach
business unit They are intended to provide standards against
which the contral environments of the Group's business units can be
monitored. An annual controls assessment is completed at the same
time. detailing nsks and mitigating controls. In each case. the Group
management team follows up these submissions as appropriate

During the year. a meeting of Divisional Directors and other senior
managers was convened to discuss and agree any material
changes to the Group's principal and operational nsk profile

The Group Management Board meets monthly te discuss strategic.
operational and financial 1ssues The Group’s tax, finaneing and
foreign exchange positions are overseen by the Tax & Treasury
Committee. Controls and procedures aver the security of data and
disaster recovery are periodically reviewed and are subject to
internal audit Accounting controls and procedures are regularly
reviewed and communicated throughout the Group Training and
'how to” guides are published internally Authorisation levels and
segregation of duties are reviewed on o regular basis

Internal audit

The Group has strengthened its Internal Audit function during

the year with the appeintment of a new Head of Internal Audit
Following that appointment, and with the approval of the Audit &
Risk Committee the function has. (1) finalised a refreshed Internatl
Audit Plan for the 2020 financial year, (2) recruited two specialist
Internal Audit professicnals to provide additional expertise and
resource, (3) agreed an Internal Audit Charter which follows the
guidelines issued by the Chartered Institute of Internal Auditors,
and (4) 1s now planning a thorough evaluation of the effectiveness
of the Group's control environment and operating procedures

The Head of Internal Audit and the function reports directly to both
the Group's CFO and the Chairman of the Audit & Risk Committee
and works closely with the Group's General Counsel & Company
Secretary An effective working relationship is established between
the team and the external auditor PwC The function underiakes
internal contral reviews across the Group. investigates allegations
of wrongdoing or inappropnate practices, and reports its findings
to the Audit & Risk Committee

Relations with shareholders

The Chairman priontised effective dialogue with significant
shareholders and stakeholders following his appointmentin

March Meetings with the Life President, the former Chairman and
cther stakeholders were held in parallel to his formal induction
programme to gauge impertant historical context and background
for the Group's position. strategy and outlook.

Separately. the CEQ and CFO. and on occasien the Chairman,
rmeet with shareholders to discuss the annual and half year
results, to ughlight significant acquisitions or disposals. or at the
specific request of particular nstitutions. The CEC. CFO and the
Head of Investor Relations also convene results focused meetings
for analysts and representatives of the investment community
following each set of annual and half year results.



In July the Group co-ordinated a detaled Capital Markets Day

for stakeholders This key eventin the Group's financial year was
hosted by Andrew Rashbass, CEO Divisional presentanons were
delivered by (1) Bashar Al-Rehany and Chns Ciompi, who discussed
the praducts, market and outlock for the Investment Research
Division businesses BCA Research and NDR, (2) Jeff Davis, who
intreduced the BoardEx business which was aequired by the Group
in February, and (3) Raju Daswani, who gave a detalled update
regarding integration of the Fastmarkets dvision which included a
demonstration of the new Fastmarkets platform. Wendy Faltet, CFO,
concluded the event with a presentation focused on the Group's
outlock and strategic pricrities

All shareholders also have the opportunity to participate in the AGM
which 1s usually held in January or early February each year Iniine
with best practice. all shareholders have at least 20 working days’
notice of the AGM at which the Executive Directors, the Chairman
and Nor-Executive Directors, including all Committee chairs are
available for questioning

The Company's CEO and CFO report to the Board on matters raised
by shareholders and analysts to ensure members of the Board
develop an understanding of investors’ and potential investors' views
of the Company The Senior Independent Director in particular 1s
made aware of the significant investor and external stakeholder
opinions regarding the company All Board members also regularly
recewve analyst reports about the Company to provide additional
insight into how the market perceives the Company

Viability statement
See page 53 for the viability statement and 93 for the going
concern statement.

Statement of compliance

The Company has made significant progress dunng the year

in addressing the areas of previeus non-compliance with the
Code A key milestone was the appointment of Lesbe Van de
Walle as independent Non-Executive Chairman with effect from
1 March 2019.

This progress otherwise primanily reflects the Group becoming a
fully independent FTSE 250 Company following the distribution by
DMGT of its significant 49% shareholding in the Group on 2 April
2019, which is discussed throughout this report

On 2 April 2019 the relationship deed that the Company entered
into with Daily Mail General Trust (DMGT) on 8 December 2016,

in light of DMGT's substantial sharehelding in the Company,
automatically terminated. The two representative directors
appeinted to the Company’s Beard in accordance with the
relationship deed also stepped down as members of the Board
and their respective Committees on that date, having recused
themselves from all Board and Committee mestings preceding the
share distnbution i order to avoid any potential conflict of interest
or suggestion of influence on decision making

The compasition of the Board and its Committees is therefore fully
compliant with the 2016 Cede as at 30 September 2019 Jan Babiak
was appointed as Senior Independent Director with effect from

18 September 2019 and as such 1s avallable to shareholders for
matters for which contact with the Chairman or Executive Directors
may not be appropriate. or generally should dialogue be sought

The Board has specifically taken time to consider culture and
values during the financial year and on review has determined
that the Group benefits from a strong and identifiable culture
across its offices In 12 countnes around the world Euromoney is
recognised as an employer committed to diversity and has
programmes designed to help staff at all levels develop the
professional and personal skills necessary to build and sustain o
career with the Group. The specific approach taken to culture 1s
discussed in more detail in this report on page 61.

Similarly the Board has strengthened its approach to stakeholder
matters. and 1s actively progressing a number of initiatives with
the intention of addressing the views and interests of these

groups The key areas of focus are workforce engagement
through the newly introduced Staff Foerum, staff wellbeing through
externally designed support pregrammes, staff safety in the
context of geopolitical risks. supplier assessment and validatron
These aspects are discussed in more detail in the Stakeholder and
Sustainability Review on pages 30 to 37

Compliance with the 2016 version of the Cede

The Group was compliant with ali provisions of the 2016 Code

as at 30 September 2019 However. for part of the review year,

and until the decisions and events described in this report and
throughout the Strategic Report. the Group did not comply with the
following provisions of the 2016 Code, which is applicable to the
Group forthe 2019 financial year

» Charrman until the appointment of Leslie Van de Walle
with effect from 1 March 2019, the Group did not have an
independent. Non-Executive Chairman David Pritchard was net
considered independent on appointment as Acting Chairman
having been originally appeinted to the Board in 2008:

* Senior Independent Director. until the appoeintment of Jan Babiak
with effect from 18 September 2019, the Board did not have a
Senior Independent Director as David Pritchard had agreed to
become Acting Chairman in order to oversee the appointment
of a new Chairman.

Senier Independent Director dialogue with shareholders: until
the appointment of Jan Babiak with effect from 18 September
2019, the Board did not have an appointed Senior Independent
Director to meet with and generally liaise with shareholders on
behalf of the Chairman and the Board.

* Terms and conditions of appomntment of Non-Executive Directors
until the DMGT representative directors Trm Collier and Kevin
Beatty stepped down as Dirsctors with effect 2 April 2019, they
were appointed as Directors without terms of appeointment with
the Company.

= Composttion of the Audit & Risk Committee: until the DMGT
representative Director Tim Collier stepped down as a
Committee member in April, the Committee's composition was
not comptiant with the requirements of the 2016 Code;

+ Compositicn of the Nominations Committee: untilthe DMGT
representative Directors Tim Collier and Kevin Beatty stepped
down as Committee members in April. the Committee’s
composition was not compliant with the requirements of the

2016 Code.

« Composition of the Remuneration Committee. until the DMGT
representative Director Kevin Beatty stepped down as a
Committee member in April. the Committee’s composition was
not compliant with the requirements of the 2016 Code

The Board has addressed all prior areas of non-compliance

and ended the year fully compliant with the requirements of the
2016 Code. The Company heads into the year with a significantly
strengthened governance framework underpinning the Group and
its different businesses

Tim Bratton
General Counsel & Company Secretary
Euromaoney Institutional Investor PLC

21 November 2019
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Governance

Audit & Risk Committee Report

(44

1 am pleased to present the
report for the Audit & Risk
Committee for 2019.

Colin Day
Chair of the Audit & Risk Committee

Attendance tables

Audit & Risk Committee

Colin Day &/5
Jan Babiak* 3/3
Tristan Hillgarth 55
Dowvid Pritchard** 2/2
Tim Collier** 2/2
Tim Pennington® 1/1

* Joined the Committee during the year
** Stepped down from the Committee during the year

The Committee’s formal remit
this year has widened to include

operational risk and it was pleased

to support the adoption of a

new Enterprise Risk Framework
by the Group. As well as the
Committee’s regular activities, a
key focus has been appointing a
new Non-Executive Director with
the requisite financial experience
and we are therefore delighted
to welcome Tim Pennington to
the Committee
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Chair's Introeduction

The Committee had ancther busy year as, in addttion to its core
responsibilities, it continued to oversee the implementation of

the Global Finance Transformation Programme within certain

of the Group’s divisions. as well as monitor the BoardEx and The
Deal acquisition and the Mining Indaba disposal. Te ensure

the Committee continued to be adequately apprised of such
developments within the Company, a new Head of Internal Audit
was appointed and granted further authority to increase the
in-house audit resource.

The recommendation made last year to the Board to reconstitute the
Committee to also cover Risk so that further time could be devoted to
the analysis of the Group's Principal Risks before consideration by the
Board was also duly approved

The principal Committes objectives are to be proactive and

provide constructive challenge of information received. particularly
regarding the integrity of the Group's financial statements. significant
areas of judgement, other relevant financial information and overall
risk appetite. Throughout the year the Committee has recewed timely
and relevant information from management and both internal and
external audit Reports were appropriate, concise and transparent,
which has enabled the Committee to discharge its duties effectively
All the proceedings of each Committee meeting and how the
Committee has discharged its duties and responsibilities are
reported to the Board

As noted in the Chief Financial Cfficer’s review, two prior year tax
exposures were identified that have resulted in the requirement to
restate the financial statements These exposures concern treatmant
of VAT on intra-group trarsactions and the tax treatment of payments
made for services provided by third-party contractors. Further details
of these prior year adjustments can be found on page 114,



These expasures were identified by internal processes
Management took immediate steps to ascertain the exposure

and improve contrels in these areas The Group continues a wider
programme to review and ta continue to improve internal controls
across all operations

Committee members

The experience of the Committee members 15 summarised in
bicgraphies on pages 54 and 55, and Committee attendance 15
detailed on page 64 The Audit & Risk Committee Chair has held a
number of listed company roles as either Group CFO or CEO and
is Chair of the Audit Committee for twa further organisations

During the year there were a number of changes to the
Committee’s membership. The Committee thanks Tim Collier

for his service over the past 2 years Tim, who holds the Group
CFO role at DMGT, resigned from the Committee following
DMGT's distrioution of its share in the Euromoney Group in

April. The Committee also thanks Jan Babiak, who has been

an independent Non-Executive Directer of Euromoney since
December 2017, for joining the Commiittee on an intenim basis from
1 May until 30 November Finally, the Committee welcomes Tim
Pennington who |cined the Committee as a permanent member
from 1 September

The Board considers each member of the Committee to be
independent within the definition of the 2016 UK Corporate
Governance Code They bring a broad and diverse range of
commercial and financial expenence such that the Board is
provided with assurance that the Committee has the appropriate
skills and experience to be fully effective and meet the

Code requirement

By inwvitation, the Chair of the Board, CEO, CFOQ, Deputy CFO,
Global Head of Tax, Treasury and Investor Relations, the Head

of Internal Audit, General Counsel and Company Secretary and
representatives from the external auditors attend the Committee
meetings. In addition, the Committee penodically, and the Audit&
Risk Committee Chair mare regularly, meets separately with the

Committee Annual Timeline

Head of Internal Audit and the external auditors without the
Executives being present This enhances further understanding of
the key issues and ensures that sufficient time is devoted to them at
each meeting

Responsibilities
The Committee met five times during the financial year and s
responsible for.

* Monitoring the integrity of the Financial Statements and
announcements and reviewing significant financial reporting
reguirements, 1ssues and judgements

* Reviewing the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group's
systems and processes for internal financial control

* Reviewing the effectiveness and output of the Group's Internal
Audit function and programme

+ Overseeing the appointment, terms, remuneration and
performance of the External Auditor and the scope. results. cost
effectiveness, quality of the audit, assessment of Independence
and monitoring of non-audit services

* Reviewing the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group's risk
management systems and mitigation programmes

* Reviewing the adequacy of the Group's Speak Up arrangements
and procedures for detecting fraud

Detailed responsibilities are set out in the Committee’s Terms
of Reference. which can be found on the Company's website,
www euromoneyple com

= 3

Colin Day
Chair of the Audit & Risk Committee

21 November 2019

October 2018 November 2018 continued July 2019
» Significant Reporting Matters * Discussed the Rotation of the External « Significant Reporting Matters
and Judgements Auditor's Lead Partner in 2020 and judgements

Assessed and Approved the FY18
Principal Risks Disclosure

Completed Annuat Impdirment Reviews
PwC Pre Year-End Update

Glebal Finance Transfoermation
Programme Update

Internal Audit Report

internal Audit Approach

Committee Performance & Effectiveness
Committee’s Risk Remit

Effectiveness of the External Auditor

November 2018

Annual Report & Accounts

Fair, Balanced and Understandable
Review of Annual Report

Reviewed Exceptional ltems Reporting
PwC Year-End Audit Findings
Review of Non-Audit Services

Independence and Reappointment
of Auditors

M

US Sales Tax Update
Retirement Schemes Accounting Review

Globat Finance Transformation
Programme Update

internal Audit Report
Internal Audit Effectiveness
ay 2019

Half-Year Reports

Assessed and Approved the 2019
Principal Risks Disclosure

PwC Half-Year Review

Internal Audit Report

MaA Accounting Review

Contractor Relationship Review Update
Global Finance Transformation
Pregramme Update

Speak Up Update

PwC Non-Audit Services &

Business Relationships

* PwC Audit Plan
* Statutory Audit Exemptions
* Internal Audit Report

* Global Finance Transformation
Programme Update

= Speak Up Update

September 2019

* Significant Reporting Matters
and Judgements

¢+ Annual Impairment Reviews

* PwC Pre Year-End Update

+ Risk Management Framework

* Contractor Review Update

* Global Finance Transformation
Programme Update

* Internal Audit Report
*+ Internal Audit Charter Approval

* Committee Performance & Effectiveness

*+ Speak Up Update
+ 2020 Audit Plan Approval
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Governance

Audit & Risk Committee Report continued

Key focus areas during 2019

Buring the year the Committee reviewed c range of top cs. incluaing the following key focus areas

Key Focus Area Audit & Risk Committee Input

Areas of significant financial
wdgement

The Committee receved regular updates frem management on the areas considered to have significant
financ.al udgement appled These are set out on pages 120 to 122

Risk Management

The Committee undertook a review. before consideration by the Boara of the register of material risks

facing the Group ana the adequacy and effectivenass of management's risk mitigation plans in respect
of these nsks The Cammittee regularly reviews the plans in place by considenng reports from Internal
Audit and the management committee responsible for risk on the effectiveness of controls to mitigate
such rnisks During the year an enhanced Risk Management Framework’ was reviewed and approved for

implementaticn

Global Finuhée Transformation
Programme

The Commuttee receved regular updates from management on the implementation of the Global Finance
Transformatien Pregramme, which includes deployment of a global finance system to improve guality and

efficiency of financial reporting and to further enhance the controt environment Implementations in 2019
included the Investment Research Division and the largest two legal entities in the UK.

Independent Third-Party
Contractor Framework

In addition the Committee reviewed the findings of an assessment by management of the controls In place
over the engagement and management of third-party independent contractors who provide services to

the Group in the UK. As a result a tax expasure was identfied for which a restatement was required to the
prior years and adequate provisior was made to cover any resulting liability Further details can be found

on page 114

Internal Audit

Following a review of the Internal Audit function structure, to ensure the Committee continues to be

adequately furnished with reparting on the completenass and operating effectiveness of the internal
control and risk management frameworks, the Committee appointed a new Head of Internal Audit during
the year and provided further authority to expand the in-house headcount

Main Activities

The Committee met three times in 2019 after publication of the 2018
Annual Report and Accounts and once between the year-end and
the publication of this Annual Report The key issues covered at each
Committee meeting were reported at the subseguent Board meeting

The Committee routinely reviewed key financial statements and
financial anncuncements of the Group. At the regquest of the Board,
the Committee considered whether the 2019 preliminary results

and the Annual Report and Accounts were fair, balanced and
understandable. and whether they provided the necessary infformation
for shareholders to assess the Group's position, performance, business
model and strategy The Committee was satisfied that. taken as a
whale. the 2019 Annual Report and Accounts was fair, balanced

and understandable. A significant part of the Committee’s routine
work relates to monitoring the Group's system of internal control
Further details of this are set out in the Corporate Governance Report
on page 6l

There was no interaction with the Financial Reporting Council's (FRC)
Corporate Reporting Team during the year

Meetings between the Internal and External Auditor and Committee
members were held following each scheduled mesting of the
Commrttee. For 2020 the Committee will continue to oversee a
programme to enhance the Group's internal controls and risk
management framewaork and oversee the continued iImplementation
of the Global Finance Transformation Programme.

Effectiveness of Internal Control Systems

The Committee maintains responsibility for reviewing the process for
identifying and managing nsk and for raviewing internal controls

It receives reports from management, the Risk Committee, and
Internal Audit. in addition to the results of any iInvestigations performed
as a result of employee Speak Up or otherwise Furthermore. the
Committee reviews the extarnal auditor's assessment of the Group's
financial controls framework. Besides recegnising steps taken by
management to review the design and operating effectiveness of

tax controls, the Committee continues to note an improvement in the
control ervironment due to a number of initiatives completed during
the year including a new Enterprise Risk Framework process, the
Coritract Transformation Programme and a new electronic vendor due
diligence portal.
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As noted previously, the Group has continued with its implementation
of the Global Finance Transformation Prograrome. which will further
enhance the strength of the control environment and was subject to
both internal and external auditor reviews during the year.

Internal Audit

The Internal Audit function carried out reviews across the Group,
providing independent assurance to the Committee on the design and
effectiveness of internal controls to mitigate financial, operational and
complance nsks. The purpose. autherity and responsibilities of Internal
Audtt are embodied inthe Internal Audit Charter which the Commiittes
reviews and approves on an annual basis The Head of Internal Audit
has dual reperting lines to the Audit and Risk Committee Chair and the
Group CFO

The Committee discussed and approved the 2020 Audit Plan to be
exacuted by the Internal Audit function atthe September Committee
meeting Whilst risk-based, the audit plan coverage also ensures all
components of the Group are regularly reviewed. In addition, the
services of third-party co-source assurance partners are utilised to
ensure complex or bespoke areas of risk are adeguately appraised
The Committee reviews the results of the internal audit reports during
each meeting, looking in detail at any reports where processes and
controls require improvement. The Committee is also provided with
updates on the iImplementation of agreed actions and overall control
ervironment progress at each meeting Internal audit resource is
monitered such that, if internal or external circumstances should give
rise to an increased level of risk. the audit plan can be supplemented
accordingly dunng the year Any changes to the agreed audit plan
are presented to and agreed by the Committee. The effectiveness of
the Internal Audit function 1s reviewed on an annual basis, The review
cavered the function's independence, its experience and expertise,
the scope of the annual audit plan, the quality of reports issued and
the identfication of issues. The Committee concluded that the Internal
Audit function has remained effective

External Auditor

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP (PwC) was appointed by shareholders
as the Group's stetutory auditor in 2015 following a formai tender
process The lead Audit Partner will have led the audit for five years
following the 2019 audit and therefore a new Audit Partner has

been appointed in accordance with the FRC's auditing and ethical
standards for the 2020 audit



UK focus
Global Finance
Transformation
Programme

The Global Finance Transformation Programme (GFTP) is a
multi-year prograrmme with the objective of creating o best-of-
both worlds Finance function that is fit for purpose to support the
Group in delivering its strategy of becoming a 3.0 information
services business. The primary goals are to reduce layers of
complexity. implement simple and standardised best practice
finance procasses, improve the quality and efficiency of financial
reporting and strengthen financial control.

The GFTP encompasses aur pecple. processes. systems and
data. A phased implementation approach has been adopted
to limit business disruption and mitigate key implementation
risks. Phase one includes the roll-out of a single global instance
of a cloud-based ERP system (Oracle NetSuite) with a commen
Chart of Accounts.

A Global ERP Template was approved in July 2018, with the

first business, Ned Davis Research, going live in August 2018
BCA Research was the next business to go live in February
2019, making Investment Research the first division to fully adopt
NetSuite and the global template. The benefits this drives
include (1) reduction of complexity and tegacy gicbal systems;
(2) improved automation and simplification through integration
with billing systems; (3) streamlined and consistent global
processes: and (4) « strengthened control environment.

In July 2019 the UK's largest two revenue generating legal
entities. Euromoney Trading and Euromoney Global, transitioned
the core general ledger activities, Purchase to Pay (P2P) and
Record te Repert (R2R). onto NetSuite Transition of core Order
to Cash (O2C) processes will continue through 2020 in order to
guain the greatest benefits of avtomation and integration with
Euromoney's customer relationship management (CRM) tools.
The remainder of the Group is targeted to migrate onto NetSuite
in 2020.

The Audit & Risk Committee continues to maintain active

and chalienging oversight to ensure that the global design,
processes and controls documentation is fit for purpose, and
receives independent assurance reports from both internal and
external audit after each milestone.

Besides the NetSuite implementation. and in line with the
broader investment in people, we have also recently launched
the Finance Academy to support the ongoeing development of
our team as we evolve to a 3.0 Finance function.

The external audit contract will be put out to tender at least every

10 years The Company continues to comply with the Statutory Audit
Services for Large Cormpanies Market Investigaton (Mandatory Use of
Competitive Tender Processes and Audit Commitiee Responsibilities)
Order 2014 for the financial year under review.

ltis the Committee’s usual practice to undertake a detailed review

of the performance and effectiveness of the External Auditorin
performing the audit, iInformed by the output from a questionnaire
completed by senior finance personnel across the Group Taking into
account the nature of the feedback received from the business and the

Committee’'s own experiences working with PwC dunng the year, the
Committee has satished itself that the External Auditor is providing an
effectve service

Non-Audit Work

The Committee and the Board place great emphasis on the objectivity
of the Group's external auditors in reporting to shareholders During the
year, the Committee reviewed its Provision of Nen-Audit Services Policy
to ensure its continuing suitability and effectiveness and its compliance
with the Financial Reporting Council's Guidance on Audt Committees
(2016) and Revised Ethical Standard (2016) The Policy recognises the
criticatity of the independence and abjectivity of the External Auditor
and the need to ensure that this is not Impaired by the provision of
non-audit services The Policy also recognises, however, that it may be
beneficial for the External Auditer to provide certain services because
of its existing knowledge of the business or because the information
required 1s o by-product of the audit process In these circumstances.
the External Auditor 1s permitted to provide certain non-audit services
where these are not. and are not perceived to be, In conflict with

its independence

The Policy identifies services that are prohibited and those that are
permitted subject to formal approval Prohibited services include those
where the External Auditor participates in activities that are normadly
undertaken by management. s remunerated through a success

fee or similar, or may be required to audit its own work (including

tax services, legal services, intemal audit work and work on internal
centrel or sk management procedures)

Cther non-audit services may be undertaken by the External Auditor
where it has the requisite skills and experience, it 15 considered to be
the most appropriate to undertake such work in the best interests

of the Group, the provision of such services does not impair its
independence and objectivity and the related fees—both in respect
of individual services and in aggregate — are not material relative io
the Group external auditfee Any permitted service with o fee of less
than £75,000 must be pre-approved by the CFO Any services with a
fee of more than £75,000 must first be approved by the Audit & Risk
Committee or a sub-committee of any two members. Once above
50% of the annual limit in any one year, any further services require full
Committee approval.

The amounts pad to the External Auditor were £1.86m (2018 £1.4m)
dunng the year. comprising £1 5m (2018 £1.1m) for audit services,
£01m (2018: £0 1m) for audit related assurance services, and £0 1m
(2018 £01m) for other assurance services as set out in note 4 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements. In conclusion, taking into account
the application of the revised Pravision of Non-Audit Services Policy,
the Committee is satished that PwC was independent at all times
during the year under review.

External Auditor Reappeintment

Considering the audit tender process undertaken in 2015 and the
firm's continued performance as External Auditor, the Committee has
recommended to the Board that PwC be offered for reappointment
at the 2020 Annual General Meeting The PwC Lead Audit Partner,
Giles Hannam, will ratate off the audit engagement in December
2019. He will be replaced by Jason Burkitt, also an experienced audit
partner. who has already started to familiarise himself with the Group

Committee Effectiveness

The Committee undertook a review of its own performance and
effectivenass during 2019 This was facilitated by the Deputy Company
Secretary, who acts as Secretary to the Committee and who reviewed
the results with the Chair of the Committee. befare o wider discussion
with other Committee members The review concluded that the
Committee 1s operating effectively and is increasingly focused on key
issues, nsks and controls, aided by continued improvements during the
year i the quality and depth of Committee papers and a refresh of the
annual matters colendar for the Committee.
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Governance

Audit & Risk Committee Report continued

Financial reporting and significant financial judgements

The Committee. with input from the external auditor, assessed whether suitable accounting policies had been adopted. that
management had made appropriate estimates and judgements, and whether disclosures were balanced and fair For the year ended
30 September 2019, the Committee reviewed the following main issues noted below and is satisfied that all ssues have been addressed
appropnately and in accordance with the relevant accourting standards and principles

Issue

Rovigw

Fair, balanced and understandable

At the request of the Board. the Committee has considered
whether. in its opinion, the 2019 Annual Report and Accounts s
tarr. balanced and understandable

Restatements

Duning the year, the Group 1dentified two tax exposures (i) under-
payments of PAYE and Nito HMRC in respect to contractors,

and (i) VAT arising on supplies made between entities within

the Group These exposures resulted in a restatement of the 2018
results and the epening reserves at 1 October 2017 Full details are
included in note 1 of the Consclidated Financial Statements

Presentation of adjusted and underlying performance. including
dentfication and treatment of exceptional and adjusting tems
Management considered the latest European Securities and
Markets Authority, ESMA, and FRC guidelines on alternative
performance measures ta ensure that the Annual Report and
Accounts had been prepared in line with best practice

The presentation of adjusted and underlying measures has
been restated to reflect the iImpact of the restatements as
outlined above in addition to discontinued operations for
Asset Management.

Goodwill and other intangibles

The Group has goodwill of £246.3m and cther intangible assets
of £1591m The Group recognised an impairmeant charge of £2 4m
having decided to close CIE in 2019 No further impairments arose
foliowing the revtew at the year end Management undertock

a review of the Group's cash generating units and following
further integration within the Group The level at which goodwill
impairment was performed was reassessed resulting in CGUs
being aggregated.
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Presentation of adjusted and underlying performance

The Committee considered that the Group's strategy is clearly
articulated, outhining the Group's purpose Business and market
performance 1s considered in the round with equal prominence
on strong and weak performance A mix of both financial

and nen-financial information is disclosed, explained and
clearly reconciled

Following the Committee’s review of the Annual Report and
Accounts and after applying its knowledge of matters raised
during the year. the Committee 1s satisfied that. taken as a
whole, the 2019 Annual Report and Accounts is fair, balanced
and understandable

The Committee considered the two tax matters identified in the
year and the significance of these items to the current and prior
year results, The Committee challenged management on the
rabustness of the analysis and assumptions taken in estimating
the exposures and has considered the judgements taken

to restate the financial statements and management’s best
estimate of the exposures to be appropriate.

The Committee reviewed the 2019 Annual Report and Accounts
and discussed with management and the external auditer

the exceptional and adjusting items including consideration

of their consistency and the aveidance of any misleading

effect on the Financial Statements and on the Group's
alternative performance measures. The Committee challenged
management to ensure that each item is appropriate to

classify as an exceptional or adjusting item The Committee
concluded that the presentation of the adjusted and underlying
performance. which includes discontinued operations for Asset
Management. has clear labelling, transparent reconciliations
and appropnate explanations.

The Committee has considered the assessments made in
relotion to the impairment of goodwill and other intengible
assets The Committee discussed the methodology and
assumptions used 1n the model supperting the carrying

value and reviewed those businesses where headroom has
decreased. The Committee has also understood the sensitivity
analysis used by management in its review and disclosure of
imparrment The Committee has alse challenged management
on its aggregation of CGUs in the year in ensuring that the
position appropnately reflects how management monitors
goodwill and considered the position to be appropriate.

The Committee concluded that no impairments were required




Issue

Accounting for acquisitions and disposals

The Group made a number of acguisitions and disposals during
the year There were a number of consequential accounting
considerations. including identification and fair values of
intangible assets. fair value of other assets, goodwill ansing

and gain on sale of businesses recognised The Group alse has
acguistion commitments on previous acquisitions

Discontinued operations and assets held for sale

In September 2019, the Group announced a strategic review of
its Asset Management segment. In November 2019, the Group
announced that this continues This segment meets the IFRS 5
Neon-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations’
criteria to be treated as discontinued operations at 30 September
2019 Asset Management meets the IFRS 5 criteria to be treated
as discontinued operations due to its size and the fact that the
segment constitutes a major line of the Group's business. For the
year ended 30 September 2019, its results have been included
in discontinued operations. The comparative penod has also
been restated. The results for both years are included in both the
adjusted and underlying measures

The discontinued operations in 2018 relating to the disposal of
the GMID have been excluded in the adjusted results to reflect
the basis on which the chief operating decision maker (CODM)
reviews the business. The comparatives have been vpdated to
reflect this change in management’s adjusted measure in order to
provide a more like-for-like view of continving operations

Taxation

Taxation represents a significant cost to the Group in both cash
and accounting terms and the Group is exposed te differing
tax regimes and risks which affect both the carrying values

of tax balances (including indirect tax and deferred tax) and
the resultant Income Statement charges There were several
significant judgement areas in respect of tax in the year

Firstly. the Group continues to maintain its tax provision in
relation to an engoing HMRC enquiry to the maximum exposure
of £10.7m. Similarly. the Group maintains its position that no
provision 1s required in relation to the challenge by the Canadian
Revenue Agency

The Group has notified HMRC that a voluntary disclosure will
be made with respect to the PAYE and Nf understatement and
is currently in the process of finalising this disclosure The Group
has atso natified HVIRC regarding the potential VAT exposure
and discussion 1s ongaing with HMRC to finalise the potential
underpayment of VAT Further details are disclosed in the
Estimates section in note 2

The Committee reviewed the work undertaken for the
acquisition of BoardEx and The Deal. the disposal of Mining
Indaka and the related financial statement disclosures for
both matters. For the acquisition. the Committee considered
the identified intangible assets acquired and assessed the
methodelogy employed for calculating the fair values and
the appropriateness of the key assumptions used. including
discount rates The Committee also considered the useful
economic lives assigned by management noting them to be
reasonable and in line with management’s policy For the
dispoesal. the Committee reviewed the resulting profit on
disposal and considered the disclosures within the Annual
Report and Accounts to be reasonable.

The Committee has reviewed management’s assumptions

in daccordance with the requirements of IFRS 5 and agrees
with the classification as discontinued eperations in the
Income Statement at 30 September 2019 The Committee has
reviewed the disclosure and restated comparatives, including
the presentation of adjusted and underlying performance
measures which include discontinued operations with regards
to Asset Management.

The Committee has reviewed the disclosure and restated
comparatives. including the presentation of adjusted measures
to exclude discontinued operations relating to GMID,

The Committee reviewed the tax charge at the half-year and
full-year. including the adjusted effective tax rate, deferred tax
balances and the provision for uncertain tax pesitons for direct
and indirect tax The Committee alse reviewed management’s
analysis and support provided by third party experts.

The Committee agreed with management's treatment of the
Group’s tax matters and the disclosure of tax-related matters

in the Annual Repert and Accounts, including uncertain tax
positions in note 2 to the Financial Statements.

The Committee has reviewed the assumptions and judgements
in assessing these exposures and concluded that the provisions,
accounting treatment and related disclosure were appropriate

The Chairman alse attends Tax & Treasury Committee mestings
which provides valuable insightinto the Group's tax matters.
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Nominations Committee Report

Attendance tables

Nominations Committee

Leslie Van de Watle A/4
Jon Babiak 8/8
Tristan Hillgarth 7/8
*David Pritchard 4/4
*Kevin Beatty 3/4
*Tim Collier 4/4

* Stepped down from the Committee during the year

Chair’s Introduction

It was a busy year for the Committee with various Board and
Committee changes taking place throughout the year for the
reasons discussed in my Chairman s introduction (see page 4)

This time last year, David Pritchard. who was Chair of the
Committee for the first half of the year prior to his retirement. noted
that the Committee's focus would be to appoint a new Chairman
a Senier Independent Director. the possible appointment of
additional Non-Executive Directors and reviewing the Board's
compasition in light of the 2018 Corporate Governance

Code's requirements

| am pleased to report that the Committee made good progress
during the year across all of these areas as set out in the key
activities table below | would like to thank David for the progress
made in these areas prior to his retirement from the Board. as well
as Tim Collier and Kevin Beatty for their service on the Committee
as DMGT's representative Directors prior to stepping-down from
the Board in Apnl

Tim Penningtan has completed much of his induction. having
met the Group's executive team and advisers, and 15 already
contriouting strongly to Board discussions threugh his financial,
lsted company and telecoms experience

We have alse made changes to the composition of the Committee,
since | believe itis important for the Chairs of the Audit & Risk and
Remuneration Committees to be members. | was therefore pleased
to welcome Colin Day and Imegen Joss to the Commuittee in this
capacity in September
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I am pleased to report that the
Committee made good progress in
a range of areas during the year.

Leslie Van de Walle
Chairman

Diversity

Andrew and Wendy have rightly prioritised diversity across the
Group's operations, with the Board's full support We discuss

the Global Diversity Week held in January and other inttiatives
designed to encourage this to flounsh in o specific case study on
page 39 | encourage you to take the time to read abaout the good
wark being done across the Group We do also acknowledge
that while the Company has made significant progress in the

last three years improving gender diversity at both Beard and
Group Monagement Board level. the Board is aware that
diversity encompasses more than just gender and is committed to
improving the diversity of nationality, ethnicity and background
of Board members and senior management The Committee is
mindful of the benefits of any Board being representative of the
stakeholders it represents. and while we will always ultimately
recruit on merit. any future appointment processes will take place
with this context very much in mind



Nominations Committee: 2019 key activities

Appointment of Chairman

Fellow.ng a comprehersive process led by Daved Pritchard working with Russell Reynotds,
Leslie Van de Waille was appointed as Chairman on ] March 2019

Appointment of Senrwor Indeper\c;ent D;réc_tor

Fallowing an internal review and canvassing of apinions from the CEO and Non-Executive
Durectors as well as discussion by the Committee. Jan Babiak was appointed as Senior
Independent Director in September 2019

Review Board composition in ight of 2018 Code

The Board and its Committees are fully Code compﬂd nt The Board currently consists of two
Executive Directors (the CEQ and CFO) and seven ndependent Non-Executive Directors,
which will reduce to six following Tristan Hillgarth's stepping-down from the Board in 2020

Appointment of Non-Executive Director(s)

Following the resignation of DMGT s representative Directors from the Board and in
anticipation of Tnistan Hillgarth's stepping-down at the 2020 AGM, the Committee
recommended the appointment of a new Non-Executive Director with financial expertise to
join the Board and serve on the Company's Audit & Risk Committee Following a recruitment
process led by the new Chairmaon, also working with Russell Reynolds, Tim Pennington joined

the Board on 1 September 2019

Staff Engagement

The Beard has benefited from o range of opportunities to engage
with staff during the vear. and this is reflected in the formation

of the Group's Staff Forum. which is beginning to establish itself
The Beord has enjoyed hosting a range of infermal meetings with
staff in both London and New York to gain a better understanding
of their businesses We discuss the Group Staff Forum in more
detail on page 30

Governance

The Committee has delegated authority from the Board under
the Terms of Reference which were updated and approved in
Novermnber 2019. The composttion and structure of the Committee
meet the expectations of the 2018 Code which appties from

1 October 2019

As noted above, Colin Day and Imogen Joss were bath
appointed as members of the Committee with effect from

1 October Committee composition is therefere Leslie Van de
Walle, Jan Babiak, Calin Day, Tristan Hillgarth and Imogen Joss
Andrew Rashbass typically attends meetings of the Committee.

The Committee’s key respensibilities are to (1) reqularly review the
structure, size and composition of the Board, which includes its
skills. knowledge. experience and diversity, (2) give conaideration
to Board level succession planning: (3) support the Executive
Directors with changes at senior management level, (4) keep
under review the leadership needs of the organisation. (5) co-
ordinate and recommend Board appointments, and (4) review
performance and evaluation findings

Committee Annual Timeline
October 2018
» Chairman Search Process Update

* Structure & Composition of
Beard Update
+ Committee Tesms of Reference

November 2018
* Chairman Search Process Update

* Remuneration Committee Composition
December 2018

* Chairman Appointment
Recommendation to the Board

January 2019

of Terms
* Chairman's remit

March 2019

May 2019

* Chairman’s Appointment of Approval

* Future Board Composition Changes

+ Update on Additional NED
Appeintment Process

+ Committee Composition Changes

External Search Agency

The Committee has appeinted Russell Reynolds Associates as their
primary executive search consultant. Russell Reynolds does not
have any connection with the Company.

| am pleased to be able to report to shareholders that the
Nominations Committee 1s working effectively and meeting the
revised expectations of the 2018 Code We will nevertheless
continue to evolve and strengthen our processes in line with our
key focus areas for 2020, as set out in the table below

Areas of focus for 2020
» Succession planning for Executive Directors, Group
Management Board and other key person dependencies

* Implementing the recommendations of the Board's
annual evaluation

* Rewviewing the exssting skills and experence of Board
members using the established skills matrix to gauge areas
for improvement

* Refining and further developing the Board's training and
development programmes in conjunction with the skills review

* Monttoring initiatives to improve diversity and engagement
across the Group

jiﬂ,:::l"_

Leslie Van de Walle
Charrman

21 November 2019

June 2019
* Appointment of Additional NED
Board Recommendations

September 2019
* Appointment of Senior
Independent Director

* Committee Composition Changes

* 2020 AGM Planning - Ratification
of Board's External Appointments

+ Update on additicnal NED

Appointment Process
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Directors’ Remuneration Report

14

We will ensure our
remuneration arrangements
remain appropriate to support
the delivery of the strategy:.

imogen Joss
Remuneration Committee Chair

Attendance tables

Remuneration Committes

Imogen Joss 6/6
*Leslie Van de Walle 2/2
*Lorna Tillian 272
**David Pritchard 3/3
**Kevin Beatty 3/4

* Joned the Committee dunng the year.
** Stepped down from the Committee during the year

Letter to shareholders from the
Remuneration Committee Chair

Dear Shareholders,

| am pleased to present the Directors’ Remuneration Report for
2019 which has been prepared by the Remuneration Committee
on behalf of the Board

The key remuneration outcomes for the year and plans for the
coming year are below. Further detalls are provided in the Annual
Remuneration Report commencing on page 83,

Our Remuneration Policy and the link to long-term performance
Our Remuneration Policy contains varnious elements. with

each serving a particular purpose Our basic salary. benefits

and pensions arrangements are provided as part of a market
competitive package. for our Executive Directors and for the wider
employee population,

Our Remuneration Policy also provides for variable elements of
remuneration, both an Annual Bonus plan and a Performance
Share Plan The variable elements of remuneration are subject
to stretching performance measures Any bonus award to an
Executive Director above 100% of salary will be deferred into
Euromeney shares for a period of two years, providing a longer-
term link to sharehalders Our Performance Share Plan tokes the
form of awards over Euromoney shares, with vesting subject to
Group performance conditions measured over a three year penod
Afurther twe year holding period applies to Executive Directors.
giving a tetal of five years (performance period plus holding
period). The Performance Share Plan therefore rewards the
creation of long-term shareholder value.
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In addition, to further ensure alignment with shareholders.
MNon-Executive Directors, Executive Directors and all members

of our Group Management Board have personal Euremoney
shareholding requirements For Non-Executive Directors, the
required shareholding level is shares with a value of at least
100% of their annual fee For Executive Directors and other Group
Management Board members the required level of holding is
200% of salary and 75% of salary respectively

2019 perfoermance and reward outcomes

During 2019 we made further progress on the development

of aur strategy and announced a strategic review of Asset
Management in September 2019 DMGT distributed their 49%
holding of Euromoney shares in April 2619 which accelerated our
progression to a fully independent listed company Our adjusted
profit before tox for 2019 was £104.6m, representing % growth
on an underlying basis This was slightly above our target level of
£103 dm for 2019 Thus financial measure has a 75% weighting in
determining the CEQ and CFO bonus ocutcomes.

The remairung 25% of the 2019 annual bonus performance
measures relate to individual okjectives Information on how our
CEO and CFO performed against their individual objectives is
provided on pages 84 and 85

The performance against these measures resulted in an annual
onus payout of 60% of maximum for Andrew Rashbass and 57%
of maamum for Wendy Pallot. The actual amounts payable were
£4675,000 for Andrew and £257 677 for Wendy. The Committes
was satished that these outcomes were oppropriate and that no
exercise of discretion to adjust them was approprate



The Remuneration Committee considered whether any
adjustments should be made to previous variabte remuneration
outcomes to the current Executive Directors as a result of the
restatements explained on page 114 and concluded that this was
not appropriate in the circumstances This was on the basis that
these issues pre-dated the current Executive Directors, who not only
identified them but alse took immediate steps to address them,
including the introduction of improved controls

Our Parformance Share Plan awards granted in 2016 were due to
vest in December 2019, based on performance of the 2017, 2018
and 2019 The performance measure attached to these 2016-19
PSP awards was compounded annualised adjusted diluted EPS
growth over the three year performance period Although adjusted
diluted EPS did increase over the penod, the threshold level of
performance was not met and so zero vesting applied to these
awards A contributing factor to this outcame was MEA activity,
including the disposals early in the performance period which had
an impact on eamings, with acquisitions later in the performance
period. The Committee considered whether to exercise discretion
to adjust the performance outcome to reflect MEA activity

but it was concluded that this would not be appropriate in

the circumstances

Board and Remuneration Committee member changes

Leslie Van de Walle weas appointed Chairman from 1 March

2019 and [oined the Remuneration Committee from 2 Apnl 2019
David Pritchard stepped down from the Committee on leaving the
Board on 28 February 2019, As a result of the DMGT distnbution

of Euromoeney shares during 2019, we had a number of changes
to our Non-Executive Directors, with Tim Collier and Kevin

Beatty stepping down from 2 April 2019. Lorna Tilbian joined the
Remuneration Committee from 2 Apnl 2019 and Tim Pennington
alse jeined the Remuneration Committee from 1 October 2019

These changes are explaned in full on page &

Remuneration changes during 2019

At his request and to help support the funding of salary increases
throughout the wider employee population, Andrew Rashbass’
salary was not increased at the ime of the annual salary review
and therefore from 1 April 2019 his annual salary remained at

£750,000

Wendy Pallot's salary was reviewed through the annual salary
review process Based on Wendy's performance in the role and
market data, the Committee determmned that it was appropnate
to increase this in line with the rate applied to the wider employee
population. Therefore, Wendy's salary was increased by 2 5%,
from £355,000 to £363.875, with effect from 1 April 2019

All employee remuneration at Euromoney

Following on from the developments in 2018, we continued to
focus on pay for the wider employee population to introduce
more structure and consistency Our April 2019 salary review
involved greater reference to benchmark data and oversight
fram the central Reward function to improve alignment across
our employees This is an area that will receive further focus
and attention over the next few years to drive robustness to our
approach in this area.

Engaging with employees

During 2019, we completed the set-up of our global staff forum.
Andrew Rashbass launched the staff forum in Town Halls in
December 2018 and invited people to put themselves forward

as forum representatives. Following an election process, 16
representatives were confirmed as the global staff forum members
The forum was established in March 2019 with the first formal
meeting held in July 2019. The global staff forum will allow the
views of our employees on a range of matters to be fed back to the

Board and to open a two-way dialogue between employees and
the Board Since 2017 we have held a global staff survey and the
global staff forum will complement this survey in gathering views
of our employees Further information on the global staff forum is
provided on page 30

Remuneration for 2020

We do not intend to make any major changes to our Remuneration
Policy or the implementation of our pelicy for 2020 We are

satisfied that the remuneration structures suppart our delivery of
the strategy However, to ensure that the specific performance
measures applied to iIncentive arrangements continue to be
aligned with and suppart the delivery of the strategy, we will be
making a change to the performance measures for Executive
Director bonuses.

Underlying revenue growth has been a key performance indicator
for a number of years at Euromoney. its increasing importance

as an indicator of the strength and perfermance of the business
has prompted the Commattee to introduce an underlying revenue
growth performance measure to the Executive Directors’ bonus
measures for 2020

The financial performance measure weighting will remain the
same, with the adjusted profit before tax measure moving from a
75% weighting to a 37.5% weighting, with the underlying revenue
growth measure beng introduced with a 37 5% weighting
Personal performance measured against individual objectives will
continue to have a 25% weighting.

Following the announcement on 10 September 2019 of the strategic
review of Asset Management we will alse be making changes

to our PSP performance measures for awards due to be granted

in December 2019, We are currently in the process of consulting
major shareholders on the propesed changes All shareholders
will be fully informed of the outcome of the consultation and

the PSP performance measures decided upen in the market
announcement of the PSP grants in December 2019. as well as in
our 2020 Directors’ Remuneration Report.

The annual review of salanes takes place in April each year and
Executive Director salaries will alse be reviewed at this time

Remuneration Policy shareholder approval at the 2018 AGM

The Director's Remuneration Policy was put forward to a binding
shareholder vote at our 2018 AGM It was approved at that vote
The Annual Remuneration Implementation Report together with
this letter is subject to an advisory shareholder vote at our 2020
AGM to be held on 28 January 2020 The section headings identify
the parts of this report that have been subject to audit

Our Remuneration Pelicy 1s due to be put forward to shareholders
at our 2021 AGM and will ke included in our 2020 Directors’
Remuneration Report This policy will include post-employment
shareholding requirements for Executive Directors,

The Committee consults with its sharehelders prior to any major
changes in its remuneration arrangements and will ensure that
shareholders are consulted if any major changes are proposed in
the Remuneration Policy.

Imegen Joss
Remuneration Committee Chair

21 November 2019
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Governance

Directors’ Remuneration Report summary

This summary section provides shareholders with the key information
from our 2019 Directors’ Remuneration Report at a glance

2019 key performance measures Scenario charts for CEO and CFO

for remuneration The charts below provide llustrative values of the
remuneration package for the Chief Executive Officer,
Andrew Rashbass. and Chief Financial Officer, Wendy Pallot,
under three assumed performance scenarios Forthe CEO,
the scenario chart reflects the Remuneration Policy and

not the temperarily reduced target annual bonus and PSP
oward level that apply for the perod of his US assignment
The assumptions used are detailed on page &2

Adjusted profit before tax (annual bonus financial
performance measure, /5% weighting)

CEO (£000)

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

Adjusted diluted earnings per share {PSP award performance
measure, 75% weighting)

Mimmum In line with expectations Meaximum

® Fixed pay ® Annual bonus psp

2005 2016 2017 2006 2019 CFO (E0DO)

Adjusted operating profit margin (PSP award performance
measure, 25% weighting)

Mirimum In lne with expactations Maximum

® Fixed pay ® Annual borus PSP

2005 2016 2017 2008 2009

See puge 22 for definitiens of Key Performance Indicaters

All adjusted measures combine the results of the Graup's contnuing operations The

adusted measures for 2018 ard earler exclude the discontirved aperations relatirg
to GMID whien was dispased of in Apnl 2018 A detailed recorobation of the Graup s
adyusted results to the equivalent statutery measures s set out on pages 15w 17

2018 comparatives have been restated as explainea in note 1 of the Consolidated
Financial Staterments 2015 to 2017 comparatives bave not been restated
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Single figure of remuneration summary table

Salary. Benefts Total before

and Pension Annual borus  buy-out awaord

A Rashbass 2019 997.810 675,000 1,672,810
2018 Q21.391 676,350 1.597.741

W Paliot 2019 397,012 257,677 654,689
2018 51,991 27,734 79.725

Total 2017 1,394,522 932,677 2,327,439
2018 973,382 704.084 1,677,466

1 Benefits restated from 2018 Fullirformation 1s provided inthe detared sirgle f gure of remuneration takle or page 83

2019 CEO bonus cutcome

For 2019, the CEQ bonus amount 15 60% of maximum, £675.000 This amount will be split as follows and was calculated based on
performance against the 20192 annual bonus perfermance measures, summarised below

Bonus Plan
A Rashbass £
Bonus payable in cash 675,000
Bonus deferred into shares 0
Total 675,000
Maximum Pay-out
opportunity {% of
Performance measures Weighting Minmum  Ontarget  Maximum Actual (% of salary)  maximum)
Financial adjusted profit before tax' 75% £930m  £1034m £N37m  £104.6m N2.5% 65%
Indvidual objectives 25% - - - - 37.5% 45%
Total pay-out (% of maximum) 100% 150% 60%
1 Areconcilation of adjusted profit before tax s set out on page 17
The individual cbjectives for Andrew Rashbass in 2019 were:
Pay-out
Objective Threshaold Target Maximum Cormments and/or outcome (% of maximum)
Book of Business 1% 176% 258% 04% 0%
growth year-on-year
M&A Activity Details not disclosed due to commeraial sensitivity The acquisition of BoardEx 80%
and The Deal was
completed during 2019 and
good progress made on
wider M&A activity in line
with the strategy. Outcome:
between target and
maximum
Underlying Reverue 1% 3% 5% 0% 0%
Growth
People Succession and Succession and Succession plans in 100%

development plans in - development plans in - place with actions for key
place for people and  place forpeople and  individuals/roles. Reviewed
roles defined as critical roles defined as cntical callectively by Group

Majority of Senior All of Senior Management Board in

Management Group  Management Group Janvary 2019

have attended have attended All of Senior Management

Leading 30 Leading 3.0 Group have attended
Leading 3.0. Outcome:
maximum
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Remuneration Policy

Approved by shareholders at our 2018 AGM

Remuneration Policy

The Board believes in aligning the interests of management with
those of shareholders It 1s the Group's policy to construct executive
remuneration packages such that a significant part of a Director's
remuneration is linked to performance measures aligned with

the Group’s key strategic. financial and operational objectives
and with the creation of sustainable long-term shareholder

valve Sclaries and benefits are generally not intended to be the
most significant part of a Director's remuneration The policy was
approved by shareholder vote atthe 1 February 2018 AGM and 15
effective from that date. and s available on our website in our 2017
Annual Report and Accounts (pages 59 to 65)

Information not subject to audit.
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The implementation of the current Remuneratien Pelicy for the
Executive Directors in 2019 1s set out in the Annual Remuneration
Report, fram page 83 to 91

The following pages show our Remuneration Policy which was
effective from 1 February 2018

Compliance statement

This report sets out the Group's policy and structure for the
remuneration of Executive and Non-Executive Directors This policy
report is intended to be in full complionce with the requirements of
the Large and Medium-sized Companies and Groups (Accounts
and Reperts) Regulations 2013,

In formutating its Directors’ Remuneration Policy, the Committee
considered employee pay and benefits, and sought advice on
best practice from Deloitte The Committee consulted with its top
sharehclders by equity holding.



Directors’ Remuneration Report continued

Berefits

Key Features of Policy

Maximum Opportunity

Basic salary

Purpose and link

*» Part of an overall market competitive pay package with

to strategy salary generally not the most significant part of a Director’s
overall package
* Reflect the individual's experience, role and performance
within the Company
Operation * Paid monthly in cash

* Normally reviewed by the Remuneration Committee in March
each year

Benchmarking

* The Remuneration Committee examines salary levels at FTSE
250 companies and other listed peer group companies to
help determine Executive Director pay increases

* The Remuneration Committee takes into account the general
level of salary increases awarded to employees

Relationship
to employee
salaries

Benefits

Purpose and link
to strategy

* The approach to setting base salary increases across the
Group takes into account performance of the individuals
conhcerned, the performance of the business they work for,
micro and macro-econamic factors, and market rates for
similar roles. skills and responsibility

* Basic benefits are provided as part of a market competitive
pay package

Operation

Benefits may include:

* Private heaithcare

* Life insurance

* Overseas relocation and housing costs

The Committee has discretion to add or remove benefits
from this list

Relationship
to employee
benefits

« Benefits are available to all Directors and employees
subject to a minimum length of service or passing a
probationary period

Benefit levels

Pensions

Purpose and link

+ All Executive Directors participate in the healthcare scheme
offered in the country where they reside

Retirement benefits are provided as part of @ market

to strategy competitive pay package

Operation * Directors may participate in the pension arrangements
applicable to the country where they work

* ADirector who elects to cease contributing to a Company

pension scheme due to changes in tax or pension legislation
may choose to receive a pension allowance in lisu of the
Company's pension contributions

Relationship *+ All Directors and employees are entitted to participate in

to employee the same pension scheme arrangements applicable to the

salaries country where they work

Euromoney Institutional investor PLC Zv -0 S ur 3 Lo o

* No absolute maximum has been
set for Executive Director salaries.
The Committee is guided by the
general increase for the broader
employee population although
larger increases may be considered
appropriate in circumstances
(including. but not limited to.
a change in an individual's
responsibilities or in the scale of their
role or in the size and complexity of
the Group). Larger increases may
also be considered appropriate if a
Director has been initially appointed
to the Board at a lower than
typical salary

* There is no overall maximum as the
level of benefits depends on the
annual cost of providing individual
items in the relevant local market
and the individual's specific role

* The maximum employer's
contribution to a pension scheme is
15% of pensionable salary

mie 27
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Directors’ Remuneration Report continued

Benefits

Koy Features of Paiicy

Annual Bonus Plan

Purpose and link * The Annual Bonus Plan links reward to key business targets
to strategy and an individual's contribution
* The Annual Bonus Plan provides alignment with shareholders’
interests through the operation of bonus deferral
Operation * Any Executive Director may participate in the Annual

Bonus Plan

+ Annual bonus payments will be paid in cash following the
release of audited results and/or as a deferred award over
Company shares

*+ Any bonus earned in excess of 100% of salary will be awarded
as a deferred award

* Deferred awards are usually granted in the form of
conditional share awards or nil-cost options (and may alse be
settled in cash)

* Deferred awards usually vest two years after award although
may vest early on leaving employment or on a change of
control (see later sections)

* An additional payment (in the form of cash or shares) may be
made in respect of shares which vest under deferred awards
to reflect the value of dividends which would have been paid
on those shares (this payment may assume that dividends had
been reinvested in Company shares on a cumulative basis)

* The annual bonus payakle is based on performance
assessed over one year and may be based upon any of
appropriate financial, strategic and individual performance
measures. No more than half of the annual bonus will
generally be determined by strategic and/or individual
performance measures

* Any annual benus payout is ultimately at the discretion of the
Remuneration Committee

* The cash bonus will be subject to recovery, and/or deferred
awards will be withheld, at the Remuneration Committee’s
discretion in exceptional circumstances where, before the
preliminary announcement of audited results during the third
financial year following the financial year in which the bonus
is determined. a material misstatement or miscalculation
comes to light which resulted in an overpayment under the
Annual Benus Plan, or there is gross misconduct

Relationship to
all employee
long-term
incentive
schemes

Incentive schemes, like the Annual Bonus Plan, are an
important part of the Group culture. The Directors believe
they directly reward good and exceptional performance.
Many employees across the Group have an incentive scheme
in place
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Maximum Opportunity

* The maximum award that can be
made under the Annual Bonus
Plan is 150% of salary Each year
the Remuneration Committee will
determine the maximum annual
bonus epportunity for individual
Executive Directors within this limit

* The maximum level of bonus
payment at threshold achievement
is 0%



Benefits Key Features of Policy Maximum Opportunity

L |
Long-term incentive plans

Purpose and link * Share schemes are an important part of overoll compensation * The maximum annual award

to strategy and align the interests of Directors and managers with permitted under the PSP is shares
shareholders. They encourage Directors to deliver long-term, with a market value of 200% of
sustainable profit and share price growth annuatised basic salary

Operation 2015 Performance Share Plan (PSP)

* Any Executive Director may participate in the PSP

* These awards will normally be subject to a performance
period of three years, with an additional helding pericd
of two years. If the Remuneration Committee determines
50, an alternative performance period may be applied
{with a minimum of at least three years). The aggregate
of the performance period and additional holding period
shall not be less than five years. Awards may vest early on
leaving employment or on a change of control (see later
sections). Vesting of these awards will be based on financial
performance measures and/or strategic business goals.
with the precise measures and weighting of the measures
determined by the Remuneration Committee on the grant of
each award. For achieving a threshold level of performance
against a performance measure, no more than 25% of the
portion of the PSP award determined by that measure will
vest. Vesting of that portion would then increase to 100% for
achieving a stretching maximum performance target

Q
Q
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* AlLPSP awards may be granted as conditional awards of
shares or nil-cost options {or, if appropriate, as cash-settled
equivalents). An additional payment (in the form of cash or
shares) may be made in respect of shares which vest under
PSP awards to reflect the value of dividends which would
have been paid on those shares {and this payment may
assume that dividends had been reinvested in Company
shares on a cumulative basis)

* PSP awards will be subject te recovery and/cr withholding
atthe Remuneration Committee’s discretion in exceptional
circumstances where, before the preliminary anncuncement
of audited results during the sixth financial year following
the financial year in which the award is granted, a material
misstatement or miscaleulation comes to light which resulted
in an over-vesting of PSP awards, or gross misconduct

Relationship to » The PSP rewards the creation of iong-term shareholder value
all employee and is potentially available to all senior employees across
long-term the Group

incentive

schemes

Long-term incentive plans

Purpose and link * All-employee share schemes align staff with the Group's * Participants save a fixed menthly

to strategy financial perfermance and promate a sense of ownership amount of up to £500 (or such other
limit as may be approved from time

Operation * Euromoney SAYE scheme to time by MMRC) for three years

* The Group operates an allemployse save as you earn
scheme in which those Directors employed in the UK are
eligible to participate. No performance conditions attach to
options granted under this plan. Itis designed to incentivise
all employees. Participants are able to buy shares in the
Company at a price set at o discount of up to 20% to the
market value at the start of the savings period
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Netes to table

* The Remuneration Committee may vary any performance condition{s) f an
event occurs which causes f to determine thot a varied condition waould be
more appropriate provided that any such varned condition 1s not matenally
less difficult to satisfy In the event that the Remuneration Committes was o
make an adjustment of this sort, @ full explanation would be provided i the
next Remuneration Report

* Performance measures —the performance measures usea inthe vanable
incentive plans are reviewed annually and chasen ta focus execut.ve rewards
on delivery of key finarcial wargets for the relevart performance penad
addition where approprate, to key strategic or operaticnal goals relevarnt to
an individual Precise targets are set at the stort of each performance penod
by the Remuneration Committee based on relevant reference points inciuding
for Group financial targets. the Group s business plan and are desigred to be
appropriately stretching

* The Remuneration Committee intends to honour ary commitments entered into
with current or fermer Directors on their snginal terms, including outstanding
incentive awards, which have been disclosed in previous remuneration
reports and, where relevant, are consistent wath & previous policy approved
by shareholders Any such payments to former Directors will be set out In the
Remuneratior Report as and when they occur

* The Remuneration Committee reserves the nght to make any remuneration
payments and payments for loss of office {including exercising any discretions
avallable to it in connection with such payments} notwathstanding thot they are
not in lne wath the Policy set out above where the terms of the payment were
agreed, (i} before the date the Company's first Remuneration Policy approved
by shareholders in accordance with section 439A of the Companies Act came
into effect, and {i1} before the Policy set out above came into effect, provided
that the terms of the payment were consistent with the shareholder-approved
Remuneration Policy in force ot the time they were agreed or (i) at a time
when the relevant individual was not a Director of the Compary and . in the
opirion of the Remuneration Committes, the payment was not in consideration
for the individual becoming a Director of the Company Far these purposes
‘payments’ includes the Remuneration Committee satisfying awards of vanable
remuneration and, in relation to on award over shares the terms of the
payment are ‘agreed’ at the tima the award 1s granted

»

The Remuneration Committee may make minor amendments to the Policy

(for regulatory, exchange control, tax or admimistrative purposes, o to toke
account of o change in legistation) without obtaining shareholder approval for
that amendment

*

The Remuneration Committee will operate the variable incentive plans
accarding to their respective rules which provide flexialty in a number of
regards

Under the PSP and the deferred share bonus plan, cutstanding owards will
vest sarly in the event of a change of control/takeover unless the change

of control 1s an internal rearganisation or the Remuneration Committee
determings atherwise iIn which case awards will be excranged for equivalert
awards over shares in the acquinng company In the case of PSP awards,

the extent to which awards vest will take inta account the satisfaction of the
performuance conditions and. unless the Remuneration Committee determines
otherwise. on a ime prorated basis by reference to the propoertien of the
performance penod that has elapsed If the Company 1s wound up ar s or may
be affected by a demerger, delisting. special dvidend or other event which
would, in the Remuneration Committee s opinion affect the Comparny s share
price. the Remuneration Committee may allow PSP and deferred share borus
plan awards to vest on the same basis as for a tukeover

Any buy-out award granted as part of the recruitment of an Executive Director
will be treated on a change of control in ine with the agreed commercial
terms of that award

+

if there is a vanation of the Company s share capital or o demerger. delisting,
special dvidend, nghts issue or other event which in the Remuneration
Committee's opinion would offect the Company s share price the
Remuneration Committee may ad|ust the terms of the awards
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Non-Executive Directors

The Remureration of Non-Executive Directors 1s determined by
the Board based on the time commitment required by the Non-
Executive Directors their role and market condiions Each Non-
Executive Director receives a base fee for services to the Board
with an additional fee payable for Non-Executive Directors with
selected, additonal respansibilities (for example, the Chairs of the
Remuneration and Audit Committees and the Senlor Independent
Director). The Non-Executive Directors do not participate in any

of the Company s incentive schemes The Non-Executive Directors
recelve reimbursement for reasonable expenses (including, where
relevant, tax payable on those expenses) incurred as part of their
role as Non-Executive Directors

Policy on external appointments

The Company allows its Executive Directors to take a imited
number of outside directorships provided they are not expected to
impinge on their principal employment

Subject to the approval of the Company Chairman. Executive
Directors may retain the remuneration received from the first
such oppointment

Recruitment policy

Compensation packages for new Board Directors are set in
accordance with the prevailing Remuneration Policy at their time
of joining the Board The main components are detailed below

New Executive Directors will receive a salary commensurate with
their responsibilities and which will not be the most significant
part of their overall remuneration package The Director will also
be offered the benefit of private healthcare and life assurance.
Cther benefits may include a pension allowance. relocation or
housing ailowance.

New Executive Directors will participate in one or more of the
incentive plans cutlined in the section detailed remuneration
arrangements of Executive Directors earbier in this Policy. The initial
annual bonus and/or long-term incentive plan award to a new
recruit may be granted with different measures and or targets to
other Directors in the year of joining f deemed appropriate.

Where appropnate. a new Executive Director may be granted

a one-off buy-out award for loss of earmings from previcus
emptoyment which have been forfeited in order to join the
Company When structuring a buy-out award. the Remuneration
Committee will take account of all relevant factors. including any
performance conditions attached to forfeited incentive awards,
the likelhood of those conditions being met, the proportion of
the vesting/performance peried remaining and the form of the
award (e.g. cash or shares) The overnding principle will be that
any replacement buy-out award should, in aggregate. not exceed
the commercial valve of the earnings which have been forfeited.
The Remuneration Committee may, in a recruitment scenario,
rely upoen the Listing Rules exemption from shareholder approval
to grant a one-off buy-out award to facilitate the recruitment of
a Director



New Executive Directors are entitled te participate in the
Euromoney SAYE scheme

Where an Executive Director 1s appainted from wathin the
organisation. the normal policy of the Company 1s that any legacy
arrangements would be honoured in line with the onginal terms
and conditions. Similarly, if an Executive Director 1s appointed
following the Cempany's acquisition of or merger with ancther
company or business, legacy terms and conditions would

be honoured.

Where an appointmenit 1s made to fill an Executive Director role on
a short-term basis. the Remuneration Committee retains discretion
to make appropriate remuneration decisions outside the standard
Policy to meaet the individual circumstances of recrutment on an
interim basis

New Non-Executive Directors appointed to the Board will receve a
base fee In line with that payable te other Non-Executive Directors
In the event that a Non-Executive Director s required to temporarily
take on the role of an Executive Director, their remuneration may
include any of the elements listed above for Executive Directors

Directors’ service contracts

The Company s policy 1s to employ Executive Directors on

service agreements which are terminable on 12 menths notice.
The Remuneration Committee seeks to minimise termination
payments and believes these shaould be restricted to the value of
remuneration for the notice period

The Company's Executive Diractors are employed for an indefinte
term and the service agreements provide for a notice period of

12 months from the Company and the Executive. Fach Executive
Director participates in banus or incentive arrangements

(und, in the case of Andrew Rashbass. a recruitment award

as compensation for forfeiting remuneration in order to |oin

the Company)

The service agreements for the Executive Directors include the
following provisions on termination: 12 months notice from the
Company {and the Executive) and during such notice the Executive
will nermally continue to be entitled to receive, at the absolute
discretion of the Remuneration Committee bonus and long-term
incentive awards that accrue during the notice period if the
Cornpany terminates employment and elects te make a payment
in lieu of notice (PILON) this will be calculated on the basis of
the Executive's base salary for the notice period At the absolute
discretion of the Remuneration Committee. the Executive will
also be considered for any bonuses to which they would or may
become entitied during the notice period

The service agreements for the Executive Directors are expressed
to expire on reaching their respective retirement age. however, the
Executive Directers could not. under UK law, be required to retire
at this age following the abolition of the default retirement age

Each of the Non-Executive Directors serve under a letter of
appeintment, rather than a service agreement

The Directors’ service contracts and Non-Executive Directors letters
of appointment are available for shareholder inspection at the
Company's registered office.

Policy on payment for loss of office

The Campany’s approach to payments in the event of termination
is to take account of the individual circumstances including the
reason for termination individual performance. contractual
obligations the terms of benus iIncentives and long-term incentive
plans i which the Executive Director participates

The Company's general practice for all Executive Directors 1s
to provide for 12 months’ salary and pensien up to the date
of termination

The Company may lawfully terminate an Executive Director's
employment without compensation in circumstances where the
Company is entitled to terminate for cause {this is defined in the
service agreements).

The Remuneration Committee may determine that any Executive
Director 15 eligible to receive an annual bonus in respect of the
financial year in which they cease employment. This bonus would
usually be time apportioned In determining the level of bonus to
be paid, the Remuneration Committee may. at its discretion, take
into account performance up to the date of cessation or over the
financial year as a whole

The treatment of outstanding share awards in the event of
termination is governed by the relevant share plan rules as
summarised below

If an Executive Director participates in the PSP and ceases to be an
officer or employee of the Group during the performance period

in any circumstances other than those set out below, an unvested
award will lapse on the date on which their employment ceases

If o participant dies, an unvested PSP award will vest at the time of
the participant’s death, taking into account the satisfaction of the
performance condition and, unless the Remuneration Committee
determines otherwise, on a time prorated basis by reference to the
proportion of the performance period that has elapsed

If o participant is treated as a good leaver because cessation of
employment is as a result of itl-health. injury. disability. the sale
of the individual's employing business or entity out of the Group
or any other reason at the Remuneration Committee’s discretion
(a 'Good Leaver Reasen’) a participant's unvested PSP award
will usually continue until the normal vesting date except where
the Remuneration Committee determines it should vest as soon
as reasonably practicable following the participant’s cessation.
The extent to which the award vests will take account of the
extent to which the performance condition is satisfied and. unless
the Remuneration Committee determines otherwise, on a hime
prorated basis by reference to the proportion of the performance
period that has elapsed

If a PSP award is subject to a holding peried and a participant
ceases to be an officer or employee of the Group during that
holding period. his/her award will narmally be released at the end
of the holding period except where the Remuneration Committee
determines it should be released following the participant's
cessation. However, if a participant is summarily dismissed during
a holding period. his/her award will lapse immediately Nil-cost
options will normally be exercisable for six months after release
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Where an Executive Director participates in the deferred share
bonus plan and ceases employment. their outstanding awards wall
normally lapse unless cessation is due to the participant’s death

or a Good Leaver Reason. in which case outstanding awards will
vest at the normal vesting date or, if the Remuneration Committee
so determines. as soon as is reasonably practicable following the
individual's cessation

Any buy-out award granted as part of the recrutment of an
Executive Director will be treated on cessation of employment in
line with the agreed commercial terms of that award

The Remuneration Committee reserves the right to make any
cther payments in connection with a Director s cessation of office
or employment where the payments are made in good faith in
discharge of an existing legal obligation {or by way of damages
for breach of such an obligation) or by way of a compromise or
settlement of any claim arising In connection with the cessation of
a Director's office or employment. Any such payments may include
kut are not limited to paying any fees for outplacement assistance
and/er the Director's legal and/or professicnal advice fees in
connection with his cessation of office or employment

No other termination payments are provided unless otherwise
required by law

Policy for Directors holding equity in the Company

There is a minimum shareholding requirement of 200% of
base salary for Executive Directors on a continuous basis.

A newly appointed Executive Director will have a period of
five years from their date of appointment to meet the minimum
shareholding requirement

There 1s a minimum shareholding requirement of 100% of annual
fees for Non-Executive Directors on a continucus basis.

CEO (ECO0)

Maximum

Minimum In line with expectations

@ Fixed pay ® Annual bonus PSP
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Scenarie charts for Directors’ remuneration

The charts below provide illustrative values of the remuneration
package for the Chief Executive Officer, Andrew Rashbass, and
Chief Financial Officer, Wendy Pallot, under three assumed
performance scenarios For the CEO, the scenario chart reflects
the Remuneration Policy and not the temporarily reduced target
annual bonus and PSP award level that apply for the period of his
US assignment

These charts are for llustrative purposes only and actual outcomes
may differ from those shown

Assumed perfoermance Assumptions used

Consists of total fixed pay,
ncluding base salary, benefits
and pension

Salary as at1 October 2019
Benefits estimated value (CEC:
£175.000: CFO- £2.000)

Pension allowance 10% of salary

All performance scenarios
(Fixed pay)

»

Minimum (less than threshold)
performance

(Variable pay)

Performance in line

with expectations

No pay-out under the
annual bonus

No vesting under the PSP

2/3rd of the maximum pay-out
under the annual bonus

(Variable pay)” * 50% vesting under the PSP
Maximum performance * 100% of the maximum pay-out
{Variable pay)* under the annual bonus

* 100% vesting under the PSP

T PSP awards haove been shown at face valae with ro share price growth or discount rate
assimptons All-amployee snare plons have been excluded

CFO (£000)
1,500

1250 .. .
1000
750
500

250

Maximum

Mimimure In line with expectations

& Fixed pay @ Annuval bonus PSP



Arnual Remuneration Report

Executive Directers (audited)
In 2019, the key elements of remuneration for the CEO and CFO. in line with the Directors Remuneration Policy in force, were as follows.

Salary Annual incentive Bonus deferral LTIP Pension Benefits
A Rashbass (CEQ) £750.000,  Annual Bonus Plan Any amount PSP Annual 10% of Private
uncranged .« 1509 of salary maximom above 100% of  award of 170%  salary per healthcare
since 2015 100%/90% of salary target salary deferred  of salary vestir;g annum. Life
inta nil-cost after five years payable nsurance
The performance measures werg optiens for In cash’ S
. < - t S
75% adjusted profic before tax WG years assignment
¢ 25% individual objectives support
WM Pallot (CFO)  £355000 Annval Bonus Plan Any amount PSP Annual 10% of Private
increased . 1259, of salary moximum above 100% of  award of 150%  salary per healthcare
to £363.875 62 5% of salary target salary deferred  of salc?lry vestng annum, Life
from 1 Apnl into nil-cost after five years payable Insurance
2019 The performance measures were options for in cash®
v 75% adusted profit before tax two years

* 25% indmdual obectives

A5 explained 1n our 2018 Larectors Remuneraticn Report the Chief Executive Officer s target bonus leve was reauced from 100% to 90% of salary ard the level of PSP award grant was
reduced from 200% of salary to 170% These adjastments gre imtenzed to .eave the Comparny breadly cost neutsalin relation to its increased cests ansing from the Chief Executive Officers
short-term commuter asegnment o the LS to develop our strotegy and business there The LS assignment began on” Apni 20'6 ord so the target bonus for 2019 1 90% of salary

[¥]

The five year vesting perod 1s o trrze year performance pencd plus © twa year neld ~g penos, after whics awards vest

3 The maamum pension contmbutior rate fer UK employees is alse 10% of salary

The table below sets out the breakdown of the single figure of remuneration for each Exscutive Director in 2019 and 2018

Total befare

buy-out Buy-aut
Salary’ Benefits Annual bonus? Pension award award? Total
£ £ E £
A Rashbass 2019 750,000 172,810 675,000 75,000 1,672,810 656,149 2,328,959
2018 750,000 96,39 &76,350 75,000 1,597,741 590.981 2188722
WM Pallot 2019 359,438 1,630 257,677 35,944 654,689 - 654,689
2018 45968 1.426 27734 4.597 79725 - 79725
Total 2019 1,109,438 174,440 932,677 110,944 2,327,499 656,149 2,963,648
2018 795968 S7.817 704,084 79,597 1.677 466 590981 2268447

Wendy Pallot s salary was reviewed through 1ne annua. salory review process ard bosed on martket data and Wendy s perforrance inthe role the Committee deterrmined that it was
appreprate to increase this in bne with the rate appled t the wider emyployee populanon Therefore Wendy's salary wereased by 2 5% from £355 300 te £363 875 with effect fram 1 Apnl
2019

2 |na change from the practice in previous years tre value of benefits provided duning 2019 15 the actual castinzarred in the yaoe rather than the mast racent PUD (ax year) value In
addition os notea above e Company has previded accommodatior for the peniod of Anarew Rashbass shert-term assignment ta the LS and related support around adetional tax filng
responsitzilies The prowision of the accommadation was ariginally trecred as axempt from tax but thot treatment was re-consigered dunng 2017 ard 15 now treated as taxable Based on the
revised approach the benefits igures for 2018 have been restated from the previously disciosed figures of £7 441 for Ardrew Rashbass and £0‘or Wendy Patlot

3 Ireludes any amount deferred inte nil-cost ootions for two years with vesting sunject to @ ontinued erpioyment ‘other than in Imited good leaver circumstar ces)

4 For 20°8 the value of Ardrew Rashpass’ suy-cut award vesting was calotlres vaing the overnge m d-maorket price of the fve doys oreceding vesting on 30 Seprember 2078 of £13 37 (Fthe

value vesting in 2016 £140 98’ related to snare price appreciation of 31% from the date ot award For 2019 the volue of Andrew Rashbuoss bay-out award vesting was calcwated using the

average mid-maret price of the five days preceding vesting on 30 September 2019 of £14 84 Ofthe value vestng n 20019 £2056 149 re.ated to share pnee appreciation of 46% from the date of

cward

Annual Bonus Plan

A Rashbass £
Benus payable in cash 675,000
Bonus deferred inte shares =
Total 675,000
Maximum Pay-out

oppoertunity (% of

Performance measures Weighting Minirum On target Maximum Actual (% of salary}  maximum)
Financial adjusted profit before tax 75% EF30m  £1034m EN37m  E104 &m 12 5% 65%
Individual objectives 25% - - - - 37 5% 45%
Total pay-out (% of maximumj 100% 150% 60%

1 Areconaliohion of adusted prodit before tax s set cut on page 17
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The individual objectives for Andrew Rashbass in 2019 were:

Objective Trreshold Target

Maximum

Comments and/or
cutcome

Pay-out (% of
maximum)

Book of Business growth year-on-year 1% 175%

25%

04%

0%

M&A Activity Detalls not disclosed due to commercial sensitvity

Underlying Revenue Growth i 1% 3%

5%

The acquisihion of
BoardEx and The
Deal was completed
during 2019 and
good progress
made on wider

M&A actvity In line
with the strategy
Outcome between
target and maximum

T B0%

0%

0%

People Success'en and

Succession and

Succession plans in

development plans  development plans  place with actions

in place for people

in place for people  for key indmiduals/

and roles defined as and roles defined as roles Reviewed
crtical

eritical

Majorty of Serior All of

Management Group Management Group
have attended have attended

Leadng 30

Lead

Senior

ing 30

collectively by Group
Management Beard
in January 2019

All of Senior
Management Group
have attended
Leading 30
Cutcome maximum

100%

These objectives were weighted equally and the assessment of the outcome was determined by the Commuttee. In determining the final
level of bonus payable. the Committee also considered whether the overall bonus outcome was appropriate based on the performance
measures set for 2019 The Committee noted the overall strong progress of the Company and development of the strategy. led by
Andrew, not necessarily all of which is reflected in the specific performance measures

On the basis of the above, the annual bonus will pay out at 60% of maximurm opportunity and an overall bonus of £675.000 (90% of
salary) Under our Remuneration Policy. any annudl bonus in excess of 100% of salary will be paid as a nil-cost option. the vesting of
which will be deferred for two years, which 1s not applicable with this bonus outcome

WM Pallot £
Bonus payable in cash 257,677
Bonus deferred into shares -
Total 257,677
Maximum Pay-out

opportunity (% of

Performance measures Weighting Minimum Ontarget  Maximum Actual (% of salary})  maximum)
Financial adjusted profit kefore tax' 75% £93m  £1034m fN37m  £104.6m 9375% 56%
Individual objectives 25% - - - - 31.25% &%
Total pay-out (% of maximum) 100% 125% 57%

1 Areconcilation of adjusted profit before tax s set oat en page 7

84 Euromoney Institutional Investor PLC =2 w71 0 or w0 1 4y



The individuat objectives for Wendy Pallot in 2019 were

Pay-out {% of

Objective Threshold Target Maximum Outcome maximumy
Book of Business growth year-on-year 1% 175% 25% 04% 0%
M&A Activity Details not disclosed due to commercial sensitnty The acquisition of 75%
BoardEx and The
Deal was completed-
dunng 2019 and
good progress
made on wider
ME&A activity in line
with the strategy
Outcome between
I e target and maximum
Internal Audit and Controls New internal audit  New internal audit  New internal audit  Head of Internal 80%
team appointed:  team successfully  team successfully  Audit appointed and
new Internal controls embedded, new embedded and embedded, internal
framework designed internal controls internal audit audit schedule
framework schedule completed completed but new
implemented new internal internal controls
controts framework  framewaork design
embedded work in progress
Qutcome between
o target and maximum
Global Finance Transformation New finance New finance New finance New finance 87 5%

Project

system successfully
implemented In
ona division and

system successfully
implemented in
one division with
satisfactory internal  the UK ledger with
audit report for satisfactory internal
project governance audit repert for
project governance

system successfully
implemented in
one division and
the UK tedger with
good internat avdit
report for project
governance and on
track to complete
roll-out by the end
of 2020

system successfully
implementad in
one division and
the UK ledger. in
line with approach
agreed with the
Audit Committee.
Satisfactory internal
audit report for
preject governance
On track for
completing roll-out
by the end of 2020
Qutcome below
maximum

These objectives were weighted equally and the assessment of the outcome was determined by the Committee In determining the final
level of bonus payable, the Committee also considered whether the overall bonus cutcome was appropriate based on the performance
measures set for 2019 The Committee noted the overatl strong progress of the Company and development of the strategy. which Wendy
has contributed a significant amount to. not necessarily all of which is reflected in the specific performance measures.

On the basis of the above, the annual bonus will pay out at 57% of maximum cpportunity and an overall bonus of 257,677 (72% of
salary). Under our Remuneration Policy. ary annual bonus in excess of 100% of salary will be paid as a nil-cost option, the vesting of
which will be deferred for two years, which is not applicable with this bonus outcome.
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Pensions
Pension amounts are those contributed by the Company to pension schemas or cash amourits pad In leu of pension contributions
Executive Directors can participate in the Euromoney PensionSaver Plan (a money purchase plan) or their own private pension scheme.

Buy-out award for Andrew Rashbass {(audited)

A one-off award of shares in the Company with a value of £2 250.000 was made in 2016 in order to compensate Andrew Rashipass for
incentives foregone on leaving his previcus employment This was considered to be no more than the comparable commereial value of
the incentives foregone by him from his previous employment Based on the Company's average share price for the month of September
2015, 221 011 shares were awarded on 1 October 2015 This award vested as follows

30 September 2016 40% (88.404 shares)
30 September 2017 20% (44,202 shares)
30 September 2018, 20% (44 202 shares)
30 September 2019 20% (44 203 shares)

Long-term incentives {(audited)

No share plan options under the PSP wilt vest in the year for the Exacutive Directors Andrew Rashbass held a PSP award over 141,657
shares (originatly granted on 19 December 2016 and due to vest on 19 December 2021 which lapsed during the year as the performance
measure. measured over a three year penod, was not met The performance measure was compounded annualised adjusted diluted
EPS growth and the threshold level of 3% required for any vesting was not met

Options were granted over 154,591 shares to Executive Directors duning the year under the PSP Detalls of the Group's share option
schermes are set in the Remuneration Palicy that can be found on the website and note 24 to the Group's Financial Statements.

Directors’ interests
The following tables set out all interests in the equity of the Company held by Executive Directers and a companson to the shareholding
guidelines for Executive Directors at 30 September 2019.

Scheme interests subject to performance conditions (audited)

The table below sets out the details of the long-term incentive awards granted to Andrew Rashbass and Wendy Pallot under the PSP

on 1/ December 2018 Vesting will be determined according to the achievement of performance measures that will be tested in 2021

In addition to the three-year performance measurement period. Executive Directors have d further two-year helding period following the
performance period. No other awards under the PSP have been granted to the Executive Directors during 2019 As explained above, the
Chief Executive Officer's PSP award level was reduced to 170% of salary (at grant) for the award granted in December 2018 to contribute
to leaving the Company broadly cost neutral in relation to its Increased costs arising from the Chief Executive Officer’s short-term
commuter assignment to the US to develop our strategy and business there

Type of Face value of Number of End of

option awarded Basis of award award made shares'  performance perod

A Rashbass Nit-cost option 170% of salary £1.275.000 109.048 Sep 2021
W Pallot Nil-cost option 150% of salary £532,500 45543 Sep 2021

1 Caleuloted as moximum rumber of shares thot would vest F ak performarce meaasures ore snet The share prce used to determine the number of shares awaraed was 17145 beng the
average of the middle market quetations of an ordinary share as derved f-om the Daly Official List for the five asal ng days preced ng 17 December 2018

Details of performance measures for the December 2018 PSP awards are as follows

Maximum epportunity Performance measure Weighting Performance target Vesting level

! &% or more | Full vesting

" Compounded annualised EPS Between 3% and 8% Between 25% and 100%

‘ growth betwaeen financial 75% ‘ on a sliding scale

A Rashbass 170% of salcry years 2017 and 2020 3% | 25%
Less than 3% | Nil

W Pallot 150% of salary 28% or more ' Full vesting
Between 25 5% and 28% Between 25% and 100%

25% ; on a sliding scale

Cperating margin”

255%.
Less than 25 5% ‘

25%
Nil

1 EPS wll be the adjusted diluted earnings per shore disclosed ir nowe 10 te the Group s Finanoial Sratements

2 Operanng margin will be adjusted cperating margin as diszlosed - the Group s Finanzial Statements
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The table below sets cut the details of PSP awards (il cost options) held by Executive Directors as ot 30 September 2019,

Lapsed  Exercised

Reloting Perfarmance Exercisable Expiry Avard price Granted duning  duningthe  duringthe Qutstanding
Year to penad ends from aate Status {pence) the year year year Gwards
A Rashbass
2015 PSP 305ep 2020 18Dec2020 18Dec2025 Outstanding 341 8 - - - 159.269
2016 PSP 305ep 2019 19 Dec2021  19Dec2026 Outstanding 1.057 4 - 141857 - -
208 PSP 305ep 2020 19Feb2023 19 Feb 2028 Outstanding 1158 0 - - - 12103
2018 PSP 305ep 2021 17 Dec2023 17 Dec 2028  Ouistanding 1169 2 109 048 - — 109.046
Total 378,420
W Pallot
2018 PSP Ni-costoption 17 Dec 2023 17 Dec 2028 Outstanding 11692 45 543 - - 45,543

Scheme interests not subject to perfermance conditions {audited)
The table below sets out the detalls of outstanding buy-out awards. deferred bonus awards and SAYE options held by Andrew Rashbass
and Wendy Pallot

Award price Exerzised Qutstanding
Year Relating to Award type Exercisable from Expiry date Status {pence}  during the year awards
ARashbass
2015 Buy-out award Nil-cost option 30 Sep 2018 10ct 2025 OQutstanding 1018 5 44,202 -
2015 Buy-out award Nil-cost option 30 Sep 2019 10ct 2025  Ouistanding 1018 & - 44203
2016 Deferred banus Nil-cost option 22 Dec 2018 22 Dec 2024  Gutstanding 10636 19075 -
2017 Deferred bonus Nil-cost option 19 Feb 2020 19 Feb 2026 Qutstanding 11580 - 4339
2018 SAYE  Discounted option 1 Aug 2021 1Fek 2022  Outstanding 14200 - 1691
Tetal 50,233
W Pallot
2019 SAYE  Discounted option 1 Aug 2022 1 Fep 2023  Outstanding 12460 — 1,651

The proportion of the buy-out award (over 44 202 shares) which vested on 30 September 2018 was exercised on 17 December 2018
Some shares (20.775) were sold te cover tax. with the balance of 23,427 shares retained The share price ot exercise was £11.76

The deferred bonus award (over 19175 shares). which vested en 22 December 2018 was exercised on 4 January 2019 Seme shares
(9.012) were sold to cover tax, with the balance of 10163 shares retaimed The share price at exercise was £11.91

The SAYE aption granted toe Wendy Pallot during the year was granted on 14 June 2017 with a market value of £20 571 and option exercise
price of £10.90 per share The basis for the grant was Wendy's level of savings under the HMRC approved all employee SAYE plan.

Scheme interests summary (qudited)
The table below summarises all interests in shares

Awards held Awdrds held
Awvards held not subject to not subjectto Nurnber of
subject ta performance performance  Shares required Number of shares beneficially  Shareholding
performance conditions conditions to be held required owned requirement
Executive Director conditions {unvested) (vested) % of salary to be held' shares met
A Rashbass 378,420 4.030 44,203 200% 101,351 124.646 Yes
W Paliot 45543 1,651 - 200% 49172 833 Ne?

1 The number of snares is calsulated us ng the cios ng mid-market price an 20 September 2019 & £14 8G The reguirement 1s for the Executive Directers to hold 200% of salary witrin five years of
appaintment For the ourpeses of measur ng the shareholding shares held will ke Included but rot unvested opt ons

2 Wendy Pailot was appointed Execut ve Zirector on 16 August 2018 ora therefore nas rot yet oult up shares equa. to ner dividuo, requirement ard has unti. August 2023 to build up the
required snareholding

There have been no changes in the shareholdings or share interests of the Executive Directors between 30 September 2019 and the date
of this Annual Report and Accounts
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Governance

Directors’ Remuneration Report continued

Payments to past Directors (audited)

Other than payments made to Sir Patnick Sergeant in refation to his role as Life President, there were no payments to past Directors made
in the year, As disclosed at the time Sir Patrick stepped down from the Board. in hus role as Life President he 1s paid a fee of £50,000 and

15 alse provided with a chauffeur and personal assistant, and reimbursed for expenses incurred (at a cost of £103.679 for 2019) The total
costs incurred are therefore £153.679

Payments for loss of office (qudited)
There were no payments for loss of office made in the year

Non-Executive Directors (audited)

Lesle Van de Walle was appointed as Chairman from 1 March 2019 The Committee considered the size and scope of the role and the
relevant market data and it was determined that it was necessary and appropriate o set the fee level for the new Chairman at £220.000
(an increase from the previous level of £190.000 which had been in effect from 1 February 2017)

The fees for the other Non-Executive Director roles were not reviewed during 2019, with the last increase having been effective frem
1 February 2017, These current fee levels are as follows

*+ Non-Executive base fee. £50,000

* Audit Committee Char additional £10,000

* Remuneration Committee Chair additional £10,000

* Senior Independent Director additional £10,000

Each of the Non-Executive Directors seeking re-election at our 2020 AGM currentty have an unexpired term of at least two years on their
letters of appointment.

Single figure of remuneration (audited)
The table below sets out the break down of the single total figure of remuneration for each Non-Executive Director in 2019, along with
comparable figures from 2018

2019 fees 2018 fees

£ £

DP Pritchard {(Acting Chairman frem 1 February 2018, stepped down from 28 February 2019) 79,167 150,000
ART Ballingal (stepped down 1 February 2019} 16,647 50,000
TP Hillgarth 50,000 50.000
| Joss (Remuneration Committee Chair from 1 February 2018} 460,000 48,333
TG Collier (appeinted 21 November 2017, stepped down from 2 April 2019) 24,762 43182
K| Beatty (appointed 21 November 2017, stepped down from 2 Apnl 2019} 24,762 43182
| Babiak (apponted 1 December 2017, Senior Independent Director from 18 September 2019 50,357 41.667
LM Tillbian (appeinted 1 january 2018) 50,000 37.500
C Day (appointed 5 March 2018, Audit Committee Chair from 16 May 2018) 40,000 32.614
L Van de Walle (appointed Chairman from 1 March 2019) 128,333 -
T Pennington {appointed 1 September 2019) 4,147 -
Total 548,215 496,478

1 Restated from 2018 Directors’ Remureration Report where o figure of £41 867 was disclosed whick did rot rclude the Remuneration Committee Chanr fee applicable from 1 February 2018

Directors’ interests (audited)

Sharehelding guidelines for the Non-Executive Directors were introduced last year, equal to 100% of annual fees The interests of the
Non-Executive Directors in the ardinary shares of the Company as at 30 September 2019 {or date of stepping down from the Beard, if
aarlier) were as follows.

Number of ordinary shares
DPF Pritchard 16.644
ART Ballingal -
TP Hillgarth 4,000
1 joss -
TG Colijer -
K| Beatty —
| Babiak 5.404
LM Tilkoian -
C Day -
L Van de Walle 3.500
T Pennington -

There have been no changes in the shareholdings of the Non-Executive Directors between 30 September 2019 and the date of this
Annual Report and Accounts
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Other performance measures and disclosures (unaudited)

Comparison of overall performance and remuneration of the CEC

The chart below compares the Company s total shareholder return with the FTSE 250 index over the past 10 financial years. For these
purposes. sharehaolder return represents the theoretical growth in value of a sharehelding over a specific peried, assuming that
dividends are reinvested to purchase additional shares The Company 1s @ constituent of the FTSE 250 index and, accordingly. this is
considered to be the most appropriate benchmark

Total shareholders’ return: %

30 Sep 2009 30 Sep 2010 30 Sep 2011 30 Sep 2012 30 Sep 2013 30 Sep 2014 30 Sep 2016 30 Sep 2016 30 Sep 2017 30 Sep 2018 30 Sep 2019

® Company ® FTSE 250

The table below sets out the remuneration data for Birectors undertaking the role of CEQ duning each of the last 10 years. The single
figure of remuneration for the CEQ set out below includes salary. benefits, Company pensien contributions and, where applicable, leng-
term incentives

CEO 2010 20M 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
Single figure of A Rashbass - - - - - - 1780 1627 1,598 1.673
remuneration CHC Fordham - - - 1.647 895 576 - - - -
(£000) PR Ensor 3977 4397 4857 - - - - - - -
Annual incentive A Rashbass! - - - - - - 85% 1% 60% 60%
payment CHC Fordham? - - - 58% 52% 7% - - - -
(% of maximum) PR Ensor? 82% 82% 82% - - - - - - -
Long-term incentive A Rashbass - - - - - - - - - 0%
vesting CHC Fordham - - - - - - - - - -
(% of maximumj PR Ensor - - 100%  100% - - - - - -

i Andrew Rashbass was awarded an annual borus urder the Group's Annual Borus Plan

2 Chnstopher Fordham and Richard Ensor were paid under the Group s profit share scheme The profit share scheme had no cerg the maximum annual vanable element of remuneration was
tnerefore calculated assuming that orofits achieved had beer 20% higher

Percentage change in remuneration of the CEQ

The table below llustrates the change in remuneration for the CEO compared with the change in remuneration of the average
employee acress the Group at constant currency The Directors feel that this group of people is the most appropriate as a comparater
because employee pay is determined anrually by the Committee at the same bme as that of the CEO and under the same ecenomic
circumstances. The Directors believe this demonstrates the best ink between the changes in average remuneration compared to the
CECG. The negative change in the average employee salary and incentives from 2018 to 2019 is largely due to M&A activity. in particular
the acquisition of BoardEx and the Deal during 2019 which resulted in acquinng employees in a number of new markets.

% change 2018 to 2019

Salary Benefits Incentives
CEQ remuneration 0% 79% C.2)%
Average employes @)% 1% (3%

Remuneration in the above table excludes long-term incentive payments and pension benefits There is no change in salary from 2018 for
the CEO remuneration as Andrew Rashbass did not recene an increase in the April 2019 salary review
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Directors’ Remuneration Report continued

Relative importance of spend on pay

The table below illustrates the Company's spend on employee pay in companson ta profits and distnbutions to shareholders. These are
deemed by the Directors to be the significant distnbutions made during the year and will assist stakeholders in understanding the relative
importance of spend on pay. For this purpose. total employee pay includes salarnes profit shares and bonuses

2019 2018
E£m £m Increase
Totai employee pay' 153.6 1590 (3 4%
Dmdends paid 35.6 344 35%
104.6 P3G 4 8%

Adjusted profit before tax:

1 Tatalemployee pay 3 aftectea oy foregn exchange translaton as rore than nad of the Sroup s emipleyees are based cutsiae of tne LI

2 Arzconaibation of adjusted profit befose tax s te* cut o poge 17

Remuneration Committee

The Committee meets four tmes a year and additionally as required It is responsible for determining the contract terms, remuneration
and other benefits of Executive Directors, including performance-related incentives. The Committee reviews the remuneration and
incentive plans of the Executive Directors and other key employees as well as locking at the remuneration costs and policies of the Group
as a whole The Committee's terms of reference are available on the Company's website

During 2019, the Committee met six times and informal discussions were held at other times during the year Information on meeting
attendance is provided on page 72.

Committee members

David Pritchard {resigned 28 February 2019)

Imogen joss (appeinted to the Committee on 10 November 2017, became Committee Chair on 1 February 2018)
Kevin Beatty (appeinted to the Committee on 21 November 2017, resigned 2 April 2019)

Leslie Van de Walle (appointed to the Committee on 2 April 2019)

Lorna Tilkian (appointed to the Committee on 2 Aprit 2019)

Tim Pennington {appointed to the Committee on 1 October 2019)

All members of the Committee are Non-Executive Directors of the Company For the year under review, the Committee also sought
advice and information from the Company's Chief Executive Officer. Chief Financial Officer. the Global HR Director and the Global
Reward Director. The Committee’s terms of reference permit its members to obtain professional advice on any matter Guidance was
sought from Deloitte on an ad hoc basis and fees of £4.890 were payable for this advice, with fees determined based on time ncurred.
Deloitte was appointed in 2013 by the Committee Deloitte 15 a founding member of the Remuneration Consultants Group and voluntarily
operates under the code of conduct In relation to executive remuneration consulting n the UK. Deloitte also provides international tax
advice to the Company. The Committee is satisfied as to the independent nature of their advice

Committee Annual Activity—201%

October 2018
* Market Update

+ 2018 Bonus = Performance against targets

« 2019 Bonus Measures

* 2018 PSP Performance Measuras

¢ 2018 Remuneration Report

* Committee Terms of Reference
November 2018

* Market Update

= 2018 Bonus—GMB Outcomes

* 2018 Profit Share Plan —Previous CFO
+ 2019 Bonus Targets & Objectives
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November 2018 continued
« 2018 PSP Performance Targets

+ 2018 PSP Awards

+ Approval of Directors’
Remuneration Report

* 2018 Bonus CFOQ Qutcome
* 2019 CFO Objectives

* 2018 Bonus CEO Quicome
« 2019 CEO Objectives
January 2019

* Approval of fees for new Chairman

March 2019
¢ Market Update

+ 2019 Salary Review
« PSP Awards

July 2019

* Market Update

* PSP Performance Measure
Tracking Update

* Financial Year End Planner
September 2019

» 2020 Beonus Performance Measures



Implementation of the Remuneration Policy in 2020

Basic salary Directors’ salanes from 1 Qctober 2019 are
Andrew Rashbass £750.000
Wendy Pallot £363,875
Salares will be reviewed :n Apnl 2020
Pensions and benefits No change to prior year for Andrew Rashbass or Wendy Pallot

Annval incentive (bonus) The weightings for the financial performarce measures wilt remain at 75% and indvidual objectives ot 25%
for Andrew Rashbass and Wendy Pallot urder the Annuai Benus Plan in 2020 However, underlying revenue
growth will be introduced as a new financial measure with a 37 5% weighting. with adjusted PBT reducing
to a 37 5% weighting
The Committee considers that disclosing the precise targets, which are commeraially sensitive, of the Annual
Bonus Plan would not be in shareholders interests and awards made will be published at the end of the
performance period where pessible

Annual bonus deferral Any amaunt above 100% of salary for Andrew Rashbass and Wendy Pallot will be deferred into nil-cost
aptions for twa years
Long-term incentive The value of the PSP awards due to be granted to Executive Directors in December 2019 will be equivalent to

170% of salary for Andrew Rashbass and 150% of salary for Wendy Pallet
The performance measures attached to these PSP awards are likely to be different from the previous year.
We are currently in the process of consulting major shareholders on these proposals Shareholders will be
fully informed of the cutcome of the consultation and the PSP performance measures decided upon in the
markat announcement of the PSP grants (expected to be in December 2019}, as well as in our 2020 Directors’
Remuneration Report
Directors employed in the UK are eligible to participate in the SAYE

Non-Executive Directors’ fees There 15 no current Intention t@ review Non-Executive Directors’ fees during 2020.

Shareholding requirement Guidelines recommended by the Committee and as indicoted 1n the revised Remuneration Policy are
* Non-Executive Directars 100% of annual fee
* Executive Directors 200% of salary

» Group Management Board 75% of salary

General Meetings —shareholder vote outcame
The table below shows the voting outcome on the resolution on the 2018 Directors’ Remuneration Report at the February 2019 AGM:

Votes for %o Votes against Yo Abstentions

Directors Remuneration Report 82 051,986 82% 18,193,338 18% —

The table below shows the voting outcome for our most recent remuneratian policy vote (set out In our 2017 Directors’ Remuneration
Report) and voted on at the February 2018 AGM

Votes for % Votes against % Abstentions

Remuneration Policy 93,926,490 92% 8. 497 841 8% 20.000

On bkehalf of the Board

Imeogen Joss
Remuneraticn Committee Chair

21 November 2019
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Governance

Directors’ Report

Euromaeney Institutional Investor PLC incorporated in England and
Wales, company number 00954730, with its registered office at 8
Bouverie Street. London, EC4Y 8AX, 1s listed on the London Stock
Exchange and s a constituent of the FTSE 250 and FTSE4Goed
share indices

The Directors Report comprises pages 92 to 94 of this report
(together with the sections of the Annual Report incorporated by
reference) Some of the matters required by legislation have been
included in the Strategic Report (pages 2 to 53) as the Board
considers them te be of strategic importance. particularly future
business developments and principal risks

ltis expected that the Company will continue to operate as the
holding Company of the Group Subsidianes of the Company have
established branches in a number of different countries in which
they operate

Forward-locking statements

Certain statements made in this document are forward-looking
Such statements are based on current expectations and are
subject to @ number of nsks and uncertainties that could cause
actual events or results to differ materially from any expected future
events or results referred to in these forward-locking statements
Unless otherwise required by applicable law. regutation or
accounting standards, the Directors do not undertake any
abligation to update or revise any forward-looking statements,
whether as a result of new information, future developments

or otherwise Nothing in this document shalt be regarded as a
profit forecast

Group results and dividends

The Group profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the
parent amounted to £60 9m (2018 £195 Om) The Board remains
committad to the progressive dividend policy introduced in 2017
which anticipates a dividend pay-out ratio of approximately 40%
of adjusted diluted earnings per share

The Beard is able to recommend a final dividend of 22 3p per
erdinary share (2018 22.30p). payable on i3 February 2020

to shareholders on the register on 2% November 2019 This,
together with the interim dividend of 10 80p per ordinary share
(2018:10 20p). which was declared on 16 May 2019, brings
the total dividend for the year to 33.1p per ordinary share
(2018: 32 50p)

Share capital

The Company's share capital is draided into ordinary shares

of 0 25p each At 30 September 2019, there were 109,249 352
ordinary shares in issue and fully paid During the year. 68.623
ordinary shares of 0.25p each (2017. 79121 ordinary shares)
with an agaregate nominal value of £172 (2018 £198) were
issued following the exercise of share options granted under the
Companry's share incentive schemes for a cash consideration of
£0 52m (2017 £0.64 m) Details of the Company's share capital
are given in note 23 to the Group's Financial Statements.

Employee Share Trust

The Executive Directors of the Company together with other
employees of the Group are potential beneficiaries of the
Euromoney Employee Share Trust and Euromeney ESOP Trust and,
as such, are deemed to be interested in any ordinary shares held
by the trust.

At 30 September 2019, the trust’s shareholding totalled
1.5693.198 shares representing 1 5% of the Company's called-up
ordinary share capital There have been no awards transferred
between 30 September 2017 and the date of this Annual Report
and Accounts
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Voting rights and restrictions on transfer of shares

Each share entitles its holder to one vote at shareholders’

meetings and the right to receive dividends and other distributions
according to the respective nghts and interests attached to the
shares There are no special control nghts attached to them.

The Cempany is not aware of any agreements or control rights
between existing shareholders that may result in restrictions on the
transfer of secunties (shares or loan notes} or on voting nghts

Change of control

There are a number of agreements that take effect, alter or
terminate upon a change of control of the Company. These include
the Group's debt facility agreement with HSBC under which the
bank can demand immediate repayment of outstanding debt
uper a change of control Otherthan this agreement. nene of
these agreements are deemed significant in terms of their potential
impact on the business of the Group as a whole The Company’s
share plans contain provisions that take effect in such an event

but do not entitle participants to a greater interast in the shares of
the Company than created by the initial grant or award under the
relevant plar Details of the Directors’ entitlement to compensation
for loss of office following a takeover or contract termination are
given in the Directors’ Remuneration Report

Autherity te purchase and aliot own shares

Atthe 2019 AGM. the Company did not seek authority from
shareholders to purchase its own shares The Directors were
authorised by shareholders to allot shares up to an aggregate
nominal amount of £181.970 exclusive of the application of
pre-emption rights

Significant shareholdings

The Company had received notifications from the following
shareholders of their direct or indirect shareholding of 3% or more
in the Company’s issued share capital as at 30 September 2019,
This information 1s disclosed pursuant to the Disclosure Guidance
and Transparency Rules and in response to disclosures requested
by the Company No notifications have been disclosed to the
Company in accordance with DTR 5 during the period 3 October
to 21 November 2019

MNature of Date of
Shareholder holding Shareholding Interest  disclosure
Lindsell Train Limited Direct and 16,266 894 14.69% 9 April
Indirect 2019
Herorbridge Indirect  6.263.048 5.73% 3 April
Investment 2019
Management LLP
Majedie Asset Indirect  6.023.481 5.51% 4 Apnl
Management 2019
Limited ~
Standard Life Indirect 3,673,935 360% 2 October
Aberdeen plc ) 2019
Société Générale Direct 3,313,561 323% G April
2019

Termination of Relationship deed

The revised relationship deed entered intec on & December
2016 between the Company and Daily Mail and General Trust
ple the parent company of DMGZ Limited (which superseded
the agreement entered inte on 16 July 2014}, as required by

the Listing Rules. terminated on 2 April 2019 This followed
DMGT s distribution of its shareholding in the Company to
certain of its own shareholders, and therefore ceasing to be a
shareholder The Company had complied with the terms of the
relationship deed



Employees

The performance of our employees has a material impact on

the performance of the Company We therefore operate a robust
recruitment process to ensure we hire the right pecple for the nght
roles Staff retention is equally important and we therefore invest
in group-wide and business-speacific training and development
programmes as well as broader initiatives which are detailed
elsewhers in this report We have alse reviewed staff pay in the
course of the year with the objective of paying staff farly for the
role they perform

We are clear with employees what our expectations are of

them This aids their development and encourages the right
behavicurs within both our company and when our employees are
representing our company We have o Code of Conduct, which
sets out our expectations on ethics Cur staff handbaook sets out
our requirements in relation to use of the Group's IT resources and
how we manage customer data We have policies to help our
employees comply with the law—for example, relating to anti-
bribery and trade sanctions

We have a framework to help employees speak up when they feel
something 1s wrong This may be informally. by seeking to create a
culture where employees feel able to speak to a manager or other
colleague. It may be formally, through the use of our grievance
process. Alternatively. it may be via a third party, through the use of
our Speak Up hotline where concerns can be raised anenymously

Each of the Risk Committee and the Audit & Risk Committee
oversee these various policies and processes, which effectively
form part of our nisk framework.

We want employees to feel vested in the financial performance
of our business, which we do through our different share and
bonus schemes.

We have a duty to look after the safety and wellbeing of our
employees, In accordance with health and safety legislation

We de this in o vanety of ways; we provide an Employee Assistance
Programme. we provide a mental health pathway service, and we
have a confidential Speak Up facility provided independently by
InTouch for all employees globally to report suspected instances of
wrongdoing for investigation and apprepriate action,

We benefit f we can hire, retain. develop and promote employees
from diverse backgrounds, irrespective of gender. race, faith,
disability, sexual orientation or otherwise We treat people equally
both in our hiring processes, our subsequent management of
them and through the facilities we make avarlable to all of our
employees (for example, accessible buildings for disabled staff: a
reflection reom for our employees of faith).

Political denations
No political donations were made during the year (2018 £nil)

Post balance sheet events
Events anising after 30 September 2019 are set out in note 30 to the
Group’s Financial Statements

Going concern

Having assessed the principal risks and the other matters
discussed in connection with the viability statement. the Directors
considet it appropriate to adept the going concern basis of
accounting in preparing this Annual Report and Acceunts

Additional disclosures

Additional information that 1s relevant te this report, and which is
Incorporated by reference into this report. including information
required in accordance with the UK Comparnies Act 2006 and
Listing Rule 9 8 4R, can be located as follows

Corporate Governance Report (pages 56 to 63)
Related party transactiens (note 29)

Wavers of dividends (page 92)

Greenhouse Gas (GHG) reporting (page 37)

Auditor

Each Director confirms that so far as he/she s aware, there is
no relevant audit nformation of which the Company’s auditor is
unaware, and that each of the Directors has taken all the steps
that he/she ought to have taken as a Director to make himself/
herself aware of any relevant audit information and to establish
that the Company's auditor Is aware of the information

A resolution to reappoint PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as the
Company's statutory auditor and to authorise the Audit & Risk
Committee to determing their remuneration will be proposed at the
2020 AGM.

Annual General Meeting

The Company's AGM will be held at the Company’s registered
office at 8 Bouverie Street. London, EC4Y 84X on 28 January 2020
at 9 30 a.m. A separate circular comprising the Notice of Meeting.
together with explanatory notes, accompanies this Annual Report
and Accounts.

Directors

Directors and Dirsctors interasts

The membership of the Board and biegraphical details of
the Directors are given on pages 54 and 55 of the Corperate
Governance Report. The Directors serving on the Board of the
Company during the year were as follows

Darte resigned in the
year {f applicable)

Late appaentad in the

Director year (if applicable)
Jan Babiak

Andrew Ballingal

1 February 2019
2 Apnl 2019
2 April 2019

Kevin Beaotty
Tim Collier
Colin Day
Tristan Hhllgarth.

Imogen Joss

Wendy Pallot

Tim Penrington
David Pritchard
Andrew Rashbass
Lorma Tiloran

Leslie Van de Walle

1 September 2019

28 February 2019

1 March 2019

Details of the interests of the Directors in the ordinary shares of
the Company and of options held by the Directors to subscribe
for ordinary shares in the Company are set out in the Directors’
Remuneraticn Report on pages 72 to 91
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Governance

Directors’ Report continued

Appointment and removal of Directors

The Company's Articles of Association give power to the

Board to appeoint Directors from time to time In addition to the
statutory rights of shareholders to remaove a Director by erdinary
resolution. the Board may also remave a Director where 75% of
the Board gives written notice to such a Director The Articles of
Asscciation themselves may be amended by a special resolution of
the shareholders,

In accordance with the Company's Articles of Association and

the requirements of the Code. all serving Directors. with the
exception of Tristan Hillgarth, offer themselves for election or re-
election at the forthcoming AGM In addition. In accerdance with
the Code. before the election or re-election of a Non-Executive
Director, the Chairman is required to confirm to sharehslders that,
following formal performance evaluation, the Non-Executive
Directors’ performance continues to be sffective and demonstrates
commitment to the role

Directors’ indemnities

A qualifying third-party indemnity (QTPI). as permitted by the
Company's Articles of Association and secticn 232 and 234 of

the Companies Act 2006, has been granted by the Company to
each of its Directors Under the provisions of QTPl the Company
undertakes to indemnify each Director against liability to third
parties {excluding criminal and regulatory penalties) and to pay
Directer's costs as incurred. provided that they arg reimbursed to
the Company if the Director is found guilty or, in an action brought
by the Company, judgment is given against the Director

On behalf of the Board

Tim Bratton
General Counsel & Company Secretary

21 November 2019

Statement of Directors’ responsibilities in respect
of the financial statements

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report
and the financial statements in accordance with applicable law
and regulation

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial
statements for each financial year. Under that law the directors
have prepared the Group financial statements in accordance with
international Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted

by the European Union and Company financial statements in
accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice (United Kingdom Acceunting Standards, comprising FRS
102 The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and
Republic of Ireland’, and applicable law) Under company law the
Directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are
satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of
the Group and Company and of the profit or loss of the Group and
Company for that period In preparing the financial statements. the
Directors are required to.

*» Select suitable accounting policies and then apply
them consistently,

94

Euromoney Institutional Invester PLC [P

= State whether applicable IFRSs as adopted by the European
Union have been followed for the Group financial statements
and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, comprising FRS
102, have been followed for the Company financial statements,
subject to any matenal departures disclosed and explained in
the financial statements,

» Make judgements and accounting astimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and

* Prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis
unless it is Inappreprate to presume that the Group and
Comparny will continue i business

The Directors are alse responsible for safeguarding the assets of
the Group and Company and hence for taking reasonable steps
for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting
records that are sufficient to show and explain the Group and
Company's transactions and disclese with reasonable accuracy
at any time the financial position of the Group and Company
and enable them to ensure that the financial statements and the
Directors’ Remuneration Report comply with the Companies Act
2006 and. as regards the Group financial statements, Article 4 of
the IAS Regulation

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity
of the Company's website Legislation in the United Kingdom
governing the preparation and dissemination of financial
statements may differ from legislabon in other jurisdictions

Diractors’ confirmations

Each of the Directors, whose names and functions are listed on
pages 54 and 55 in the Annval Repert and Accounts confirm that,
to the best of their knowledge

» The Company's Financial Statements, which have been
prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice (Uinited Kingdom Accounting
Standards, comprising FRS102 The Financial Reporting
Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland’,
and applicable law), give a true and fair view of the assets,
liabilities, financial position and profit of the Company:

* The Group Financial Statements. which have been prepared in
accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union, give
a true and fair view of the assets, liabilities, financial position.
profit and cash flows of the Group. and

= The Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report includes a fair
review of the development and performance of the business
and the position of the Group and Company, together with a
description of the principal risks and uncertainties that it faces

On behalf of the Board

(Lusy

Wendy Pallot
Chief Financial Officer

21 November 2019



Independent Auditors’ Report to the members
of Euromoney Institutional Investor PLC

Report on the audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion
In cur opinion

* Euromoney Institutional Invester PLC's Consclidated Financial Statements and Company Accounts (the finanaial statements’) give a
true and fair view of the state of the Group's and of the Company s affairs at 30 September 2019 and of the Group's profit and cash
flows for the year then ended,

* The Consclidated Financial Statements have been properly prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
{IFRSs) us adopted by the European Unian,

* The Company Accounts have been properly prepared in accordance with Untted Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice
(United Kingdom Accounting Standards, compnsing FRS102 The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of
Ireland’. and applicable low). and

* The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and, as regards the
Consolidated Financial Statements, Article 4 of the IAS Regulation

We have audited the financial statements, included within the Annual Report and Acceunts (the ‘Annual Report), which comprise:

the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position and the Company Balance Sheet at 30 September 2019 the Consolidated Income
Statement and the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income, the Consclidated Statement of Cash Flows. and the Consolidated
and Company Statements of Changes in Equity for the year then ended; and the notes to the financial statements, which include a
description of the significant accounting policies

Our opinien is consistent with cur reporting to the Audit & Risk Committes

Basis for opinion
We conducted cur audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (15As (UK)) and applicable taw

Our responsibilities under [SAs (UK) are further described in the auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements Section
of our report We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained 1s sufficient and apprepriate to provide a basis for our opinion

Independence
We remained independent of the Group in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial

statements in the UK, which includes the FRC's Ethical Standard, as applicable to listed public interest entities, and we have fulfilled our -_r|
other ethical responsibiliies in accordance with these reguirements F
=]
To the best of our knowledge and belief, we declare that non-audit services prohibited by the FRC's Ethical Standard were not provided 8_‘
to the Group or the Company. @
a
Cther than those disclosed in note 4 to the Consolidated Finanaial Statements, we have provided no non-audit services to the Group or g
the Company in the period from 1 October 2018 to 30 September 2019 2
- @
Our audit approach
Overview

+ Overalt Group materiatity: £4.0m {2018: £4.0m) based on approximately 5% of statutory profit
before tax from continuing and discontinued operations, adjusted for exceptional items.

* Overall Company materiality £14.2m (2018 £14 5m) based on approximately 1% of total assets.

Materiality

* We conducted work in three key territories being the UK, US and Canada This included
full scope audits at five components with specified precedures performed at a further
four components.

+ Taken together the components at which audit work had been performed accounted for
approximately 81% of the Group's total revenue and 67% of the Group’s statutory profit before tax

Audit scope
from continuing and discontinued operations, adjusted for exceptional items

+ Carrying values of goodwill and acquired intangible assets (Group) and investments in
subsidiaries (Company)

Koy audit

maTla e * Uncertain tax positions (Group)

* Presentation of exceptional tems (Group)

* Restaterments arising from VAT and payroll tax exposures (Group)
* Disposals and discontinued operations (Group)}

* Finance transformation (Group)

» Acquisitien of The Deal LLC {Group)
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Financial Statements

Independent Auditors’ Report to the members
of Euromoney Institutional Investor PLC continued

The scope of cur qudit

As part of designing our audit, we determined matenality and assessed tne nisks of moterial misstatement in the financial statements

In particular, we locked at where the Directors made subjective judgements, for example in respect of significant accounting estimates
that involved making assumptions and considering future events thot are inherently uncertain

Capability of the audit in detecting irregularities, including fraud

Based on our understanding of the Group and the industry in which it operates. we identfied that the principal risks of non-compliance
with laws and regulations related to the failure to comply with international tax legislation and we considered the extent to which
non-compliance might have a matenal effect on the financial statements We also considered those laws and regulations that have a
direct impact on the preparation of the financial statements such as the Companies Act 2006, We evaluated management's incentives
and eppoertunities for fraudulent manipulation of the financial statements (including the risk of override of controls) and determined that
the principal nisks were related to posting journal entries to increase revenue or profits, manipulation of when revenue is recognised.
the classification of exceptional items and management kias in accounting estimates The Group engagement team shared this nsk
assessment with the component avditors so that they could include appropriate audit procedurss in response to such risks in their work.
Audit precedures performed by the Group engagement team and/cr compenent auditors included:

= Discussions with management, internal audit and the Group s legal counsel. including consideration of known or suspected instances
af non-compliance with laws and regulatiens and fraud,

+ Assessment of the Group's whistleblowing facility and matters reported through the facility:

* Evaluating and. where appropriate challenging assumptions and judgements made by management in determining significant
accounting estimates, in particular in reation to impairment of goodwill and Intangible assets, acguisition accounting. the VAT and
payroll tax restatements and uncertain tax positions:

* |dentifying and testing unusual journal entries, In particular jcurnal entries posted with unusual account combinations. and

* |dentifying revenue recognised close to year-end and verifying that the relevant performance oblgations were satisfied

There are inherent limitations in the audit procedures described above and the further removed non-compliance with laws and
regulations is from the svents and transactions reflected in the financial statements, the less likely we would become aware of it Also, the
risk of not detecting a material misstatement due to fraud 1s higher than the nsk of not detecting one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve deliberate concealment by, for example. forgery or intentional misrepresentations. or through collusion

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in the auditors’ professional judgement, were of maost significance in the audit of the financial
staterents of the current peried and include the most significant assessed risks of material misstatement (whether or not due to fraud)
identified by the auditors. including thase which had the greatest effect on the overalt audit strategy: the allocation of resources in the
audit; and directing the efforts of the engagement team These matters. and any comments we make on the results of our procedures
thereon, were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements @s a whole, and in forming our opinion thereen, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters This 1s not a complete list of all risks identified by our audit
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Key audit matter

Heow our sudit addressed the key audit matter

Carrying values of goodwill and acquired intangibles assets
(Group)

Refer to the Audit & Risk Committee report on page 68 and to
note 12 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

At 30 September 2019, the Group had £405 4m (2018 £588 Zm)
of intangible assets, which includes £149 5m (2018 £167 8m)

of acquired intangible assets and £246 3m (2018 £414 7m) of
goodwill Goadwill is tested for impairment annually or mare
frequently if Impairment indicaters exist. Acguired intangible
assets that are amortised are tested for impairment if iImpairment
indicators exist

During the year, the Group recognised a £2 4m impairment
charge for the Centre for Investor Education, which the Group
has closed. In addition, there continues to be challenges wathin
the asset management segment following structural and
regulatory changes in the market, which were considered an
impairment indicator.

The recoverability of goodwill and acquirad intangible assets is
dependent on expected future cash flows from cash generating
units (CGUs). defined as the lowest collection of assets for which
cash inflows are generated largely independently. As permitted
by IAS 36, the Group has reassessed the level at which

goodwill impairment reviews are prepared to groups of CGLs
representing the lowest level at which goodwili 1s monitored for
internal management purposes. This reassessment has resulted
in the iImpairment reviews being performed at the divisional level
There s a risk that performing impairment reviews at this higher
level could mask impairments that would have been present at a
lower level

The cash flow forecasts and related recoverable value
caleulations include a number of significant judgements and
estimates including revenue, profit and cash flow growth rates,
terminal growth rates and discount rates For certain CGUs,
including where businesses are held for sale, fair value less

cost of disposal {rather than value 1in use) has been used as the
methodology to value CGUs Changes in the key assumptions
underpinning these calculations have a significant impact on the
headroom avallable in the impairment calculations

We focused on the change in the level at which geodwill
impairment reviews are performed We reviewed management's
internal business performance reporting to validate the level

at which goodwill s monitered We also considered the
performance of businesses at the stand-alone (rather than
aggregated) CGU level to identify if a materal impairment
wauld have been required at the lower level at the time the
decision was made to reassess CGU groupings

We obtained management’s goodwill impairment model and

tested the reasonableness of key assumptions, including revenue.

profit and cash flow growth rates. terminal growth rates and the
selection of discount rates. We agreed the underlying cash flow
projections to management approved budgets and forecasts
and assessed how these projections are compiled.

Deploying cur valuations experts, we assessed the terminal
growth rate and discount rate appled to each CGU compared
with third party information, past performance, the Group's

cost of capital and relevant risk factors We performed our own
tisk assessment by considering historical performance and
management’s forecasting accuracy by applying any current
year budget shortfalis to future forecasts to highlight the CGUs
with either lower headraom or which are more sensitive to
changes in key assumptions. We compared the multiples implied
by the discounted cash flow modeis to third party sources and to
multiples paid by the Group 1n previous acquistions

We performed our own independent sensitivity analysis to
understand the impact of reasonably possible changes in
management's assumptions on the available headroom

We challenged the significant assumptions, specifically relating
to revenue and profit growth in ight of the individual CGU's past
performance to assess whether the forecasts are achievable.

We checked for any additional impairment triggers in other
businesses through discussions with management. review

of management accounts and Board minutes, review of
external sources including analyst and industry reports and
examining perfoermance of recent acquisitions to identify under-
performing businesses

As a result of our work, we determined that the impairment
charge recognised in 2019 was appropriate. We have assessed
management's disclosures in light of the impairment testing
we performed and we considered the disclosures made to be
reasonable Forthose intangible assets, including goodwill.
where management determined that no impairment was
required and that no additional sensitivity disclosures should
be prowided. we found that these judgements were supported
by reasonable assumptions that would require significant
downside changes before any additional matenal impairment
Was NECessary
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Financial Statements

Independent Auditors’ Report to the members
of Euromoney Institutional Investor PLC continued

Key audit matter

How our audit cddressed the key audit matter

Carrying value of investments in subsidiaries
(Company)

Refer to note & to the Company Accounts.

Investments in subsidiaries of £1 226m (2018 £1232m) are
accounted for at cost less impairment in the Company
Balance Sheet at 30 September 2019.

Investments are tested for mpairment if impairment
indicaters exist If such indicators exist. the recoverable
amaunts of the Investments 1n subsidiaries are estimated
in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss,
if any Any such impairment loss is recognised in the
Income statement

Management judgement is required in the area of
impairment testing, particularly in assessing' () whether
an event has occurred that may indicate that the related
asset values may not be recoverable, (2) whether the
carrying value of an asset can be suppoerted by the
recoverable value, being the higher of foir value less
cost of disposal or the net present value of future cash
flowws which are estimated based on the continued use
of the asset in the business; and (3) key assumptions to
be applied in preparing cash flow projections including
whether these cash flow projections are discounted
using an appropriate rate Changing the assumptions
selected by management to determine the level of any
impairment, Including the discount rates or the growth
rate assumptions in the cash flow projections, could
materially affect the recoverable value determined by
the impairment test ond as a result affect the Company's
financial condition and results of operations.

During the year, an impairment charge of £6 Im was
recorded. largely tnggered by an increase in the
weighted average cost of capital used to discount the
cash flows attributable to the Company's UK investments

We evaluated management's assessment whether any indicators of
impairment existed by comparing the net assets of the Company’s
subsidianes at 30 September 2012 with the Company's investment
carrying values

For those investments where the net assets were lower than the carrying
values, management prepared a valuation based on the discounted
future cash flows of the Company's investments We have tested the
reasonableness of key assumptions. including revenue. profit and cash
flow growth rates. terminal growth rates and the selection of discount
rates management has applied Deploying our valuations experts. we
assessed the terminal growth rate and discount rate applied to each
investment compared with third party information, past performance,
the Group's cost of capital and relevant nsk factors

We compared the multiples implied by the discounted cash flow models
to third party sources and to multiples paid by the Group in previous
acguisitions. We also considered the recoverable values by reference to
the Group's market capitalisation at 30 September 2019

We performed our own independent sensitivity analysis to understand the
impact of reasonably possible changes in management's assumptions
that would result in further impairment. Where applicable, we verified
that the recoverable values of investments were consistent with the
recoverable values of the related CGUs tested for goodwill impairment
purposes as part of the audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements.

As a result of our work, we considered the £6 Im impairment charge to be
appropriate. The remaining carrying values of the investments held by the
Company are suppartable in the context of the Company Accounts taken
as a whole

Uncertain tax positicns (Group)

Refer to the Audit & Risk Committee report on page 69
and to note 8 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

The Group operates in @ complex multinational tax
environment in relation to direct taxes and there are

@ number of open tax matters with tax authorities,
especially in the UK relating to an HMRC enquiry from
2018 and in Canada relating to a challenge by the
Canadian Revenue Agency From time to time. the Group
enters into transactions with complicated accounting and
tax consequences and judgement is required in assessing
the level of provisions needed in respect of uncertain

tax positions.

We evaluated management's judgements in respect of estimates of tax
exposures and contingencias in order to assess the adequacy of the
Group's tax provisions.

In understanding and evaluating management’s judgements, we
deployed our tax specialists and considered third party tax advice
receved by the Group. the status of recent and current tax authority
audits and enquiries, the outturn of previous claims, judgemental
positions taken in tax returns and current year eshmates and
developments in the tax environment.

We refreshed cur independent assessment of tax risks in the Group's
most material markets (UK, US and Canada) and we evaluated the
appropriatenass and completeness of related tax provisions The most
significant uncertain tax positions comprise the Canadian Revenue
Agency's assessment of a foreign currency trade in 2008 and 2009 and a
potential exposure relating to an HMRC enquiry from 2015 The maximum
exposure to the HMRC enqguiry is £10 7m which was fully provided in
2018. The Group has approximately £20m of unprovided exposure for the
challenge by the Canadian Revenue Agency

Deploying cur tax specialists, we reviewed external expert advice
received by the Group in relation to the challenges by the Canadian
Revenue Agency and HMRC and we independently evaluated the likely
outcome of each dispute.

Based on the audit evidence obtained, we considered the level of
previsioning for direct taxes and the related disclosures to be appropriate
in the context of the Consolidated Financial Statements taken as a whole.
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Key audit matter

Heow our audit addressed the key audit matter

Presentation of exceptional items {Group)

Refer to the Audit & Risk Committee report on page 68 and to
note 5 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

The Group continues to present adjusted earnings by making
adjustments for costs and profits which management believes to
be exceptional by virtue of their size and incidence

Dunng the year, the Group presented £3 9m of net income as
exceptional items from continuing and discontinued operations,
primarity compnising profit on disposal of businesses, offset by
goodwill impairments, professional fees associated with the
planned sale of the asset management businesses. and other
exceptional costs.

Given that the Group presents adjusted earmings measures in
addition to 1its statutory results, the classification of these items

as exceptional in the Consolidated Financial Statements was
considered important, particularly considering the nature of
such items, whether they are non-recurring and whether they are
significant in size

We considered the appropnateness of the adjustments made
to statutory profit measures to dernve adjusted profit measures
We understood management’s rationale for classifying items
as exceptional and corsidered whether this is reasonable and
appropriate in arrving at an adjusted profit measure for 2019

Overall. we found that management was even handed and
consistent in its treatment of exceptional credits and debits,

We were satisfied that excluding the one-off net profit on
disposal of businesses from adjusted profit measures was
consistent with the Group's historical practice Where costs were
treated as exceptional, we cansidered whether the Group had
complied with its accounting policy and with the financial hurdle
set by the Directors below which items of cost and income should
not be treated as exceptional

We considered the appropriateness and transparency of the
disclosures in the Consolidated Financial Statements regarding
the nature of the reconciling items between statutory and
ad|usted profit measures, especially in the context of the principle
that financial reporting as a whole should be fair. balanced

and understandable

As a result of our work, we determined that the classification of
exceptional items was reasonable, that the Group's pelicy in
this area has been consistently apptied and that the rationate
for including or excluding items from adjusted profit has been
consistently applied across gains and losses

Disposals and discentinued operations (Group}

Refer to the Audit & Risk Committee report on page 6% and to
note 11 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

In September 2019, the Group announced its plan to explere
the sale of its asset management businesses, comprising BCA
Research, Net Davis Research and [nstitutional Investor (the
‘disposal group’}

At 30 September 2019, the sale was not completed The disposal
group has been presented as a discentinued operation in the
Consclidated Financial Statements

Judgement was required in determining whether the disposal
group met the IFRS 5 eriteria for classification as a discontinued
operation and particularly whether it is highly probable that
shareholder approval will be received and that the sale will
complete within 12 months.

In addition, on 23 October 2018 the Group disposed of the
Mining Indaka business. generating a profit on disposal of
£17 Om

We examined minutes of Board meetings, written
correspondence between the Group and the potential
purchasers and communications to the Group's investors

We considered that the classification of assets and liabilities

in the disposal group as held for sale and the results of the
disposal group as discontinued operations is appropriate and in
accordance with [FRS 5

Furthermore, the carrying value of the assets and liabilities of the
disposal group has been assessed by reference to the expected
proceeds less estimated cost of disposal The estimated proceeds
were based on discounted cash flow models and we agreed the
underlying cash flow projections to budgets and forecasts and
assessed how these projections were compiled We compared
this valuation to the estimated disposal proceeds provided by the
Group's third party advisors. We were satisfied that the net assets
of the disposal group were recoverable at 30 September 2019,

In respect of Mining Indaba, we obtained and reviewed the
sale and purchase agreement to gain an understanding of the
terms of the transachon and recalculated the gain on disposal.
We vouched the disposal costs to invoice and other supporting
evidence. confirming that they were directly attributable to

the disposal
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Financial Statements

Independent Auditors’ Report to the members
of Euromoney Institutional Investor PLC continued

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Restatements arising from VAT and payrolt var espuseree

{Group)

Refer to the Audit & Risk Committee report on pages 68 and 49
and to note | to the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Group identified underpayments to HMRC of payroll

taxes relating to off-payroll employees of £8 2m and to VAT on
recharges between UK subsidiaries of £11 3m Management has
determined that the underpayments related to prior perieds and
that comparative financial infformation therefore needs to be
restated to properly reflect the quantum of the exposure in each
prior pericd

Management judgement s required In estimating the potential
exposures including estimating the amount of penalties and
interest that could be incurred and the look-back period

that will be applied for both matters in respect of the payroll
tax exposure, judgement is required in determining which
contractors will be classified as off-payrall employees and
whether the listing of at-risk contracters is complste

Deploying cur indirect tax experts, we assessed the likelhood of
the VAT exposure crystallising and assessed the reasonableness
of managements quantification of the exposure including
assessing whether interest and penalties should be applied in
determining the provision We reviewed related correspondence
with management's third party advisors and with HMRC

I order to assess the nsk of further VAT exposures. we obtained
and reviewed the VAT returns for UK sussidiaries and tested
management s reconciliation of these returns to the underlying
books and records. We reviewed the returns and understood
management's processes for determining the VAT treatment of
judgemental items We considered what UK subsidiaries were
not part of the UKVAT group and the economic activity in those
subsidiaries to determine if additional VAT exposures existed

We substantively tested amounts paid to contracters to inveoices,
cash payments and contracts to assess the accuracy of the data
used to estimate the payroll tax provisien and we performed
keyword searches of transactional level data to verify the
completeness of identified contracters

Leploying our employment tax experts. we assessed the
period of ime for caleulating the payroll tax exposure and

the methodology applied by management to estimate the
exposure We also considered the reasonableness of the
interest and penalty component of the provision by reference to
statutory guidelines

For both matters. we have evaluated the inputs and advice
from third party experts engaged by the Company to support
management's estimate of each exposure

Since both matters are material and relote to prior periods, we
considered management’s decision to restate the comparative
financial information to be appropnate

As a result of our work, we considered the £19.5m provision
for the VAT and payroll tax exposures to be appropriate.

We have reviewed the appropriateness of the disclosures

in the Consolidated Financial Statements regarding the key
assumptions used to determine the provisions and explaining
the restatement.

Finance transformaticn (Group)

The Group 15 Inthe midst of a period of significant change with
the continued roll-out of a new Enterprise Resource Planning
{ERP) system. The ERP implementabon programme continued in
2019 with certain UK and North American businesses going live.

This change represents a risk as controls and processes that
hove been established and embedded over a number of years
are changed and migrated to the new ERP environment There is
an increased nsk of break-dewn in internal centrol during

the transition.

In addition, there is a risk that data is not migrated accurately
between systems which could result in misstatements

We evaluated the controls in place to extract, transform and load
data from legacy systems to the new ERF system including testing
balance sheet reconciliations for migrating entities to identify any
residual migration issues. We assessed the design and operation
of the new ERP’s automated functionality and the restrictions
designed in relation of segregation of duties

Where issues were identfied. we performed additional
substantive testing to address the residual nisk. In the year of
migration. we maintained a substantive rather than controls
based audit approach Based on our work, we did not identify
any material misstatements as a result of the impact of finance
transformation activities in 2019.
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Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Acquisition of The Deal LLC (Group)

Refer to the Audit & Risk Committee report on page 69 and to
note 15 to the Conscolidated Financial Statements.

On 14 February 2019, the Group acquired 100% of the equity
share capital of The Deal LLC comprising BeardEx. an executive
profiling and relationship-mapping platform and The Deal,

a source of data, news and inteligence on mergers and
acquisitions activist investing, private equity and restructuring,
for £72.5m A provisional purchase price allocation exercise has
been performed by management, assisted by an external expert

The primary element of the valuation exercise assessed

the fair value of identifiable intangible assets in the form of
trade name (E3 Om). customer relationships (£36 8m) and
databases (£4.2m). Goodwill of £27 &m was recogrused as a
result of the acquisition Judgement was required in identifying
and valuing these acquired intangible assets and goodwaill
and in determining the valuation of the other assets and
liabilities acquired

We obtained and reviewed the sale and purchase agreement
(SPA) and due diligence reports to gain an understanding of the
key terms of (and business ratienale for) the acguisition

In testing the valuation of the Intangible assets acquired, we
considered whether the identified intangible assets were
appropriate by reference to the SPA. due diligence reports and
other supporting documentation

Deploying our valuahons experts, we engaged with
management and with management’s third party expert to
assess the methodology employed for caleulating the fair values
of the assets and liabilities and the appropriateness of the key
assumptions used, including discount rates

We checked that the material fair volue adjustments to the
acquired net assets were consistent with the accounting
standard requirements. Based on the evidence obtained.
we did not identify any indication that the fair value
adjustments identified by management were inappropriate
or that material fair value adjustments were omitted from
management’s assessment

We performed certain procedures on the opening balance sheet
acquired by the Group We reviewed management’s analysis

of the impacts of the differences between The Deal LLC's
accounting policies and the Group's accounting policies and
noted no matenal differences

We read the disclosures in the Consolidated Financial
Statements to satisfy ourselves that they are in line with the
requirements of the relevant accounting standards
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Finencial Statements

Independent Auditors’ Report to the members
of Euromoney Institutional Investor PLC continued

How we tailored the audit scope

We tailored the scope of our audit to ensure that we performed enough werk to be able to give an opinien an the financial statements
as a whole, taking Into account the structure of the Greup and the Company, the industry in which they operate and the accounting
processes and controls

The Consclidated Financial Statements are a consolidation of 56 reporting units each of which 1s considered to be a component.
We identified five components in the UK. US and Canada that required a full scope audit due to their size Audit procedures over
specific financial statement line items were performed at a further four components in the UK and US to give sufficient audit coverage

In establishing the overall approach to the Group audit, we determined the type of work that needed to be performed at the
components by us, as the Group audit tearn. or by companent auditors within PwC UK and from other PwC network firms operating
under our instruction. Where the work was performed by component auditors, we determined the level of involvement we needed to
have in the audit work at those reparting units to be able to conclude whether sufficient appropriate auart evidence had been obtained
as a basis for our opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements as a wnole

We performed full scope audits in respect of Euromoney Trading (UK), Euromaney Global {UK). Institutional Investor (LS), BCA Research
(Canada) and RISI (US), which, in our view, required a full scope audit due to their size

We performed audit procedures over specific financial statement line items at Tipall (LK) over property. plant and equipment and
related dilepidation provisions, at Information Management Network (US) over revenue. accounts recevable and contract labilities
and at Furomoney Canada and Fantfoot (both UK) over cash and cash equivalents This ensurad that sufficient and appropriate audrt
procedures were performed to achieve sufficient coverage over these financial statement line items

In addition to instructing and reviewing the reporting frem cur component audit teams. we conducted visits to our in-scope components
in the US and Canada, which included file reviews and attendance at key meetings with local management We also had regular
dialogue with component teams throughout the year

The Group consolidation. financial statement disclosures and corporate functions were audited by the Group audit team. This ncluded
our work over goodwill and intangible assets. acquisitions and disposals. treasury, post-retirement benefits and tax.

Taken together. the components and corporate functions where we conducted audit procedures accounted for approximately 81%
of the Group's total revenue and 67% of the Group's statutory profit before tax from cortinuing and discontinued operations, adjusted
for exceptional items. This provided the evidence we neaded for our opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements taken as a
whole This was before considenng the contribution to our audit evidence from performing audit work at the Group level. including
disaggregated analytical review procedures that cover certain of the Group's smaller and lower risk components, which were not
directly included in our Group audit scope

Materiality

The scope of cur audit was influenced by our application of materiality We set certain quantitative threshoids for materiality These,
together with qualitative considerations. helped us to determine the scope of our audit and the nature, timing and extent of cur
audit procedures on the individual financial statement line items and disclosures and in evaluating the effect of misstatements, both
individually and in aggregate on the financial statements as a whole

Based on our professional judaement, we determined matenality for the financial statements as a whole as follows

Consolidated Financial Statements Company Accounts
Overall materiality  £4.0m (2018 £4 Om). £14.2m (2018 £14 5m).
How we Approximately 5% of statutory profit before tax from continuing and Approximately 1% of total assets
determined it discontinued operations, adjusted for exceptional items.
Rationale for The Group's principal measure of earnings comprises ad|usted Based on cur prafessional
benchmark operating profit. which adjusts statutoery profit for a number of iIncome  judgement. total assets is an
applied and expenditure items. Management uses this measure as it believes appropriate measure to assess the
that it eliminates the velatility inherent in exceptional items We have performance of the Company and
taken this measure Into account in determining our matenality. except 15 a generally accepted auditing
that we have not adjusted profit before tax to add back amertisation benchmark for holding companies.

of acquired intangible assets. share of results in associates and joint
ventures or net finance costs as in our view these are recurring items
which do not introduce volatility to the Group's earnings

The asset management businesses that are classified as discontinued
operations contributed a full year's results and remainad part of the
Group at 30 September 2019 In our view. 1t is therefore appropriate to
continue to take the profit from discontinued operations into account
when determining our materiality
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For each component in the scope of our Group cudit. we allocated a matenality that is less than our overall Group matericlity The range
of matenalty allocoted across components was between £0 5m and £3.1m Certain compoenents were auvdited to o local statutory

audit materiality that was alse less than our overall Group materality allocations We agreed with the Audit & Risk Committee that we
would report to them misstatements ident fiea duning cur audit above £0 2m (Group audit) 2018 £0 2m) and £0 2m (Company audit)
(2018 £0 2m) os well as misstatements below those amecunts that in our view warranted reporting for qualitative reasons

Geing concern
In accordance with 15As (UK) we report as follows

Reporting obligation Cutcame

We are required to report if we have anything matenal to add or draw attention We have nothing material to add or to draw
to in respect of the Directors’ statement in the financial statements aboutwhether  attention to

the Directors considered 1t appropriate to adopt the going concern basis of
accounting in preparing the financial statements and the Directors’ identification
of any material uncertainties to the Group's and the Company's ability to continue
as a going concern over a period of at least twelve months from the date of
approval of the financial statemenits.

Heowever, because not all future events or
conditions can be predicted, this statement

15 net a guarantes as to the Group's and
Company's ability to continue as a geing
concern For example. the terms on which

the United Kingdom may withdraw from the
European Union are not clear and itis difficult
to evaluate all of the potential implications on
the Group's trade. customers, suppliers and the
wider economy

We are required to report if the Directors statement relating to Going Concern We have nothing to report
in accordance with Listing Rule 9.8 6R(3) is materially inconsistent with our
knowledge obtained in the audit.

Reporting on other information

The other information comprises all of the information in the Annual Report other than the financial statements and cur quditors’ report
thereon The Directors are responsible for the other information. Qur ocpinion on the financial statements does not cover the other
information and. accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion or. except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in this report, any
farm of assurance thereon

In connection with cur audit of the financial statements, our responsibility 1s to read the other information and, in doing se. consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise
appears to be matenally misstated If we identify an apparent material inconsistency or material misstatement. we are required to
perform procedures to conclude whether there is a material misstatement of the financial statemeants or a material misstatement of the
other infermation if, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a matenal misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact We have nothing to report based on these responsibilities.

n
=]
o
P~
[
a
=
@
2
B
3
)
3
s
w

With respect to the Strategic Report and Directors’ Report. we also considered whether the disclosures required by the UK Companies
Act 2006 have been included

Based on the responsibilities described above and our work undertaken in the course of the audit. the Companias Act 2006 (CAO6). ISAs
(UK) and the Listing Rules of the Financial Conduct Authority (FCA) require us also to repart certain opinions and matters as described
below {required by I15As (UK} unless otherwise stated)

Euromoney Institutional Investor PLC A 4! e arb e A i Sl 103



Financial Statements

Independent Auditors’ Report to the members
of Euromoney Institutional Investor PLC continued

Strategic Report and Directors’ Report

In our epinion based on the work undertaken in the course of the nudit, the information given in the Strategic Report and Directors’
Report for the year ended 30 September 2019 1s consistent with the financial statements and has been prepared in accordance with
applicable legal requirements. {CAOS)

In light of the knowledge and understanding of the Group and Company and their environment obtained in the course of the audit.
we did not identify any material misstatements in the Strategic Report and Directors’ Report (CA06)

The Directors’ assessment of the prospects of the Grove and of the wrnincipal tishs that would threaten the selvency or liquidity of
the Group

We have nothing material to add or draw attention to regarding

* The Directors’ cenfirmation on page 94 of the Annual Report that they have carried out a rebust assessment of the principal nisks
facing the Group, including those that would threaten its business model, future performance, solvency or liguidity;

* The disclosures in the Annual Report that describe those nisks and explam how they are being managed or mitigated: and

* The Directors’ explonation on page 53 of the Annual Report as to how they have assessed the prospects of the Group. over what
period they have done so and why they cansider that period to be appropniate. and their statement as to whether they have a
reasonable expectation that the Group will be able to continue in operation and meet its liabilites as they fall due over the peried
of their assessment, including any related disclosures drawing attention to any necessary qualfications or assumptions.

We have nothing to repert having performed a review of the Directors’ statement that they have carried out a robust assessment of
the principal nisks facing the Group and statement in relation to the longer-term viability of the Group Cur review was substantially
less in scope than an audit and only consisted of making inquiries and considering the Directors’ process supporting their statements;
checking that the statements are in atignment with the relevant provisiens of the UK Carporate Governance Code (the ‘Code?). and
considering whether the statements are consistent with the knowledge and understanding of the Group and Company and their
environment obtained in the course of the audit {(Listing Rules)

Cther Code provisions
We have nothing to repert in respect of our responsibility to report when

* The statement given by the Directors on page 61 that they consider the Annual Report taken as a whole to be farr, balanced and
understandable and provides the information necessary for the members to assess the Group's and Company's position and
performance, business model and strategy is materially iInconsistent with our knowledge of the Group and Company obtained in
the course of performing ocur audit.

* The Section of the Annual Report on page 64 to 69 describing the work of the Audit & Risk Commiittee dees not appropriately
address matters communicated by us to the Audit & Risk Commiittee, and

* The Directors’ statement relating to the Companry’s compliance with the Code does not properly disclose a departure from a
relevant provision of the Code specified, under the Listing Rules, for review by the auditors.

Directers’ Remuneration

In our opinion. the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited has been properly prepared in accordance with the
Companies Act 2006 (CADE)
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Responsibilities of the Directors for the financial statements

Responsibilities of the Directors for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the Staternent of Directors’ responsibilities set out on page 94, the Directors are responsible for the preparation
of the financial statements in accordance with the applicable framework and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view

The Directors are aiso responsible for such internal control as they determine i1s necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from matenal misstatement, whether due to fraud or error

In preparing the financial statements. the Directors are responsible for assessing the Group's and the Company's ability to continue as a
geing cencern, disclosing as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
Directors ether intend to liquidate the Group or the Company or ta cease operations. or have no realistic alternative but te do so

Auditors’ respensibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Gur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the finanaial statements as @ whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and 1o 1ssue an auditors report that includes cur opinion. Reasonable assurance is a

high level of assurance. but s net @ guarantee that an audit conducted in accerdance with 1ISAs (UK) will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered materialif, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasenably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Afurther description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financiat statements s located on the FRC's website at: www.fre org.uk/
auditors and delete responsibilities This description forms part of our Auditors’ Report

Use of this report

This report. including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the Company's members as a body in accordance with Chapter
3 of Part16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose We do not. in giving these opinions, accept or assume responsibility for
any cther purpose or to any other persan to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by
our prior consent in writing

Other required reporting

Companies Act 2006 exception reporting
Under the Companies Act 2006, we are required to report to you if. in our opinion.

* We have not received all the infermation and explanations we require for our audit, or

* Adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Company or returns adeqguate for our audit have not been receved from
branches not visted by us, or

= Certain disclosures of Directors remuneration specified by law are not made; or

* The Company Accounts and the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited are notin agreement with the
accounting records and returns
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We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility

Appointment

Following the recommendation of the Audit Commiittee. we were appointed by the members on 29 January 2015 to audit the financial
statements for the year ended 30 September 2015 and subsequent financial periods The pericd of total uninterrupted engagement is five
years, covering the years ended 30 September 2015 to 30 September 2019

Giles Hannam (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCocpers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutery Auditors
London

21 November 2019
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Financial Statements

Consolidated Income Statement
for the year ended 30 September 2019

Restated
2019 2018
Notes £000 £000
CONTINUING OPERATIONS B B
Revenue 3 256,051 244 825
Operating profit before acquired intangible amortisation and exceptional items 3 38,514 39 945
Acguired intangible amortisation T 12 (14,215) a1.950)
Exceptional items B ) 5 6,350 79,910
Operating profit - 34 30,649 107.865
Share of results In associates and joint ventures 14 (88} 157
lzrwncmce Income o T o o 7 1,873 5248
Finance expense B 7 (2,983) (6,454)
Net finance costs 7 1.110) (1.206)
Profit before tax 3 29,451 106 816
Tax expense on proft - s (9.317) (41.358)
Profit for the year from continuing operations o 3 20,134 65,458
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS -
Profit for the year from discontinued operations B o N 41,059 129 685
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 61,193 195143
Attributable to: o
Equity holders of the parent - - 60,929 195 002
Equity non-controlling interests ] 264 139
i 61,193 195,143
Earnings per share B
From continuing operations B
Basic LY 18.5p 60 8p
__Diluted o 10 18.5p 607p
From continuing and discontinued operations T B .
Basic 10 56.6p 181 5p
Diluted 10 56.6p 181.3p
Dividend per share (including proposed dvidends) T 9 33.1p 32.5p

A detailed reconciliation of the Group's statutory results to the adjusted and underlying results is set out on pages 15018,

The 2018 Consolidated Income Statement has been restated as detailed in note 1
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 30 September 2019

Restated
2019 2018
£000 £000
Profit for the year N S o 61,193 195143
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
Change in fair value of cash flow heageas (5.061) b
Transfer of losses/(gains) on cash flow nedges from fair value reserves to Income Statement
Foreign exchange losses/(gains) in revenue 3,483 {.037)
Foreign exchange losses/(gans) in adrministrative expenses 361 (409)
Gauns on interest rate SWOps to hedge interest on committed borrowings - (2121}
Net exchange differences on translation of net investments in overseas subsidiary undertakings 22,644 24,311
Net exchange differences on foreign currency loans o o 1,524 (5.642)
Translation reserves recycled to Income Statement - 8250
Farr value remeasurement 213 -
Tax on items that may be reclassified o - 630
ltems that will not be reclassified te profit or loss:
Actuanal (lesses)/gains on defined benefit pension schemes R (5,175) 6.495
Tax credit/{charge) on actuanal (lesses)/gains on defined benefit pension schemes L 880 (1104
Other comprehensive income for the year 20,787 28 662
Total comprehensive income for the year 81,980 223.605
Continuing operations o 7,629 130.584
Discontinued operations 74,351 93.221
Total comprehensive income for the year 81,980 223,805
Attributable to: i B B
Equity holders of the parent 81,716 223,830
Equity nen-controlling interests 264 (25)
s 81,980 223,805
Euromoney Institutional Investor PLC © 00 v "L vrl s s v s 20 107
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Financial Statements

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

as at 30 September 2019
T Restated
Restated 1 Qctober
2019 208 2017
Notes £000 £000 £000
Non-current assets .
Intangible assets
Goodwill - 12 246,281 14722 399,971
Other intangible assets ] B 12 159,140 173,503 193 991
Property. plant and equipment EE 15,294 16,112 17,235
Investment In associates and jomnt venitures 14 5,27 715 26,820
Other equity investments B 14 - 3.546 3.546
Convertible loan note B 19 3,759 24677 2,503
Deferred cons:deration B 25 - 470 1.570
Deferred tax assets - » 2,232 2178 2,965
Retirement benefit asset 27 1,511 1937 —
Other non-current assets 7 317 583 929
Derivative financial instruments 19 93 55 662
433,898 616,498 4650192
Current assets o
Trade and other receivables 16 48,955 68.285 64.483
Contract assets o 1,457 - -
Deferred consideraten .~~~ N 25 - 650 419
Currentincome tax assets L 4,362 4.605 SN2
Cash and cash equivaient's h 19 49,751 78273 4426
Derivative finanaial instrurnents 5 19 219 3 2,686
Total assets of businesses held for sale 1 292,356 13.719 50,671
397,100 165 663 127 797
Current liakilities _ - o
Acquisition commitments . 25 {786) &7 (2.504)
Deferred consideration . ~ T 25 38) (209) (350)
Trade and other payables o, (43,929) (44 931 (36.452)
Current income tax liabilites h 06,564) 31.016) a6.117)
Group relief payable B a o - - (387)
Accruals ) o (48,562) (64,143) (67.819)
Deferred income and contract liabilties 18 (87,150) (17.088) (113.487)
Derivative financial instrurments 19 {3,578) (2.424) (1.001)
Provisions o 21 785y (2483 (337)
Total labilities of businesses held for sale 1 (71,534) ] (.994) (29 998)
(273,226) {262150) (277.852)
Net current assets /(liabilitigs) 123,874 (96.487) (150,055)
Total assets less current liabilities o 557,772 520,01 500137
Non-current liabilities - )
Acquisition commitments B 25 (1,640) (175) (3.221)
Deferred consideration . o N 25 - (125) -
Borrawings - - (146 .893)
COther non-current liabilities (227) (1,348 (486)
Deferred income and contract labilities - 18 0,278) (3.316) (3.491)
Deferred tax liabilities 20 a7.718) (27.553) (23.431
Retirement benefit cbligations ) 27 (7.723y (4.670) (9.954)
Derivative financial instruments B B 19 (293) (166) 230y
Pravisions 21 (2,845) (3.672) (2,600)
(31,724) (41.425) {212.3086)
Net assets 526,048 478 586 2876831
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Restated

Restated 1 Qctober

2019 2018 207

Notes £000 £000 £000

Shareholders' equity

Called up share capital L ] 23 273 273 273
Share premium account 7 __;_:_ 104,306 103.790 103147
Other reserve i e 64,981 64 98] 64,981
Capital redemption reserve - ) 56 56
Own shares o (9,682) (20.462) (21.005)
Reserve for share-based payments 40,120 35.687 36395
Fair value reserve i (27,087) (27.616) (23 071)
Translation reserve B 143,243 119 075 89.269
Retained earnings 218,795 198,802 26628
Equity shareholders' surplus - ) 525,005 478.586 278.673
Equity attributable to non-controlling interests T 1,043 - 3,158
526,048 478 586 267.831

Total equity

The Consolidated Statemenits of Financial Position at 1 October 2017 and 30 September 2018 have been restated as detailed in note 1

The Financial Statements on pages 106 to 165 were approved by the Board of Directors on 21 November 2019 and signed on its behalf by:

YN OV

Andrew Rashbass

Ay

Wendy Pallot
Directors

Euremoney Institutional Investor PLC ~
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Financial Statements

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

for the year ended 30 September 2019

Reserve
far
Share Capital share- Fair MNon-
Share premium  Other redemption Own based value Translation Retained controlling Total
capital account reserve reserve  shares payments  reserve reserve  earnings Total  interests equity

£000 E000 £000 £000 E000 £000 £000 £000 EO0D £000 £000 £000
At] October 2017 (reported) 273 103147 64 981 56 (21.005) 38395 (23.071) 89269 35594 287 639 9158 296,7G7
Restatements (note 1) - - — — — — = - {B.968) (B8.968) -  (B966)
At] October 2017 (restated) 273 103147 649381 56 (21.005) 38395 (23.071) 89269 26628 278473 2158 287.831
Profitfor the year (restatedy - - - - — — — — 195,004 195004 139 195143
Cther comprehensive
(expense)/income for
the year — - — — - — (4545  2734% 6022 26826 (164) 286662
Total comprehensive
(expense)/income for
the year — -~ - - - - (4.545) 27349 201026 223.830 (25) 223.805
De-recognition of non-
contrelling interest and
related liabilities on disposal - — - — - — - - 317 N7 (170) 147
Adjustment arising from
change in non-controlling
interest - - - ~ - - - 2457 6062 8539 (8 539) -
Credit for share-based
payments ~ - - - - - 14 - - - 1.741 - 1,741
Cash dividend paid - - - - - - - - (34.36) (34.361) (424) (34.785)
Exercise of share options — 643 - — 543 (449) - — (94) 643 - 643
Tax relating to iterns taken
directly to equity — - - - — — — — (796) (736) — {796}
At 30 September 2018
(restated) 273 103790 64981 56 (20.462) 39687 (27.616) 119.075 198 802 478,586 — 478.586
Impact of adopting IFRS % — — — — — - {385 — 828 443 — 443
At1 October 2018 (restated) 273 103790 64,9861 56 (20.462) 39.687 (28001 1N9.075 199630 479029 - 479.029
Profit for the year - - - - - — - - 60,929 60,929 264 61,193
Other comprehensive
income/(expense} for
the year - - - - — — 914 24,168  (4,295) 20,787 - 20,787
Total comprehensive
income for the year - - - - - - 914 24,168 56,634 81,716 264 81,980
Recognition of acquisition
commitments - - - - - - - -  (1,429) ,429) - {1,429
Non-controlling interest
recognised on acquisition - - - - - - - - - - 779 779
Credit for share-based
payments - - - - - 883 - - - 883 - 883
Cosh dividend pard - - - - - - - = (35,586) (35,588) - {35,586)
Exercise of share options - 516 - - 780 {450) - - (330) 516 - 5146
Tax relating to items taken
directly to equity - - - — — - - ~ (124} {(124) - 124
At 30 September 2019 273 104,306 64,981 56 (19,682) 40,120 (27,087) 143,243 218,795 525,005 1,043 526,048

The other reserve represents the share premium arising on the shares issued for the purchase of Meatal Bullstin ple in Cctober 2006.

The investment in own shares is held by the Euromoney Employee Share Ownership Trust and Euremoney Employee Share Trust

The trusts waived the rights to receve dividends. Interest and administrative costs are charged to the profit and loss account of the trusts

as incurred and included in the Consclidated Financial Statements

2019 2018

Number Number

Euromoney Employee Share Ownership Trust L 58,976 58.976

Euromoney Employee Share Trust 1,593,198 1.656.575

Total 1,652,174 1715,551

Nominal cost per share (p) } 0.25 025

Historical cost per share (£} n.91 nas

Market value (£000) 24,452 23.091
-”O Euromoney Institutional Investor PLC 1 [N



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
for the year ended 30 September 2019

Restated
2019 2018
Notes £000 £000
Cash fiow from operating activities 77 B
Cperating profit from continuing operations o 3 30,649 107.865
Operating profit from discontinued operations o 11 55,169 53,602
Operating profit 85,838 161.467
Long-term incentive expense L 24 883 1.487
Acguired intangible amortisation ) 12 25,143 22739
Licences and software amortisation T 12 2,099 2,908
Depreciation of property. plont and equipment o 13 2,744 3,356
Loss on disposal of property. plant and equipment 19 &
Loss on disposal of intangible assets T . - 432
Impairmert charges B N 5 2,410 3,048
Amendment to defined benefit pension plan - 5 (1,224) -
Profit on disposal of businesses/associates 5 {16,998} (86.817)
Cost of disposal of discontinued operations —exceptional tems 5 (1,682) -
{Decreuse)/increase in provisions (552) 734
Profit on deemed disposal of associate (687) ~
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital 97,993 109.360
Decrease/(lncrggse) in receivables T 6,122 {7.498)
(Decrease)/increase in payakbles (M,708) 6,698
Cash generated from operations 92,407 108 560
Income taxes paid (38,418) (35.692)
Group reliefl tax pad T i - (229)
Net cash generated from operating activities 53,989 69,639
Investing activities N - o o
Interest received - i T 1,128 950
Purchase of intangible assets o 12 (8,379) (3262)
Purchase of property, plant and eq@pment B B {1,637) (1,703}
Proceeds from dispesal of property. plant cn_c_ﬁ__e_‘gm_pmq;\{ _ ) — . 14 74
Purchase of businesses/subsichary undertakings. net of cash acquired 7 ' ' 15 (68,101 (19.200)
Proceeds from dispesal of businesses o ] ) 15 19,653 124.805
Dradends received from associate 197 -
Proceeds from disposal of associate e L 14 - 100142
Receipt of deferred consideration S i ] 25 9,6N 1.607
Payment of deferred consideration 25 (232) (1.470)
Net cash (used in)/generated from investing activities (47,6848) 201,943
Financing activities
Dividends paid 9 (35,586) (34.361)
Dividends paid t-oh_r-!onncor]trolhng interests T o T - 424)
Interest paid _ (1,287) (3.788)
Cash settlement on interest rate swaps - - 2,091
Issue of new share capital ) T T 23 516 643
Decrease in barrowings ) - (67,740)
Purchase of additional interast in subsidiary under‘(ukm-gs B 15 (87) {10.130)
Net cash used in financing activities {36,454) (213.707)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents V {30,151) 57.875
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year (including held for sale) 78,273 14 272
Effect of foreign exchange rate movements T 1,956 6126
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year (including held for sale) 50,078 78,273
Cash and cash equivalents classified as hald for sale 11 (327) —
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 49,751 78,273
This statement includes discontinued operations (note 11).
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Financial Statements

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 Accounting policies

General information

Euromoney Institutional Investor PLC (the 'Company) s a public
company limited by shares and incerporated in England and
Wales, United Kingdom (LK) The address of the registered office
15 & Bouvene Street, London. EC4Y 8AX. UK

The Consolidated Financial Statements consclidate those of the
Company and its subsidianes (together referred to as the Group?)
and equity account the Group's interest in associates and joint
ventures. The parent Company Accounts present information about
the entity and not about its Group

The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared and
approved by the Directors in accordance with the International
Financial Reperting Standards (IFRS) adopted for use in

the European Union and interpretations issued by the IFRS
Interpretations Committee (IFRS IC) and therefore comply with
Article 4 of the EU IAS Regulation, and with those parts of the
Companes Act 2006 applicable to companies reporting under
IFRS The Company has elected to prepare its Company Accounts
in accerdance with Financial Reparting Standard 102,

The following omendments and interpretations were adopted In
2019. The adoption and impact of these new proncuncements
from 1 October 2018 have been disclosed within this note
Additional disclosure has been given where retevant:

* IFRS 9 Financial Instruments’ — mandatory for reporting periods
starting on or after1 January 2018

= IFR515 Revenue from Contracts with Customers —mandatory for
reporting periods starting on or after 1 January 2018

judgements made by the Directors in the application of those
accounting policies that have a significant effect on the Finanaial
Statements. and estimates with a significant nsk of maternal
adjustment in the next year, are discussed in note 2.

Certain changes to IFRS will be applicable to the Consolidated
Financial Statements in future years Set out below are those which
are considered to be most relevant to the Group

Relevant new standards, amendments and interpretations issued

but effective subsequent to the year end:

* [FRS16 Leases —the mandatory effective date of implementation
is 1 January 2019

* Arnendmentto IFRS 2 'share-based Payments' ~the mandatory
effective date of implementation 1s 1 January 2019

* IFRIC 22 'Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance
Consideration’-the mandatory effective date of implementation
is1January 2019

* IFRIC 23 'Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments —the
mandatory effective date of implementation 1s 1 January 2019

* Amendments to IAS 28 investments in Associates —the
mandatory effective date of implementation is 1 January 2019

= Amendments to IAS 19 ‘Employee Benefits' —the mandatory
effective date of implementation is 1 January 2019

As at 30 September 2019, the following standards have not been
endorsed by the Eurepean Union

* Amendment to definition of a business in IFRS 3 ‘Business
Combinations’ —the mandatory effective date of implementation
i1 January 2020

* Amendments to Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Financial
Instruments —IFRS 9. IAS 39 and IFRS 7 —the mandatory effective
date of implementation is | January 2020
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* Amendments to 1AS 1 Presentation of Finanaial Staterment’ —the
mandatory effective date of implementation is 1 january 2020

* Amendments to |AS &8 ‘Accounting Policies, Changes in
Accounting Estimates and Errors’ —the mandatory effective date
of implementation is 1 January 2020

* Amendments te the Conceptual framework—the mandatory
effective date of implementation is1 January 2020

IFRS ¢ ‘Financial Instruments’

The Group adopted IFRS 9 Financial Instruments’ on 1 October
2018. Differences in the carrying amount of financial assets
and liabilities resulting from the adoption of IFRS 9 have been
recognised in opening reserves as atl October 2018 and
comparatives have not been restated

Classification and measurement of financial assets

Under IFRS 9 financial assets are required to be measured at
either amortised cost. fair value through other comprehensive
income (FVTOCI) or fair value through profit or less (FVTPL)

The impact of IFRS 9 on the Group's financial assets are as follows

= The Group has elected to classify as FVTCC the equity financial
asset which was previously classified as available-for-sale held
at cost less any identified impairment losses in accordance
with IAS 39 IFRS @ allows for an irrevocable election on an
instrument-by-instrument basis to classify equity financial assets
as either FVTOC] or FVTPL. As a result. fair value movements are
now recarded in other comprehensive income Gains or losses
will not be recycled te the income statement on disposal of the
investments, The classification of future purchases of equity
financial investments will be considered on an individual basis
pased on therr merits A fair value loss of £0 Am on transition has
been recognised in opening fair value reserves,

+ The Group classified the convertible loan note asset as FVTPL as
the contractual cash flows are net solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding This asset
was previously measured at cost less any identfied impairment
losses in accordance with |1AS 39. Atthe date of transttion. there
was no difference between the fair value and carrying value of
the asset

*+ The Group has classified its investments in money market
funds included in cash and cash equivalents as FVTPL as the
contractual cash flows are not solely payments of principal and
nterest on the principal amount outstanding. These assets were
previausly classified as amertised cost financial assets under IAS
39. At the date of transition, there was no difference between the
fair value and carrying value of the asset {note 19).

Trade debt provisions

IFRS 2 introduces a new impairment model which requires the
recognition of impairment provisiens based on expected credit
losses (ECL) rather than only incurred credit losses. which was
the case under IAS 39 The IFRS 9 impairment model recognises
anticipated losses evidenced by both historical recovery rates
and ferward-looking indicators. The Group has applied the
simplified approach for trade recevables and contract assets
and recognised the loss allowance at an amount equal to
lifetime expected credit losses The reduction in expected credit
loss allowance of £0 8m at1 Cctober 2018 has been recognised
against opening retained earnings Deferred consideration
recetvables are considered to have low credit risk and the loss
allowance is therefore limited to 12 months expected losses and is
not considered matenal,

Hedge accounting

iIFRS 9 introduces a new hedge accounting model with a
principles-based approach designed to align the accounting
result with the aconomic hedging strategy The Group uses cash



1 Accounting policies continued

flow hedge relationships to hedge its exposure to US dellar and
auroe revenues in its UK businesses and the operction's Canadian
dollar cost base n Canada The Group confirms that its existing
hedge relatienships continue to qualify as hedges upon the
transition to IFRS ¢

Differences between the previcus carrying amount and the restated
carrying amount at 1 October 2018 are disclosed in the restatement
table on page 114

IFRS 15 ‘Revenve from Contracts with Customers’

The Group adopted IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from contracts with customers’
on 1 October 2018 and adopted the modified retrospective method
This method recegnises the cumulative effect of intially applying
IFR315 as an adjustment ta the opening balance sheet in the
period of initial application and comparative periods will not be
adjusted There 1s no material impact on the timing of revenve
recegnition arnsing from the implementation of IFRS15.

Vote revenue and best efforts revenue are treated as vanable
consideration under IFRS 15 This requires the Group to Include

an estimate of the vanable consideration in the transaction price

to the extent that itis highly probable that the related revenue.

if recognised, would not be reversed. Any incremental amounts
would be included in the transaction price once the confirmation
of the vote or the best efforts revenue is given The assessment of
whether an amaount of revenue 1s highly prebable may require
significant judgement. In some Instances, the amount may not be
highly prebable until the Group has receved specific notification of
the amount from the customer or has receved the payment [n other
cases, established relationships, past patterns of behaviour or
informal correspondence with the customer may provide sufficient
evidence that at least an element of revenue is highly probable
before the amount is formally confirmed

Where multiple services are bundled within one contract, revenue
15 allocated to the different performance obligations on a relative
standalone selling price basis and recognised separately when the
performance obligation is satisfied. Where this occurs, the Group's
treatment under IAS 18 was consistent with that under IFRS 15

IFRS15 requires revenue te be recognised over time where
research is unique to a specific customer and where the customer
is obligated to pay for the work performed should it terminate the
contract. Limited cases of custormised research are performed
across the Group whereby revenus is recognised over time in line
with the stage of completon

The Group recognises all costs and commissions to obtain contracts
with a term of one year or less when incurred Commissions which
relate to multi-year contracts are recognised as an asset and
amortised in line with the proportion of the contract's revenue
recognised in the pericd The Group does not have significant

costs and commissions to obtain contracts with a term of more than
one year.

The Group does not adjust the amount of consideration for the

effects of a significant financing component if it expects that the
period between when the customer pays and when the Group
transfers the promised good or service will be one year or less

Amounts recoverable on contracts relating to accrued income

of £1.5m, previously included within trade and other receivables.
have been reclassified to contract assets net of any loss allowance
Deferred income has been reclassified as a contract liability as ot

1 October 2018 (note 18}

The accounting policy for revenue is detailed on page 119

IFRS 14 ‘Leases’

IFRS 16 comes into effect for accounting pericds starting on or
after 1 January 2019 Therefore for the Group. the standard will be
applied from 1 October 2019

The new standdrd will change the way in which leases will be
recognised and disclosed in the Group's Financial Statements

it also brings inte scope contracts which would not previously
have been aceounted for as leases The Group alse enters into
agreements which gives it the rights to specific technology assets
that in the future could be accounted for as leases under the
new standard This change in accounting policies will result in
the recognition of ‘nght of use’ assets and lease liabilities on the
Statement of Financial Position. as well as having an impact

on the Group's Income Statement, by replacing rental expense
with depreciation and introducing a finance expense where the
discount on lease liabilities 1s unwound

Upon transition. the Group will apply the modified retrospective
adoption of the standard. The right of use assets for the leases
will be calculated using a mixture of the 'simplified’ and ‘asset’
methods Under the simplified’ method the right of use asset s
equal to the present volue of future lease payments Under the
‘asset’ method the nght of use asset 1s estimated as if IFRS 16 had
always been applied. The following practical expedients will be
applied on transition

* On initial application. IFRS16 will only apply to contracts that
wauld have previously been classified as leases under IASTY
Leases’,

» The Group has relied on its onerous lease assessment instead
of performing an impairment review: and

= Initial direct costs will be excluded from the measurement of
the right of use asset at the date of initial application

Following transition the Group will also apply the practical
expedient to expense to the Income Statement leases with a term
of 12 months or less, and for assets that would have cost less than
$5.000.

Based on the relevant contracts In place at1 October 2019, an
estimate of IFRS 16's impact on the Group's financial statements for
the year ended 30 September 2020 is as follows

Component of financial statements Estimated impact

Consolidated Statement
of Financial Position at

1 ()Etuber 2019

Right of use assets Increase of £56m

Lease liabilities Increase of £71m

Increase of £1m
Reduction of F12m

Deferred tax assets

Accruals

Retained earnings Reduction of £2m

Consolidated Income Statement
for the year ended 30 September
2020

Charge of £6m
Charge of £2m

Depreciation

Finance expense

Operating prcﬁ improvement of £1m

Profit before tax Loss of FIm

Basis of preparation

The accounts have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, except for certain financial nstruments which have
been measured at fair value Apart from the aforementioned
amendments and interpretations adopted in 2019, the accounting
policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods
presented in these Consolidated Financial Statemenits.
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Financial Statements

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

1 Accounting policies continued

Having assessed the pnncipal risks and the other matters discussed in connection with the vialbility statement. the Directors consider it
appropriate to adopt the going concern basis of accounting In preparnng this Annual Report

Restatements

Discontinued aperations

Following the Group's decision to explore the strotegic options for Asset Management. the segment has met the recogrition criteria of
discontinued operations under IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations and is therefore presented as such
throughout this report In order to comply with this presentation. the 2018 Income Statement disclosures have been re-presented

IFRS % ‘Financial Instruments’

The Group has adopted IFRS 9 using the modified retrospective approach The adjustment on transiticn has therefore been recognised
In opening reserves at1 October 2018. The Group has applied the smplfied approach for trade recevables and contract assets and
recognised the loss allowance at an amount equalto lfetime expected credit losses The reduction in the expected credit toss allowance
of £0 6m at 1 October 2018 has been recognised against opening retained sarmings The Group has elected to classify as FVTOC!

the equity financial asset which was previously classified as available-for-sale held at cost less any identified iImpairment losses in
accordance with IAS 39 A fair value loss of £0.4m on transition has been recagnised in opening fair value reserves Further details for the
adoption of IFRS 9 are on pages 112 and 113

Payroll taxes

In December 2018, the Group engaged external advisors to undertake an independent review of the Group's compliance with the off-payroll
working rutes As a result of the review, the Group has identified an underpayment of payroll taxes to HMRC for the six years to 30 September
2019 A restatement has been made to recognise a historical exposure of £6.6m prior to the current financial period, consisting of £5 4m of
payroll taxes underpaid. £0 4m of interest and £0 &m of penalties. The Group netified HMRC that a veluntary disclosure will be made with
respect to the Group's Pay as You Earm (PAYE) and National insurance Contribution (NIC) obligations This restatement is not excluded from
adjusted measures, as defined on page 16 of the Chief Financial Officer's review, as the related charges are expected to recur.

Value Added Tax (VAT)

During the second half of the year, the Group discovered a VAT expesure in the UK relating to the understatement of VAT on supplies
made between entities within the Group in respect of the four years ended 20 Septernber 2018 Based on the current assessment, the
exposure atthe end of 2018 15 £11.0m, consisting of E10 /m of VAT and £0 3m of interest Afurther £0 3m of interest accrued in 2019,

The 2018 VAT expense has been classified as an exceptional item and the interest has been treated as an adjusted finance expense
As a result, this restatement 1s excluded from adjusted measures, as defined on page 16 of the Chief Financial Cfficer’s review. because
these charges are not expected to recur

The below is a summary of the restatements

Restatements
2017 2018
IFRS 9
Restated  transition—
1 Qctober 30 1Qctober Restated

Statements 1October Payroli 2017 2018 Payroll Discontinued September 2018 1October
adjusted Line itam 2017 taxes VAT restated reported taxes VAT  operations 2018 restatement 2018
Consclidoted Cperahng profit before
Income Statement acquired intangible

amortisation and

exceptional items 103198 0593 - (61 6600 39,945 - 39,945

Acquired mtangible T T

amortisation (22739 - - 16.74% 01,9903 - 1.990)

Exceptional items 8139 — (5336) 3850 79.910 - 79910

Finance expense 6034y  (b2y (74 (64) (6.454) - (6.454)

Tax expense on profit ) (51 3603 294 96 8802 {41.358) - {41.358)

Profit for the year from .

discontinued operations G342 — - 38,343 129.685 - 1294685

Basic earnings per share 18718 (A35) (428 - 181 54

IS\luted earnings per share 186 G4 (1 34) (d—_QTB) - 181.32
Consoldated Trade and other
Statement of receivables - - - - 68285 - - 66 285 828 &I N3
Financial Netdeferred tax labilty  {21582) 506 910 (20466 (27191 — 18l (25.375) (25.375)
Position and Other equity mvestment; I - - ~ 3.546 - - 3-526)’ (385) 3161
Conschdated Current income tax
Statement of bablites (6117 - - (617 (31816) 800 - (3 016 - @0
Changes M EQUY 1o and other payables  (28.070) (A.913) (5.46%) (36.452) (27.264) (6 668) 00.97%) (44,931 - (2493

Fairvalus reserve - - - - e es - - (37.616) (385) (28.001)

Retained earnings 35594 (4.407) (4.959) 26628 213.833 {5.848) (9.3 198.802 828 199630
1 At Getober 2017 the Group s nat deferred tax labables were splt Fetweer deferes o assets of £1 &0 e dederre 1t haeit ss - £23 40, “he estotemants neensed the Graup s deferred tox asse: from £] érate £3 Om At 30

Septeniker 2018 the Group: s Lrew ously reparted retuufered waciobin es weare spli benweer deferct tox assets of & 2 aod aeferred o ocbahies of £28 Sov Irduded with v the Group s aeferred tax aakil tes at 30 Septerrbber

Z018 wige UK defenad lox ioclhes ¢ £0 9 The resiatements resullea in o estated LK aeferred tax asset af £0 3n The Group s 1estated delened tar ssses and oelerred tox iabilt es at 30 September 2018 are £2 Zm and

£27 b respectvely
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1 Accounting policies continued

{a) Subsidiaries

The consolidated accounts Incorporate the accounts of

the Company and entities controlled by the Company (its
‘subsidianies’) The Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed to, or has nights to, variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the entity Subsidianies are fully consolidated

from the date on which control is transferred to the Group

They are deconsclidated from the date that control ceases
Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised gains and
losses on transactions between Group companies are elminated

The Group uses the acquistion method of accounting to

account for business combinations, The amount recogrised

as consideration by the Group equates to the fair value

of the assets, liabilties and equity acquired by the Group

plus contingent consideration (should there be any such
arrangemeant). Acquisition related costs are expensed as mcurred
Idertifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities
assumed in a business combination are measured intially ot their
fair values at acquisition. Non-controlling interests are measured
initially at their proportionate share of the acquiree’'s identifiable
net assets at the date of acquisition,

To the extent the consideration {including the assumed contingent
consideration) provided by the acquirer is greater than the fair
value of the assets and liabilities. this amount is recognised as
goodwill Geodwill 1s recognised using the proportionate method
as the difference between the consideration paid and the far
value of the identifiable net assets acquired If this consideration

is lower than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary
acquired, the difference 1s recognised as negative goodwill’
directly in the Income Statement

If the initial accounting for a business combination i1s incomplete by
the end of the reporting period in which the combination occurs,
the Group reports provisional amounts for the items for which the
accounting is iIncomplete Those provisional amounts are adjusted
during the measurement period, or addional assets and liabilities
are recognised to reflect new information obtained about facts
and circumstances that existed as of the date of the acquisition
that, if known, would have affected the amounts recognised as of
that date

The measurement peried is the period from the date of acquisitton
to the date the Group obtains complete information about facts
and circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date and is o
maximum of ane year.

Partial acquisitions — control unaffected

Where the Group acauires an additicnal interest in an entity in
which a controlling interest is already held the consideration paid
for the additional interest s reflected within movements in equity as
areduction in non-controlling interests No goodwill is recogrised

Step acquisitions —control passes to the Group

Where a business combination 1s achieved in stages. at the stage
at which control passes to the Group. the previously held interest is
treated as if it had been disposed of. along with the consideration
paid for the controlling interest in the subsidiary The fair value of
the previously held interest then forms one of the components that
is used to calculate goodwill. aleng with the consideration and the
non-centrolling interest less the fair value of identifiable net assets

(b} Transactions with non-controlling interests

Transactions with non-controlling interests in the net assets of
consolidated subsidiares are Wdentified separately and included
in the Group's equity Non-controtling interests consist of the
amount of those interests at the date of the original business
combination and its share of changes in equity since the date
of the combmation Total comprehensive income is attributed to
non-controlling interests even f this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance

(c} interests i Joint ventures and associates

A |joint venture 15 a contractual arrangement whereby the Group
and other parties undertake an economic activity that is subject
to jeint control, that is, when the strategic financial and operating
policy decisions relating to the activities reguire the unamimous
consent of the parties sharing control.

An associate 15 an entity over which the Group has significant
influence and that s neither a subsidiary nor an interest in a joint
venture Significant influence 1s the power to participate in the
finanaial and operating policy decisions of the investee, butis not
control or joint control over those policies.

The post-tax results of joint ventures and associates are
incorporated in the Group's results using the equity method of
accounting Under the equity method, investments in joint ventures
and associates are carried in the Consolidated Statement of
Financial Position at cost as adjusted for post-acquisition changes
in the Group's share of the net assets of the joint venture and
associates, less any impairment in the value of the investment.
Losses of joint ventures and associates in excess of the Group's
interest in that joint venture or associate are not recognised
Additional losses are provided for, and a liability is recogrised,
only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the joint venture

or associate,

Any excess of the cost of acquistion over the Group's share of the
net fair value of the identifiable assets. liabilties and contingent
lickbilities of the |oint venture or associate recognised at the date
of acquisition 1s recognised as goodwill. The goodwill is included
within the carrying amount of the investment

Non-current assets classified as held for sale

Where the carrying value of o non-current asset is expected to be
principally recovered through its sale, the asset is classified as held
for sale If it also meets the following

s the asset is available for sale in its current condition

* the sale is highly prebable and

* the sale s expected to occur within one year

Onee classified as held for sale. the assetis held at the lower

of its carrying valus and the fair value less cost to sell and is no
lenger depreciated.
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Financial Statements

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

1 Accounting policies continued

Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is @ component of the Group's
business. the operations and cash flows of which can be clearly
distinguished from the rest of the Group and which-

* represents a separate major ine of business or geographic area
of operations

* is part of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of a separate
maior line of business or geographic area of operations or

* is a subsidiary acquired exclusvely with o view to re-sale

Classification as a discentinued cperation occurs at the earlier of
disposat or when the operation meets the criteria to be classified
as held for sale

When an operation is classified as a discontinued cperation,
the comparative Income Statement and Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income is re-presented as if the operation had
been discontinued from the start of the comparative year

Foreign currencies

Functional and presentation currency

The functional and presentation currency of Euromoney
Institutional Investor PLC and its UK subsidiaries, other than
Fantfoot Limited, Centre for Investor Education (UK) Limited and
Redquinee Limited. is sterling. The functional currency of other
subsidiaries. associates and |oint ventures is the currency of the
primary economic environment in which they operate

Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are recarded at the rate of
exchange ruling at the date of the transaction Monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated
into sterling at the rates ruling at the balance sheet date

Gains and iesses ansing on foreign currency borrowings and
derivative instruments, to the extent that they are used to provide
a hedge against the Group's equity investments in overseas
undertakings, are taken to other comprehensive income tagether
with the exchange difference ansing on the net investment in those
undertakings. All other exchange differences are taken to the
Income Statement

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translations of the net investment in foreign entities and borrowings
and other currency instruments designated as hedges of such
investments are taken to other comprehensive income The Group
treats specific inter-company loan balances, which are not
intended to be repaid in the foreseeable future, as part of its

net nvestment

Group companies

The Income Statements of overseas operations are translated inte
sterling at the weighted average exchange rates for the year and
their balance sheets are translated into sterling at the exchange
rates ruling at the balance sheet date All exchange differences
arising on consclidation are taken to other comprehensive income
In the event of the disposal of an operation, the related cumulative
translation differences are recognised in the Income Statement in
the period of disposal

&6
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Property, plant and equipment
Property. plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any recegrised impairment loss.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is provided on a
straight-line basis over their expected useful lives as follows

Leasehold improvements over term of lease

Office equipment 3-25years

Intangible assets

Gaadwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the fair value of purchase
consideration over the net fair value of iIdentifiable assets and
liabilites acquired

Goodwill is recogrised as an asset at cost and subsequently
measured at cost less accumulated impairment For the

purposes of impairment testing, goodwill 1s allocated to those

cash generating units that have benefited from the acquistion.
Assets are grouped at the lowest level for which there are
separately identifiable cash flows The carrying value of goodwill

is reviewed for impairment at least annually or where there is

an indication that goodwill may be impaired if the recoverable
amount of the cash generating unit is less than its carrying amount,
then the impairment loss 1s aliocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of the goodwill aliocated to the unit and then to the other
assets of the unit on a pro rata basis Any impairment is recognised
wnmediately in the Income Statement and may not subsequently be
reversed. On disposal of a subsidiary undertaking, the attributable
amount of goodwill is Included in the determination of the profit
and loss on dispaesal

Goodwill ansing on foreign subsidiary investments held in the
Statement of Financial Position are retranslated into sterling ot the
applicable period end exchange rates Any exchange differences
arnsing are taken directly to other comprehensive income as part of
the retranslation of the net assets of the subsichary.

Gocdwill arising on acquisitions before the date of transition to
IFRS has been retained at the previous UK GAAP amounts having
been tested for impairment at that date Goodwill written off to
reserves under UK GAAP before 1 October 1998 has not been
reinstated and is not included in determining any subsequent profit
or loss on disposal

internally generated intangible assets

Aninternally generated intangible asset ansing from the Group's
software and systems development is recognised only if all of the
following conditions are met.

* An assets created that can be identified (such as software or
a website),

* ltis probable that the asset created will generate future
economic benefits, and

* The development cost of the asset can be measured reliably.

Internally generated intangible assets are recognised at cost and
amortised on a straight-line basis over the useful lives from the
date the asset becomes usable. Where no internally generated
intangible asset can be recognised, development axpenditure

is charged to the Income Statement in the period in which it

Is incurred



1 Accounting policies continued

Other intungible assets

For all other intangible assets, the Group initially makes an
assessment of their farr value at acquisition An intangible asset
will be recognised as long as the asset is separable or arises
from contractual or other legal rights, and its fair value can be
measured reliably

Subsequent to acquisition. amortisation 1s charged so as to
write off the costs of other intangible assets over ther estimated
useful lives. using a straight-line or reducing balance methoa
These intangible assets are reviewed for impairment os
descnbed below

Thase intangibles are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation
and impairment losses

Amortisation

Amortisation of intangible assets is provided on a reducing
balance basis or straight-line basis as appropriate over their
expected useful lives as follows:

Trademarks and brands 5-30years

Customer relationships 3 —16 years

Dotapases 2 yers T T
Licences and software 3-7years

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life —for example. goodwili or
intangikle assets not ready to use —are not subject to amaertisation
and are tested annually for impairment Assets that are subject

to amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events

or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable Animpairment loss 1s recognised for

the amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount The recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s fuir value less costs to sell or value in use For the purposes
of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels
for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash
generating units). Non-financial assets, other than goodwill,

that suffer impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairmant at each reporting date

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash. short-term deposits and
ather short-term highly liquid investments with an original maturity
of three months or less For the purpose of the Statement of Cash
Flows, cash and cash equivalents are as defined above, net of
outstanding bank overdrafts

Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets into the following
categories: financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(FVTPL). financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income (FVTOCD. and financial assets at amortised cost

The classification of financial assets under IFRS 9 1s dependent on
two key critena

* The business model within which the asset s held (the business
model test). and

* The contractual cash flows of the asset (the 'solely payments of
principal and interest (SPPI) test.

Management determines the classification of its assets on initial
recognition and re-evaluates this designaticn at every reporting
date. Financial assets are classified as current assets if expected
to be settled within 12 months. otherwise, they are classified as
non-current.

Reqular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on the date on which the Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset The Group derecognises financial assets when it ceases to
be a party to such arrangements All financial assets, other than
those carned at FVTPL, are intially recogrised at fair value plus
transaction costs

Financial assets at fair value through profit and toss (FVYTPL)
Financial assets which are held to sell the contractual cash flows
or for which its payments are not solely payments of principat

and mnterest are measured at FYTPL. Dervatives are measured at
FVTPL regardless of the hedge designation Cash held in money
market funds 1s measured at FYTPL Financial assets carried at
FVTPL are imitiolly recognised ot fair value, and transaction costs
are expensed in the profit and loss companent of the Statement of
Comprehensive Income Gains and losses ansing from changes
in the fair value are included in the profit and loss component of
the Statement of Comprehensive Income in the period in which
they arise

Financial assets at fair value threugh other comprehensive
income {(FVTOCI)

Financiat assets which are held to collect and to sellthe
contractual cash flows and for which its payments are solely
payments of principat and interest can be measured at FVTOCI
The Group may make an irrevacable election at initial recognition
for particular investments in equity instruments that would
otherwise be measured at FVTPL to present subsequent changes
in fair value in other comprehensive income on an instrument-by-
instrument basis based on their merits

Financial assets carried at FVTOC! are initially recognised at

fair value plus transaction costs that are directly attributable

to the acquisition or issue of the financial asset. Gains and

losses arising from changes in the fair value are included in the
‘other comprehensive income’ component of the Statement of
Comprehensive Income in the period in which they arise. Gains or
losses will not be recycled to the income statement on disposal of
equity investments.

Financial assets at amaortised cost

Financial assets at amortised cost are non-dervative financial
assets for which the contractual cash flows are solely payments of
principal and interest The Group's financial assets at amortised
cost comprise trade and other receivables and cash and cash
equivalents Trade receivables are measured at amortised cost
and stated net of allowances for expected credit losses Cash and
cash equivalents are measured at amortised cost with the
exception of cash held in money market funds which are measured
at FVTPL Prior to the adopticn of IFRS 9 on 1 October 2018, loans
and recewvables were stated net of allowances for estimated
irrecoverable amounts {the incurred loss methad).

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are recognised when the Group becomes

a party ta the contractual provisions of the relevant instrument
The Group derecognises financial labilities when it ceases to be
a party to such provisions

Committed borrowings and bank overdrafts

Interest-bearing loans and overdrafts are recorded at the amounts
received, net of direct issue costs Direct issue costs are amortised
over the period of the loans and overdrafts to which they relate
Finance charges, including premiums payable on settlement or
redemption are charged to the Income Statement as incurred
using the effective interest rate method and are added to the
carrying value of the borrowings or overdraft to the extent they are
not settled in the period in which they arise.
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Financial Statements

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

1 Accounting policies continued

Trade payables and accruals
Trade payables and accruals are not interest-beanng and are
held at amertised cost

Derivative financial instruments

The Group uses various denvative financial instruments to manage
its exposure to foreign exchange and interest rate risks, including
forward foreign currency contracts and interest rate swaps

The Group dees not hold or 1ssue derivative financial instruments
for trading or speculative purposes

All derivative instruments are recarded in the Statement of
Financial Position at fair value Changes in the fair value of
derivative instruments which do not qualfy for hedge accounting
are recognised immediately In the Income Statement.

Where the derivative instruments do qualify for hedge accounting,
the following treatments are applied:

Fair value hedges

Changes in the fuir value of the hedging instrument are recognised
in the Income Statement for the year together with the changes

in the fair value of the hedged item due to the hedged nsk. to the
extent the hedge is effective When the hedging instrument expires
oris sold, terminated, or exercised, or no lenger qualifies for hedge
accounting. hedge accounting 1s discontinued.

Cash flow hedges

Changes in the fair value of denvative financial instruments
that are designated and effective as hedges of future cash
flows are recognised directly in other comprehensive income
and the ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the
Income Statement

If a hedged firm commitment or forecast transaction results in

the recognition of a non-financial asset or hability. then. atthe
time that the asset or liability is recognised, the associated gains
and losses on the derivative that had previously been recognised
in equity are included in the intal measurement of the asset

or liability

For hedges that do not result in the recognition of an asset or a
liability, amounts deferred In equity are recegnised in the Income
Statement in the same peried in which the hedged item affects the
Income Statement

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the hedging instrument
expires or is sold, terminated, exercised, revoked, or no longer
qualifies for hedge accounting At that time. any cumulative

gain or lass on the hedging instrument recognised in equity Is
retained in equity until the forecast transaction occurs If a hedged
transaction is no longer expected to occur, the net cumulative gain
or loss previously recognised in equity 1s included in the income
Statement for the period.

Net investment hedges

Exchange differences arising from the translation of the net
investment in foreign operations are recognised directly in other
comprehensive income In the transiation reserve. Gains and losses
arising from changes in the fair value of the hedging instrumens
are recognised in other comprehensive income to the extent

that the hedging relationship is effective Any ineffectiveness is
recognised immadiately in the Income Staterment for the period.

Hedge accounting 15 discontinued when the hedging instrument
expires or is sold, terminated or exercised, or no longer qualifies
for hedge aceounting. Gains and losses accumulated in the
translation reserve are included in the Income Statement on
disposal of the foreign operction
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Liabibties in respect of acquisihorn commitments

and deferred consideration

Liabilities for acquisition commitments over the remaining minority
interests in subsidiaries and deferred consideration are recorded
in the Statemert of Financial Position at their estimated discounted
present value These discounts are unwound and charged to the
Income Statement as noticnal interest over the perod up to the
date of the potential future payment

Taxation

The tax expense for the period cemprises current and deferred tax
Tax 1s recagnised in the Income Statement, except to the extent that
it relates to tems recognised In other comprehensive income or
directly in equity

Current tax, including UK corporation tax and foreign tax. s
provided at amounts expected to be paid (or recovered) using
the tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the balance sheet date

Deferred taxation 1s calculated under the provisions of IAS12
Income Tax and is recognised on differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the accounts and
the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable
profit and is accounted for using the balance sheet liability
method Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
No provision 1s made for temporary differences on unremitted
earnings of foreign subsidiaries or asscciates where the Group
has control and the reversal of the temporary difference is

not foreseeable

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets 1s reviewed at each
balance sheet dute and reduced to the extent thatitis no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow
all or part of the asset to be recovered. Deferred tax is calculated
at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the pericd when
the liability is settled or the asset is realised based on tax rates
and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the balance sheet date Deferred tax 1s charged or credited in
the Income Statement, except when it relates to items charged
or credited directly to Statement of Comprehensive Income

and equity. In which case the deferred tax is alse dealt with in
Staterment of Comprehensive Income and equity.

Deferred tax assets and liakilities are offset when there is a legalty
enforceable right te set off current tax assets against current tax
lakilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation autherity and the Group intends to settle its current assets
and labkilities on a net basis.

Actual tax liabilities or refunds may differ from those anticipated
due to changes in tax legislation. differing interpretations of tax
legislation and uncertainties surrounding the application of tax
legislation In situations where uncertainties exist, a provision

is made for contingent tax liabilities and assets when it is more
likely than not that there will be d cash impact These provisions
are made for each uncertamty individually on the basis of
management judgement following consideration of the available
relevant information. The measurement basis adopted represents
the best predictor of the resclution of the uncertainty which is
usually based on the most likely cash cutflow. The Company
reviews the adequacy of these provisions at the end of each
reporting period and adjusts them based on changing facts and
circumstances. The Group dees not censider detection risk when
making its estimates.



1 Accounting policies continued

Provisions

A provision 1s recagnised in the balance sheet when the Group
has a present tegal or constructive obligation as a result of a past
event. and it s probable that economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation. If material, provisions ore determined by
discounting the expected future cash flows that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and, where
appropriate, the nisks specific to the liability

Pensions

Contributions to pension schemes in respect of current

and past service, ex-gratia pensions. and cost of living
adjustmenits to existing pensions are based on the advice of
independent actuanes

Defined contribution plans
Payments to the defined contribution pension plan are charged to
the Income Statement as they fall due

Defined benefit plans

Defined benefit plans define an ameunt of pension benefit that an
employee will receive on retirement. usually dependent on one or
more factors such as age, years of service and compensation

The liability recognised in the Statement of Financial Position in
respect of the defined benefit pension plan 1s the present value of
the defined benefit obligation <t the end of the reporting pericd
less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation s
calculated annually by independent actuaries using the projected
credit method The present value of the defined benefit obligation
is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows
using interest rates of high-quality corparate bonds that are
denominated in the currency in which the benefits will be paid.
and that have terms to maturity approximating to the terms of the
related pension obligation. The actuarial valuations are obtained
at least triennially and are updated at each balance sheet date

Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments
and changes In actuarial assumptions are recognised in full in
the Staternent of Comprehensive Income in the period in which
they occur.

Other movements in the net deficit are recagnised in the Income
Statement. including the current service cost and past service cost
and the effect of any curtailment or settlements The interest cost
less the expected return of assets s alse charged to the Income
Statement within net finance costs

Share-based payments

The Group makes share-based payments to certain employees
which are equity and cash-settled These payments are measured
at their estimated fair value at the date of grant, calculated using
an appropriate option pricing model The fair value determined at
the grant date is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting
perod. based on the estimate of the number of shares that will
eventually vest. At the end of each period, the vesting cssumptions
are revisited and the charge associated with the fair value of
these options updated For cash-settled share-based payments. a
liability equal to the portion of the services receved is recognised
at the current fair value as determined at each balance sheet
date On exercise of equity settled options. the Group either issues
additional shares. leading to an increase in share capital and
share premium or reduces the amount of own shares held.

Revenue
Revenue represents income from subscriptions. advertising.
sponsorship and delegate fees. net of value added tax

* Subscription revenues for prnt and online publications and
memberships are recognised in the Income Statement on a
stranght-line basis over the pencd of the sukscription and the
satisfaction of the performance obligation. reflecting the pattern
over which the customer receves benefits. These revenues are
due in advance on a monthly or annual basis

= Adbvertising revenues represent the fees that customers pay
in advance to place an advertisement in one or more of the
Group's publications, either in print or online, to commission ad
hoc consulting and thought leadership projects and to purchase
survey reports Advertising revenues for print publicatiens are
recogmised in the Income Statement when the publications have
been delivered which is when the performance obligation is
satisfied This 1s the time at which the benefit becomes available
to the customer Revenue for online advertising 1s recognised
on a straight-line basis over the period that the advert is run,
reflecting the period over which the customer receives benefit.

= Events revenues are received in advance and recognised in the
income Statement over the period the event is run

+ Variable consideration is included in the transaction pnice to
the extent that itis highly probable that the reloted revenue. if
recoghised, would not be reversed

Revenues invoiced but relating to future periods are deferred and
treated as contract Labilities in the Statement of Financial Position
The Group does not have individual long-term revenue contracts
that are materal

Armounts recoverable on contracts relating to accrued income
have been classified to contract assets net of any loss allowance.

Leased assets

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of
ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating
leases Operating lease rentals are charged to the Income
Stotement on a straight-line basis as allowed by IAS17 'Leases’,

Dividends

Dividends are recogrised as a liability in the period in which they
are approved by the Company's shareholders. Interim dividends
are recorded in the period in which they are paid

Own shares held by Employee Share Ownership Trust and
Employee Share Trust

Transactions of the Group-sponscred trusts are included in

the Consolidated Financial Statements In particular, the trusts’
holdings of shares in the Company are debited direct to equity
The Group provides finance to the trusts te purchase Company
shares to meet the obligation to provide shares when employees
exercise their options or awards. Costs of running the trusts are
charged to the Income Staternent Shares held by the trusts are
deducted from other reserves.

Earnings per share

The earnings per share and diluted earnings per share
calculations follow the provisions of IAS 33 ‘Earnings Per Share’
The diluted earnings per share figure 1s caleulated by adjusting
for the dilution effect of the exercise of all ordinary share aptions,
granted by the Company. but excluding the ordinary shares
held by the Euromoney Employee Share Ownership Trust and
Euromoney Employee Share Trust
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Financial Statements

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

1 Accounting policies continued

Exceptional items

Exceptional tems are items of Income or expense considerad by
the Directors as being significant and whick require addional
disclosure in order to provide an indication of the adjusted trading
parformance of the Group Such tems could include, but may
not be Imited to, costs asscaiated with business combinations,
gains and losses on the disposal of businesses and properties,
significant reorganisation or restructuring costs and Impairment
of goodwill and acquired intangible assets Any item classified as
an exceptional tem will be large and unusual. net attributable to
underlying cperations and will be subject to spearfic quantitative
and qualitative threshelds set by and approved by the Directors
prior to being classified as exceptional

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in @ manner consistent with
the internal reperting provided to the Board and CEQ who are
responsible for strategic decisions, allocating resources and
assessing performance of the operating segments

2 Key judgemental areas adopted in preparing
these Financial Statements

tn determining and applying accounting policies. judgement is
often required in respect of items where the choice of specific
policy, accounting estimate or assumption to be followed could
materially affect the reported results or net asset position of the
Group should it later be determined that a different choice would
have been more approprate

Management has discussed its significant accounting judgements
and estimates with the Group's Audit & Risk Committee The key
judgemental areas and estimates are discussed below and should
be read in conjunction with the Group's disclosure of accounting
policies in note 1

Judgements

Discontinued eperations and dispesal groups classificd

s held for sale

Following the Group's decision to explore the strategic options for
Asset Management. the segment has met the recognition criteria
of a discontinued operation under IFRS & ‘Non-current Assets Held
for Sale and Discontinued Operations’ and is therefore presented
as such throughout this report In order to comply with this
presentation. the 2018 Income Statement disclosures have been re-
presented (note 11y Management's judgement is that the disposal
is highly probable to be completed within 12 months and the action
required to complete the disposalindicates that the plan will not
be significantly changed or withdrawn

On 30 April 2018, the Group completed the disposal of the

Global Markets Intelligence Division (GMID). This division met the
recognition critena of a discontinued operation under IFRS 5 'Nen-
current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations and the
2018 Income Statement 1s presented accordingly (nate 1)
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Presentation of adjusted perfermance

The Directors believe that the adjusted profit and earnings

per share measures provide additional useful information for
shareholders to evaluate the performance of the business

These megsures are consistent with how business performance

is measured internally and are the basis on which executive
managemeant is incentivised The adusted earnings measure

15 not a recognised profit measure under IFRS and may not be
directly comparable with adjusted profit measures used by

other companies Adjusted figures are presented before the
impact of amortisation of acquired intangible assets (compnising
trademarks and brands, customer relationships, databases

and software), exceptional items. share of associates” and joint
ventures' acquired Intangibles amortisation. exceptional items
and tax, net movements in deferred consideration and acquisition
commitmeants, fair value remeasurements, and interest on uncertain
tax provisions [n respect of earnings, adjusted amcunts reflect a
tax rate that includes the current tax effect of the goodwill and
intangible assets Many of the Group's acquisitions, particularly in
the S, give rise to significant tax savings as the amortisation of
goodwill and intangikle assets on acquisition is deductible for tax
purposes. The Group considers that the resulting adjusted effective
tax rate 1s therefore more representative of its tax payable position

The Group has applied these principles in calculating ad|usted
measures and itis the Group's intention to continue to apply these
principles in the future.

A detailed explanation and reconciliation of the Group's statutory
results to the adjusted and underlying results is set out on pages 16
to18

Taration

European Commission (EC) investigation into state aid

On 2 April 2019, the EC concluded its state aid investigation into
the Group Financing Exemption (GFE) in the UK controlled foreign
company rules on the GFE and ruled that the GFE is only justified
where there are no UK activities involved in generating the finance
profits The UK gavermnment has decided to appeal against the EC
decision but an aid recovery process has also commenced as this
s required under EU law.

The estimated maximum liability is approximately £8 Om. On the
basis that the UK government has appealed against the EC
decision, and the Group's awn analysis, no provision is being
made in respect of this issue as management judges that it is not
probabile that the Group will suffer an outflow of funds

Payroll taxes and VAT

During the year, the Group dentified two tax exposures.

(%} underpayments of PAYE and NIC to HMRC in respect to
contractors; and {ii} VAT arising on supplies made between entities
within the Group The Group has notified HMRC that a veluntary
disclosure will be made with respect to the PAYE and NIC
understatement and is in the process of finalising this disclosure.
The Group has also notified HMRC regarding the VAT exposure
and discussion is ongoing with HMRC to finalise the underpayment
of VAT Further details are disclosed in the Estimates section

in note 2 The Consolidated Financial Statements have been
restated to reflect these two tax exposures due to their materiality
and the information being available atthe time of the respective
restated years.



2 Key judgemental areas adopted in preparing
these Financial Statements continued

Equity investment in Zanbato. Inc {Zankate)

The Group holds a 9 9% equity shareholding in Zanbato of

£5 3m and convertible loan note asset recervable of £3 8m from
Zanbato On 26 July 2019, upon maturity of the convertible lean
note asset. the Group formally exercised its right to convert the
loan notes to eguity The conversion had not taken effect as at
30 September 2019

While the Group's equity shareholding remaims at 9 9% at

30 September 2019, as a result of the matunty of the cenvertible
loan notes and the Group's decision to exercise its right to convert,
the Group has considered whether its investment in Zanbato
constitutes an investment In an associate in accordance with

IAS 28.

Akey |udgement is whether the Group 1s able to parbicipate in the
decision making process of Zanbato. the definition of significant
influence The Group judges that it does have significant influence
on the basis that it has a voting representative on the Board of
Directors and as a result of potential additional voting nghts
following the decision to exercise the convertible loan nate

The Group has therefore used the equity method to account for the
investments in associates fram 26 July 2019

Cash generating units

The Group conducts impairment reviews at the cash generating
unit (CGU) level. As permitted by [AS 36 Impairment of Assets’.
impairment reviews for goodwill are performed at the groups

of CGUs (gCGUs) level, representing the lowest level at which
the Group moniters goodwill for internal management purposes
and no higher than the Group's operating segments The Group
considers monitaring of goodwill to be the level at which return on
net assets including allocated goodwill 1s monitored for internal
performance Following further integration within the Group, the
level at which goodwillimpairment reviews was performed was
reassessed and gCGUs aggregated {(note 12)

Estimates

Goodwill and other intangibles impairment

Goodwill 1s impaired where the carrying value of goodwill is
higher than the net present value of future cash flows of those cash
generating units to which it relates Key assumptions in calculating
the net present value are the forecast cash flows, the long-term
growth rate of the applicable CGU groups and the discount rate
applied to those cash flows The sensitivity analysis is disclosed in
note 12. Goodwill held on the Statement of Financial Position at

30 September 2019 was £246 3m (2018- £414 7m)

Acquisitions

The purchase consideration for the acquisition of a subsidiary

or business is allocated over the net fair value of iIdentifiable
assets and liabilities acquired with any excess consideration
representing goodwill Determining the fair value of assets and
liabilities acquired requires significant estimates and assumptions
The Group recoegnises intangible assets acguired as portof o
pusiness at fair value at the date of acquisition The determination
of these fair values includes assumptions on the timing and amaount
of future cash flows generated by the assets and the selection of
an appropriate discount rate In the determination of the customer
relaticnships, the most material intangible asset recognised. an
attrition rate of 5% and discount rate of 12% was applied

Additichally. management must estimate the expected useful
lives of intangible assets and charge amortisation on the
assets accordingly

Ta=ation

The Group s tax expense on profit 1s the sum of the total current
and deferred tax expense The calculation of the total tax charge
necessarity involves a degree of estimation in respect of certain
items whose tax treatment cannot be finally determined untit
resclution has been reached with the relevant tax authority or, as
appropriate through a formal legal process

The final reselution of some of these items may give rise to material
profit and toss and/or cash flow vanances.

The Group 1s a multingtional with tax affairs in many gecgraphical
lecations. This inherently leads to complexity in the Group's tax
structure and makes the degree of estimation challenging This is
especially the case where there has been a change in tax law in
the year The resolution of issues is not always within the control

of the Group and itis often dependent on the efficiency of the
legislative processes in the relevant taxing jurisdictions in which
the Group operates Issues can. and often do. take many years

to resolve Payments in respect of tax liabilities for an accounting
period mclude payments on account and depend on the final
resolution of open items As a result. there can be substantial
differences between the tax expense in the Income Statement and
tax paymenits.

The Group has significant open items in several tax jurisdictions
and as a result the amounts recognised in the Consolidated
Financial Statements in respect of these items are derived from

the Group's best estimation However. the inherent uncertainty
regarding the outcome of these items means eventual resolution
could differ from the accounting estimates and therefore affect the
Group's results and cash flows

The Group considers each uncertain tax matter on the technical
merits of the case in law, taking into account all relevant evidence.
including the known attitude of tax authorities in making an
assessment of the lkelihood a matter will erystallise. The uncertain
tax provisions are calculated by determining the single most likely
cash flow for each issue rather than by applying a probakbility
threshold and this methodology has been applied consistently
year-on-year.

Direct tax

Where arrangements that have been adopted on the basis of
professional advice are challenged by tax authorities and there
Is an expectation that there 1s more likely than not to be a cash
outflow, this risk 1s provided for.

The Group has fully provided for an exposure relating to an HMRC
enguiry, which has a maximum axposure of £10.7m. This matter

1s now proceeding to litigation The outcome of the litigation 1s
binary The Group received HIMRC's statement of case in May
2019 and respended with its witness statements in September
2019 A court hearing date will be advised m due course and it

is expected that the hearing will take place in mid to late 2020

No adjustment te the provision is being made at this time.
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Financial Statements

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

The maximum additionat exposure for the Group in relation to
challenges by tax authorities not provided for is approximately
£20m which s for the challenge by the Canadian Revenue
Agency (CRAY and the Quebec Tax Authonties (Revenu Quebec)
on a foreign currency trade in 2009 The CRA views that the loss
sustained by BCA on an intra-group derivative transaction cannot
be deducted in computing income has not changed The case
will be heard in the Tax Court of Canada, Ottawa in June 2020
BCA has provided satisfoctory security for payment to the CRA for
50% of the tax being contested of £3 8m and to Revenu Cuebec
for 50% of the tax owing amounting to £3 2m The outcome of
the case 1s binary. No provision is recognised based on external
counsel's opinion that the Group's case should ultmately prevail

Indirect tax

The Group reviews and assesses other indirect tax exposures
across the Group and a £4.6m provision is the Group's best
estimate of the most probable outflow relating to these exposures,
excluding the VAT and payroll tax exposures outlined below

This provision relates largely to US sales tax

Payroll taxes and VAT

During the year, the Group has identified an underpayment of
PAYE and NIC to HMRC in respect of contractors The Group

has notified HMRC that a voluntary disclosure will be made and
is currently in the process of finalising this voluntary disclosure,
The Group will seek to engage with HMRC to agree a settlement
during the first half of 2020 As such. the provision recognised in
the current period is subject to ongoing discussion with HMRC
The Group considered the most probably outcome at this stage
is a cash outflow of £8.2m A provision of £1 5m, including interest
and penalties, has been recogrised in the current year The prior
year has been restated to reflect the expasure up to the opening
Balance Sheet position in October 2017 and a provision of £1 8m
{including interest and penatlties) for 2018 Further details on the
restatement are included on page 114.

During the second half of the year, the Group discovered a VAT
exposure relating to the understatement of VAT on intra-group
transactions in respect of the four years ended 30 September 2018
The Group netified HMRC as soon as the exposure was identiied
in September 2019 A protective assessment was subsequently
1ssued by HMRC in respect of the year ended 30 September

2015 Details of the potential exposure will be discussed and
finalised with HMRC during the first half of the 2020 financial
year. The Group considered that the most probable ouvtcome

at this stage is a cash outflow of £11.3m. including £0 3m of
interast accrued in 2019 A prior year provision of £11 Om has been
recognised and due to the amount being considered material the
2018 comparative financial information has been restated The VAT
element of the provision has been treated as an exceptional item
in line with the Group's accounting policy because itis material
and neot expected to recur The interest element 1s excluded from
the adjusted results as it relates directly to the exceptional item as
explained in note 1 and in the Chief Financial Officer's review on

page 16
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The Group has estimated the combined potential exposure in
respect of VAT and payroll toxes to be in the range of £6 9m and
£26 4 For VAT, the sensitivity relates to the ameunt of intra-group
charges that are subject to VAT For payrollt taxes, the range of
outcomes are based on assumptions around the applicable rate of
PAYE and NIC, whether the look-back periods should be four years
or six years: the nisk elassification of each contractor, and what
tevels of PAYE and NIC have already been paid by the individuals
Both of the exposures include estimates of interest and penalties
applicable to the underpayment

Retirament benefit schemes

The surplus or deficit in the defined benefit pension scheme

that is recogrised through the Statement of Comprehensive
Income 1s subject to a number of assumpticns and uncertainties
The calculated assets and liabilites of the scheme are based on
assumptions regarding salary increases, inflation rates, discount
rates. the long-term expected return on the scheme’s assets

and member longevity. Details of the assumptions and related
sensitivities used are shown in note 27 Such assumptions are
based on actuanal advice and are benchmarked against similar
pension schemes

The Group operates the Metal Bulletin plc Pension Scheme

and participates in the Harmsworth Pension Scheme which are
defined benefit schemes, both of which are closed to new entrants
The assumptions far the discount rate and mortality rates have
been reviewed and adjusted to reflect the latest market rates
Increasing the net pension deficit from £2.9m at 30 September
2018 to £6.2m at 30 September 2019 An exceptional gain of £1 2m
has been recognised in the pericd as a result of the Trustees of
the Metal Bulletin plc Pension Scheme changing the scheme rules
for the underlying index for deferred revaluation from RPl to CPI
(note &)



3 Segmental analysis

Segrmentabinformation is presented in respect of the Group's segments and reflects the Group’s management and internal reporting
structure The Group is organised into three segments Asset Management, Pricing, Data & Market Inteligence: and Banking & Finance

Revenues generated in the Asset Management and Pricing. Dota & Market Intellgence segments are pnmarily from subseriptions
Banking & Finance revenues consist mainly of sponsership income and delegates revenue A breakdown of the Group's revenue by type
15 set out below

Following the dispesal of Mining Indaba (note 15) during the year. the Commodity Events segment has been incorporated into the
Pricing, Data & Market Intelligence segment The segment infermation for the Mining Indeba business has been reclassified as a
sold business

As a result of the closure of Centre for Investor Education (CIE). the segment information for this business has been reclassified from Asset
Management to closed businesses

Euromoney Financing Events and Thought Leadership have been moved from Banking & Finance to the Pricing. Data & Market
Intelligence segment Global Investor has alse moved from Asset Management to the Pricing, Dota & Market Intelligence segment
These movements are due to the realignment of how the businesses are managed internally

The comparative split of segmental revenues. revenue by type, operating profits, acguired intangible amortisation, exceptional items
and depreciation and amortisation has been restated to reflect Commodity Everts, Euromoney Financing Events, Thought Leadership
and Global Investor being incorporated into the Pricing, Data & Market Intelligence segment and Mining Indaba and CIE being
reclassified as o sold/closed business

The Asset Management segment has been classified as discontinued operations (note 11}, therefore it 1s presented as such throughout
this report and the 2018 Income Statement disclosures have been re-presented In 2018, the Global Markets Intelligence Division (GMID)
was classified as o discontinued operation and dispesed of on 30 April 2018 and is therefore presented as such throughout this report

Events revenue consists of sponsorship and delegates revenue

Analysis of the Group’s three main geographical areos 1s also set out to provide additional information on the trading performance of
the businesses

Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market rates and shown in the eliminations columns

Subsaripticns. Advertising Total iy
and content and cther Events revenue g
2019 £000 £000 £000 £000 g
Revenue by segment and type: g
Asset Management ‘ o o 17,891 10,789 16,942 145,622 g«"
Pricing. Data & Market Intelligence o ) 115,449 19,340 61,569 196,378 @
Banking & Finance 7,248 8,173 45,738 61159 I
240,588 38,322 124,249 403,159 g"
Seold/closed businesses - - 1,997 1,997
Foreign exchange losses on forward contracts - (3,483) - (3,483)
Segment revenue L 240,588 34,839 126,246 401,673
Discontinued operations —Asset Management M7,891) (10,769 (16,942) (145,622)
Continuing operations 122,697 24,050 109,304 256,051
T Subseriptions Advertising Total
and content and other Events revenue
2018 £000 000 £000 £000
Revenue by segment and type:
Asset Management ) 116,876 11.216 15.362 145 454
Prcing. Data & Market Intelligence - 92,489 19.408 56126 166,023
Banking & Finance o 7496 8,641 47 581 63718
L i 218881 39265 119.049 377195
Seld/closed businesses (exciudmgj GMTB) o o - - 11.826 1,826
Foreign exchange gains on forward contracts - 1258 — 1,258
Segment revenue o . 218,861 40,523 130,895 390279
Discantinued operations —Asset Management (118.876) (11.216) (15.362) (145,454
Centinuing operations 99,985 29.307 115,533 244.825

Continuing events revenue of £109 3m and print advertising of £13 2m are recognised ot a point in time. The remaining subscription and
onling advertising revenue is recognised over time,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

3 Segmental analysis continued

United Kingdom MNorth America Rest of World Eliminations Total

2m9 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 206

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 7006 £000 £000 £000 £000
Revenve by segment and
source:
Asset Management - 664 145,696 144660 - - 74) (0) 145,622 145454
Prnicing Daota & Market
Inteligence 139,295 124425 53,482 37924 6,565 £.568 (2,964) (894) 196,378 168023
Banking & Finance - 32,628 34479 25059 24943 3796 4766 (424) 470y 61,159 63718
Sold/closed businesses
{excluding GMID) ) - 7.269 - 1073 1,997 3484 - — 1,997 1,826
Fereign exchange (losses)/
gains on forward contracts (3,483) 1258 - - - - - - (3,483) 1258
Segment revenuve 168,440 166 315 224,337 208400 12,358 14 818 (3,462) (1.454) 401,673 390279
Discontinued operations—
Asset Management - (884) (145,698) {144,650 - - 74 90 (145,622) (145454
Continuing operations 168,440 167,431 78,641 63940 12,358 14 818  (3,388) (1.364) 256,051 244825
Statutory revenue b
destination Y S oo BT  c04s0 17.99s | TR I 244525

United Kingdom North America Rest of World Total
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £O00

Adjusted operating profit by segment and source: BRI e - ] | ]
Asset Management - 9] 150 58 739 D N an EIEEE
Pricing, Data & Market Intelligence Pl s0090 BEEGSE 1600 WEEEES o lEEEd  s072
Banking & Finance AL o2 & 692 IIRYESE 15645
Sold/closed businesses (excluding GMID) | @95 1750 IZ 3.048 [ 4] 5.899
Unaliocated corporate costs EEFED o0l cesllGEZS o0920lE0ess  (39.000)
Adjusted operating profit 21,478 8476 JCERI0) (4.634)F0SYAEE]  101.605
Discontinved operations —Asset Management -@3 (244)m (61,41 6)‘ - m {61,660)
Continuing operaticns B 21234 BPOE 23345 BEENNS  @o)lESST 39945
Acquired intangible amortisation? {note 12) - i 7o SIRER @ GollEZES  1.950)
Exceptional items (note 5) Bl canlllEES 75430 W7 1395 EEEERED 79510
Operating profit/(loss) . a678)] 4142 EYSEE 94436 WEEG20; 9207 MEEOYEA]  107.865
Share of results in associates and joint ventures -
{note 14) (88) 157
Finance income {note 7} -1@3] 5248
Finance expense (note 7) .{E_m; (6,454)
Profit before tax 106,816
Tax expense on profit (note 8) m (41,358)

Profit for the year from continuing operations 65,458

1 Ogerating profitincluding discontinued operations of Asset Management before acquired intangible amortisation and exceptional iterms. A detailed reconeiliation of the Group's statutory
results to the adjusted and underlying results is set out on pages 1510 16.

2 Acquired intangible amortisatien represents smortisation of acquisition-related non-goodwill assets such as trademarks and brands. customer relationships. databases and software (nate 123,
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3 Segmental analysis continued

Acquired intangible Depreciation and
arortisation Exeeptional items amortisation
2019 2005 2019 2018 2019 28

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Other segmental information by segment: o o )
Asset Management (10,928) (0 749) (2,494) (3 8650) {,181) (1.126)
Pricing, Data & Market intelligence (11,283) (8.642) 7.,916) (5.277) {207) (1374)
Banking & Finance o (234)  {222) - - - -
Sold/closed businesses (excluding GMID) (2,432 (2.853) 14,224 90.523 (%) 2y
Urallocated corporate costs (266) (273) 40 (5.336) (2,746) (3.752)
Total S (25.143)  (22739) 3,856 76,060 (4,843) (6.264)
Discontinued operations — Asset Management 10,928 10.74% 2,494 3.850 1,181 1126
Continuing operations 14,215) M990 6,350 79.910 {3,662) (5.138)

The closing net book value of goodwill, other intengible assets. property, plant and equipment and investments is analysed by
gecgraphic area as follows

United Kingdom North America Rest of World Total

201% 2018 2019 2018 2019 208 2m9 2018

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 FO00 £000 £000
Goodwill 102,357 104227 139,246 303.399 4,668 709 246,281 414722
Other intangible assets ' 42763 45656 115,898 127.326 479 521 159,140 173,503
Property. plant and equipment 4,617 5325 10,310 10,165 367 522 15,2948 16112
Investments o 5,271 4261 - - - - 5271 426
Non-current assets 155,018 159,469 265,454 440,690 5,514 8239 425986 608598
Additions to property, plant and equipment ma) (602) (1,408) (1.006) m7z {370) 1,637 {1,978}

The Group has taken advantage of paragraph 23 of IFRS 8 'Operating Segments’ and does not provide segmental analysis of net assets
as this information is not used by the Directors in eperational decision making or menitering of business performance

4 Operating profit 3

S

Restated [t}

Continving continuing a

operations cperations w

201% 2018 Q

£000 £000 ‘313

Revenue S 256,051 2411‘8253_ g

Cost of sales (59,993) (63505 i
Gross profit 196,058 181,320
Distnbution costs e (1,461 (1.641)
Administrative expenses 163,948) {71.614)
Operating profit 30,649 107 865

Administrative expenses include items separately disclosed in exceptional items from continuing opergtions of £6 4m (2018 £/9 9m) (note
5). The administrative expenses for 30 September 2018 have been restated to reflect the iImpact of the payroll taxes and VAT ad|ustments
(note 1.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

4 Operating profit continued

Restated
Continuing continuing
operations operatons
2019 2008
£000 E£000
Profit is stated after charging/{crediting):
Staff costs (note 6) o 122,437 112 583
Intangible amortisation - o
Acquired intangible amortisation - - 14,215 11.990
Licences and softwars including internally generated assets L 1,245 2,577
Depreaiation of property, plant and equipment - ) 2,417 2,561
Property operating lease rentals n 7.749 7197
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment N =
Exceptional tems (rote 5) T T -
Profit on disposal of businesses/associates (16,998) {86.817)
Impairment charges 2,410 3.048
Amendment to defined benefit pension sch—e;;\_w-e 1,224) -
VAT underpayments ) - (5.336)
Other exceptional costs/{income) - - 9,462 (1.4773
Foreign exchange loss S S 168 881
2019 2008
£000 £000
Audit and non-audit services relate to:
Group audit: T
Fees payable for the audit of the Group's annual accounts 1,285 q77
Fees payable for other services to the Group.
Audit of subsidiaries pursuant to local legislation 258 268
1,543 1245
Assurance services: o o
Audit related assurance services ' o 121 123
Non-audit services: ~
Taxation compliance services - &
Other assurance services 132 76
Other services 2 2
134 84
Total Group auditors’ remuneration 1,798 1452

1 Subsetuent to the completior of the audit of the 2018 Censclinated Finuncial Staterrents additic nal audit teas for subsidicnies amaanting <o £0 1m were iIncurrea which have been included in

the 2018 fee onolysis ahove

5 Exceptional items

Exceptional items are items of income or expense considered by the Directors as being significant, non-recurring and which require

additional disclesure in order to provide an indication of the underlying trading performance of the Group

Restated

29 2018

£000 £000

Profit on dispesal of businesses/associates ) B 16,998 86,817
Impairment charges o (2,410} (3.048)
Amendment to defined benefit pension scheme ] 1,224 -
VAT underpayments N - (5.336)
Other exceptional (costs)/income 7 (9,462) '|_,477
Continuing operations ,, ) 6,350 79.910
Exceptional items from discontinued operations — Asset Mdnqgement {812) (3.850)
Cost of disposal of discontinued operations —Asset Management {1,682) —
3,856 76.060

For the year ended 30 September 2019, the Group recognised a continuing operations exceptional credit of £6.4m,

The Graup sold Mining Indaba for a profit of £17.0m (note 15).
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5 Exceptional items continued

The impairment charge relates to goodwill of £2 4m resulting from the closure of Centre for Invester Education (CIE) Cests associated

with this closure are included in the other exceptional costs and restructurning

The Trustees of the Metal Bulistin plc Pension Scheme. which 1s a defined benefit scheme, changed the scheme rules for the underlying

index of deferred revaluation from RPI to CPIL which resulted in a £1.2m reduction in the net pension deficit

Other exceptional {costs)/income consist of the recegnition of the earn-out payments of £2 5m for the acquistions of Site Seven Media
Ltd (TowerXchange) & Random Lengths which are treated as compensation costs It is Group policy to treat. as exceptional. significant
earn-out payments required by IFRS to be recogrised as a compensation cost The acquisition-related costs of £5 4m for Random
Lengths. BoardEx and The Deal (note 15) are treated as exceptional due to the magnitude of the costs asseciated with the acquisitions
Significant casts associated with an acquisition project that did not complete of £1 2m are treated as exceptional items The remaining
costs are as a result of o strategic review undertaken for the major restructuring of CIE have been treated as exceptional items

Normal restructuring costs are not treated as exceptional tems

The Group's tax charge includes a related tax charge on the continuing operations exceptional items of £2 8m (note 8)

The discontinued operations have incurred exceptional costs, iIncluding engaging with advisors to assist with the strategic review of
Asset Management These exceptional costs of £1 7m have been disclosed separately (note 11) The exceptional items incurred by the
discontinued operation relate to o strategic review undertaken for the major restructuring of certain businesses. The Group's tax charge

iIncludes a related tax credit on the discontinued operations exceptional items of £0 2m (note 8)

For the year ended 30 September 2018, the Group recognised a continuing oparations exceptional credit of £79 9m.

The Group sold Adhesion (profit £ 8m). World Bulk Wine (prefit £0 9m) and Institutional Investor Journals {profit £4 4m) which resulted in

a net profit of £15 Im. The disposal of the asscciate investment in Dealegic resulted in a profit of £71.7m.

The impairment charge related to a goodwill impairment of £3 Om for Layer123 Events and Training Limited (Layer123) The impairment

of Layerl23 was a result of its disappointing financial performance post acquisition

Cther exceptional (costs)/income consisted of restructuring costs, earn-out payments treated as compensation costs and acquisition
related costs offset by the faveurable settlement of the legal dispute with the previcus owners of CIE. The acquisition related costs of
Random Lengths were treated as exceptional due to the magnitude of the costs associated with the acguisition. Acquisition costs for

smaller acquisitions were not treated as exceptional

The 2018 exceptional charge has been restated for the VAT underpayment of £5.3m (nate 1)

The Group's tax charge included a related tox charge on the continuing operations exceptional items of £12 Tm {note 8)

The Asset Managemeant discontinued operations exceptional items related to costs as a result of a strategic review undertaken for the

major restructuring of certain businesses Normal restructuring costs are not treated as exceptional items.

6 Staff costs

Following the disposal of Mining Indaba (note 15) during the year. the Commeodity Events segment has been incorporated into the
Pricing. Data & Market Inteligence segment Euromoney Financing Events and Theught Leadership have been moved from Banking &
Finance to the Pricing, Data & Market Intelligence segment. Global Investor has also moved from Asset Management to the Pricing. Data

& Market Intelligence segment The comparative split of staff costs has been restated to refiect these changes.

(i) Number of staff (including Directors and temporary staff)

Restated

2M9 2018

Monthly Monthiy

averdage average

By business segment: -

Asset Management B 394 462

Pricing. Data & Market Intelligence 1,084 1,028

Banking & Finance B 195 203

Central i ] 283 299

Total 1,956 1,992

Continving operations 1,562 1235
Discontinued operations 394 757

Total 1,956 1,992
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Financial Statements

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

6 Staff costs continued
(ii) Staff costs {including Directors and tempeorary staff)

Restated
2019 2018
Monthly Monthly
average average

By geographical location: e
United Kingdom - 826 840
North America L 444 &44
Rest of World 486 508
Total 1,956 1,992
Continving operations o 1,562 1.235
Discontinved operations 394 757
Total 1,956 1.992
Restated
Continving continuing
operations operations
2019 2018
£000 £000
Wages and salaries B o 107,442 29.601
Secial security costs L 10,419 8 866
Other pension costs (note 27) o 3,693 2,629
Long-term incentive expense {(note 24) 383 1,487
122,437 112.583

Details of Directors’ remuneration have been disclosed in the Birectors’ Remuneration Report on pages 72 to 91. The 2018 social security
costs have been restated for payroll taxes (E1 6m) to reflect the estimated exposure as detailed in note ]

7 Finance income and expense

Restated
2019 2018
£000 £000

Finance income
Irterest receivable from short-term investments L 1,198 2.670
Movements in acguisiton commitments {note 25} - 2.378
Fair value remeasurement T 675 -
1,873 5,248

Finance expense

Interest payable on borrowings (1,362) {4.201)
Net interest expense on defined benefit babilty (note 27) (100) (248)
Movements in dequisition commitments (note 25) {1,022) -
Movements in deferred consideration (note 25) {36) (1.122)
Interest on tax (463) (8663)
(2,983) (6.454)
Continving operations net finance costs {1,110) (1,206}

The 2018 finance expense has been restated for the payroll taxes (G 2m) and VAT underpayments (EC0 2Zm) to reflect the estimated

interest related to these exposures as detailed in note 1

Restated
2019 2018
£000 £000
Reconciliation of net finance costs in Income Statement to adjusted net finance costs
Continuing eperations net finance costs In income Statement ano {.206)
Add back o
Maovements in acquisition cemmitments 1,022 (2.378)
Movements in deferred consideration 36 1122
Fair value remeasurement o (675) -
Other 154 (455)
539 Q.71
Continuing operations adjusted net finance costs {571) 2.917)
Discontinued operations adjusted net finanhce income —Asset Management (99 84
Total adjusted net finance costs - (670) (2,633)
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7 Finance income and expense continued

The reconciliation of net finance costs In the Income Statement has been provided since the Directors consider it necessary in order to

provide an indication of the ad|usted net finance costs {(page 17)

Charges and credits relating to the movements in acguisition commitments and deferred consideration reflect future payments and
recelpts expected on historical transactions that do not directly relate to the current year results

The Group's convertible loan note asset s measured at farr value through profit or loss (FVTPL) (note 1). The fair value remeasurement is
an adjusting item as it relates to historical MBA activity rather than the current trading performance and 1s as a result of the revaluation of

the convertible loan note as at 30 September 2019

Other items in the adjusted net finance costs consist of interest Income of £0.2m (September 2018 £0 ém charge) for movements in
respect of uncertain tax positions Finance costs of £0 3m (2018, £0 2m) as a result of the VAT underpayment are excluded as the related
charge 1s not expected to recur In addition, at 30 September 2018, the other items included a gain realised on the close-out of the
interest rate swaps of £2 Im offset by the write-off of capitalised borrowing costs of £0.9m following the repayment of the Group's term
loan The net gain was excluded from adjusted finance costs as it would not have crystallised had the disposal of GMID not completed

8 Tax expense on profit

Discontinued

Discontinued

Continving cperaticns — Continuing operations —
operations Asset Management operations  Asset Management
2019 2019 2018 08
£000 £000 £000 £000
Current tax expense
UK corporation tax expense ) 9,438 - 17.661 -
Foreign tax expenss 1,754 12,638 10,596 12,743
Adjustments in respect of pricr years (959) (759) 8063 (613
10,233 1,879 36.320 12.682
Deferred tax expense/(credit) o
Current year o (.821) 603 5.654 (3.880)
Adjustments in respect of pnor years 05 (33) (656) —
{916) 470 5,038 {3.680)
Tax expense in Income Statement 9,317 12,349 41 358 8,802
Effective tax rate 32% 23% 39% 19%
The adjusted effective tax rate for the year is set out below
oo e T WD-A;S‘C»WO‘;;T;U:;WVM“A Discontinued
OPEI’GtiDnS— operatvoms—
Continuing Asset Total Conrtinuing Asset Total
cperations Management adjusted operattons Management adjusted
2019 2019 2019 2018 208 2018
£000 £000 EQ00 £000 FOOO £000
Reconciliation of tax expense in Income Statement to adjusted
tax expense )
Total tax expense in Income Statement B 9,317 12,349 21,666 41,358 8.802 50,160
Add back:
Deferred tax en acguired intangible amortisation 2,258 - 2,258 3.668 1,364 5.032
Tax on exceptional items (2,837 173 (2,664) (12.116) - A21é6)
Other tax adjusting tems ) (479} - {(479) (13.725) 1313 12.42)
Deferred tax on goedwill and intangible amortisation (843) - (643) (3.043 - (3.043)
Share of tax on profits of ¢ssociates and joint ventures (38) - (38) 333 - 333
Adjustments in respect of prior years 54 A2 9446 (7.407) 61 (7.346)
{1,885) 1,065 {820} (32.290) 27368 (29.552)
Adjusted tax expense —— 7,432 13,414 20,846 2068 11,540 20608
Ad|usted profit before tax 104,647 99,882
Adjusted effective tax rate 20% A%

The Group presents the above adjusted effective tax rate reconciliation to help users of this report better understand its tax charge.

In arrving at this rate, the Group removes the tax effect of exceptional and adjusting tems that reconcile statutory to adjusted profit

A detailed reconciliation of the Group's statutery results to the adjusted and underlying results is set out on pages 15 t0 18, The Group
excludes the deferred tax effects of iIntangible assets and goodwill. as the Group considers that this more accurately reflects its expected
cash tax payable position The deferred tax effects on goodwill and intangible items would only crystallise in the event of a disposal and

that is not the current intention
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Financial Statements

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

8 Tax expense on profit continued

Tax on exceptional items are excluded as exceptional items are adjusted In terms of the Group paolicy For the year ended 30 September
2019, tax on exceptional items relates largely to tax on gan on the disposal of Indaba of £3 2m Adustments in respect of prior years
are excluded on the basis that they relate mainly to finalisation of US tax reform related tems which are one off in nature. Share of tax
on profits of assaciates and joint ventures 1s calculated on the adusted profits of associates and joint ventures and excludes tax on
exceptional items consistent with the Group's histencal approach and policy

The actual tax expense for the year 1s different from the UK blended rate of 19% of profit before tax for the reasons set out in the

following reconciliation.

Discontinued

Discontinued

Continuing operations — Continuing operations—

operations Asset Management operatons  Asset Management

2019 2019 2018 2018

£000 £000 £Q00 FOOO

Profit before tax 29,451 55,090 106.816 47145
Cost of disposal of discontinued operations - (1,682) - -
} 29,451 53,408 106,816 47345

Tax at19 0% (2018.17 0%) - 5,596 10,148 20.295 8958

Factors affecting tax charée: ] o

Diffgrent tax rates of subsidianes operatng in overseas jurisdictions 27 4,635 1.330 4,164
Share of tax on associates and joint venturas 38 - (67) -
Non-taxable income _ - ® 13 (2.257)
Goodwill and intangibles ) - - 1.401 aan
Disallowable expenditure - 1,613 404 e 783
Disposat of businesses - - (3.227) -
Other timing differances 83 - - -
Other items deductible for tax purposes 1,915 s (1.748) {2.202)
US tax reform P - 37169 -
Non-recoverable wathhaolding tax - - 14.553 705
Impact of change in rate . 99 (22) (3,.371) (1.313)
Adjustments in respect of pricr years (54} (892) 7.407 €1
Total tax expense for the year .37 12,349 41,358 8.802

The Group's effective tax rate depends mainly on the geographic mix of profits and applicable tax rates. Different tax rates of subsidiaries
operating in overseas junsdictions of £4 7m (2018. £5 5 m) reflects higher profits earned in jurisdictions which have a higher tax rate than

the UK

Disallowable expenditure of £2.0m (2018 £2 4m) relates largely to expenses that are capital in nature and therefore not deductible for

tax purposes

Other items deductible for tax purposes reflects the tax mpact of allocating group interest expense between continuing operaticns and
discontinued operations on a proportionate basis There 1s no net iImpact on the total tax expense for the year.

Adjustments in respect of prior years of £0 9m (2018 £7 3m) relate to adjustments made to US tax reform reloted items following the
release of certain final regulations during the current period and a reassessment of temporary differences

In addition to the amount charged to the Income Statement. the following amounts relating to tax have been directly recognised in other

Comprehenswe income and equity:

Other comprehensive income Equity
2019 2018 209 2018
£000 £000 £000 £000
Deferred tax (note 22) 880y 474 124 796
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2 Dividends

2019 2018
£000 £000
Amounts recognisable as distributable to equity holders in the year o

Final dividend for the year ended 30 September 2018 of 22 30p (2017 21 80p) _ 24,348 23784
Interim dividend for year-' ended 30 September 2019 of 10 80p (2018 10 20p) - 11,799 1136
B o 36,147 34,920
Employee share trusts dwvidend o (561) (559
35,586 34.361

Proposed final dividend for the year ended 30 Septermber o 24,363 24,347
Employee share trusts dividend (368) (363)
23,995 23964

The proposed final dividend of 22 30p (2018 22 30p) 1s subject to approval at the AGM on 28 January 2020 and has not been included
as a bability in these Financial Statements in accordance with [AS 10 ‘Events after the Reporting Perniod

10 Earnings per share

Restated
2019 2016
£000 £000
Profit for the year from continuing operations 20,134 65458
Non-controlling interests T (264) 039)
Earnings from continuing aperations ] ] 19,870 65.319
Profit for the year from discontinued operations o i T 41,059 129.685
Total earnings o ) 60,929 195,004
Adjustments - 22,586 (15.871)
Total adjusted earnings 83,515 79133
2019 2018 mn
Number Number g
000 000 3
Weighted average number of shares o L 109,226 109.148 3’
Shares held by the employee share trusts T T (1,667) {1733) :,_c}»'
Weighted average number of shares o ) L 107,559 107.415 %
Effect of dilutive share options 25 131 %
Diluted weighted average number of shares 107,654 107 546 E-
- i Pence Pence
Earnings per share frem continuing operations
Basic - 18.5 50.8
Diluted j - 18.5 607
Earnings per share from discontinued operations
Basic ) 38.1 1207
Diluted o 38.1 1206
Total earnings per share
Basic 56.6 181.5
Diluted ) - 56.6 181.3
Total adjusted earnings per share )
Basic B 77.6 737
Diluted 77.6 73.6

The adjusted earnings per share figures have been disclosed since the Directors consider it necessary in order to give an indication of
the adjusted trading performance reflecting the performance both of the Group's continuing and discontinued cperations. A detailed
reconciliation of the Group’s statutary results to the adjusted and underlying results 1s set cut on pages 15 to 18
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11 Discontinued operations and disposal groups classified as held for sale

Fellowing the announcement on 10 September 2019 that the Group was to explere strategic ophons for Asset Management, the Group
has engaged with advisors to assess its options and the segment is being actively marketed The Asset Management segment meets

the IFRS & ‘Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations critena to be classified as held for sale at 30 September

2019 The assets and labilites of Asset Management have been disclosed separately on the face of the Consolidated Statement of
Financial Position The assets and Labilmes held for sale are recorded at the lower of their carrying value and farr value less costs to sell
No impairment of these net assets has been identified at 30 September 2019 The segment also meets the IFRS 5 criteria to be treated as
discontinued operations due to its size and the fact that it constitutes a majer line of the Group s business Asset Management is therefore
presented as discontinued operations thraughout this report and the 2018 Income Statement disclosures have been re-presented

On 30 April 2018. the Group completed the disposal of GMID This dvision met the IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations’ critenia to be treated as discontinued eperations at 30 September 2018

The results of the discontinued operations are as follows

Asset Asset
Management Managemenit GMID Total
2019 2018 2018 2018
£000 £000 £000 £000
Total revenue L 145,622 145.454 23,815 169 269
Operating profit before acquired intangible amortisation and exceptional
items ) 66,929 61 660 7.510 69170
Acquired intangible ameortisation o (10,928} (10,749} - (10.749)
Exceptional tems (812) (3.850) (369 4.819)
Operating profit S 55189 4704 6541 53,602
Finance income _:_ o - 84 43 127
Finance expense N - {n {n
Net finance income S 99 84 32 116
Profit before tax - 55,090 47145 6.573 53718
Tax (expense)/credit on profit {12,34%) (8.602) 200 (8.602)
Profit after tax from discontinued operations 42,741 38.343 6773 45116
(Cost of)/profit on dispesal of discontinued operation—excepuonal |te;rr;wsr . {1,682) ) - 91,263 91.263
Tax expense on cost of/(profit on) disposal - - (6.694) {6,694)
(Cost of)/profit after tax on disposal of discontinued operations (1,682) - 84,569 84,569
Profit for the year from discontinuved operations L 41,059 38.343 91,342 129,665
Asset Asset
M t ™ t
Reconciliation of profit before tax from discontinued operations in Income Statement to adjusted discontinued qnqge?;rg cnager;g}ré
opergtions: £000 £000
Profit before tax for the year from discontinued operations ) 55,090 47,145
Add back ) o
Acquired intangible amortisation 10,928 10,749
Exceptional items 812 3,850
Adjusted discontinued operations profit before tax for the year 66,830 61744
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11 Discontinued operations and disposal groups classified as held for sale continued

The impact of the discontinued operations on the cash flows 15 as follows

Asset Asset
Management Management GMID Tatal
2019 2018 2018 2018
£000 E£000 £000 £000
Operating cash flows ) 35,388 58.347 {2.5203 55,827
Investing cash flows (1,563) (3.263) 112,639 109,376
Financing cash flows 86 (424) 04) (438)
Total cash flows 33,891 54.660 110,105 164,765

The main classes of assets and liabilties comprising the businesses classified as held for sale are set outin the table below. These assets
and liabilities are recorded at the lower of their carrying value and fair values less costs to sell

m
3
a
3
Q.
a
@
¥
3
D
3
tr4

Asset

Management

2019

£000

Goodwill B B 213,030
Acquired intangible assets T h 50,165
Licenses and software mciuding internally generated assets 2,821
Property. plant and equipment . 604
Trade and other receivables 20,383
Deferred consideration receivabie 185
Contract assets 1,450
Dernvative financial instrurnents ) 23
Current income tax assets - 3,348
Cash and cash equivalents R o B 327
Total assets of the businesses held for sale 292,356
Trade and other payables (661)
Accruals i i (13.769)
Contract iabilities o {44,853)
Derivative financial instruments (06}
Deferred tax liabilties (12,145)
Total liabilities of the businesses held for sale {71,534)
Net assets 220,822
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

12 Goodwill and other intangible assets

Acquired intangible assets

Licences &
software
Total including
acquired internally
Trademarks Customer intangible generated
& brands relationships  Databases assets assets Goeodwill Total
2019 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Cost/carrying amount
At October 2018 o 208,17 151,696 13,931 371,344 19,718 462,534 853,596
Additions - - - - 8,379 - 8,379
Disposals (5,864) (1,388) - (7,252) {67) (5,644) (12,963)
Balance at acquisition of company 4,379 38,231 5,346 47,956 2568 27,639 75,846
Exchange differences 7 9,314 8,3N 754 18,459 933 22,168 41,560
Classified as held for sale {121,165) {70,181) (7,368) (198,714) (8,655) (240,775} (448,144)
At 30 September 2019 92,381 126,749 12,643 231,793 20,576 265,922 518,291
Amortisation and impairment
At1 October 2018 105,253 87,561 10,686 203,500 14,059 47,812 265,37
Amortisation charge
Continuing operations 7.034 5,742 1,439 14,215 1,245 - 15,460
Discontinued operations 4,669 6,259 - 10,928 854 - 11,782
Impairment ] - - - - - 2,410 2,410
Dispesals {5,864) {1,388) - (7,252) (67) (5,644) 12,963)
Exchange differences 5,006 3,918 481 9,406 708 2,808 12,921
Classified as held for sale (77,188)  (63,993) (7,368) (148,54%) (5,817) (27,745) (s2,1)
At 30 September 2019 38,910 38,099 5,238 82,247 10,982 19,641 112,870
Net book value/carrying amount
at 30 September 2019 53,471 88,4650 7,425 149,546 9,594 245,281 405,421
Acquired Intangible gssets
Licences
& software
Total including
acquired internally
Trademarks Customer ntangible  generated
& brands relationships  Databases assets assets Goachaiil Tatal
2008 EOOO F000 £000 E000 £000 £000 £000
Cost/carrying amount
A1 October 2017 210 273 150418 13701 374392 17,984 467,215 859,591
Additions - - - 3262 - 3.262
Disposals - - - - (1.943) - (1,943}
Balance at acquisttion of company 5.317 5941 - 11.258 - 10.205 21.463
Transfer - 618 - - 618 - (618) -
Exchange differences 4.022 2973 230 7225 A15 3.351 16.991
Classified as held for sale 14.513) (7.635) - (22149) - (23.619) (45 768)
At 30 September 2018 205717 151.696 13.931 371344 19718 462,534 853,596
Amortisation and impairment o
At October 2017 95 964 80.474 Q602 186,040 12 345 67,244 265 629
Amortisation charge B
Continuing operations 5.572 5,542 876 11.990 2577 - 14,567
Discontinued operations 4610 6139 - 10749 331 - 11.080
Impairment - = - - - 3,048 3.048
Disposals LT - — {.511) - {1.511)
Exchange differences 2192 1.687 2086 4,087 317 1139 5.543
Classified as held for sale (3.085) (6,280 - (9.366) - {23,619) (32,985)
At 30 September 2018 105.253 87.561 10,666 203,500 14,059 47 812 265,37
Net book value/carrying amount
at 30 September 2018 100 464 654135 3,245 167 844 5659 414,722 588225
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12 Goodwill and other intangible assets continued

The individually material acquired intangible assets are as follows

) Trademarks & brands Customer relationships
Total
2019 2019 2019 2019 2019
2019 £000 years' £000 years' £000
BCA? 35,426 17 35,426
Metal Bulletin B 8,851 17 8,851
NDR? ] ] 5,751 12 4,575 1 10,326
RIS| ) . 20,390 13 36,215 18 56,605
The Deal ) 12,953 19 12,953
BoardEx T 24,410 21 24410
70,418 78,153 148,571

Trademarks & brands Customer relaticnships
Total
2018 208 2018 2018 2018
2018 £000 years £000 years £000
BCA? - 37.380 18 37380
Metal Bulletin R 9.892 18 9,892
NDR? 5.689 13 9503 2 15392
Fastmarksts o 4478 8 4478
Ris| o 20,791 14 36145 19 56936
73.952 50,126 124.078

1 The remaining useful ecerioric life

2 Included in assets held for sa.e (nate 1)

Intangible assets, other than goodwill. have a finite Ufe and are amortised over therr expected useful lives at the rates set out in the
accounting policies in note 1 of this report

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated, at acquisition, to the cash generating units (CGUs) that are expected to
benefit from that business cembination

Dunng the year, the goodwill in respect of each of the CGUs was tested for impairment in accordance with 1AS 36 Impairment of Assets’.
An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount The recoverable
ameount is the higher of an asset's value in use or fair value less costs of disposal

Following the implementation of the best-of-bath worlds operating model and changes to management reporting. impairmant testing
was based on eight groups of CGUs which reflect the lavel at which goodwill s monitored by management

The following methodologies applied and key assumptions, reflecting past experience and external sources of information included

Vaiue in use (VIU):

*+ Pre-tax cash flow budgets with a@ CAGR of 1% to 13% for the next three years are derived from approved 2019 budgets. These budgets
are based on historical growth rates and managements view of expected performance Management believes these budgets to
be achievable

* The pre-tax discount rates denved from the Group's benchmarked weighted average cost of capitat (WACC) are weighted based
on the geographical area in which the CGU group's revenue is generated. The long-term growth rate applied are weighted on the
same basis.

Fair value less costs of disposal (FVLCOD):

* Farrvalue less costs of disposal is calculated using o discounted cash flow approach, with a post-tax discount rate applied to the
projected risk-adjusted post-tax cash flows and terminal value

* Post-tax cash flows with a CAGR of -4% to 9% are derived from approved 2019 budgets. Management believes these budgets to
be achievable.

* The period of specific projected cash flows is between three and five years.

+ Post-tax discount rates of 9 6% t0 12 0%. derived from the Group's benchmarked WACC of 8% adjusted for nisks specific to the nature
of CGU groups and risks included within the cash flows themselves

* Long-term nominal growth rate of 1 8% to 2 0%

= Uses significant inputs which are not based on observable market data Therefore. this valuation technique 1s classified as level 3 1n
the fair value hierarchy
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Financial Statements

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

12 Goodwill and other intangible assets continued

The discount rates and long-term growth rates used i the calculation are as per the below table

2019
Long-term

growth rate Disceunt rate Goodwill
CGU Group ) Valugtion method % % £000
Centrqfor lvestor Education (CIE) n VIU - - =
Institutional Investor! FVLCOD 1.8 9.8 5,615
Investment Research! FVLCOD 2.0 2.6 207,415
Specialist Information N ViU 2.1 12.3 28,672
BoardEx and The Deal - FVLCOD 2.0 12.0 28,939
Banking & Finance o ViU 2.5 12.5 38,630
Fastmarkets ViU 2.2 12.6 135,630
Telecoms ViU 2.5 12.4 14,410

1 Included n assets held for sale {nete 11) inthe prioryear the recoverable value of these CGU groups were estmated using the value ir use methad but gwver that the value of these CGUs
will now be realsed vio ther soe a fair value less cast of disposal appreach has been taken for the year ended 30 Septerrber 2019

For the year ended 30 September 2019, following the closure of CIE. an impairment of £2 4m for goodwill was recognised in exceptional
iterns (note 5) CIE is included in the sold/closed businesses segment,

For the year ended 30 September 2018, an impairment for Layerl23 of £3 Om was recognised. resulting from its disappointing financial
performance post acquisition In 2019, following the review of CGUs. this CGU was aggregated to form part of the Telecoms CGU group

Further disclosures in accordance with IAS 36 are provided where the Group holds an individual goodwill item relating to a CGU group
that is significant. which the Group considers to be 15% or more of the Group's total carrying value of goodwill

The Directors performed a sensitivity analysis on the total carrying value of each CGU group

Significant CGU groups

For Fastmarkets, for the recoverable amount to fall to the carrying value, the discount rate would need to be increased by six percentage
peints, the long-term growth rate reduced by seven percentage points or the CAGR on cash flows reduced by 16 percentage points.

See the VIU section on page 135 for key assumptions and methodologies applied.

For Investment Research, for the recoverable amaunt to fall to the carrying value. the discount rate would need to be increased by
two percentage points, the long-term growth rate reduced by two percentage points or the CAGR on cash flows reduced by eight
percentage points See the FVLCOD section on page 135 for key assumptions and methodologies applied
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13 Property, plant and equipment

Leaseheld Office
improvements equipment Total

2019 £000 £000 £000
Cost o
At1 October 2018 - - - 15,790 12,850 28,640
Additions i 1,069 568 1,637
Disposals B o Mm3) (3,053) {3,168)
Balance at acquisiion of new company 7 i 242 43 285
Exchange differences 636 523 1,159
Classified as held for scle {1,505) {2,208) {3,713)
At 30 September 2019 16,119 8,723 24,842
Depreciation )
At] October 2018 ] B 3,858 8,670 12,528
Charge for the year ) o

Continuing operations B 777 1,166 1,251 2,417

Discontinued operations o 72 255 327
Disposals ] ] - may (3,020) (3.133)
Exchange differences o 160 358 518
Classified as held for sale a1 (1,998) (3,109
At 30 September 2019 4,032 5,516 9,548
Net book value at 30 September 2019 12,087 3,207 15,294

Leasehold COffice
Improvements eguipment Total

2018 £QO0 £000 EDOQ
Cost ]
At1 October 2017 B 14.995 12,177 27,172
Additions 801 177 1978
Disposals L (295) (786) {1081 mn
Batance at acquisition of nemfccmpany a s 4 4 § :
Exchange differences 269 278 567 g,
At 30 September 2018 15790 12,850 28,640 @
Depreciation N §
At1 October 2017 - ' 2,558 7.379 9937 [H
Charge for the year ,3.

Continuing operaticns ( o 7 1059 1,502 2.561 “
__ Discontinued operations ) L 453 342 795
Disposals - (280) 749) (.02%)
Exchange differences T B 69 195 264
At 30 September 2018 3.859 8 6469 12.528
Nset book value at 30 September 2018 11931 4,181 16112
Net book value at 30 September 2017 12 437 4,796 17.235

There is no material difference between the property, plant and equipment's historical cost values as stated above and their fair
value equivalents.
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14 Investments

Investment in Investinent in Other equity

associates joint ventures investments Total

£000 £000 £000 £000

At1 October 2017 26,620 - 3.546 30.366
Disposals L _(26794) - - (26.194)
Exchange difference o [GS1)] ] - - an
Provision agamnst investment losses N - 7 13 7 - 13
Share of profits/(losses) after tax 170 03 - 157

At 30 September 2018 715 - 3546 4,261
Impact of adopting IFRS ¢ - - (385) (385)
At1October 2018 (restated) 715 - 3161 3876
Fair value remeasurements o - - 213 2,131
Transfer from other equily to associate investment 5,292 - (5,292) -
Share of losses after tax (88) - - (88)
Dividends o 197) - - qa97)
Transfer to subsidiary (451) - - (451)

At 30 September 2019 527N - - 5,27

In accordance with IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’, other equity investments are classified as financial assets measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income The 'Avalable-for-sale investrments’ category has changed to 'Other eguity investments” with effect
1 October 2018

All of the above investments in associates and (sint ventures are accounted for using the equity method in these consolidated
financial staterments

2019 2018
£000 £000
Reconciliation of share of results in associates and joint ventures in Income Statement to adjusted share
of results in associates and joint ventures o L
Total share of results in associates and joint ventures in Imcorpg-‘SAtcrement (88) 157
Add back
Share of tax on profits L (38) 333
Share of tax on acquired intangible amortisation and exceptional items = (268)
Share of acquired intangible amortisation ) - 761
Share of exceptional tems! . - 125
(38) 353
Adijusted share of results in associates and joint ventures (126) 1110

I The share of exceptional tems related to restructuring and sarn-out costsin Dealogie which was disposed of in Decemnbear 2217

The reconciliation of share of results in associates and joint ventures in the Income Statement has been provided since the Directors
consider it necessary in order to provide an indication of the adjusted share of results in associates and joint ventures A detailed
reconciliation of the Group’s statutory results to the adjusted and underlying results s set out on pages 15 to 18 The share of profit after
tax includes a finance expense of Eril (2018 £0.3m).

For the year ended 30 September 2018. the Group disposed of its minarity equity stake of 15 5% in Diamond TopCo Limited (Dealogic) for
$135 Om (F100 Tm) on 27 December 2017 The disposal of the associate with a net book value of £26 Zm gave rise to a profit on disposal
of £71.7m. after deducting disposal costs, which was recogrised as an exceptional item (note 5) in the Income Statement The Group's
share of the trading profit of Dealogic was £83k.
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14 Investments continued

Information on investment in associates investment in |oint ventures and other equity investments

Year Date of Type of Group
Principal activity ended acquisition holding interest Registered Office
Investment in associates
Zanbate. Inc (Zankato) Private capital placement and 308ep  Sept2015  Ordinary 9% 715 N Shoreline Boulevard,
workflow Maountain View CA, 94043
N United States
Investment in joint ventures
Sanostro Instituticnal Hedge fund manager 31 Bec  Dec20ld  Ordinary 500% Allmendstrasse 140,
AG (Sanostro) trading signals 8041 Zurich. Switzerlond
Other equity investments
Estimize. Inc (Estimize) Financial estimates platform 3N Dec  July2015  Ordinary 100% 43 West 24th Street,

New York, NY 10010,
United States

The Group previously held an associate interest of 49% of the equity share capital of Breadmedia Communications Limited
(BroadGroup) On12 April 209 the Group acguired an additional 17% of the equity share capital of BroadGroup and is subsequently
accounted for as a subsidiary (note 15)

It has been determined that the Group has significant influence over Zanbato from 26 July 2019 (note 2) The Group has therefore used
the equity method to account for its @ 9% equity investment in Zanbato

The Group interests in Sanostro and Estimize have remained unchanged since their respective dates of acquisition

Aggregate information of asseciates that are not individually matenal

2019 2018
£000 £000
Group share of (losses)/profit from continuing operations S (88) 87
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group's interests in these associates 5,271 715
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Financial Statements

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

15 Acquisitions and disposals

Purchase of businesses

The Deal LLC (BoardEx and The Deal)

On 14 February 2019, the Group acquired 100% of the equity share capital of The Deal LLC. compnising BeardEx, an executive profiling
and relationship-mapping platfiorm. and The Deal. a trusted source of data. news and intelligence on mergers and acquisitions. activist
investing. private equity and restructuning, for $93 4m (£72 5m) Both preducts are highly complementary to the Greup's existing portfolic,
serving a number of shared customer groups. particularly investers, banks and professional services firms. BoardEx and The Deal are
included in the Pricing. Data & Market Intellgence segment

The acquisition accounting 15 set out below and 8 provisional pending final determination of the fair value of the assets and

labilities acquired

Book Fair value Provisional
value adjustments fair value
£000 £000 £000
Net assets /(liabilities): o
Intangible assets 1,414 43,945 45,359
Property. plant and equipment 285 - 285
Deferred tax assets 1,335 (547) 748
Trade and other receivables o 5,585 - 5,585
Trade and ather payables e (3,410) - (3,411)
Contract liahilities ) 10,645) 2,180 (8,465)
Cash and cash equivalents 4,777 - 4,777
- (660) 45,578 44,918
Net assets acquired (100%) - o 44,918
Goodwill 27,619
Total consideration 72,537
Consideration satisfied by:
Coh - - 72,472
Working capital adjustment T &5
72,537
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: -
Cash consideration ) ) 72,537
Less cash and cash equivalent balances acquired @4,777)
&7,760

Intangible assets represent customer relationships of $47.4m (£36 8m) brands of $3 8m (£3.0m). databases of $5 4m (£4 2m) and
software of $1 8m (F1.4m) for which amortisation of 32 8m (£2 2m) has been charged for the penod ended 30 September 2019

The intangible assets will be amertised over their respective expected useful economic lives; customer relationships of between four and
22 years. databases of between one and 10 years, software of three years and brands of 10 years

Goodwill arises from the anticipated future operating synergies from integrating the acquired operations within the Group and the
acquired workforce Goodwill recognised in respect of the US business is expected to be deductible for US income tax purposes.

The $2.8m (£2.2m) fair value adjustment to contract liabilities relates to an adjustment to reduce the deferred revenue balance.
The related deferred tax liability of $0.7m (£0 5m) has been recognised as a fair value adjustment against deferred tax assets.

The fair value of the assets acquired includes gross trade recewables of $4 1m (£3 2m) and are expected to be fully collectable

BoardEx and The Deal contributed $14 8m (£11.6m) to the Group's revenue. $1 4m (£11m) to the Group's operating profit and $14m
(E11m) to the Group's profit before tax for the period between the date of acquisition and 30 September 2012 If the acquisition had been
completed on the first day of the financial year, BoardEx and The Deal would have contributed $24 ém (£19.2m) to the Group's revenue
and $2 8m (£2 2m) to the Group's operating profit
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15 Acquisitions and disposals continued

Transfer to subsidiary

Broadmedia Communications Limited (BroadGroup)

On12 April 2019. the Group acquired an additional 17% shareholding in BroadGroup for a cash consideration of £0.4m, bringing the
Group's total shareholding to 66% The Group previously held an associate interest of 49% of the equity share capital The Group
accounts for its increased equity shareholding in BroadGroup of 66% as a subsidiary. At the acquisition date. the non-controlling
interest of 34% is meosured using the proportion of net assets method BroadGroup is included in the Pricing. Data & Market
Intelligence segment

On the date that the additional 17% shareholding was acquired. there was o revaluation gain of £0 6m on the associate investment,
bringing the fair value of the associate when disposed of to £1 1m

The remaining interest in BroadGroup 15 subject to put and calt options under an earn-out agreement, in two instalments, based on the
profits of BroadGroup for its years ended 30 September 2012 and 2020 At acquisition, the total amount that the Group expected to pay
under this option agreement was £1 4m and was recognised as an acquisition commitment (note 25)

The acquisition accounting is set out below and 1s provisional pending final determination of the fair value of the assets and
liabiities acquired:

Book Fair value Provisiohal
value adjustments fair value
£000 £000 £000
Net assets /(liobilities):
Intangible assets ] - 2,865 2,865
Trade and other recevables - - 3,364 - 3,364
Trade and other payables {3,503) - (3.503)
Deferred tax lakilities ) - (487) (487)
Cash and cash equivalents 54 - 54
. {B5) 2,378 2,293
Net assets acauired (;'56%) B S 1,514
Goodwill B 20
Total consideration ) 1,534
Consideration satisfied by:
Cash - - 395
Fair value of asscoiate - - T S 1,139
1,534
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: -
Cash consideration N 395
Less cash and cash equivalent balances acqu\redh (54)
343

Intangible assets represent customer relationships of £1 4m and the brand of £1 4m for which amortisation of £0.1m has lbeen charged for
the year The customer relationships will be amortised over their expected useful economic lives of 15 years The brand will be amortised
overits expected useful life of 15 years.

Geodwill arises from the anticipated future operaling synergles from integrating the acquired operations within the Group and the
acquired workforce

The fair value of the assets acquired includes net trade receivables of £3 Om, all of which are contracted and are expected to
be collectable

BroadGroup contributed £2 5m to the Group's revenue. £0.8m to the Group's operating profit and £0 8m to the Group's profit after tax
for the period between the date of acquistion and 30 September 2019 If the acquisition had been completed on the first day of the
financial year. BroadGroup would have contributed £3 5m to the Group's revenue and £0 7m to the Group's operating profit (excluding
exceptional costs)

Increase in equity haldings

Reinsurance Security (Consultancy) Co Uk (ReSec)

On 19 December 2018. the Group made an earn-out payment of £0 Im to increase its equity shareholding in ReSec The payment
increased the Group’s holding from 83% to 88%
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Financial Statements

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

15 Acquisitions and disposals continued

Sale of business
Mining Indaba

On 23 October 2018, the Group completed the sale of Mining Indaba Thre gross consideration for the saie was £30 1m. wath £20.0m
payable on completion and net deferred consideration of £8 7m received in june 2019 The settlement of the deferred consideration

has been offset against a working capital adjustment in favour of the buyer The sale resulted in o pre-tax profit of £17 Om after

transaction costs of £0.3m, which was recogrised as an exceptional itern (note 5). The assets and labilities of this business scld were
classified as heid for sale and disclosed separately on the face of the Consolidated Statement of Financial Positian for the year ended

30 September 2018

The net assets of the businesses at the date of disposal were as follows

Indaba
£000
Net assets: L
Intangible assets _ T T 12,783
Trade and other receivakbles 1,21
Deferred income {2,620)
L - 1,374
Net assets disposed Nn,374
Directly attributable costs 347
Profit on disposal (nzate 5) ] 16,998
Total consideration 28,719
Consideration satisfied by:
Cash B ] 20,000
Deferred consideration (net of working capital adjustments) 8,719
] 28,719
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: o L
Cash consideration (néf of directly attnbutable costs poid and work‘mg ca plidé c;-ai-ﬁétr;';ents) 19,653
Receipt of deferred consideration ' ' ) 8,71%
28,372

Total cash inflow
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16 Trade and other receivables

209 2me
£000 £000
Amounts falling due within one year - )

Trade recevables - - 38,180 53,534
Less. provision for impairment of trade receivables o (1,588) {(3153)
Trada receivables —net of provision ) o 36,592 50,381
Other debtors - ' 2,262 4.847
Prepayments ] o 10,101 10.395
Accrued income o T - 2.662
48,955 68,285

2019 2019 2019

£000 £000 %

Trade Loss Expected

receivables allowance loss rate

Current 27,966 (A7) 1%
Past due more than a month but less than two months 1,341 - 0%
Past due more than two months but less than three months ) 4,435 62) 1%
Past due more than three months 4,438 (1,109) 25%
Total 38,180 {1,588) 4%

The Group has applied the expected credit loss model required by IFRS 9. using the simplified appreach for trade receivables and
recognised the loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses (note 1) The expected credit loss model incorporates
forward-locking factors at the customer level in addition to the gecgraphical level

Trade receivables are written off when there 15 no reasonable expectation of recovery.

Prior to the adoption of IFRS 2 on 1 October 2018, loans and recevables were stated net of allowances for estimated trrecoverable
amounts These allowances were recorded after identification of a loss event (the incurred loss method).

Ageing of past due but not impaired trade receivables

2018

£000

Past due less than a menth o Nn.326
Past due more than a month but less than two months - ) - 3.901
Past due more than twe months but less than three months T 3.280
Past due more than three months 4246
23453

The Group had not provided for these trade receivables as there has been no significant change in their credit quality and the amounts
are still considered recoverable These relate to @ number of Independent customers for whom there i1s ne recent history of default

Movements on the Group loss allowance

2019 2018

£000 £000
At1 October o (3,153) (3.688)
IFRS 9 adjustment ) - _mmj 828 -
Increase in loss allowance recognised in profit or lass durning the year o (1,659) 211
Subseqguent recoveries of amounts provided for S 1,243 1785
Amounts written off as uncollectible ) 859 804
Exchange differences ' i (54) 8y
Classified as held for sale 348 75
At 30 September e B . (1,588) (3.153)
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Financial Statemeants

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

17 Trade and other payables

Restated

209 2018

E£000 £000

Trade creditors 2,783 2 687
Other creditars 41,146 42,244
43,929 44 931

The Directors consider the carrying dmounts of trade and other payables approsmate therr fair values Other creditors have been
restated, the details of which have been disclosed in note 1 The balance includes amaunts refating to the payroll taxes and VAT
adjustment Of the other creditors balance at the end of 2019, £11 3m (2018 £11 Om) relates to the VAT liability and £8.2m (2018 £6 7m)
relates to payroll taxes referred to in note 1

18 Deferred income and contract liabilities

Foreign Classified as

2018 Additions Releases exchange heid for sale 2019

£000 E000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Deferred subscription income ) 57,589 92721 (94 .273) 3.956 (40 452) 66,541
Other deferred income - 22.815 25509 (22815} 779 (4.400) 21,887
120,404 125.230 (117.068) 4,735 (44,853) 88,428

Within one year -  70es o 87,150
in more than one year 3316 1,278
120,404 88,428

The deferred income balance as at 30 September 2019 is a contract lability, All movements in deferred income in the period are due to
the timing difference between the right to consideration and the satisfaction of perfermance obligations At 30 September 2012, contracts
include £31 9m relating to performance obligations that are yet te be satisfied which will be recognised overtime. of which £30 &m will
be recognised within one year and the remaining balance thereafter
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19 Financial instruments and risk management

Derivative financial instruments
The derivative financial assets/(liabilities) excluding assets held for sale at 30 September comprised

2019 2018
Assets  Liabilities Assets Liabilities
E£000 £000 £000 £000
Current
Forward foreign exchange contracts — cash flow hedge 219 (3,578) 131 (2.424)
Classified as held for sale forward fareign exchange contracts —cash flow hedge 23 (106) - -
- L _ 242 (3,484) 13 (2.424)
Non-current )
Forward foreign exchange contracts— cash flow hedge 23 {293) 55 (i66)
335 (3.977) 186 (2.590)

Financial risk rmanagement objectives

The Group's activities expose It to a variety of financial nisks market nisk (including currency nisk. interest rate risk and price risk), credit nsk
and bquidity risk arising in the normal course of business. Derivative financial instruments are used to manage exposures to fluctuations in
foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates but are not emploved for speculative purposes

Full details of the objectives. policies and strategies pursued by the Group in relation to financial nsk management are set out in this
note and on page 118 of the accounting policies The Group's Tax and Treasury Cemmittee 15 responsible for recommending policy to the
Board. The Group s treasury policies are directed to giving greater certainty of future costs and revenues and ensuring that the Group
has adequate liquidity for working capital and debt capacity for funding acquisitions

The treasury department does not act as a profit centre, nor does it undertake any speculative trading activity and it operates within
policies and procedures approved by the Board

Interest rate swaps are used to manage the Group's exposure to fluctuations in interest rates on its floating rate borrowings.
Further details are set out In the interest rate risk section (pages 148 and 149)

Forward contracts are used to manage the Group's exposure to fluctuations in exchange rate movements on foreign currency
transactions Further details are set out in the foreign exchange rate risk section (pages 147 and 148)

Capital risk management
The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities 1n the Group will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to stakeholiders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group's overall strategy remains unchanged

from 2018

The capital structure of the Group comprises squity attributable to equity helders, comprising share capital, reserves and retained
earnings as disclosed in the Statement of Changes in Equity
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Net cash te adjusted EEITDA, ratio

The Group's Tax and Treasury Committee reviews the Group's capital structure at least twice a year Committed bank facilities available
to the Group until December 2021 contain covenants based on a maximum 3.0 times net debt to adjusted EBITDA and a minimum
interest cover ratio of 3.0 times. The amounts and foreign exchange rates used in the covenant calculations are subject to adjustments as
defined under the terms of the arrangement Management regularly menitors the covenants and prepares detailed cash flow forecasts
te ensure that sufficient headroom is available and that the covenants are not at risk of a breach Additionally, the Group arranges its
currency borrowings in order that they are in propaortion to the ratio of earnings in that particular currency to total Greup earnings

The bank covenant ratio uses an average exchange rate in the calculation of net debt or net cash The resultant net cash to adjusted
EBITDA ratio 1s 0 44 times (2018 restated 0 71 times) Using a closing rate basis for the valuation of net cash. the ratio was 0.45 times
(2018 restated 073 times)
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19 Financial instruments and risk management continued

Categories of financial instruments
The Group's financial assats and liakilties at 30 September are as follows

2m9 2018
£000 £000
Financial assets L B
Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) assets B
Dernvative instruments B 7_ 312 186
Convertible loan note {reclassified from amortised cost) i 3,759 -
Cash and cash equivalents —money market funds (reclassified from amortised cost) 36,333 -
Classtfied as held for sale dervatives 7 B 23 -
Amortised cost -
Other equity investments {nate 14) (redussw%\ed ic-;“FVTOCI) - 3.546
Convertible loan note {reclassified to FVTPL) - - 2677
Deferred consideration - 1120
Trade receivables and cther debtors o - o 40,628 57.890
Cash and cash equivalents —amortised cost 7 o 13,418 28,056
Cash and cash equivalents—maeney market funds (reclassified to FVTPL) L e - 50.215
Classihed as held for sale receivables (including cash at bank) 22,368 36
116,841 144.628
Financial liabilities 7 -
Fair value through profit or loss liabilities
Derivative Instruments o o (3,871) (2.590)
Deferred consideration ) - (138) (236)
Classified as held for sale dervatives ) 06) -
Amortised cost » o L
Acquisition commitments B ‘ {2,626) (272)
Deferred consideration o o - (98)
Borrowings and payables o (72,%83) (91.427)
Classified as held for sale borrowings and poyc:bles; B {14,536) (302)
(94,260) (94.925)

In accordance with IFRS ¢ 'Financial Instruments’. other equity investments are classified as financial assets measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income Equity investments previously classified as "Available-for-sale investments’ are now categorised as

‘Other equity investments’ with effect from 1 October 2018
The classification of each of the Group's financial Instruments as per the fair value hierarchy is disclosed on page 151.

The Group has dervative assets of £0 3m (2018 £0 2m) and denivative liakilities of £3 9m (2018 £2 6m) with a number of banks

These derivatives do not meet the offsetting criteria of IAS 32, but the Group would have the right to offset same currency cash flows with
the same counterparties which settled on the same date Canseguently, the gross amount of the derivative assets and the gross amount

of the derivative liabilties are presented separately in the Group's Statement of Financial Position

The Group has entered inte an omnibus guarantee and setoff agreement with Lloyds Banking Group ple with a right to offset

outstanding credit balonces against cash balances Cash and cash equivalents include no overdrafts in either 2019 or 2018 that are

offset under the cash pooling arrangements. This agreement meets the offsetting criteria of IAS 32

Upon transition to IFRS ¢, o £0.8m reduction in the expected credit loss allowance and a £0.4m fair value loss on the Zankato equity
investment have been recognised at1 Cctober 2018 against opening reserves During the year, a fair value gain of £0.7m on the FVTPL
convertible loan note has been recognised in finance income (note 7) and a fair value gain of £2.1m on the Zanbate FVTOCI equity
investment has been recognised in other comprehensive income It has been determined that the Greup has significant influence over
Zanbato from 26 July 2019 {note 2} hence the equity method to cccount for its @ 9% equity investment in Zanbato as an associate.

The Group's remaining FYTOCI investment in Estimize has o fair value of nil at 30 September 2019

i) Market price risk

Market price risk 1s the possikility that changes in currency exchange rates. interest rates or commodity prices will adversely affect

the value of the Group's financial assets, liabilities or expected future cash flows The Group's primary market risks are interest rate
fluctuations and exchange rate movements. Derivatives are used to hedge or reduce the nisks of interest rate and exchange rate
movernents and are not entered into unless such risks exist. Derivatives used by the Group for hedging a particular risk are not
specialised and are generally available frem numerous sources The fair values of forward exchange contracts are set out in this note
and represent the value for which an asset could be sold or lability settled between knowledgeable willing parties in an arm’s length
transaction calculated using the market rates of interest and exchange at 30 September 2019. The Group has ne other material market
price risks Market risk exposures are measured using sensitivity analysis
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19 Financial instruments and risk management continued

i) Market price risk continued
There has been no change to the Group's exposure to market nsks or the manner in which it manages and measures the risks during

the year

if} Foreign exchange rate risk

The Group's principal foreign exchange exposure is to the US dollar The Group generates approximately three quarters of its revenues in
US dollars. including approximately 40% of the revenues i ts UK-based businesses. and approsmately two-thirds of its operating profits
are US dollar-denominated. The Group is therefore exposed to foreign exchange risk on the US deollar revenues in its UK businesses. the
translation of results of foreign subsidiaries and loans to foregn operations within the Group where the denomination of the loan 1s not in
the functional currency of the lender/borrower

The Group does not hedge the translation of the results of foreign subsidianies Fluctuations in the value of sterling versus foreign
currencies could materially affect the amount of these items in the Consolidated Financial Statements, even if their values have not
changed in their original currency The Group endeavours to match foreign currency borrowings to investments in order to provide a
natural hedge for the translation of the net assets of overseas subsidiaries.

The carrying amounts of the Group's US dollar-denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities, including assets held for sale at
the reporting date, are as follows'

Assets Liabilities
2019 2018 2019 2018
£000 £000 £000 £000
US doller - 122,73 130459 {26,811y (167.253)

Subsidiaries normally do not hedge transactions in foreign currencies into the functional currency of their own operations. However, at
a Group level, a series of US dollar and euro forward contracts are put in place to sell forward surplus US dollars and euros so as to
hedge up to 80% of the Group's UK based US dollar and euro revenues for the coming 12 months and 50% of the Group's UK based
US dollar and eurc revenues for the subsequent six months The timing and value of these forward contracts is based on management's
estimate of its future US dollar and euro revenues over an 18 month pericd and is regularly reviewed and revised, with any changes in
estimates resulting in either additional forward eontracts being taken out or existing contracts’ matunty dates being moved forward or
back If management materally underestimates the Group's future US dollar and euro denominated revenues, this would lead to too
few forward contracts being in place and the Group being more exposed to swings in US dollar and euro to sterling exchange rates
An overestimate of the Group's US dollar and eurs denominated revenues would lead to associated costs in unwinding the excess
forward contracts. The Group alse has a significant operation in Canada whose revenues are mainly in US dollars. A series of forward
contracts are put in place up to 186 months forward to hedge the operation’s Canadian dollar cost base In addition, each subsidiary is
encouraged to invoice sales in its local functional currency where possible. Forward exchange contracts are gross settled at maturity.

Impact of 10% strengthening of sterling against US dollar

The following table details the Group's sensitivity to a 10% increase and decrease in sterling against US dollar, including assets held
for sale A10% sensitivity has been determined by the Board as the sensitivity rate appropriate when reporting an estimated foreign
currency risk internally and represents management's assessment of a reasonably possible change In foreign exchange rates at the
reporting date.
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The sensitivity analysis includes only cutstanding foreign currency denominated monetary items and adjusts their transtation at the
period end for @ 10% change in foreign currency rates The sensitvity analysis includes external loans as well as loans to foreign
operations within the Group where the denomination of the loan 15 not In the functional currency of the lender/borrower Where sterling
strengthens 10% against the relevant currency. a negative number below indicates a decrease in profit and equity. For a 10% weakening
of sterling against the relevant currency, there would be an equal and opposite impact on the profit and other comprehensive income
and the balances below would be positive

2019 2018
£000 £000
Change in profit for the year in Income Statement (USD net assets in WK companias) NN {911}
Change in other comprehensive income (dervative financial instruments) N 6,550 7167
Change in other comprehensive income (loans to/from foreign operations) (5,824) 12122

The increase in the loss from the sensitivity analysis is due to an increase in the working capital assets The decrease in other
comprehensive Income from £7 Zm to £6 6m from the sensitivity analysis is mainly attnbutable to the exclusion of derivatives held in
entities of which the functional currency is not sterling.

The change in other comprehensive income from a10% change in sterling agonst US dollars in relation to the translation of loans ta/
from foreign operations within the Group where the denomination of the loan is not in the functional currency of the lender/borrower
would resultin @ change of £5 8m (2018 £12 1m). The decrease in other comprehensive income from the sensitivity analysis 1s due to
Group restructuring undertaken following dispasals in the year ended 30 September 2018, The change in other comprehensive income
from the retranslation of loans to/from foreign operations is completely offset by the change in value of the foreign operation’s net assets
from therr translation into sterling
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19 Financial instruments and risk management continued

ii) Foreign exchange rate risk continued

The Group 15 also exposed to the translation of the results of its US dollar-denaminated businesses. although the Group dees not hedge
the translation of these results Consequently fluctuations in the value of sterling versus other currencies could materially affect the
translation of these results in the Consolidated Financial Statements

Forward foreign exchange contracts

It 1s the policy of the Group to enter into forward foreign exchange contracts to cover specic foreign currency payments and receipts.

A series of US dollar and euro forward contracts are put in plaze to sell forward surplus US dollars and eures so as to hedge up to 80%
of the Group's UK-based US dallar and euro revenues for the coming 12 months and 50% for the subsequent six menths In addition. a
series of US dollar forward contracts are put in place up to 18 months forward to hedge the Group's Canadian operdtion's cost base
held in discontinued operations

Average exchange rate Foreign currency Contract valve Fair value
209 208 zne 2018 2019 2018 2019 208

$000 $000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Cash Flow Hedges Sell USD buy GBP
Less than o year 1.319 1372 69,930 69 400 53,035 50,587 (3,399 (2.162)
More thar a year but tess than two years 1.269 1346 18,700 186300 14,734 13595 (288) 26)
Sell USD buy CAD' ) B
Less than a year 1.310 1271 10,567 13,148 8,497 8.427 (1)) (30
More than a year but less than two years 1.322 1292 2,448 3863 1,986 2969 @ 16

€000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Sell EUR buy GBP
Less than a year 119 1115 21,515 20.000 19,227 17,930 40 —
More than a yeadr but tess than two years 1.099 1104 5,690 5230 5,359 1738 88 ]

102,838 98246  (3,642)  (2.404)

1 Rate used for corversion from CAD 1o GBP 15 1 6283 (2018 1 6803)

At 30 September 2019, the aggregate amount of unrealised losses under forward foreign exchange contracts deferred in the fair value
reserve relating to future revenue transactions is £3.6m (2018 £2 4m). It 1s anticipated that the transactions will take place over the next
18 months at which stage the amount deferred in equity will be released to the Income Statement The change in value of the hedged
item used as the basis for recognising hedge ineffectiveness for the year 1s £5.1m gain. There was no hedge ineffectiveness recognised in
profit or loss during the current year (2018 nil).

The following table represents the corresponding carrying values and nominal amounts of dervatives in a continued hedge relaticnship
including assets held for sale as at 30 September 2019

Derivatives Fair valuve reserves
FX gains Exchange
Carrying Fair value loss recycled to differences on
Nominal value of 1 October deferrad to the income translation of 30 September
amounts liabilities 2018 ol statement derivatives 2019
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Cash flow hedges —foreign exchange risk
Farward foreign exchange contracts 102,838 (3,642) (2,404) {5,061) 3,844 (21) (3.642)

During the year, the following amounts were recognised in profit or lass in relation to forward foreign exchange contracts:

2019 2018
£000 £000
Net foreign exchange (losses)/gains included in revenue (3,483) 1258
Net foreign exchange (losses)/gains included in administratve axpenses’ (361) 409
Tetal net foreign exchange (losses)/gains recognised in profit before tax for the period {3.844) 1,667

2 Net fareign exchange movements included in admirestrative expenses 1 entrely attnbutable 1o discontinuea operatiors

ili) interest rate risk

Itis the Group’s policy to hedge up to 80% of any long-term interest rate exposure, converting its floating rate debt into fixed debt by
means of interest rate swaps The predictability of interest costs 1s deemed to be mare impaertant than the possible opportunity cost
foregone of achieving lower interest rates
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19 Financial instruments and risk management continued

iii} Interest rate risk continued

At 30 September 2019, the Group had no leng-term debt. and as such. no interest rate swaps were outstanding. In May 2018, the Group
repaid term loans of $100m and £40m and simultanecusly terminated swaps corverting $360m and £32m of term debt from floating to
fixed rates recognising a gain of £2 1m recycled from fair value reserves

The Group’s exposures ta interest rates on financial assets and financial labilities are detailed in the liquidity rsk section on pages 149
and 150.

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis has been determined based on the exposure to interest rates for both derivative and nen-derivative instruments
ot the balance sheet date For floating rate instruments, the analysis 1s prepared assuming the amount outstanding at the balance sheet
date was outstanding for the whole year A100 basis point increase or decrease is Lsed when reporting interest rate nsk internally to key
management personnel and represents the Directors assessment of a reasonably pessible change in interest rates at the reporting date

If interest rates had been 100 basis points higher or lower and all other varnables were held constant the Group's profit for the year
ended 30 September 2019 would increase or decrease by £0 5m (2018 £0 8m) This 1s mamnly attributable to the Group's exposure to
interest rates on ts vanable rate cash deposits.

iv) Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the Group

The Group seeks to imit interest rate and foreign currency risks described abeve by the use of financial iInstruments and as a result have
a credit risk from the potential non-perfoermance by the counterparties to these financial instruments, which are unsecured. The amount
of this credit risk is normally restricted to the ameunts of any hedge gain and not the principal amount being hedged. The Group alse has
a credit exposure to counterparties for the full principat amount of cash and cash equivelents Credit risks are controlled by monitering
the amounts outstanding with, and the credit quality of, these counterparties. For the Group's cash and cash equivalents, these are
principally AAA rated money market fund investments, licensed commercial banks and investment banks with strong long-term credit
ratings Treasury policies in place do net allow concentrations of risk with individual counterparties and do not allow significant treasury
exposures with counterparties which are rated below investment grade. Included in cash and cash equivalents of £4%.8m (2018, £78.3m)
1s £36 3m (2018 £50.2m) directly deposited in AAA rated money market fund investments

The Group also has credit risk with respect to trade and other receivables and contract assets The concentration of credit risk from
trade receivables is imited due to the Group's large and bread customer base Trade receivable exposures are managed locaily in the
business units where they anse Allowance s made for bad and doubtful debts based on management's assessment of the risk of non-
payment taking into account the ageing profile, experience and circumstance

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying amount of each financial asset. including derivative financial
instruments, recorded in the Statement of Financial Pasition The Group does not have any significant credit risk exposure to any
single counterparty or any group of counterparties having similar characteristics The Group defines counterparties as having similar
characteristics if they are related entities. Concentration of credit nsk did not exceed 5% of gross monetary assets at any time during
the year

n
=1
*]
=32
o,
=
@
o
—
[5']
3
[]
3
—
w

v) Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as and when they fall due To manage this risk the
Greup has readily accessible funding arrangements in place and seeks to optimise group liquidity through cash pooling arrangements.

The Group's principal source of borrowings are provided through committed bank facilities available to the Group until December
2021 These syndicated facilities include a £240m (2018 £240m} multi-currency revolving credit facility which was undrown at
30 September 2019 (undrawn at 30 September 2018}

The Group's strategy is to use excess operating cash to pay down its drawings under the revolving credit facility and where undrawn
invest in short-term bank deposits and money market funds The Group generally has an annual cash conversion rate (the percentage
by which cash generated from operations covers adjusted operating profit before acquired intangible amortisation and exceptional
itemns) of approximately 100% due to much of its subseription. sponscrship and delegate revenue being paid in advance. The Group's
underlying operating cash conversion rate based on adjusted aperating profit was 98%.

The Group's forecasts and projections. looking out ta September 2022 and taking account of reasonably possible changes in
trading performance, show that the Group should be able to operate within the level and covenants of its current and available
borrowing facilities.
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19 Financial instruments and risk management continued

v) Liquidity risk continued

This table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted cortractual cash flows of the financial liabilities Including both interest and
principat cash flows To the extent that the interest rates are floating the undiscounted amount 1s derived from interest rate curves at
30 September 2019, The contractual maturity is based on the earliest date on which the Group maoy be required to settle

Less than
1year 1=3 years Total
2019 £000 £000 E000
Deferred consideration o 138 - 138
Acquisition commitments o 984 1,640 2,626
Non-interest bearing liabilities (trade and other payakles, and accruals)’ 72,983 = 72,983
74,107 1,640 75,747

Less than
1year 1-3 years Total
2018 FOOO EQOO £000
Beferred consideration o 209 125 334

Acquisttion commitmerits o 7 175 272

Non-interest beanng liabilties {trade and other payables, and accruals) 91.427 - 31,427
91733 300 92.033

1 Cther payakiles exzlude the Impact of the payroll taxes and VAT agjustents

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual matunty for its non-derivative financial assets, manly trade and other
receivables and short-term deposits This table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted contractual maturities of the financial
assets including interest that will be earned on those assets.

Weighted
average
effective Less than
interest rate 1year 1-3 years Total
2019 % £000 £000 £000
Variabls interest rate instruments {cash at bank and short-term deposits) 2.04 49,751 - 49,751
Non-interest bearing assets (trade and other receivables excluding prepayments) — 40,628 - 40,628
90,379 — 90,379
Weighted
average
sffective Less than
Interest rate 1year 1-3 years Total
2018 % £000 £000 £000
Vanable interest rate instruments (cash at bank and short-term deposits) m 718273 - 78273
Deferred consideration o - &650 470 1120
Non-interest bearing assets (trade and other receivables exciuding prepayments) — 57.8%0 — 57,890
136,813 470 137,283
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19 Financial instruments and risk management continued

v) Liquidity risk continued
The following tabsle details the Group's lquidity analyss for its denvative financial instruments including assets held for sale The table
has been drawn up based on the undiscounted net cash inflows and outflows on those dervatives that settle on a net basis and the
undiscounted gross inflows and outflows on those dernvatives that require gross settlement When the amount payable or receivable
is not fixed. the amount disclosed has been determined by reference to the projected interest rates as represented by the yield curves
existing at the reporting date

Less than 3 months
3 manths to1year 1-3 years Total
2019 £000 £000 £000 £000
Gross settled o
Fareign exchange forward contracts inflows _ 20,18 40,598 22,079 102,838
Foreign exchange forward contracts outflows (21,214) (63,302) (22,415 {(106,931)
(1,053) (2,704) {338) {4,093)
Less than 3 months
3 months to 1 year 1-3 years Total
2018 FOQ0 £000 £000 £000
Gross settled 3
Foreign exchange forward contracts inflows 19,377 57.566 21,302 98,245
Foreign exchange forward contracts outflows (19837 (5928079 (21 671) (101 315)
{460C) (2.241) {369) (3,070}

Fair value of financial instruments
The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities are determined in accordance with IFRS13 ‘Fair Value Measurement as follows:

Levell

* The fair value of financial assets and financial lickilities with standard terms and conditions and traded on active liquid markets 1s

determined with reference to quoted market prices

Level 2
*+ The fair value of other financial assets and financial liabilities (excluding denvative instruments) is determined in accordance with
generally accepted pricing models based on discounted cash flow analysis using prices from observable current market transactions

and dealer quotes for similar instruments.

* Foreign currency forward contracts are measured using quoted forward exchange rates and vield curves derived from quoted interest

rates matching maturities of the contracts

Level 3

If one or more significant iInputs are not based on observable market data, the instrument s included in levet 3

The fair values of the Zanbaoto other equity investment as at 26 July 2019 (immediately prior to its transfer to investments in associates)
and the Zanbdato convertible loan note as at 30 September 2019 were calculated using the Black-Scholes option pricing model
Significant inputs include the value of Zanbato's expected round of preferred financing and its total equity value

The fair value of the BroadGroup investment in associates priar to the step acquisition on 12 Apnil 2019 (note 15) was determined by

reference to the amount paid for the minority shareholding
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Financial Statements

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

19 Financial instruments and risk management continued

Other financial instruments not recorded at fair value
The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial assets and fnanaal labilities recorded at amortised cost in the Financial
Statements approximate their fair values.

The Group classifies its financial instruments inte the following categories

Fair value

IAS 39 measurement IFRS 9 Measurement  measurement

Financial instrument category categaory cuategory hierarchy
Dervative instruments FVTPL FVTPL! 2
Other equity investments o . o Amortised cost  FVTOC] 3
Convertible loan note Amortised cost FVTPL 3
Deferred consideration c:sé;;tﬂ_wr o o H/ifﬁorhsed cost Amaortised cost ) N/A
Recevables Amortised cost Amortised cost 7 N/A
Cash and cash equivalents — cash at bank and short term deposits Amortised cost Amortised cost N/A
Cash and cash equivalents — money market funds i © Amortised cost FVTPL 2
Classified as held for sale recevables (including cash at bark and short-term deposits)  Amortised cost Amortised cost N/A
Deferred constderation Lakbility Amortised cost * Amortised cost NZA
Deferred consideration Lability FVTPL FVTPL 3
Acquisition commitments Amortised cost Amortised cost N/A
Borrowings and payables S ' Amortised cost Amortised cost N/A
Classified as held for sale borrowings and payables Amortised cost Amortised cost N/A

I Charges in fair valus to denvatves designatad ir cash flow hedaing relationships to the extent that the bedge 15 effective. 2re taken to the fair value reserve through otner comprehensive
ncome Any ineffectiveness s recogrised in orofit or loss

Movement in assets/(liabilities) arising from financing activities:

Interest
and other
Classified as non-cash Foreign
2018 Cash flow held for sale movements  exchange 2019
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Net cash comprises
Cash and cash equivalents _ 76273 (31,150) (327) 999 1,956 49,751
Analysis of changes in liabilities from financing activities
Other financing items —prepaid bank fees 848 30 - (296) - 562
Interest payable (1.358) 1,257 - (1,601 - 1,702)
Acquisition commitments (272 97 - (2,451 - (2,626)
Total (liabilities)/assets from financing activities (762) 1,384 - (4,348) - (3,746)
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20 Borrowings

2019 2018
£000 £000
Undrawn available committed faclities 240,000 240000

Committed borrowing facilities
The Group's principal source of borrowings 1s provided through a committed bank facility available to the Group untit December 2021.

There s a further accordien facility of £130m should the Group wish to request it Drawings under the revelving credit facility bear interest
charged at LIBOR plus @ margin. the applicable margin being based on the Group's ratio of adjusted net debt to EBITDA

21 Provisions

Onerous lease Other

provision provisions Total

£000 £000 £000

AT October 2018 845 3,275 4,120
Provision in the ye;:_r_ B - 30 30
Used in the year e o (465) M7 (582)
imputed interest ' o - - 15 15
Exchange differences 3 16 47
At 30 September 2019 amn 3,219 3,630
2019 2018

£000 £000

Maturity profile of provisions:

Within one year (included in current liabilities) o 785 248
Between one and two years (included in nen-current liabilities) 533 1.301
Between two and five years (included in non-current liabilities) 2,312 2571
3,630 4120

Onerous lease provision
The onerous lease provision relates to an office in Hong Kong that was vacated following the disposal of GMID (note 11) The lease

expires in August 2020

Other provisions

The provision consists of social security costs arising on share option liabilities and dilapidations on leasehold properties A dilapidation
provision of £2.6m {2018: £2.6m) is held in respect of the Group's main London offices. The leases, which expire 1n 2029, do not contain
any break clauses. As such. itis unlikely that the provisions will be utilised before the expiry date of the leases.
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Financial Statements

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

22 Deferred taxation
The net deferred tax labilty at 30 September 2019 comprised

Capitalised Accelerated
goodwill and Financial capital
intangibles Tax losses instruments Pension deficit allowances Other Tetal
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 E000 £000
Deferred tax assets (restated) (6.160) 2.509 389 496 588 4,354 2178
Deferred tax liablity (restc:ted-) (32,527) 1020 an 0 1,199 2766 (27,553)
At 30 September 2018 (restated) (38.687) 3.529 378 496 1.787 7120 (25.375)
Reclassification B (1,148) 39 n - T asw 2,340 -
Credit/(charge) to Income Statement
Continuing operations 1,415 (684) 226 (322) 147 134 916
Discontinued operations 457 (&) - - 81 (1,002) (470)
Credt to other comprehensive income - - - 880 - - 880
{Charge)/creditto equity (182) - - - - 58 (124)
Acquisitions and disposals (487) 1,231 - - 44 (467) 301
Exchange differences (3,799 (133) 3 - 1 169 (3,759
Classified as held for sale 13,671 am - - {14) (1,502) 12,145
At 30 September 2019 (28,760) 4,246 418 1,056 524 6,830 (15,486)
Deferred tax assets 3 {5,881) 2,248 418 1,056 467 3,724 2,232
Deferred tax liaklity (22,879) 1,998 - - 57 3,106 (17,718)

Other deferred tax assets include share based payments and provisions

At the balance sheet date the Group has unused tox losses available for offset against future profits At 30 September. the deferred tax
asset recognised in relation to these losses is anclysed as follows

2019 2018

£000 £00Q

UK - 1,800 1215
us 1,998 1.020
Europe 448 1,294
4,246 3.529

The Directors are of the opinion that based on recent and forecast trading it is probable that the level of profits in future years 1s sufficient
to enable the above assets to be recovered. The UK tax losses are expected to reverse in the short-term The US losses can be carried
ferward for a pericd of 20 years from the date they arose and have expiry dates between 2019 and 2038 There is no expiry date on the
other losses.

The increase in the net deferred tax Lability relates to the unwind of deferred tax lability on intangible assets and goodwill and
recognition of deferred tax asset recognised on tax settlement paymeants, offset by significant foreign exchange movement on the Group's
US deferred tax assets There are no temporary differences (2018, £50 Om) relating to the unremitted earnings of overseas subsidiaries.
The temporary differences ot 30 September 2018 represent the unremitted earnings of those cverseas subsidiaries where remittance to
the UK of those earnings may still result in a tax labkility, principally as a result of dividend withholding taxes levied by the overseas tax
jurisdictions in which these subsidiaries operate

23 Called up share capital

2019 208
£000 £000
Allotted, called up and fully paid .
109.249.352 ordinary shares of 0 25p each (2018 109,180,729 ordinary shares of O 25p each) 273 273

During the year, 68,623 ordinary shares of 0 25p each (2018 79121 ordinary shares) with an aggregate nominal value of £172
(2018° £198) were issued fellowing the exercise of share options granted under the Company's share option schemes for a cash
consideration of £516126 (2018 £642,612)
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24 Share-based payments

The options set out below dre cutstanding at 30 September and are options to subscrnbe for new ordinary shares of 0 25p each in the
Company. All of the options cutstanding are equity settled There are nc share cptions exercisable at 30 September 2019 (2018 nil)
Further details of the Group's share plans are provided in the Directors’ Remuneration Report

Options Options

Income sutstanding at Lapsed/ outstanding at

statement 30 September Granted in Exercised forfeited 30 September

charge in year 2M8 year during year during year 2019

2019 £000 Number Number Number Number Number

Incentive scheme

SAYE/Sharesave 130 244,671 123,379 (68,623) (40,939) 258,488

Buy-out award 450 58,405 - (44,202) - 44,203

PSP - - 303 676,860 349,668 - (309,874) 716,654

Deferred bonus—equity settled - 23,514 - (19,175} - 4,339

CAP - 5,124 - - - 5,124

Total 8483 1,038,574 473,047 (132,000) {350,813) 1,028,808

----- Qptians Options

Income  outstanding at Lapsed/ outstanding at

statemert 30 September Granted in Exercised forfeited 30 September

charge in year 2017 year dunng year during year 2018

2018 £000 Number Numker MNumber Number Number
Incentive scheme o

SAYE/Sharesave S 124 261.892 96,889 79.121) (34.989) 244.671

Buy-out award 450 132.607 - (44,202) - 88,405

psp 913 484,497 282,492 - (20,129 &76,860

Deferred bonus —equity settled - 19.175 4339 - - 23.514

CAP - 6.304 - - (3.180) 5124

Total 1.487 G06.475 383720 (123.323) (126.298) 1.036.574

The fair value of options awarded for the SAYE/Sharesave scheme are determined using the Black-Scholes option pricing model.
The remaining incentive plans are for nil cost options, where the fair value is determined by the share price applicable when the options
are granted. The fair value of aptions granted during the year was £4.5m (2018: £3 am).

The werghted average exercise price of options exercised during the year was £3.91 (2018 £5.21)
The options outstanding at 30 September 2019 had a weighted average remaining contractual lfe of 6 70 years (2018 6 78 years)

Save as You Earn (SAYE)/Sharesave options

The Group cperates a SAYE/Sharesave scheme in which all employees. including Directors, employed in the UK are eligible to
participate. Participants save a fixed monthly amount of up to £500 for three years and are then able to buy shares in the Company at a
price set at a 20% discount to the market value at the start of the savings penod In line with market practice. no performance conditions
attach w options granted under this plan
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The SAYE/Sharesave options were valued using the Black-Scheles option pricing model Expected volatibty was determined by
calculating the historical volatlity of the Group's share price over a pericd of three years. The expected term of the option used in
the model has been adjusted, based on management's best estimate, for the effects of non-transferability. exercise restrictions and
kehavicural considerations.

Buy-cut award
A one-off award was made to A Rashbass on 1 October 2015,

Performance Share Plan (PSP)

Under the PSP schemes. participants are awarded nil-cast options to ebtain ordinary shares in the Company. These options have a
maximum life of 10 years and would not normally vest untl the respective three or five years after the date of the award. provided that the
performance conditions have been met

The share price used to determine the number of shares awarded under the PSP grants is the average of the middle market quotations
of an ordinary share as derived from the Danly Official List for the five decling days preceding the date of grant.

Deferred bonus—equity settled
Any bonus earned in excess of 100% of salary for A Rashbass s awarded as a deferred award
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

24 Share-based payments continued

Capital Appreciation Plan (CAP)

The CAP 2010 executive share option scheme was approved by shareholders on 21 January 2010. The remaining balance s subject to
an additional performance conditon, applicable for the vesting of the second tranche of awards, which requires the profits of each
business In the subsequent vesting period to be at least 75% of that achieved in the year the first tranche of awards became exercisable
The options lapse to the extent unexercised by 30 September 2020 The remaining CAP 2010 share cptions were unlikely to vest and the
charge was released in 2077

The CAP 2014 was approved by shareholders on 30 January 2014 as a replacement for CAP 2010 The minimum performance target
under CAP 2014 was not achieved and the options lapsed in 2017

25 Acquisition commitments and deferred consideration

The Group is party to consideration arrangements in the form of acquisition commitments, acquisition deferred consideration payments
ond deferred consideration receipts on disposals Acquisibon commitments comprise put options held by minority shareholders of
acquired businesses which are held at amortised cost Deferred consideration payments comprise consideration contingent on the future
performance of acquired businesses held at fair value and deferred consideration payable at a set amount in the future These labilities
are recognised at the discounted present value and remeasured each period The discount 1s unwound as a notional interest charge
and the remeasurement of these liabilities is recagnised in the Income Statement

Acquisition Deferred consideration Deferred consideration
commitments payments receipts
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
At October (272) (13125) (334) (350 1,020 1.989
Additions from acquisitions during the year {note 15) a4 0 - - (209 - -
Additions from disposals dunng the year - - - - 8,119 593
De-recognition on disposal of business ) -~ 317 -~ - - -
Payment/{receipt) during the year - - 232 1.470 9.,671) (1.607)
Exercise of commitments 97 10,130 - - = -
Net movements in finance inceme and expense during
the year {note 7) (1,022) 2,378 (36) (1,245) - 123
Erx::hcmge differencas to reserves o - 28 - = 17 22
Classified as held for sale - _ - - (85) -
At 30 September (2,626} (272} {138) {3343 - 1220
Within one year o (986) 7 038) (209) - 650
i more than one year (1,640) (175) - (125) = 470
(2,626) (272) (138) (334) - 1120

The addition to acquisition commitments of £1.4m relates to BroadGroup (note 15). The remaining interest in BroadGroup is subject to put
and call options under an earn-out agreement. In two instalments, based on the profits of BroadGroup for its years ended September
2019 and 2020

For the year ended 30 September 2018, the non-controling interest of NDR exercised their put options over the remaining 15% stake in
NDR for a total consideration of £8.8m The Group's equity shareholding in NDR increased to 100% The Group acquired the remaining
39% of Layeri23 for £] 3m and deferred compensation costs of £0 7m

Exchange differences to reserves were recorded within net exchange differences on translatian of net investments in overseas subsidiary
undertakings in the Statement of Comprehensive Income

Acquisition Deferred consideration Deferred consideration
commitments payments receipts

209 208 2019 2018 2009 2018
Reconciliation of finance income and expense (note 7): £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Remeasurement dunng the year (1,022} 2766 (36) (1.245) - a2
Imputed interest - (388) - . - Vi
Net movements in finance income and expense during
the year (1,022) 2,378 (36) (1.245) - 123
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26 Operating lease commitments

At 30 September. the Group had committed to make the following payments in respect of operating leases on land and buildings

Restated

2019 2018

£000 £000

Within one year 7,750 8.546
Between one and five years - o 37,005 26519
After five years D 40,186 43736
Continving operations o 84,941 80803
Discontinued operations 2,767 3.399
Total ) 87,708 84.202

The Group's operating leases do not include any significant leasing terms or conditions

At 30 September. the Group had contracted with tenants to receive the following payments in respect of operating leases on land
and buildings

Restated

209 2018

£000 FO00

Within one year 1,127 441
Between one and five years 3,546 1583
4,673 2.024

27 Retirement benefit schemes

Defined contribution schemes
The Group operates the following defined contnbution schemes Euremoney PensienSaver and the Metal Bulletin Group Personal
Pension Plan in the UK and a 401(k) savings and investment plan in the US.

In compliance with the Pension Act 2008, the Group operated a defined contribution plan, DMGT PensionSaver, up to 30 June 2017 and
thereafter the Euromoney PensionSaver, inte which relevant employees are automatically enrolled

The pensicn charge ir respect of defined contribution schemes for the year ended 30 September for continuing operations and
discontinued operations for Asset Management. comprised

M9 2016

£000 FOQ0

Euromoney and DMGT PensionSaver e - 2,356 21
Metol Bulletin Group Personal Pension Plan - o B 16 17
Private schemes - 2,359 1134
4,731 3.262

Euromoney PensionSaver

The Euromoney PensionSaver is the principal pension arrangement offered to employees of the Group Employees contribute at an
inttal default rate of 3% of salary with an equal company contribution in the first three years of employment and thereafter ot twice the
employee contribution rate. up to a maximum employer contribution of 10% of salary. Assets are invested in funds selected by members
and held independently from the Group's finances The iInvestment and administration 1s undertaken by Fidelity Pension Management,

Metal Bulletin Group Personail Pension Plan

The Metal Bulletin Group Personal Pension Flan s a defined contribution arrangement under which contributions are paid by the
employer and employees. The scheme is closed to new members The plan's assets are invested under trust in funds selected by
members and held independently from the Group's finances The investment and adminstration of the plan is undertaken by Skandia
Life Group

Private schemes

Institutional Investor LLC contributes to a 401¢k) savings and investment plan for s employees which is administered by an independent
investment provider. Employees are able to contribute up to 50% of salary (maximum of $52.000 c year) with the company matching up
to 50% of the employee contributions, up to 6% of salary

Defined benefit schemes

The Group operates the Metal Bulletin ple Pension Scheme (MBPS} and participates in the Harmsworth Pension Scheme (HPS), which is
a scheme operated by Daily Mail and General Trust (DMGT). both of which are now closed to new entrants. In 2016, due to a change in
DMGT's policy to allocate the assets and labilities of DMGT group's defined bensfit plan on a buy-out basis, the Group's share of HPS's
liability was recognised at 30 September 2016,
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Financial Statements

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

27 Retirement benefit schemes continued

In October 2018 the High Court ruled in the Lloyds Banking Group case that UK pension schemes which had contracted out of the
State Earnings Related Pension Scheme will need to equalse benefits for the effect of unequai Guaranteed Minimum Pensions (GMP)
between men and women The judgerment also provided comments on the method to be adopted to equalise these benefits

Following the ruling. a past service charge adjustment of £3 Om was recognised in the HPS respect of the impact of the GMP
equalisation. The Group has accounted for approximately 1% of this adjustment, reflecting its share of the total scheme's particication
The MBPS is net affected by the equalisation ruling as it 1s contracted in.

Harmsworth Pension Scheme
HPS is a multi-employer defined benefit scheme operated by DMGT and closed to further accrual The Group accaunts for
approximately 1% of HPS

Afull actuanal valuation of the scheme 1s carried out trennially by the scheme actuary Following the results of the latest triennial
valuation as at 31 March 2016, DMGT agreed a Recovery Plan involving a series of annual funding payments, of £13.0m on § October
2016 to 2018, £16 3m on 5 October 2019. £16 2m on 5 October 2020 to 2025, and £76 2m on 5 October 2026 DMGT considers that these
contribution rates are sufficient to eliminate any deficit over the agreed penod This Recavery Plan will be reviewed at the next triennial
funding valuation of DMGT s main schemes which s due to be completed with an effective date of 31 March 2019

In February 2014, DMGT agreed with the Trustees that should it continue its share buyback pregramme. it would make additional
contributions to its schemes amounting to 20% of the value of shares purchased No contnbutions relating to this agreement were made

in the years to 30 September 2018 and 2019

DMGT enabled the Trustees of HPS scheme to acquire a beneficiat interest in a Limited Partnership investment vehicle (LP) The LP

has been designed to facilitate payment of £10 8m as part of the deficit funding payments described above over the peried to 2026

In addition. the LP 1s required to make a final payment to the Scheme of £149 9m. or the funding deficit within the Scheme on an ongeing
actuarial valuation basis at the end of the period to 2026 if this 1s less. For funding purposes, HPS's interest in the LP is treated as an asset
of the Scheme and reduces any actuanal deficit within the Scheme. Howevar. under 1AS19 Employee Benefits' the LP 1s not included as
an asset of the Scheme and therefore is not included in the disclosures below

DMGT expects to contribute approximately £16 2m to the Scheme durning the year to 30 September 2020 relating to the deficit funding
payments described above In addition. fallewing its disposal of Curomeney dunng the period. DMGT has made £117.0m available
from cash resources to the defined benefit pension schemes. In light of the forthcoming actuanal valuation as at 31 March 2019, DMGT
and the Trustees of the pension schemes are in discussions te finalise these arrangements. The Euromoney Group expects to make cash
contributions amounting to £0 Im during the year to 30 September 2020

The International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee, in its document IFRIC 14, has interpreted the extent to which a
company can recognise a pension surplus on its Statement of Financial Position Having taken account of the rules of the Scheme. the
Group considers that recognition of a surplus in the Scheme on its Statement of Financial Pasition would be in accordance with the
interpretation of IFRIC 14

Northcliffe Trustees Limited (the Trustee) has been appeointed by DMGT as an independent trustee to administer and manage the HPS
on behalf of the members in accordance with the terms of the HPS Trust Deed and Rules and relevant legislation (principally the Pension
Schemes Act 1993, the Pensions Act 1995 and the Pensions Act 2004)

Metal Bulletin Pension Scheme

Afull actuanal valuation of the defined benefit schems s carned out tnennially by the Scheme Actuary. The latest valuation of the MBPS
was completed as at1 June 2016 As a result of the 2016 valuation. the Group aareed to make annual contributions of 38 3% per annum
of pensionable salaries. plus £5656.200 per month to the scheme over the period to 2022 The Group considers that the contributions set
atthe last valuation date are sufficient to eliminate the deficit and that regular contributions, which are based on service costs, will not
increase significantly.

The Group contributed £0 7m to the MBPS dunng the year to 30 September 2019 Pension Legacy Trustees Limited (the Trustee) has
been appoirted by Euromoney Global Limited as an independent trustee to administer and manage the MBPS on behalf of the
members in accordance with the terms of the MBPS Trust Deed and Rules and relevant legislation {principally the Pension Schemeas
Act1993, the Pensions Act1995 and the Pensions Act 2004) The assumptions for the discount rate and mortality rates have been
reviewed and adjusted to reflect the latest market rates increasing the net pension deficit from £2.9m at 30 September 2018 to £6 2m at
30 September 2019

The Trustees of the MBPS have changed the scheme rules for the underlying index of deferred revaluation from RPI to CPI, which resulted
in a £1 2m reduction in the net pension deficit {(note 5)

The Group operates a number of pension schemes under which contributions are paid by the employer and employees The total net
pension costs from continuing operations of the Group for the year ended 30 September 2019 were £3 7m (2018 £2 bm)
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27 Retirement benefit schemes continued

A reconailiation of the net pension obligation reported in the Statement of Financial Position 1s shown in the following table

2019 2018
MEBPS HPS Total MBPS HPS Total
£000 £000 £000 FO00 £000 £000
Present value of defined benefit oblgation (59,862) (27.724) (87,586) {44 940) (24.018) (68,956)
Fair value of plan assets S 52,139 29,235 81,374 40,070 25953 66023
(Deficit)/surplus reported in the Statement of
Financial Position (7,723) 1511 (6,212) (4.870) 1.937 (2.933)

The deficit for the year excludes a related deferred tax asset of £11m (2018 £0 5m)

The movements in the defined benefit lability over the year 1s as follows

Present value Fair value of Net defined
of obligation plan assets  benefit liability
2019 £000 £000 E000
At1 October 2018 {68,956) 66,023 {2.933)
Current service cost o 1,168 - 1,158
Interest (expense)/income S (1,205) 1,105 {00)
Total charge recognised in Income Statement 47 1,105 1,058
Remeasurements
Return on plan assets excluding amounts in interest expanse/income - 16,332 16,332
Gain due to change in financial assumptions (22,748) - {22,748)
Gain due to change in demographic ossumphor-w; S o 1,206 - 1,206
Experience gain 35 - 35
Total losses recognised in Statement of Comprehensive Income (21,507) 16,332 (5,175)
Contributions —employers - 838 838
Contributions —plan participants N N L (8) 8 -
Payments from the plans—benefit payments o 2,932 (2,932 -
At 30 September 2019 (87,5848) 81,374 {6, 212) -5“
Presentvalue Farrvalue of Net defined o
of obligation plan assets  benefit bability w
2018 FO00 £000 £000 g
At October 2017 747813 64 827 (5.954) g
Current service cost {73) - 73 g
lrterast (expense)/ ncome (1.246) 998 248) IEl
Total charge recoghised in Income Statement 1.319) 998 (321)
Remeasurements . N
Return on plan assets, excluding amounts in interest expense/ Income ) - 1,302 1.302
Gain due to change in financial assumptions . 3.314 - 3.314
Gain due to change in demographic assumptions 1796 - 1796
Experience gain 83 - &3
Total losses recognised in Statement of Comprehensive Income 5193 1,302 6,495
Contributions — employers - 647 847
Contributions —plan participants - ) 7 ()] 7 -
Payments from the plans—benefit payments B T 1.958 (1.958) —
At 30 September 2018 (68.956) 66,023 (2.933)
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27 Retirement benefit schemes continued

The major categeries and fair values of plan assets are as follows

2019 2018

£000 £000

Equities and dwersified growth fund 30,991 24,607
Bonds i - D 13,456 29334
Liability Driven Investments ’ o 21,067 5025
Property o 4,636 4,957
Infrastructure T o i 2,052 -
With profits policy B N o T - 1,640
Cash and cash equivalents T o 872 460
Insured annuities T 8,300 -
81,374 66023

Equities include hedge funds and infrastructure funds All the assets listed above . excluding property and cash and cash equivalents,
have a quoted market price in an active market The assets do notinclude any of the Group's own finanaial instruments nor any property
occupled by, or other assets used by, the Group The actual return on plan assets was £8.2m {2018 £2 3m)} The assets disclosed above
include insured annuities with an estimated value of £6 3m. The corresponding liability associated with these annuities means that their
net impact is considered to be nil

The key financial assumptions adopted are as follows

MBPS HPS
2019 2018 2m9 2018
% % Yo Yo
Discount rate 7 1.80 280 1.80 2 80
Price inflation o 2.95 315 3.10 325
Salary increases o 2.50 250 2.50 2.50
Pension increases 2.80 300 3.00 310

The discount rate for both scheme libilities and for the fair value of scheme assets reflects yields at the year-end date on high-quality
corporate bonds and are based on a cash flow-based yield curve, calculating a single equivalent discount rate reflecting the average
duration of the schemes liabilities, rounded te the nearest 0 05% p.a This methadology incorporated bonds given an AA rating from at
least two of the four main rating agencies

RPlinflation is derived in a similar way to the discount rate but with reference to the Bank of England spot curve at the duration of the
schemes’ weighted average duration with an apprepnate allowance for inflation risk premium (MBPS 0.30% p.a . HPS 0 20% p o)
The nominal and real spot curves provided by the Bank of England were extrapoleted up to 50 years using a bootstrapping method,
which uses gilt price information provided by the UK Debt Management Office

Mortality assumptions take account of scheme experience and alse allow for further improvements in life expectancy based on the
Continuous Mortality Investigation (CMI) prejections but with ¢ long-term rate of improvement in future mortality rates of 1 25% p a.
and a smoothing parameter of 7.0 for MBPS and 7.5 for HPS Allowance is made for the extent to which employees have chosen to

commute part of their pension for cash at retirement

The average duration of the defined benefit cbligation atthe end of the year is approximately 19 years for MBPS (2018:19 years) and 18
years for HPS (2018.18 years)

MBPS HPS

Assumed life expectancy in years, on retirement’ 2019 2018 2019 2018
Retiring at the end of the reporting year

Males 25.8 263 26.7 262
Females 27.8 __ 283 28.3 282
Retiring 20 years after the end of the reporting year

Males o 27.2 278 271 267
Femates ' 29.3 298 29.0 292

1 MPBS-62 years HPS =60 years
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27 Retirement benefit schemes continued

Pension costs and the size of any pension surplus or deficit are sensitive to the assumptions adopted The sensitivity of the defined
obligation to changes in the weighted principal assumptions is

Change in Change in
Assumption assumption liabilities
Discount rate o Increase by 0.1% Decrease by 0.6%
Inflation rate ) ) Increase by 0.1% Increase by 1.0%
Salary increases ) o Increase by 0.25% Increase by 0.1%
Life expectancy Increase by cne year Increase by 3.5%

The above sensitivity analyses are based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions constant In practice,

this is unlikely to occur and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to
significant actuarial assumptions has been estimated by projecting the results of the last full actuanal valuation at1 June 2016 ferward to
30 September 2019,

The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared to the previcus period.
These are the significant risks in connection with running defined benefit schemes, and the key risks are detailed below

Discount rate risk

The present value of the defined benefit abligation is calculated using a discount rate set with reference to high-quality corporate bond
vields. A decrease in corporate band yields will increase the present value of the defined benefit obligation, although this will be partially
offset by an increase in the value of corporate bends held by the schemes

Inflation rate risk

A significant proportion of the defined benefit obligation is linked to inflation. therefore increased inflation will result in a higher defined
benefit cbligation The Trustees have sought to acquire eertain assets with exposure to inflationary uplifts 1n order to negate a proportion
of this risk

Life expectancy risk

The present value of the defined benefit obligation is calculated with reference to the best estimate of the mortality of scheme members.
An increase in assumed life expectancy will result in anincrease in the defined benefit obligation Regutar reviews of mortality
experience are performed to ensure bfe expectancy assumptions remain appropriate.

Investment risk
This is a measure of the uncertainty that the return on the schemes’ assets keeps pace with the discount rate The schemas hold a
significant proportion of equities and similar 'growth assels, which are expected to cutperform the discount rate in the leng-term.

28 Contingent liabilities

Claims in Malaysia

Four writs claiming damages for libel were issued in Malaysia against the Group and three of its employees In respect of an article
published in one of the Group's magazines. International Commercial Litigation, in November 1925 The writs were served on the
Group on 22 October 1996 Two of these writs were discentinved The total outstanding amount claimed on the two remaining writs was
Malaysian ringgit 83 4m (£15.5m) at 30 September 2018 As the limitation period for enforcing these claims has passed. the case has
closed during the year
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Eurepean Commission (EC) Inspection

In January 2018, the EC conducted an unannounced inspection at the Brussels office of RISI Sprl (RISD. a wholly-owned subsidiary
within the Group, as part of an investigation into the sector of kraft paper and industrial paper sacks in the European Unien/European
Ecenomic Area. On 10 May 2019, the Group received confirmation that this case has been closed

EC investigation into state aid

On 2 Apnl 2019, the EC concluded therr state aid investigabion into the Group Financing Exemption (GFE) in the UK contratled foreign
company rules on the GFE and ruled that the GFE is only justified where there are no UK activities involved in generating the finance
profits The UK government has decided to appeal against the EC decision but an aid recovery process has also commenced as this s
required under EU law The maximum exposure is £8 Om
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29 Related party transactions

Daily Mail & General Trust ple (DMGT) shareholders approved distribution of DMGT s shares in Euromeney Institutional Invester PLC,
amounting to approximately 49% of the issued share capital of the Group, to its participating shareholders, following a review by the
DMGT Board. There 1s no direct accounting impact of the transaction for the Group The relationship deed entered into between DMGT
and the Group In December 2016 has terminated and DMGT's representative Directors on the Board have steppad down This was
effective from 2 April 2019 The related party transactions with DMGT below are up to this effective date

The Group has taken advantage of the exemption allowed under I1AS 24 Related Party Disclosures’ rot to disclose transactions and
balances between group companies that have been elminated on consolidation Other related party transactions and balances are
detailed below

() During the year ended 30 September 2019, the Group expensed services recharged by DMGT and other fellow group companies of
£57k (2018. £64dk)

(i) The Group participates in the Harmsworth Pension Scheme (HPS), a defined benefit scheme operated by DMGT The Group's share
of the HPS surplusis £1 5m (2018 £19m)

(i) During the year. the Group provided services to Risk Management Solution Ltd, a DMGT subsidiary. for HKD713,337 (2018:
HKD1.336.936)

(iv) During the year the Group charged BroadGroup for services when it was accounted for as an associate of £48k (2018, 40k),
In addition. the Group received dividends of £197k (2018 nil)

() The Directors who served during the year received dividends of £0 1m (2018 £0 2m) in respect of ordinary shares held in
the Company

(v) Duning the year ended 30 Septermber 2018, the Group's equity shareholding in NDR increased to 100%.
(vi) During the year ended 30 September 2018, the Group sold sponsorship revenue to Trepp LLC. a DMGT subsidiary, 2018, $40k.

(viii() The compensation paid or payable for key management s set out below Key management includes the Executive and Non-
Executive Directors as set autin the Directors’ Remuneration Report and other key Divisional Directors who are not on the Board.

Restated

20019 2018

Key management compensation EQGOD £000
Salartes and short-term employee benefits 6,300 8,239
Non-Executive Directors fees and banefits o 548 626
Post-employment benefits o 269 316
Other long-term benefits (all shorebased) o 668 591
7785 o7

Of which -

Executive Directors e 2,984 3.010
Non-Executive Directors ) ‘ ) ) 548 628
Divisional Directors o 4,253 6,136
7,785 Q774

Details of the remuneration of Directors are given in the Directers’ Remuneration Report

30 Events after the balance sheet date

The Directors propese a final dividend of 22 30p per share (2018 22 30p) totalling £24 Om (2018: £24.0m) for the year ended

30 September 2019 The dividend will be submitted for approval by shareholders at the AGM to be held on 28 January 2620

In accordance with IAS 10 Events after the Reporting Period’, these Financial Statements do not reflect this dvidend payable which will
be accounted for in shareholders’ equity as an appropriation of retained earnings in the year ending 30 September 2020

There were no other events after the balance sheet date
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31 List of Subsidiaries

In accordance with section 409 of the Companies Act 2006 @ full st of subsidianes the registered office and the effective percentage of

equity owned included in these Consolidated Financial Statements at 30 September 2019 are disclosed below
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Proportion  Principal activity
Company held and operation Registered Office
Eurcmoney Institutional Investor PLC N/A  Investment holding company 8 Bouvene Street. London, ECAY 8AX, United Kingdom
ABF1 Limited 100% Dormant 8 Bouvene Street, London, EC4Y 8AX, United Kingdom
ABF2 Limited o 100%  Dormant 6 Bouvene Street. London. EC4Y 8AX, United Kingdom
BCA Research, Inc 100% Research and data services 1002 Sherbrook Street West, Montreal, Quebec,
) H3A 3L6. Canada
Boardex LLC 100%  Information services Corporation Service Company, 251 Little Falls Drive,
Wilmington, DE19808 United States
Bnght Milestone Limited 100%  lwestment holding company  38/F Hopewell Centre 183 Queen’s Road East.
Wanchai, Hong Kong
Broadmedia Communications Limited 66%  Events and publishing business 8 Bouverie Street. Londan, ECAY 8AX, United Kingdom
Centre for Investor Education (UK) 100%  Investment holding company 8 Bouverie Street. London, EC4Y 8AX. United Kingdom
Limited
Centre for Investor Education Pty Limited 100%  Events Level &, 166 Lonsdale Street, Melbourne. VIC 3000,
Australia
Ell (Ventures) Limited 100% Investment holding company 8 Bouverie Street, London, EC4Y 8AX, United Kingdom
Ell Holdings. Inc 100% * irvestment holdmg company  Corporation Service Company. 251 Little Falls Drive,
Wilmington, DE19808 United States
Ell Holdings Il, Inc 100% Investment holding company  Corporation Service Company, 251 Little Falls Drive,
Wilmington. DE19808, United States
EINUS, Inc 100%  Investment holding company  Corporation Service Company, 251 Little Falls Drive.
B B Wilmington. DE 19808, United States L
EIMN LLC 100%  Events Corporation Service Company, 251 Little Falls Drive,
o S Wilmington, DE 19808, United States
Euromaney BML Limited 100%  Investment holding company & Bouverie Street, London, ECAY 8AX. United Kingdom
Euromoney Bulgaria EOQD 100%  Shared service centre Polygraphia Office Center, 47A Tsarigradsko Shose
i o o _ Boulevard, 1124, Sofia, Bulgaria
Euromoney Canada Limited 100%  Investment holding company 8 Bouverie Street, London. ECAY 8AX. United Kingdom
Euromoney Charles Limited 100%  Investment holding company 8 Bouverie Street, London, ECAY 8AX. United Kingdom
Euromoney Consortium 2 Limited 100%  Investment holding company 8 Bouverie Street, London, ECAY 8AX. United Kingdom
Euromoney Consortium Limited 100%  Inwvestment holding company 8 Bouverie Street, London, EC4AY 8AX, United Kingdom
Euromoney ESOP Trustee Limited 100% Dormant & Bouvene Street London, ECAY 8AX, United Kingdom
Euromoney Global Limited 100%  Publishing and events & Bouverie Street, London, ECAY 8AX. United Kingdom
Euromoney Guarantee Limited 100% Dormant & Bouverie Street. London, ECAY 8AX, United Kingdom
Euromeoney Holdings 2 Limited 100%  Investment holding company 8 Bouverie Street. London, EC4Y 8AX, United Kingdom
Euromoney Holdings Limited . 100%  Investment holding company 8 Bouverie Street. London, ECAY 8AX, United Kingdom
Euromoney Holdings US, Inc 100% Investment holding company  Corperation Service Company. 251 Little Falls Drive,
. Wilmington, DE19808, United States
Euromeney Institutional Investor (Jersey) 100% * Publishing. training and events 15 Esplanade, St Helier, JE1 IRB. Jersey
Limited
Euromoney institutional Invastor 100%  Publishing. training and events Unit 305C, 3/F, Azia Center, 1233 Lujiazui Ring Road.
{Shangha) Lirmited _______ Shanghai China
Euromoney Publications (Jersey) Limited ~100%  Investment holding company 15 Esplanade, St Helier, JET1RB. Jersey
Euromoney Services Inc 100% Research and data services  Corparation Service Company. 251 Little Falls Drive,
) Wilmington. DE 19808, United States
Euromeney (Singapore) Pte Limited 100% Events & Marina Boulevard, #05-02. Marina Bay Financial
. L Centre, 01898, Singapore
Euromoney SPRL 100% Investment holding company  Avenue Lowise 523.1050 Brussels Belgium
Euromoney Trading Limited 100% Publishing. training and events & Bouverie Street, London, ECAY 8AX, United Kingdom
Fartfoot Limited 100%  Investmeant holding company 8 Bouverie Strest. London, EC4Y 8AX, United Kingdom
FOEXIndexes Oy 100% Research and data services  Mannerheimintie 40 D 85, 00100, Helsinki, Finland
Fastmarkets Limited 100%  Publishing 8 Bouverie Street. London, EC4Y 8AX, United Kingdom
Fastmarkets Pte Limited 100%  Publishing 600 North Bridge Road. #23-01 Parkview Square,

188778 Singapore
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Financial Statements

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

31 List of Subsidiaries continued

Proportion  Principal activity
Company held and operation Registered Office
Fastmarkets Inc 100%  Publishing 310 Alder Road PO Box 841 Dover, Kent, DE19904, United
) States
Glenprint Limited 100%  Publshing & Bouver:e Street, London, EC4Y 8AX, United Kingdom
Global Commogities Group Sart 100% Events Rue Boulevard de Saint-Georges 72,1206 Geneva,
Switzerland
Insider Publishing Limited 100%  Dormont & Bouvene Street. Londen. EC4Y 8AX. United Kingdom
Institutional Investor Networks Inc 100%  Publishing and events Corgaérd‘uon Service Compcmy 251 Little Falls Drive,
Wilmington, DE 19808, United States .
fnstitutional Investor LLC 100%  Publishing and events Cerporation Service Company, 251 Little Falls Drive,
. Wilmington. DE19808, United States
Institutionat Investor Networks UK Limited 100%  Information services 8 Bouverie Strest. London, EC4Y 8AX, United Kingdom
Internet Secunies Argentina S A 85% Dormant Suipacha 111, Piso 11, Buenos Ares Argentina
Internet Securities Egypt Ltd 100% Dormant 3 Et Badia street. Off Al Thawra Street, Heliopolis. Cairo, Egypt
Internet Securities, Inc 100% Information services Corporation Service Company. 251 Little Falls Drive.
B Wilmington, DE19808, United States
Layer123 Events & Training Limited 100% Events 8 Bouvene Street. London. EC4Y 8AX. United Kingdom
Managerment Diagnostics Limited ~_100%  Information services 8 Bouvens Street. London, EC4Y 8AX. United Kingdom
MDL ESOP Limited 100%  Investment holding & Bouvere Street, London, EC4Y 8AX, United Kingdom
company o
Metal Bulletin Holdings LLC 100%  Investment holding Corporation Service Company, 251 Little Falls Drive,
company Wilmington, DE19808. United States
Ned Davis Research, Inc 100% Research and data &00 Bird Bay Drive West. Venice, FL 34285, United States
services
PL Holdings LLC 100% Research and data National Registered Agents, Inc . 160 Greentree Drive, Ste 101
services Dover, DE19904. United States
Randem Lengths Publications, nc 100% Research and data PO BOX 867, Eugene, OR 97440, United States
services
Redquince Limited 100%  Investment holding & Bouverie Street. London, EC4Y 8AX, United Kingdom
compﬂny ______
Retnsurance Security (Consultancy) CO UK 83% Publishirg 8 Bouverie Street, London, ECAY 8AX, United Kingdom
Limited e
RISl Asia (Hong Kong) Limited 100% Research and data Room 909, 9/F . Wayson Commercial Bullding,
services 28 Connaught Road West. Sheung Wan, Hong Kong
RISt Consuiting Beijing Co Ltd 100% Research and data Room 1561.Unit 01-06, Floar 15, Sectien A, Building 9.
B services o Dongdagico Road. Chaoyang. Beiling. China .
RISI Consultarnia em Productos Florestais 100% Research and data Rua Bernadine de Campos, n° 98. Sobreloja. Bairre Paraiseo,
3 servicas CEP 04004-040. S&o Paule. Brazil
RIS Inc 7 100% Research and data National Registered Agents, Inc , 160 Greentree Drive, Ste 101
_services ~Dover, DE19904. United States
RISIUS (Holdeo) Inc 100% Research and data National Registered Agents. Inc , 160 Greentree Drive, Ste 101
services Dover, DE19904. United States
RISI Sprl 100% Research and data Avenue Louise 523, 1050 Brussels, Belgium
- services S B
Shanghal Leadway E-commarce Co Ltd 100%  Research and data Room 907. No. 386, West Naning Road. Huangpu Distnict.
services Shanghai. China
Steel First Limited B 100% Dormant B Bouverie Street, London. EC4Y 8AX. United Kingdom
Stte Seven Media Ltd 100%  Publishing 8 Bouverie Street, London, EC4Y 8AX, United Kingdom
Storas Holdings Pte Ltd 100% Dormant 38 Beach Road. #29-11 South Beach Tower, 189767
. o Singapore
The Deal india Private Limited 100% Research and data B Block, Ground Flear, Central Block, Sunny Side No 8-17,
services Shafee Mohammed Road, Nungambakkam, Chennai. Tamil
~ Nedu. Indhia
The Deal LLC 100%  Information services Corporation Service Company, 251 Little Falls Drive,
___ Wilmingten. DE19808, United States
Tipall Limited 100%  Property holding & Bouverie Street, London, ECAY 8AX, United Kingdom

* 100% preference shares held m addition

T Euromoney Insbtutional tnvestor (Jersey) Limited's principal country of operation s Hong <ong
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31 List of Subsidiaries continued

All holdings are of crdinary shares In addition. the Group has a small number of branches outside the United Kingdom

The dermant companies listed above are exempt from preparing individual accounts and frem fiing with the registrar indvidual
accounts by virtue of s394A and s448A of Companies Act 2006 respectively

A lst of associates, joint ventures and joint arrangements is disclosed in note 14

For the year ended 30 September 2019, the fellowing subsidiary undertakings of the Group were exempt from the reguirements of the
Companies Act 2006 relating to the audit of Individual accounts by virtue of section 479A of the Companies Act 2006

Company

registration

Company number
Euromoney Charles Limited ) 04082590
Ell (Ventures) Limited B ] 05685797
Redquince Limited o 05994621
Reinsurance Security (Consultancy) CO.UK Limited 04121650
Euromeney Consortium Limited i o 04082769
Euromoney Consertium 2 Limited 7 L Q3803220
Fastmarkets Limited ' ) 03879279
Glenprint Limited ) S 02703517
Euromoney BML Limited - 10975335
Furomoney Haldings Limited ) ) o L . 1092562581
Centre for Investor Education (UK) Limited ' ' ' 01951332
Layer]23 Events & Training Limited . 7 i 07162466
Euromoney Holdings 2 Ltd o S 11823364
MDL ESOP Limited 03318615
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Cempany Accounts

Company Balance Sheet

as at 30 September 2019
2009 2018
Notes £000 £000
Fixed assets
Tangible assets 5 263 333
Investments 4 1,225,648 1.231.729
Debtors 7 150,514 151,680
1,376,525 1,383,742
Current assets
Debitors - 7 44,712 67.109
Cash at bark and in hand 44 529
44,758 67,638
Creditars Amounts falling due within one year 5 (34,303) 145.150)
Net current assets/ (liabilities) 10,455 (77.512)
Total assets less current liabilities _ 1,386,980 1,306.230
Creditors: Amounts falling due after more than one year 8 (534) (978)
Net assets 1,386,446 1,305,252
Capital and vreserves L
Called up share capital - B 10 273 273
Share premium account B 104,306 103790
Otherreserve - B 64,981 64,961
Cop#al redemption reserve s 56 56
Capital reserve 1,842 1.842
Own shares ; (19,682) (20.462)
Reserve for share-based payments 40,120 39.687
Profit and loss account h 1,194,550 1115085
Total shorehelders’ funds 1,386,446 1.305.252

Euromoney Institutional Investor PLC (registered number 964730) has taken advantage of section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 and
has not included its own profit and loss account in these accounts The profit after taxation of Euremoney Institutional tnvester PLC

included in the Group profit for the year is £115 4m (2018: £208 2m)

The Company Accounts on pages 166 to 172 were approved by the Board of Directors on 21 November 2019 and signed on its behalf by

Andrew Rashbass

(bt

Wendy Pallot
Directors
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Company Statement of Changes in Equity

for the year ended 30 September 2019

Share Capital Reserve for Profit Total
Share  premium Other redemption Capital Own share-based Fairvolue  and loss shareholders’
capital account reserve reserve reserve shares  paymants reserve account funds
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
At Qcteber 2017 273 103147 64 981 56 1,842 {21 005) 38.395 1.358 941 309 1130 356
Profit for the year ] - - - - - = - - 20823 20823
Change in fair vaive of ) S S o
cash flow hedges B - = - - - - - (1,358) - (1.358)
Credit for share-based
paymernits - - - - - - 174 - - 1741
Cash dividends paid - - = - - - - —  {34.3861) (34 350
Exercise of share options - 643 - — - 543 (449) - (94) 643
At 30 September 2018 273 103790 64981 56 1842  (20.462) 39 687 - 115085 1305252
Prefit for the year - - - - - - - - 115,381 115,381
Credit for share-kased
payments - - - - - - 883 - - 883
Cash dividends paie! - - - - - - - - (35,586) {35,586)
Exercise of share options - 514 - - - 780 (450 - {330) 516
At 30 September 2019 273 104,306 64,981 56 1,842  (19,682) 40,120 - 1,194,550 1,386,446

1 Referto the Consolidatea £ nanciol Statements note 9

The investment in own shares 1s held by the Euromoney Employee Share Ownership Trust and Euromoney Employee Share Trust.
The trusts wanved the rights to receive dwvidends. Interest and adminrstrative costs are charged to the profit and loss account of the trusts

as incurred and included in the Consolidated Financial Statements.

2019 2018

Number Nurnber

Euromoney Employes Share Ownership Trust 58,976 58.976
Euromoney Employee Share Trust B 1,593,198 1,656,575
Total 1,652,174 1,715 551
Neminal costpershare (p 3 0.25 025
Historical cost per share (£) 7 o n9s n93
Market value (£000) 24,452 23.091

The other reserve represents the share premium ansing on the shares issued for the purchase of Metal Bulletin ple in October 2006

Of the reserves above. a total of £231.2m (2018 £144.1m) 1s distributable to equity shareholders of the Company, comprising the share-
based payments reserve of 240 1m (2018 £39 7m) and £210 8m (2018, £124.9m) of the profit and loss account tess £197m (2018, £20 5m)
in relation to own shares by virtue of s381 Companies Act 2006. The remaining balance of the profit and loss account of £983 7m

(2018, £990 2m) is not distributable.
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Company Accounts

Notes to the Company Accounts

1 Accounting policies

Basis of preparation

These Financial Staterments have been prepared in compliance
with United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including Financial
Reporting Standard 102, The Financial Reporting Standard
Applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS102). and the
Companies Act 2006. The accounts have been prepared under
the histerical cost convention and in accordance with applicable
United Kingdem accounting standards and the United Kingdom
Companies Act 2006 The accounting policies set out below have,
unless otherwise stated, been applied consistently throughout the
current and prior year The going concern basis has been applied
in these accounts. No operating segments have been disclosed as
the Company operates as one operating segment

Disclosure exemptions

The Company satisfies the criteria of being a qualfying entity as
defined in FRS102 [ts Financial Statements are consolidated into
the Financial Statements of the Group. As such, advantage has
been taken of the following disclosure exemptions available under
FRS102 in relation to share-based payments, financial instruments
presentation of a cash flow statement, certain related party
transactions and the effect of future accounting standards not

yet adapted

Leased assets
Operating lease rentals are charged to the profit and loss account
on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Tangible fixed assets

Tangible fixed assets are stated ot cost less accumulated
depreciation and any recognised impairment loss Depreciation of
tangible fixed assets is provided on a straight-line basis over their
expected useful lives at the following rates per year

Short-term

leasehold improvements Over term of lease

Taxation

Current tax, including UK corporation tax and foreign tax, is
provided at amounts expected to be paid (or recovered) using
the tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the balance sheet date

Deferred tax anses from timing differences that are differences
between taxable profits and total comprehensive income as stated
in the Financial Statements. These timing differences arise from the
inclusion of income and expenses in tax assessments in perods
different from thase in which they are recognised in Financial
Statements. Deferred tax is recognised on all tming differences at
the reporting date except for certain exceptions. Unrelisved tax
losses and other deferred tax assets are only recognised when

it 1s probable that they will be recovered against the reversal of
deferred tax liabilities or other future taxable profits. Deferred tax

is measured using tax rates and laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the period end and that are expected to
apply to the reversal of the timing difference

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment Cost is adjusted to reflect amendments from
contingent consideration Cest also includes directly attnibutable
cost of investment

Interest in associates
Investments in assaciates are held at historical cost less
accumulated impairment losses.

168 Euromoney Institutional Investor PLC w0 1ty

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries

Impairment reviews are performed when there is an indicator that
the carrying value of an investment could exceed its recoverable
value being the migher of value in use and fair value less costs of
disposal as outlined below

« Value in use s derived from the discounted cash flows
attnbutable to the subsidiary These cash flows are extracted
frormn Board-approved budgets The discount rate 1s based on
the Group's pre-tax weighted average cost of capital, adjusted
to reflect the characteristics specific to the subsidiary, such as
geographical region and size. and

» Farvalue less costs of disposalis intended to reflect what the
subsiciary would be worth if sold in an arm's-length transaction
The farr value is determined by applying a multiple to the
subsidiary’s results and cash flows. This multiple is determined
with reference both to the Company's past acquisitions and
disposals and to data obtained from independent sources,

When the carrying value of an investment is greater than both the
vatue in use and fair value less costs of disposal valuations, an
impairment 1s recognised in the Income Statement

Trade and other debtors

Trade recewvables are recognised and carmed at original invoice
amount, less provision for impairment A provision s made and
charged to the profit and loss account when there 1s objective
evidence that the Company will not be able to collect all amounts
due according to the original terms

Cash at bank and in hand

Cash at bank and in hand includes cash, short-term deposits and
other short-term highly liquid investments with an criginal maturity
of three manths or less

Dividends

Dividends are recognised as an expense in the perod inwhich they
are approved by the Company's shareholders Intenm dividends
are recorded n the period in which they are paid.

Provisions

A provision 1s recognised in the balance sheet when the Company
has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past
event. and it s probakbkle that economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation. If matenal. provisions are determined by
discounting the expected future cash flows at a rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and. where
appropriate, the risks specific to the tiability.

Share-based payments

The Company makes share-based payments to certain employees
which are equity-settled These payments are measured at their
estimated fair value at the date of grant, colculated using an
appropriate option pricing model The fair value determined at
the grant date 1s expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting
period, based on the estimate of the number of shares that will
eventually vest At the period end the vesting assumptions are
revisited and the charge associated with the fair value of these
optiens vpdated The Company operates the Group's PSP and
ather Group share-based payment schemes, details of which can
be found in note 24 to the Group accounts.



1 Accounting policies continued

Own shares held by Employee Share Ownership Trust and Employee Share Trust

Transactions of the Group-sponsored trusts are included in the Consclidated Financial Statements In particular, the trusts’ holdings of
shares in the Company are debited direct to equity The Group provides finance to the trusts to purchase Company shares to meet the
obligation to provide shares when employees exercise their options or awards Costs of running the trusts are charged to the Income
Statement Shares held by the trusts are deducted from other reserves

2 Key judgemental areas adopted in preparing these Financial Statements

Investments

Investments are impaired where the carrying value is higher than the recoverable value of the investment, assessed as the greater of the
far value less costs of disposat and the net present value of future cash flows prepared on a value in use basis The recoverable value

of the Company’s investments has been determined taking inte account the future budgeted cash flows attributable to the relevant
businesses, discounted using the weighted average costs of capital specific to the region in which the businesses operate These discount
rates range between 11 4% and 13 4% An impairment charge of £6 Im was recognised in the year which has arisen due to an increase
the UK weighted average cost of capital from 11 0% in 2018 to 11 5% in 2019 A 0.5% increase in the UK cost of capital reduces the value
of the relevant investments by £61 4m Investments held in the Statement of Financial Position at 30 September 2019 were £1.225 6m

(20186 £1.231.7m).

3 Staff costs
The monthly average number of persons employed by the Company during the year amounted to
2me 2018
No. MNo
Executive Directors 2 2

Detaiis of Directors’ remuneration are set out in the Directors’ Remuneration Report on pages 72 to 91 and in note 6 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements.

4 Remuneration of auditor

2019 2008
£000 £000
Fees payable for the audit of the Company's annual accounts 16 16 5‘!"
s
S Tangible assets a
@
Short-term o
leasehold T
improvements 3
£000 @
=
Cost &
At1 October 2018 and at 30 September 2019 701
Depreciation )
At1 October 2018 e 368
Charge for the year 70
At 30 September 2019 438
Net book value at 30 September 2019 263
Net book value at 30 September 2018 o 333
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Company Accounts

Notes to the Company Accounts continued

6 Investments

2019 2018

Subsidiaries Total Subsicianes Total

£000 £000 £000 £000

At1 Octeber 1,231,729 1,231,729 1.0864904 1,086,904
Additions ) - - 193.452 193,457
Impairment ’ (6,081) (6,087 (48 .627) (48.627)
At 30 September 1,225,648 1,225,648 1231729 1231729

The Company recognised an impairment of £6 Tm in its investments in Ell (Ventures) Limited and Euromaney Canada Limited
The impairment is the result of an increase in the weighted average cost of capital used to discount the cash flows attnbutable to the
Company's UK investments The weighted average cost of capital increased from 11 0% last year to 11 5% this year

For the year ended 30 September 2018, the Company subscribed to 100 new ordinary shares of $1 each in Fantfoot Limited for a total
consideration of $253m (£193 &m) The Company and its subsidiaries underwent caprtal restructuring which included receiving a
dividend of $303 8m (£232 7m} from Euromoney Conada Limited Following the restructuring and the reallocation of certain central
costs, an impairment review was performed and investments in Ell (Ventures) Limitea and Euromoney Canada Limited were written
down to therr fair value less costs of disposal, resulting in an impairment of £48 6m

Details of the principal subsidiary and asscciated undertakings of the Company at 30 September 2019 can be found in note 31 1o the
Consolidated Financial Statements

7 Debtors
2009 2018
£000 £000
Amounts falling due within one year
Armcunts owed by Group undertakings - ) ) 44,446 66 843
Other debtors T 266 266
44,712 467109

Amounts owed by Group undertakings of £44 4m (2018 £38.6m) are interast free and repayakle on demand In 2018, amounts owed by
Group undertakings included a logn of £28 2m with an interest rate of 3 0% and was repaid in September 2019,

209 2018
£G0C £300

Amounts falling due after more than one year e o
Amaunts owed by Group undertakings - o B 150,297 151.097
Other debtors . 317 583
150,614 151,680

Amournits owed by Group undertakings include a loan of £150 3m (2018 £151 Im) with interest rate of 2.8% (2018: 2 8%) which is
repayoble on demand and expires in September 2022
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8 Creditors

2019 2018
£600 £000
Amounts falling due within one year
Amounts owed to Group undertakrgs ‘ _77 (30,154) (137919
Provisions (note 9) ] ) (62) (149
Corporate tax creditor (2,878) (6.210)
Accruals 1,209} B72)
(34,303) (145,150)

Amounts owed to Group undertakings of £30 Zm (2016 £5 Om) are interest free and repayable on demand In 2018, amounts owed to

Group undertakings included o loan of E133 Om with an interest rate of 2 1% and was repaid in May 2019,

209 2018
£000 £000
Amounts falling due after more than one year
Provisions {note 9) o {534) 492)
Cther creditors - (486)
(534) (978
9 Provisions
Dilapidation Other
provisions provisions Total
£0CO £000 £000
At October 2018 274 367 X
Provision in the year S - 52 52
Used in the year - 97 (97)
At 30 September 201% 274 322 596
2019 2018
£000 £000
Maturity profile of provisions:
Within one year o B 62 149
Betwesn one and five years 534 492
596 441

The other provision consists of social security costs ansing on share option liabilities The dilapidation provision represents the Directors’

best estimate of the amount likely to be payable on expiry of the Company's property leases
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Company Accounts

Notes to the Company Accounts continued

10 Called up share capital

2m9 2018
£000 £000
Allotted, called up and fully paid o -
109,249 352 ordinary shares of 0.25p each (2018 109.180,729 ordinary shares of 0 25p each) 273 273

During the year, 68.623 ordinary shares of 0.25p each (2018 79121 ordinary shares) with an aggregate nominal value of £172
(2018 £198) were issued following the exercise of share options granted under the Company’s share option schemes for a cash
consideration of £516.126 (2018 £642 612)

1 Commitments and contingent liability

At 30 September. the Company has committed to make the following payments in respect of operating leases on land and buldings

209 2018

£000 £000

Within one year 756 889
Between one and five years 2,096 3.243
2,852 4132

The operating tease cost 1s charged to the profit or loss aceount of a fellow Group company

Cross-guarantee
The Company and certain other companies in the Euromoney Institutional Investor PLC Group have given an unlimited cross-guarantee
in favour of its bankers

12 Related party transactions

Related party transactions and balances are detailed below

(i} Otherthan the transactions disclosed in note 29 of the Consolidated Financial Statements and notes 3 and 11 of the Company s
Financial Statements, the Company's other related party transactions were with wholly owned subsidicnes and so have net
been disclosed

(i) In accordance with Section 40% of the Companies Act 2006, ¢ full list of subsidiaries and partnerships. the registered office and the
effective percentage of equity owned are disclosed in note 31 to the Consolidated Financial Statermnents.
13 Post balance sheet event

The Directors propose a final dividend of 22.30p per share (2018 22 30p) totalling £24 Om (2018 £24 Om) for the year ended
30 September 2019 subject to approval at the AGM to be held on 28 January 2020 These Company Accounts do not reflect this
dividend payable but will be accounted for in shareholders' equity as an apprepriation of retained earnings in the year ending
30 September 2020.

There were na other events after the balance sheet date.
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Five year record

Consolidated Income Statement Extracts

Restated Restated Restated Restated
2008 2016 2017 2018 M9
£000 £00G £000D £000 £000
CONTINUING OPERATIONS
Revenue 23625 218,429 224926 244825 256,051
Operating prefit before acquired intangible amortisation,
long-term incentive credit and exceptional items 39 571 28,823 18708 39.945 38,514
Acquired intangble amortisation 743  (7.518) (10.012) (11.950) (14,215)
Long-term incentive credit 2.490 - - - -
Exceptional tems 34712 (35 370) (3.658) 79.910 6,350
Operating profit 69.282 (4063 5038 107.865 30,649
Share of results in associates and joint ventures (381) (1.823) (1.890) 157 {88)
Net finance income/{costs) 328 (2.227) (1.026) (1.206) (1,110)
Profit before tax ) 69,229 {18,107} 2122 106,816 29,451
Tax expense on profit 1.607) (4.596) 7.030 (41,358} (9,317)
Profit for the year from continuing operations 57,622 (22,703} 9152 65,458 20,134
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS _
Profit for the year from discontinued operations - 45703 51,679 30273 i29.685 41,059
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 103.325 28,976 39,425 195143 61,193
Attributable to: L .
Equity holders of the parent 103.083 28707 36.956 195.004 40,929
Equity non-controlling interests 242 269 469 139 264
103.325 28 976 39425 195,143 61,193
Basic earnings per share i i 81 6p 227p 34 6p 181 5p 56.6p
Diluted earnings per share o 81 5p 22 7p 34 6p 181.3p 56.6p
Diluted weighted average number of ordinary shares 126 460,787 126.584.778 112704204 107 545653 107,654,086
Dividend per share 23.40p 23 40p 30 60p 32 50p 33.10p
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position Extracts
Intangible assets 531,379 551139 593.962 588.225 405,421
Non-current assets o 47760 50,753 56,230 28273 28,477
Accruals L {55743) (73.375) (67.819) (64143) (48,562)
Deferred income . (112.129) (018.786) (16 978) (120.404) (88,428)
Cther net current assets 63,418 101.654 31251 84744 259,586
Non-current labilities (33,225) (40,009 (208.815) (3810%) (30,446)
Net assets 441,460 471,576 287.631 478 586 526,048
The five year record does not form part of the audited Finaneial Statements The five year record has been restated to take into account the
restatements relating to discontinued operations. payroll taxes and VAT as disclosed on page 114
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Additional Information

Shareholder information

Financial calendar

2019 final results announcement

Thursday 21 November 2019

Final dividend ex-dividend date

Final dwidend record date

Friday 29 November 2019

Trading update

Tuesday 28 Janvary 2020

2020 AGM (approval of final dvidend)

Payrment of final dividend

 Tuesday 28 Janvary 2020

Thursday 13 February 2020

2020 interim results announcemeant

Thursday 21 May 2020

Interim dmadend ex-dividend date

Interim dwidend record date

~ Thursday 28 May 2020

Friday 29 May 2020°

Payment of 2020 ntenm dividerd

2020 final results announcement

Thursday 25 June 20207

Thursday 19 November 20207

* Provis onal dates and subject te change

Company Secretary and registered office

Tim Bratton

8 Bouverie Street

London

FCAY 8AX

England registered number. 954730

Shareholder enquiries

Administrative enquiries about a holding of Euromoney Institutional Investor PLC shares should be directed in the first instance to the

Company's registrars, Equinit

Telephone: 0371 384 2951 Lines are open 8 30 a m to 5 30 p.m. (UK time). Monday to Friday. excluding English public holidays.

Cverseas Telephone (00) 44121 415 0246

A number of facilities are available to shareholders through the secure online site www shareview co uk

Advisors
Independent Auditor Brokers
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP UBS

5 Broadgate
London EC2M 205

1 Embankment Place
London WC2N 6RH

Numis Securities Limited
The London Stack
Exchange Building

10 Paternoster Square
London ECAM 71T
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Solicitors

CMS Cameron McKenna
Nabarre Clswang LLP
78 Cannon Street
London ECAN 6AF

Freshfields Bruckhaus Dennger LLP

65 Fleet Street
London EC4YTHT

Registrars

Equirit

Aspect House

Spencer Road, Lancing
West Sussex BN9? 6DA



Euromoney Institutional Investor PLC

& Bouverie Street
London EC4Y 8AX

www.euromoneyple, com




